
 
Regular Meeting Agenda 09.27.23  Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 
Wednesday, September 27, 2023 

7:00 PM 
The City Council meeting will be held in person in the Council Chambers as detailed below.  As a 

courtesy and technology permitting, the meeting will also be held virtually via Zoom Video 
Conference. However, the Town cannot guarantee that the public’s access to the Zoom virtual 
platform will be uninterrupted, and technical difficulties may occur from time to time. In those 

instances, so long as the public may still attend the meeting in person, the meeting will continue. 
To attend the meeting in person: 
Town Hall, Council Chamber, 1198 El Camino Real, Colma CA 94014 

To participate in the meeting via Zoom Video Conference: 
Join Zoom Meeting: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81289976261  
Passcode: 074407 
Meeting ID: 812 8997 6261 
Dial by your location: 
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 

 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 

To provide Public Comment in person: 
Members of the public wishing to speak are requested to complete a yellow speaker card and submit 
it to the City Clerk. Comments should be kept to three minutes or less.  

To provide Public Comment via Zoom Video Conference: 
Live verbal public comments may be made by requesting to speak using the “raise hand” feature in 
Zoom or, if calling in by phone, by pressing *9 on the telephone keypad prior to the consent calendar 
being heard, or prior to the close of the public comment period for agenda items or non-agenda 
items. In response, the Town will unmute the speaker and allow them to speak up to three minutes. 

To provide Public Comment in writing: 
Members of the public may provide written comments by email to the City Clerk at 
ccorley@colma.ca.gov  before the meeting. Emailed comments should include the specific agenda 
item on which you are commenting or note that your comment concerns an item that is not on the 
agenda. The length of the emailed comment should be commensurate with the three minutes 
customarily allowed for verbal comments, which is approximately 250-300 words.  
As a reminder, the Town cannot guarantee that the public’s access to the Zoom virtual platform will 
be uninterrupted, and technical difficulties may occur from time to time. Therefore, if you want to 
ensure you are able to attend the meeting and/or make public comment, you may wish to attend in 
person.

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81289976261
mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov


 
Regular Meeting Agenda 09.27.23  Page 2 of 2 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. 
Comments on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the September 13, 2023 Special Meeting. 
2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the September 13, 2023 Regular Meeting. 
3. Motion Approving the Town’s Response to the Grand Jury Report Dated July 10, 2023, Titled “Bike 

Safety In San Mateo County: Making Bicycling Safer In The County” Pursuant To CEQA Guideline 
15378. 

NEW BUSINESS 
4. FY 2023-24 NON-PROFIT FUNDING 

Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Determining Eligibility for Grant Funding, Approving Grants 
to Eligible Organizations, Finding That Each Approved Grant Serves a Public Purpose, and 
Authorizing Contracts with Each Eligible Organization for the Use of Town Funds, Pursuant to CEQA 
Guideline 15378. 

5. F STREET WALL MURAL ARTIST SELECTION 
Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an 
Agreement with Julie Englemann, Doing Business as Art by Jul, for the Design and Construction of a 
Mural for the F Street Wall Mural Located at the Base of F Street Near its Intersection with El Camino 
Real Pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15301.  

PUBLIC HEARING 
6. SERRAMONTE KIA – AMENDED CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AND DESIGN REVIEW 

Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving an Amended Conditional Use Permit and Granting 
an Exception to the Spanish Mediterranean Design Review Overlay to Allow for a New Service Center 
to an Existing Auto Dealership Located at 600 Serramonte Boulevard - APN: 008-392-140, Pursuant to 
CEQA Guideline Section 15332 

REPORTS 
Mayor/City Council 
City Manager 

ADJOURNMENT 
The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review on the Town’s website  
www.colma.ca.gov or at Colma Town Hall, 1198 El Camino Real, Colma, CA. Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-mail 
should call 650-997-8300 or email a request to citymanager@colma.ca.gov. 
Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to view 
the agenda, should direct such a request to Pak Lin, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or pak.lin@colma.ca.gov. Please allow 
two business days for your request to be processed. 

http://www.colma.ca.gov/
mailto:citymanager@colma.ca.gov
mailto:pak.lin@colma.ca.gov


Minutes – Special Meeting – 09.13.23 Page 1 of 2 

MINUTES 
SPECIAL MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center 
1520 Hillside Boulevard  

Colma, CA 94014 
Wednesday, September 13, 2023 

11:00 A.M. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Helen Fisicaro called the meeting to order at 11:04 a.m. 
Council Present – Mayor Joanne F. del Rosario, Vice Mayor John Irish Goodwin and Council 
Members Carrie Slaughter and Helen Fisicaro were present. Council Member Ken Gonzalez 
was absent. 
Staff Present – City Manager Daniel Barros, Chief of Police John Munsey, Director of Public 
Works Brad Donohue, Police Commander Sherwin Lum, Recreation Services Manager 
Angelika Abellana, City Clerk Caitlin Corley and Administrative Technician Abigail Dometita 
were in attendance.  

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION OF SPECIAL GUESTS 

Mayor del Rosario welcomed special guests present from the local Armenian community: 
• Very Reverend Father Smpad Saboundjian, pastor of St. Gregory Armenian Apostolic

Church
• Mrs. Grace Andonian, principal of Krouzian-Zekarian-Vasbouragan Armenian School
• David Ojakian, Western Region Director, Armenian Assembly of America
• John Kevranian, Northern California Regional Council Co-Chair, Armenian Assembly of

America
• Father Mesrop Ash, Saint John Armenian Apostolic Church from San Francisco.
• Sevana Panosian, teacher from Krouzian-Zekarian-Vasbouragan Armenian School
• Delegation of students from Krouzian-Zekarian-Vasbouragan Armenian School

PROCLAMATION IN HONOR OF ARMENIAN INDEPENDENCE DAY 

Mayor del Rosario stated, “We are honored to have you all here with us today on Armenia’s 
32nd Independence Day, as we raise the Flag of Armenia. Colma has strong ties to the 
Armenian Community, and we are so pleased and proud to be able to recognize the important 
contributions that they have made here in Colma and more broadly in the United States.”  

Mayor del Rosario then read a proclamation in recognition of Armenian Independence Day 
and invited Very Reverend Father Smpad Saboundjian, pastor of St. Gregory Armenian 
Apostolic Church and Mrs. Grace Andonian, principal of Krouzian-Zekarian-Vasbouragan 
Armenian School, to come forward to accept the proclamation. They both made remarks.  

Item #1



 

Minutes – Special Meeting – 09.13.23  Page 2 of 2 

The Mayor invite student speaker Daron Nazarian, 8th Grader at Krouzian-Zekarian-
Vasbouragan Armenian School, to the podium to make remarks.  

REMARKS BY VICE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Council Member Goodwin made remarks. 

RAISING OF THE ARMENIAN FLAG 

Colma Police Officers raised the Armenian Flag, while students from Krouzian-Zekarian-
Vasbouragan Armenian School sang the Armenian National Anthem.  

REMARKS BY MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

The Mayor asked if any members of the public wished to speak. The follow people made 
remarks: 

• Fr. Mestop Ash, pastor of St. John Armenian Church 
• David Ojakian, Western Region Director, Armenian Assembly of America  

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor del Rosario adjourned the meeting at 11:30 a.m. and invited everyone to stay for 
coffee and Armenian treats. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Caitlin Corley 
City Clerk 



Minutes – Regular Meeting 09.13.23 Page 1 of 3 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Town Hall Council Chamber 

1198 El Camino Real, Colma CA 
Also Accessible via Zoom.us 

Wednesday, September 13, 2023 
7:00 PM 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 

Mayor del Rosario called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
Council Present – Mayor Joanne F. del Rosario, Vice Mayor John Irish Goodwin, Council 
Members Ken Gonzalez, Carrie Slaughter and Helen Fisicaro were all present.  
Staff Present – City Manager Daniel Barros, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, Police Chief John 
Munsey, Administrative Services Director Pak Lin, City Planner Farhad Mortazavi, Director of 
Public Works and Planning Brad Donohue, City Clerk Caitlin Corley and Administrative 
Technician III Abigail Dometita were in attendance. 
The Mayor announced, “Regarding Public Comment: Members of the public who are here in 
person are requested to complete a yellow speaker card and submit it to the City Clerk. 
Those of you on Zoom may make public comments by using the “raise hand” feature in 
Zoom or, if calling in by phone, by pressing *9 on the telephone keypad. The City Clerk will 
unmute your microphone and allow you to speak. Comments should be kept to three 
minutes or less.” 

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor del Rosario asked if there were any changes to the agenda. None were requested. 
The Mayor asked for a motion to adopt the agenda.  

Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded 
Council Member Slaughter by and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor  
John Irish Goodwin  
Ken Gonzalez  
Carrie Slaughter  
Helen Fisicaro  

5 0 

PRESENTATION 
 Armenian Flag Raising Recognition

The Mayor stated, “Earlier today we had a wonderful event at the Colma Community
Center to raise the Armenian Flag in honor of Armenian Independence Day. We were

Item #2



Minutes – Regular Meeting 09.13.23  Page 2 of 3 

joined by so many members of the local Armenian Community. It was especially 
wonderful to have the students sing the Armenian National Anthem as the flag was 
raised. 

 Proclamations in honor of Ovarian Cancer Awareness Month and Prostate 
Cancer Awareness Month 

The Mayor presented proclamations in honor of Ovarian Cancer Awareness and Prostate 
Cancer Awareness Months. 

 Proclamations in honor of Suicide Prevention Month and Recovery Happens 
Month 

The Mayor presented a proclamation in honor of Suicide Prevention Month. Sheri Boles of 
the San Mateo County Behavioral Health & Recovery Services -- Office of Diversity and 
Equity accepted the proclamation and made remarks.  

The Mayor presented a proclamation in honor of Recovery Happens Month. Greg 
Thompson and Veronica Antonelli of Voices of Recovery San Mateo County accepted the 
proclamation and made remarks.  

 Honor Roll Students Recognition: 

The Mayor stated, “The Town of Colma is extremely proud of its young people and their 
academic achievements. Tonight, we are celebrating some of the bright students who have 
made the honor roll at their schools.  

We have prepared some gifts in recognition of their success: A certificate of their 
achievement, along with some Colma swag including a pen, magnet, hand sanitizer, and a 
$10 gift card to Target!” 

Congratulations to these hardworking students and their families: 
Anyeli Alfaro 
Gabriella Chen 
Grant Colina 
Jonathan Feng 
Xavier  Gomez 
Leora Viray Guevarra 
Sienna Hewlett 
De'Mya Hewlett 
Matthew Juarez Gonzalez 
Rosa Mendoza 
Eitan Montero-Meraz 
Janessa Moreno Padilla 
Mia Myvett 
Savannah Joy Fernandez Perreras 
Amir Posey 
Katelyn Rangel 
Maximiliano Salinas 
Delilah Trejo 
Jayden Wang 



Minutes – Regular Meeting 09.13.23  Page 3 of 3 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Mayor del Rosario opened the public comment period at 7:32 p.m. and seeing no one 
request to speak, she closed the public comment period.  

CONSENT CALENDAR 
1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the August 16, 2023 Special Meeting. 
2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the August 23, 2023 Regular Meeting. 
3. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for August 2023. 

Action: Vice Mayor Goodwin moved to approve the consent calendar items #1 through 3; 
the motion was seconded by Council Member Gonzalez and carried by the following vote:  

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor      
John Irish Goodwin       
Ken Gonzalez      
Carrie Slaughter      
Helen Fisicaro      
 5 0    

COUNCIL CALENDARING 
The next Regular Meeting will be on Wednesday, September 27, 2023, at 7:00pm at Town 
Hall. 

REPORTS 
 City Manager Daniel Barros gave an update on the following topics: 

• The Town Picnic was a great success. Kudos to Recreation Manager Angelika Abellana 
and her team for a job well done.  

• EV chargers will be installed at the Colma Community Center soon.  
• The F Street Wall Mural Committee has selected an artist following interviews on 

September 5, 2023. This item will come before the City Council at the next regular 
meeting.  

• There will be a Grandparent Day Celebration on Friday, September 15, 2023.   

ADJOURNMENT AND CLOSE IN MEMORY 
Mayor del Rosario adjourned the meeting at 8:09 p.m. in memory of Nanay Tessie Lazaro, 
longtime Colma resident on D Street; and Delilah Sousa, Police Dispatcher for the City of 
San Bruno.  

Respectfully submitted,  
 
 

Caitlin Corley 
City Clerk 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report re Grand Jury Response – Bike Safety Page 1 of 6 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM: Farhad Mortazavi, City Planner 

John W. Munsey, Chief of Police 
Gina Paolini, Senior Planner 

VIA:  Daniel Barros, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: September 27, 2023 
SUBJECT: Grand Jury Response – Bike Safety in San Mateo County 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council make the following motion: 

MOTION APPROVING THE TOWN’S RESPONSE TO THE GRAND JURY REPORT DATED 
JULY 10, 2023, TITLED “BIKE SAFETY IN SAN MATEO COUNTY: MAKING BICYCLING 
SAFER IN THE COUNTY” PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINE 15378. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On July 10, 2023, the 2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury issued a report titled, “Bike 
Safety in San Mateo County: Making Bicycling Safer in the County”. The Town of Colma is 
required to submit comments on the findings and recommendations pertaining to the matters 
over which it has some decision-making authority within 90 days. The Town’s response to the 
report is due to the Honorable Nancy L. Fineman no later than October 10, 2023. The 
recommended response is outlined in the staff report and duplicated in the draft letter. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None. All programs cited in the responses to the Grand Jury Report recommendations in the 
form of the future Capital Improvement projects will need to be funded accordingly. 

ANALYSIS 

The Grand Jury report includes nine findings and seven recommendations to address the 
following issue:  

Item #3



 
Staff Report re Grand Jury Response – Bike Safety   Page 2 of 6 
 

As bicycle riding has become an ever more meaningful form of transportation, 
especially with the popularization of eBikes, the demand by County residents for 
safe micro-mobility solutions has soared. Are San Mateo County and its 
municipalities positioned to respond to safety concerns and meet those 
demands?  

 
The Town’s response follows each finding and recommendation where the Grand Jury 
requested a response. The nine findings and seven recommendations with accompanying staff 
responses are as follows: 
 
FINDINGS 
 
Finding 1: Bicycle policy and the approach to ensuring/improving bicycle safety is not 
consistent across San Mateo County due, at least in part, to:   
a. Topography   
b. Urban vs. suburban environments   
c. Types of bicyclists (commuter, recreational)   
d. Varying levels of enforcement of bicycle laws   
e. Differing knowledge of bicycle laws and safe practices 
 
Response: The Town of Colma agrees with this finding. 
 
Finding 2:  Bicycle ridership as an alternative means of transportation (e.g., commuting to 
work, school, or transit hubs, running errands) is not increasing due, at least in part, to 
perceived safety issues.  
 
Response: The Town of Colma agrees with this finding. Based on public outreach surveys 
conducted for the Colma Bike and Pedestrian Master Plan, there are a few discouraging factors 
that may contribute to the low pedestrian and bicyclist rates in Colma. These factors include 
hazardous conditions, such as insufficient lighting and debris; aggressive driver behavior; no 
designated bike lanes; and travel time/distance to get to the destination.  
 
Finding 3: Bicycle accidents and incidents (such as near misses) are underreported, if 
reported at all.  
 
Response: The Town of Colma agrees with this finding. According to the 2022-2023 San 
Mateo County Civil Grand Jury Report, “…Law enforcement agencies in the County submit their 
bicycle accident data to Statewide Integrated Traffic Records System (SWITRS) based on 
incidents that result in fatality or injury. However, there are bicycle accidents resulting in injury 
which do not make it into SWITRS because law enforcement is not called. Some examples are 
bicyclists being forced off the road by motor vehicles, collisions near misses and, of course, 
bicyclist error. Consequently, the actual number of bicycle accidents is underreported and, more 
importantly, the list of accident locations is not complete. Cyclists that have an incident that 
does not involve either the police or the fire department do not have a consistent means to log 
their experience. That data goes unreported. And this goes both ways; there is no means for a 
motorist to complain about bicycle riders’ unsafe behavior...”  
 



 
Staff Report re Grand Jury Response – Bike Safety   Page 3 of 6 
 

Colma conducted a Systemic Safety Analysis Report (SSAR) in 2018 to analyze the crash history 
from 2011 through 2016 on local roadways to determine the cause and how to take appropriate 
measures in improving road safety. Colma also reviewed recent crash data provided by the 
Colma Police Department.  
 
Finding 4: Only bicycle accidents or incidents that trigger a 911 call are consistently logged 
in the State (SWITRS) database and law enforcement agencies do not log bicycle accident data 
consistently. 
 
Response: The Town of Colma partially disagrees with the portion of the finding "Only 
bicycle accidents or incidents that trigger a 911 call."  There are other means of making a 
report other than 911. 911 is one way of contacting law enforcement, however walking into 
police stations or contacting through the non-emergency line after an incident are often used. 
Information is entered into SWITRS when a report is taken. Not all accidents involving vehicles 
or bicycles are documented in a report. 
 
Finding 5: The amount of enforcement of laws, as they pertain to bicyclists and how motorists 
and bicyclists interact, is inconsistent due to other priorities (e.g., criminal enforcement and 
general automobile traffic) and the requirement that a citation can generally only be written if 
the violation is witnessed by an officer.  
 
Response: The Town of Colma agrees with this finding.  
  
Finding 6: There is no official metric in San Mateo County and its cities to evaluate how safe 
it is to ride a bicycle. 
 
Response: The Town of Colma agrees with this finding.  
 
Finding 7: Bicycle safety education, for the bicyclist, pedestrians and motorists, is not 
consistently offered across San Mateo County.  
 
Response: The Town of Colma partially disagrees with the finding. The Town of Colma 
disagrees that education is not consistently offered across San Mateo County. The education 
received to obtain a California Driver’s License covers many aspects for bicyclist, pedestrian, 
and motorist safety. Colma staff will continue to coordinate with the Silicon Valley Bike Coalition 
and Colma Police Dept. to promote programs to educate drivers, bicyclists and pedestrians 
about their rights and responsibilities, as well as traffic education and safety programs for 
adults and youth.” 
 
Finding 8: Communication between various entities with responsibility for bicycle safety, 
including Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committees (BPACs), Law Enforcement, City 
Transportation Planning, and Public Works departments, is not formalized, resulting in 
inefficiencies, and missed opportunities (e.g., funding for improvements, shared bike safety 
education, or improving signage).  
 
Response:  The Town of Colma partially disagrees with the finding. The Town of Colma 
believes that many of these aspects and entities come together during the upgrading of 
roadways, although not formalized. Colma staff will continue to coordinate to promote bike 



 
Staff Report re Grand Jury Response – Bike Safety   Page 4 of 6 
 

safety, including seeking grant funding for future improvement projects with other Departments 
and agencies, and forming multidisciplinary project development teams.  
 
Finding 9:  City Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plans or Active Transportation Plans, have not 
been adopted/created by all SMC cities. 
 
Response:  The Town of Colma partially disagrees with this finding.  The Town of Colma 
recently adopted its first Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan on August 23, 2023.  The Town of 
Colma is unaware if all SMC cities have adopted or created City Bicycle and Pedestrian Master 
Plans or Active Transportation Plans.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Recommendation 1: By December 2023, all law enforcement agencies and the County Sheriff 
should submit bicycle related data to SWITRS monthly, and regularly post and update their 
websites with all reported bicycle accident data. 
 
Response: The recommendation will not be implemented because it is not warranted.  The 
Town of Colma believes the entry of data into a State of California database should be entered 
in accordance with state law.  
 
Recommendation 2: By December 2023, all law enforcement agencies should begin 
sending warning letters to motorists for violations of the 3 ft. law.   
 
Response: The recommendation will not be implemented because it is not warranted or 
reasonable.  The Town of Colma believes warning letters may be used as a safety tool, however 
it should be utilized at the discretion of law enforcement.  The Town of Colma will continue to 
promote programs that educate drivers, bicyclists and pedestrians about their rights and 
responsibilities, as well as traffic education and safety programs for adults and youth.”  
 
Recommendation 3: By June 3, 2024, all law enforcement agencies should provide a 
means for citizens to report bicycle-related incidents that are not currently reported to law 
enforcement, similar to the SMC Sheriff’s Department Online Crime Reporting portal. 
 
Response: The recommendation will not be implemented because it is not warranted or 
reasonable. The Town of Colma believes there are numerous ways already in place to report 
bicycle-related incidents. Not all agencies want to lose personal connection with their residents 
by moving to online reporting. 
 
Recommendation 4:  By June 3, 2024 each city, town, and unincorporated SMC should 
offer a bike safety education program for riders and motorists about the laws and safety facts 
related to bicycles on the road. 
   
Response: The recommendation will not be implemented because it is not warranted or 
reasonable. Colma staff will continue to coordinate with the Silicon Valley Bike Coalition and 
Colma Police Dep to promote programs to educate drivers, bicyclists and pedestrians about 
their rights and responsibilities, as well as traffic education and safety programs for adults and 
youth.” 



 
Staff Report re Grand Jury Response – Bike Safety   Page 5 of 6 
 

 
Recommendation 5: By June 3, 2024, each city, town, and unincorporated SMC should 
update or generate a new Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan (or Active Transportation Plan) if 
their current plan is older than five years; consistent with the 2021 C/CAG San Mateo County 
Comprehensive Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan. 
 
Response: The recommendation has been implemented. The Town of Colma recently adopted 
its first Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan on August 23, 2023. The Master Plan is consistent 
with the 2021 C/CAG San Mateo County Comprehensive Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan and other 
recently adopted local plan and policies to increase bicycle safety in and around the Town.  
 
Recommendation 6. By June 3, 2024, each city, town, and the county should apply (or 
reapply) online to generate the Bicycle Friendly Community Report Card. 
 
Response: The recommendation has not yet been implemented, but will be implemented in 
the future.  The Town of Colma will apply for a Bicycle Friendly Community Report Card via the 
League of American Bicyclists (LAB) prior to June 3, 2024.  
 
Recommendation 7. By February 1, 2024, the County should meet with cities within the 
County that are willing to participate, to consider establishing a regional effort that integrates 
the cities’ bicycle plans and to discuss how the cities and County could work together to apply 
for grant opportunities as a region. 
 
Response: The recommendation has not yet been implemented, but will be implemented in 
the future. The Town of Colma is looking forward to continuing to coordinate with C/CAG and 
all applicable regional and local partners to implement the Colma’s recently adopted Colma 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan and seek funding by applying for grant funding opportunities 
as a region (Countywide). 
 
City Council Adopted Values 
 
The discussion of Bicycle Safety is consistent with the Council values of responsibility because 
it gathers information and considers actions to collaborate with the County and other San Mateo 
County cities for making bicycling safer in the County, and vision because it looks to the future 
when making decisions.  
 
Sustainability Impact 
 
Advance the active transportation efforts of the Town and regional agencies to achieve 
greenhouse gas (GHG) reduction. 
 
Alternatives 
 
N/A 
 
 
 



 
Staff Report re Grand Jury Response – Bike Safety   Page 6 of 6 
 

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) 
 
Organizational or administrative activities of government that will not result in direct physical 
changes in the environment are not projects subject to CEQA review pursuant to CEQA 
Guideline 15378. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Staff recommends the City Council, by motion, approve the Town’s response to the Grand Jury 
findings and recommendations with any revisions. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Draft Grand Jury Response Letter 
B. Grand Jury Report: Bike Safety in San Mateo County: Making Bicycling Safer in the 

County 
 



TOWN OF COLMA 
1198 El Camino Real • Colma, California • 94014-3212 

Tel 650.997.8300 • Fax 650.997.8308 

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 
John Irish Goodwin, Vice Mayor 

Ken Gonzalez, Council Member • Carrie Slaughter, Council Member •Helen Fisicaro, Council Member 
Daniel Barros, City Manager 

September 28, 2023 

Honorable Nancy L. Fineman 
Judge of the Superior Court 
c/o Bianca Fasuescu 
Hall of Justice 
400 County Center; 2nd Floor 
Redwood City, CA 94063-1655 

Re: Grand Jury Report: “Bike Safety in San Mateo County: Making Bicycling Safer in the County” 

Dear Judge Fineman: 

The City Council received the July 10, 2023, San Mateo Civil Grand Jury report titled, “Bike Safety 
in San Mateo County: Making Bicycling Safer in the County”. 

The Town of Colma was requested to submit comments regarding the findings and 
recommendations no later than October 10, 2023. 

The City Council of the Town of Colma has reviewed the recommendations in the Grand Jury 
Report that affect the Town and approved the responses at its public meeting on September 27, 
2023. 

The Town agrees with findings F1, F2, F3, F4, F5, F6, and F9. The Town partially agrees with 
findings F7 and F8 as follows: 

Finding 7: Bicycle safety education, for the bicyclist, pedestrians and motorists, is not 
consistently offered across San Mateo County.   

Response: The Town of Colma partially agrees with finding.  The Town of Colma believes the 
education received to obtain a California Drivers License covers many aspects for bicyclist, 
pedestrian, and motorist safety. Colma staff will continue to coordinate with the Silicon Valley 
Bike Coalition and Colma Police Dept. to promote programs to educate drivers, bicyclists and 
pedestrians about their rights and responsibilities, as well as traffic education and safety 
programs for adults and youth.” 

Finding 8: Communication between various entities with responsibility for bicycle safety, 
including Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committees (BPACs), Law Enforcement, City 
Transportation Planning, and Public Works departments, is not formalized, resulting in 
inefficiencies, and missed opportunities (e.g., funding for improvements, shared bike safety 
education, or improving signage).   

Attachment A



 Page 2 of 3 

 
Response:  The Town of Colma partially agrees with the finding.  The Town of Colma believes 
that many of these aspects and entities come together during the upgrading of roadways. 
Colma staff will continue to coordinate to promote bike safety, including seeking grant funding 
for future improvement projects with other Departments and agencies, and forming 
multidisciplinary project development teams.  
 
Recommendation 1: By December 2023, all law enforcement agencies and the County Sheriff 
should submit bicycle related data to SWITRS monthly, and regularly post and update their 
websites with all reported bicycle accident data. 
 
Response: The Town of Colma believes it should follow State Law in regard to entering 
accident data into SWITRS.  
 
Recommendation 2: By December 2023, all law enforcement agencies should begin 
sending warning letters to motorists for violations of the 3 ft. law.   
 
Response: The Town of Colma believes warning letters may be used as a safety tool, 
however it should be utilized at the discretion of law enforcement.  The Town of Colma will 
continue to promote programs that educate drivers, bicyclists and pedestrians about their rights 
and responsibilities, as well as traffic education and safety programs for adults and youth.”  
 
Recommendation 3: By June 3, 2024, all law enforcement agencies should provide a 
means for citizens to report bicycle-related incidents that are not currently reported to law 
enforcement, similar to the SMC Sheriff’s Department Online Crime Reporting portal. 
 
Response: The Town of Colma believes there are numerous ways already in place to report 
bicycle-related incidents.  Not all agencies want to lose personal connection with their residents 
by moving to online reporting. 
 
Recommendation 4:  By June 3, 2024 each city, town, and unincorporated SMC should 
offer a bike safety education program for riders and motorists about the laws and safety facts 
related to bicycles on the road. 
   
Response: Colma staff will continue to coordinate with the Silicon Valley Bike Coalition and 
Colma Police Dep to promote programs to educate drivers, bicyclists and pedestrians about 
their rights and responsibilities, as well as traffic education and safety programs for adults and 
youth.” 
 
Recommendation 5: By June 3, 2024, each city, town, and unincorporated SMC should 
update or generate a new Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan (or Active Transportation Plan) if 
their current plan is older than five years; consistent with the 2021 C/CAG San Mateo County 
Comprehensive Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan. 
 
Response: The Town of Colma recently adopted its first Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan on 
August 23, 2023. The Master Plan is consistent with the 2021 C/CAG San Mateo County 
Comprehensive Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan and other recently adopted local plan and policies to 
increase bicycle safety in and around the Town.  



 Page 3 of 3 

 
Recommendation 6. By June 3, 2024, each city, town, and the county should apply (or 
reapply) online to generate the Bicycle Friendly Community Report Card. 
 
Response: The Town of Colma will apply for a Bicycle Friendly Community Report Card via the 
League of American Bicyclists (LAB) prior to June 3, 2024.   
 
Recommendation 7. By February 1, 2024, the County should meet with cities within the 
County that are willing to participate, to consider establishing a regional effort that integrates 
the cities’ bicycle plans and to discuss how the cities and County could work together to apply 
for grant opportunities as a region. 
 
Response: The Town of Colma is looking forward to continuing to coordinate with C/CAG and 
all applicable regional and local partners to implement the Colma’s recently adopted bicycle and 
pedestrian master plan and seek funding by applying for grant funding opportunities as a region 
(Countywide). 
 
The Town appreciates the efforts of the Grand Jury. Please contact City Manager Daniel Barros 
should you require any additional information. He can be reached at (650) 997-8318 or by email: 
dbarros@colma.ca.gov. 

Sincerely, 

 
 
Joanne F.  del Rosario 
Mayor 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Bike Safety in San Mateo County 
 Making Bicycling Safer in the County 

Release Date: July 10, 2023 

2022-23 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 

Attachment B



 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      1                    
  

   

 
“Biking is one of the few activities that checks all the boxes at once — it’s active, practical, 

social, sustainable, stress-relieving, fun, and is a great family activity. Biking has the unique 

ability to elevate the mundane — it turns errands into adventures. More people on bikes keeps 

our streets safer, our air cleaner and our communities better connected.” Sonia Elkes, 2021 Bike 

Champion of the Year for San Mateo County Bay Area Bike to Work Website 

 

“I often drive up Alpine Road near the Stanford golf course and I believe I would have a head-on 

crash with oncoming cars if I left a 3-foot margin between my car and the thoughtless bikers who 

ride out partially in the road. What is the best advice for that situation?” Comment on Bicyclists 

Can Now Report 3’ Rule Violations Online in The Almanac 5/12/2023. 

 

“On the afternoon of Monday, April 10, bicyclist Lester Legarda was fatally struck by a driver 

on Cañada Road, a rural route popular among walkers, equestrians, and bicyclists. Details of 

the crash scene suggest that the collision speed was high. One solution to prevent future 

tragedies along Cañada is tantalizingly simple — reduce the 50-mph speed limit. Sure, drivers 

will likely continue to exceed the speed limit. But just like the paint on the road that defines 

where drivers are supposed to drive, posted speed limits set expectations for acceptable driver 

behavior.” Reduce the speed limit on Canada Road San Mateo Daily Journal 04/20/23. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      2                    
  

   

Bike Safety in San Mateo County: Making Bicycling Safer in the County 

 

ISSUE 

As bicycle riding has become an ever more meaningful form of transportation, especially with 

the popularization of eBikes, the demand by County residents for safe micro-mobility solutions 

has soared. Are San Mateo County and its municipalities positioned to respond to safety 

concerns and meet those demands? 
  

SUMMARY  

Whether for commuting or recreational purposes, residents in every jurisdiction of San Mateo 

County (SMC), as well as from the surrounding Bay Area counties, use bicycles. Because 

bicycles are widely available, for some the only mode of getting to and from work and jobs, and 

ridden in every jurisdiction, bicycle safety has become an increasingly important issue for SMC 

and its cities and towns. Without greater focus on bike safety, the number of riders will remain 

low, because people will avoid bicycling when they don’t feel safe.  The benefits of increasing 

bicycle riding are important to all residents of San Mateo County: reducing motor vehicles, 

healthy lifestyle and an inexpensive form of transportation. Accordingly, San Mateo County, and 

its cities and towns have a responsibility to make it safe for drivers and pedestrians, as well as 

bicyclists. 

   

Due to differences in terrain, population density, and existing infrastructure, the 20 different 

municipalities and the unincorporated portions of the County have differing bicycle safety needs 

and requirements. Some cities are very hilly, making commuting to work, school, or transit 

stations nearly impossible. Others are more urban and accommodate many more commuting 

bicyclists. The County also has some areas that are primarily recreational biking destinations and 

areas that accommodate both commuting bicyclists and recreational bicyclists. As a result, each 

community also assigns a different level of importance to bicycle safety relative to other issues, 

such as crime, motor vehicle safety and public works improvement projects. And education and 

enforcement about bicycle laws varies from one jurisdiction to another.  

 

Despite the differences among the jurisdictions, there are several commonalities. One is that 

cities and law enforcement do not consistently maintain records about bicycle near misses, 

accidents, or complaints; data is neither broadly available nor consistently maintained.  Another 

commonality is that government entities focused on bicycling and/or improving bicycle safety do 

not communicate and collaborate with each other often enough, if at all. This makes it difficult to 

get accurate information on the number and severity of incidents and gauge how safe it is to 

bicycle in San Mateo County.  Without data, and communication among the municipalities, San 

Mateo County and its cities and towns lose out on available state and local funding to improve 

bicycle safety through physical improvement projects.   

 

 



 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      3                    
  

   

To improve bicycle safety and thereby increase ridership, San Mateo County and its cities and 

towns need to:  

1. Create effective ways to educate bicycle riders and motorists about bicycle rules of the 

road to enhance predictability.  

2. Develop consistent communications among government organizations responsible for 

bike safety (e.g., between law enforcement and public works).  

3. Conduct enforcement details in each jurisdiction to ensure enforcement leads to 

education.  

4. Collect accurate data about accidents and incidents that is crucial to supporting and 

justifying grant applications and funding from State and local agencies for physical 

improvements to infrastructure for bicyclists (e.g., connectivity of bicycle routes from 

one city to another), needed signage, and other engineering improvements. 

 

BACKGROUND  

Why is bike safety an important topic?  

Statistically, the safer a person feels riding a bike, the more likely they will use it as regular 

transportation; both as a commuter and a recreational user.   

Fifty-three percent of Americans worry about being hit by a motor vehicle when riding a bicycle; 

47% say they would be more likely to ride a bike if pathways were physically separated from 

motor vehicles.1   

However, bicycle accident statistics, though better than in 1998, averaged 231 fatalities and 

injuries over the last ten years. The average was 203 fatalities the last three years, but the drop 

includes the pandemic shutdown and more people working from home. The source of the recent 

data is the California Statewide Integrated Traffic Records System (SWITRS2) database, 

managed by the California Highway Patrol. All law enforcement agencies are required to submit 

accident data to the database on a regular basis. 

A 2002-2003 SMC Civil Grand Jury titled, Bike Safety in San Mateo County3, questioned 

whether San Mateo County and the cities adequately consider and support safe bicycle travel? At 

that time, it was estimated that 46% of Americans bicycle for pleasure and 300,000 County 

residents bicycle at least occasionally. Commuting by bicycle was less than 1% in the County.  

That year’s Grand Jury found that bicycle infrastructure for safe travel needed improvement, but 

funding was an issue.  It also found that communication and planning between the county and 

the cities on bicycle projects and safety could be improved. And that throughout SMC, bicycle 

safety was not a high priority. The primary recommendation of the report was the county, and all 

cities should develop a long-term strategic bicycle and safety plan.  

                                                           
1 People for Bikes: https://www.peopleforbikes.org/news/building-for-tomorrow 
2 https://iswitrs.chp.ca.gov/Reports/jsp/logout.do 
3 https://www.sanmateocourt.org/court_divisions/grand_jury/2002reports.php?page=02SMC-Bicycle.html 

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      4                    
  

   

A few things have changed since then.  

Over the years, the focus of cities and the county on improving bike and pedestrian forms of 

transportation has increased: 

● Bicycle maps and routes are now generally available online.  

● The City/County Association of Governments (C/CAG) updated their San Mateo County 

Comprehensive Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan in 20114 and 20215.  

● California enacted Assembly Bill 1358, California Complete Streets Act of 20086, 

requiring all cities and counties to include complete streets policies as part of any 

substantial revision to the circulation element of their general plans; and cities and the 

County have adopted these complete streets policies, noting these policies in their 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plans, or Active Transportation Plans.  

● SMC and most of its municipalities have created and consistently upgraded their Bicycle 

and Pedestrian Master Plans.  

● Unincorporated San Mateo County has created an Active Transportation Plan7 (Active 

Transportation is a term often used to cover walking, bicycling, and other motorized 

devices as a primary mode of transportation).  

● C/CAG, Unincorporated SMC and some cities have created Bike and Pedestrian 

Advisory Committees to address active transportation improvements, safety issues, and 

other citizen related requests. 

Meanwhile, the number of bicyclists in San Mateo County has not increased since 2002, 

according to the California Household Travel Survey, which is regularly used for data on the 

number of bicyclists in a community, but is restricted to commuting.  

The 2002 and 2012 surveys showed only 1% of SMC’s population rides bicycles as a form of 

transportation. Looking at the various municipalities’ Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plans, and 

the surveys and counts discussed in the plans, bicycle commute ridership still hovers at 

approximately 1% within SMC.  

It is important to note that the number of people in SMC using bicycles in lieu of a car has not 

increased in 20 years. This is in contrast to the estimated number of recreational bicyclists (46%) 

in SMC, who also use streets and bicycle paths and expect a safe ride8. 

                                                           
4 https://ccag.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2014/07/CBPP_Main-Report__Sept2011_FINAL.pdf 
5https://ccag.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/6_A1_San-Mateo-County-Comprehensive-Bicycle-and-

Pedestrian-Plan-Update-Final-Plan.pdf 
6 http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/07-08/bill/asm/ab_1351-1400/ab_1358_bill_20080930_chaptered.pdf 
7https://www.smcsustainability.org/livable-communities/active-transportation/unincorporated-smc-active-

transportation-plan/ 
8https://ccag.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/6_A1_San-Mateo-County-Comprehensive-Bicycle-and-

Pedestrian-Plan-Update-Final-Plan.pdf 

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      5                    
  

   

However, even with roadway and signage improvements over the past 20 years, there is much 

San Mateo cities and the county can do to improve bicycle safety. 

DISCUSSION 

The merits of bicycle riding may seem self-evident, but a wide range of research reveals often 

surprising benefits to local economies, personal health, the environment, traffic congestion, and 

pedestrian safety that are unique to bicycle friendly communities. 

Health Benefits 

Bicycle riding contributes to both physical and mental health. Regular exercise such as cycling 

can help prevent heart issues9 such as stroke, heart attack, high blood pressure, and may also help 

prevent and manage type 2 diabetes.10 Riding a bicycle is good for cognitive health and 

emotional well-being and can ease feelings of stress, depression, or anxiety.11 

 

All in all, bicycling for only 30 minutes a day reduces a person’s chances of diabetes, dementia, 

depression, colon cancer, cardiovascular disease, anxiety and high blood pressure by 40 percent 

or more.12 

 

The World Health Organization has found that “If every adult EU citizen walked or cycled for 15 

extra minutes per day, we’d have 100,000 fewer people dying prematurely, each year.”13 

Environmental Benefits 

Among the most obvious benefits of cycling is its benign effects on the environment. A solo 

driver in an average car releases about 1.1 pounds of CO2 per mile.14 A standard compact to 

midsize car that travels 12,000 miles will emit 11,000 pounds of CO2.15 The average car 

produces about 1.3 billion cubic yards of polluted air over the course of its lifespan plus worn 

tire particles, brake wear, and the emissions from other materials in the car also contribute to air 

pollution.16 Recent research in Europe found that traveling by bicycle instead of by car once a 

day decreases your transportation carbon footprint by 67%.17  

                                                           
9  https://www.hopkinsmedicine.org/health/wellness-and-prevention/exercise-and-the-heart 
10 https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4942105/ 
11https://www.psychologytoday.com/us/blog/minding-the-body/201505/bicycling-can-sharpen-your-thinking-and-improve-your-

mood 
12 https://www.exerciseismedicine.org/assets/page_documents/EIMFactSheet_2014.pdf 
13 https://ecf.com/news-and-events/news/walking-and-cycling-reduce-congestion 
14 https://www.sharetheroad.ca/what-are-the-environmental-traffic-congestion-benefits-of-cycling--s16223 
15 https://www.treehugger.com/cars-are-causing-air-pollution-we-breathe-new-study-finds-4856825 
16 https://www.scholaradvisor.com/essay-examples-for-college/bicycle-helps-reduce-air-pollution/ 
17 https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S1361920921000687 

 

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      6                    
  

   

Traffic 

As active transportation choices like walking and bicycling gain attention and popularity, 

researchers are beginning to investigate the role these travel modes can play in reducing traffic 

congestion.18 Studies show that measures taken to promote bicycling and walking have a positive 

effect on congestion.  

Research in Washington, DC identified a causal effect of the presence of a bike-share station on 

traffic congestion. The result is a 2-to-3% reduction in traffic congestion that can be attributed to 

the bike-share station within the sample.19  

Economic Benefits 

Among the more surprising findings is the positive economic impact from an increase in bicycle 

usage but studies show that the bicycle-related economy creates jobs, economic activity, and cost 

savings.20 

Bicycle trails and facilities have a positive, statistically significant impact on home values; a 

2006 study in Minneapolis found that the median home values rose $510 for every quarter mile 

they were located closer to an off-street bikeway.21 

Indianapolis’ Cultural Trail, an 8-mile network of separated bike and pedestrian lanes, has 

reinvigorated a number of struggling business districts and sparked a whopping $1 billion in 

increased property values.22  

And in an era when streets and sidewalks across the county are in various states of disrepair, 

bicycle projects can significantly reduce the cost of maintaining and expanding our 

transportation systems.23 Even protected bicycle lanes are “dirt cheap to build compared to road 

projects,” says Gabe Klein, a partner at Fontinalis, a venture capitalist firm founded by Ford 

Motor Co. Chairman Bill Ford. Cities everywhere need to be more efficient about the money 

they spend to move people. "We need to get more use from the streets we already have.”   

Research indicates that investments in cycling infrastructure generate more jobs per dollar spent 

than investments in road-only infrastructure; cycling projects create a total of 11.4 local jobs for 

each $1 million spent while road-only projects create 9.6 jobs per $1 million.24 

                                                           
18 https://kawarthanow.com/2019/01/17/reduce-traffic-congestion-bikes-can-do-that 
19 https://www.resources.org/archives/commentary-does-bicycle-infrastructure-reduce-traffic-congestion/ 
20 https://railyards.com/blog/7-benefits-of-bike-friendly-communities 
21 https://smartcity.press/bicycle-infrastructure-in-smart-city/ 
22 https://indyculturaltrail.org/2015/07/23/economic-impact-figures-released/ 
23https://www.aarp.org/livable-communities/getting-around/info-2016/why-bicycling-infrastructure-is-good-for-people-who-

dont-ride-bikes.html 
24 https://www.sharetheroad.ca/what-are-the-environmental-traffic-congestion-benefits-of-cycling--s16223 

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      7                    
  

   

Bicycle friendly communities are important to millennial job seekers and functional bicycle 

infrastructures help companies attract talent. “States and cities are competing for the most mobile 

generation ever and so the job creators and the innovators are really pushing for these 

amenities.”25  

Safety 

The most comprehensive study of bicycle and road safety to date finds that building safe 

facilities for cyclists is one of the biggest factors in road safety for everyone. Bicycling 

infrastructure -- specifically, separated and protected bike lanes -- leads to fewer fatalities and 

better road-safety outcomes for all road users.26 

Davis, CA was the first city to gain “platinum” status by the League of American Bicyclists and 

is often referred to as the “bicycle capital of America.” From 1996 to 2007, Davis only had nine 

fatal road crashes. Despite having the largest percentage of bike commuters in the United States, 

none of these accidents involved a bicyclist. With a fatal crash rate of less than 1.5 per 100,000 

residents, far fewer people are killed on Davis’ roads than in the U.S. as a whole, which averaged 

14.5 fatalities per 100,000 residents. 

Portland, OR, another platinum bicycling city, saw a nearly 50% decrease in road fatalities as it 

increased its bicycle mode share from 1.2% in 1990 to 5.8% in 2000. Bike friendly communities 

are safer for all road users, no matter what type of transportation is being used. 

Social Benefits 

Finally, bicycle riding as an alternative to car travel is associated with a number of social 

benefits, including increased social interaction, social networks, and social capital.27 A bicycle 

rider has a completely different relationship with their environment than those who are cocooned 

in their cars. 

When communities invest in bicycle infrastructure, everyone benefits. Overall, bicycle 

commuters are healthier and bicycle-friendly streets are safer for everyone on the road. Bicycle 

friendly communities reap economic benefits including more retail activity and increased home 

values. The evidence is clear: bicycling brings big benefits to communities who embrace it. 

Status Today 

Twenty years after the first San Mateo Grand Jury report, significant gaps remain in 

jurisdictions’ approach to bicycle safety: 

                                                           
25 https://railyards.com/blog/7-benefits-of-bike-friendly-communities 

 
26 https://www.cnu.org/sites/default/files/marshallw_cnu18.pdf 
27 https://www.peoplepoweredmovement.org/benefits-of-biking-walking/ 

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      8                    
  

   

● San Mateo County and its municipalities’ characteristics make it difficult to create a 

consistent approach to bicycle safety. 

● The use of bicycle safety education as a tool to increase safety for bicyclists and 

motorists is underutilized Countywide. 

● Communication and coordinated planning across city lines is the exception, rather than 

the norm. Reporting of bicycle-related incidents is inconsistent throughout the county.  

● Enforcement of bicycle laws, for motorists and bicyclists, is inconsistent and not 

prioritized. 

 

Bicycle Safety in San Mateo County Cities 

Each city and town in San Mateo County is unique and has a different relationship with bicycle 

use and safety.  These variations include: 

●      Topography 

●    Objectives and priorities re bicycles and ridership 

●    Safety Perception 

●    Infrastructure 

●    Impact of eBikes  

●    Role of enforcement in bicycle safety. 

For example: 

Woodside and Portola Valley: Woodside and Portola Valley are hill communities with 

narrow roads. Woodside has a very active Circulation Committee which keeps a close 

eye on large bicycling events in the community and Portola Valley is focused on 

managing bicyclists on the weekend. But in both cases, the communities concentrate on 

ensuring quality of life for residents.  They both see mostly recreational bicyclists. 

Woodside has invested as much as $1 million to ensure a “safe route to school” for the 

children. However, the communities don’t make a strong effort to track riders or 

accidents. In both communities the Sheriff’s Office, which is their policing arm, enforces 

rules at some problem locations, but not regularly. 

Hillsborough: Hillsborough is a relatively insular community by nature of its location 

and topography. It has no commercial districts and is, to a large degree, rather hilly. The 

view on bicyclists is very much a neighborhood view: meaning the expectation is that if 

there are problems with bicyclists they are brought up by members of the neighborhoods. 

The primary focus on any kind of organized bicycling safety activity is efforts to teach 

children bicycle safety and safe routes to school at the beginning of the school year.  

Belmont: Until quite recently, the City has been completely focused on ensuring that the 

community is comfortable for single family dwellings. However, areas close to El 

Camino Real are more commercial and have denser housing. The community now has 

both recreational and commuting bicyclists using the roads. While Belmont does have a 

bicycle master plan and holds an annual bike safety program for children and teenagers, 



 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      9                    
  

   

more needs to be done. The City needs to obtain funding from external Federal, State and 

County sources to do more. 

Half Moon Bay: Possibly more than any other community in San Mateo County, Half 

Moon Bay has a sophisticated, complex relationship with bicyclists. On the one hand, 

Half Moon Bay attracts many visitors -- both vacationers and visitors from other Bay 

Area communities; and on the other hand, it has a robust population of residents who use 

their bicycles to get to work, school, and stores. Moreover, while Half Moon Bay has 

many surface streets, it is dominated by Highways 1 and 92 which have many 

challenging safety issues. As a result, the community has a bicycle master plan that 

focuses on bicycle safety and traffic planning. Despite this very proactive approach, the 

City deals with sometimes devastating safety issues. However, it appears that concern for 

bicycle safety is shared by many of the participants in the community. 

San Mateo: The City of San Mateo updated its bicycle master plan in 2020. As a result, 

the City has focused on a variety of contemporaneous issues. These include working to 

develop a roadway network which could accommodate both bicycles and other types of 

active transportation. The City believes that it still skews toward recreational bicycling 

but is finding that more people want to use bicycles as a way of getting around. The 

master plan covers some education issues such as safe routes to school and safe bicycling 

for seniors. The plan does not talk about safety per se but addresses it from the vantage 

point of education. Though the City is focused on these matters it still recognizes that 

there's more education to be done about the rules of the road for bicyclists. 

Unincorporated San Mateo County: Large areas of San Mateo County are small towns, 

private land, and open space, bisected, primarily, by two lane roads and highways.  To 

address bicycle safety in these areas, the county created the Unincorporated San Mateo 

County Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee. Though there is no explicit Bicycle and 

Pedestrian Master Plan, they do contribute to the SMC Active Transportation plan. The 

Committee makes recommendations regarding bicycle and pedestrian related grants, but 

expressed frustration with money not being shared equitably.  Additionally, the 

Committee inputs bicyclist’s feedback.  They are concerned with the number of incidents 

between motorists and bicyclists that are not addressed by law enforcement.  The 

Committee has been working with the County Sheriff to address the problem. 

These are just a few examples of San Mateo County and its municipalities' approach to bicycle 

safety. But because the communities are so diverse, thinking about bicycle safety needs to be 

broad-minded. 

Bicycle Safety Education in SMC: Not just for cyclists 

Since bicycle safety is crucial to encouraging bicycle usage, it follows that bicycle safety 

education is an essential component of the bicycle safety equation.  



 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      10                    
  

   

According to the US Department of Transportation: “Educating people about safe bicycling and 

walking, enforcing laws that make it easier and safer for people to bicycle and walk, and 

encouraging people to bicycle and walk, may help increase walking and bicycling activity, 

especially when combined with infrastructure improvements.”28 

Moreover, as noted on the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration’s Bicycle Safety web 

page, “A large percentage of crashes can be avoided if motorists and cyclists follow the rules of 

the road and watch out for each other.”29 

 

In San Mateo County, much of the focus on bicycle safety and bicycle safety education is 

focused on ensuring safe routes to schools for children. Several communities, as detailed below, 

have much more comprehensive approaches to bicycle safety education in their Bicycle and 

Pedestrian Master Plans. Here are some examples: 

● Burlingame (Excerpt from the Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan) 

Policy 11: Educate people walking, bicycling, and driving, and the general public about 

roadway safety and the benefits of bicycling and walking. 

11.1: Support the continuation and expansion of bicycle safety education programs such 

as those taught by Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition and the San Mateo County Office of 

Education. 

 

Policy 12: Encourage Burlingame public schools to participate in the Safe Routes to 

School program organized by the San Mateo County Office of Education. 

 

● Brisbane’s Master Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan examples: 

 

“Policy 4.A.5: Provide support for programs that educate drivers, bicyclists and 

pedestrians about their rights and responsibilities, as well as traffic education and safety 

programs for adults and youth.” 

 

“Programs support bicycling and walking by providing encouragement to those 

considering bicycling and walking, education for motorists, bicyclists, and pedestrians 

about safe and appropriate sharing of streets and roads, and enforcement of traffic laws 

that help ensure the safety of vulnerable road users.” 

 

● County Sheriff: 

The San Mateo County Sheriff’s office publishes a pamphlet, Bicycle Safety30, on the 

California Vehicle Code sections related to bicycle safety. One City, Woodside, 

references this document, which could be used by all cities, schools and police 

                                                           
28 https://safety.fhwa.dot.gov/ped_bike/ped_focus/docs/fhwasa17050.pdf 
29 https://www.nhtsa.gov/road-safety/bicycle-safety 
30 https://www.woodsidetown.org/sites/default/files/fileattachments/community/page/33495/bicycle_safety.pdf 

about:blank


 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      11                    
  

   

departments to improve bicycle safety education. However, the document is not available 

on the SMC Sheriff website. 

● City of San Mateo: 

San Mateo has some support for bicycle use and safety on its City website. The pages 

are listed in the table below.  

 

EXISTING 

Support Program Description Webpage 

Bicycle Webpage There is brief text about bike 

routes and using a bike with 

public transport on the City’s 

webpage 

http://www/cityofsanmateo.org/

2125/Parking-and-

Transportation 

Bicycle Education 

Events 

The city’s Public Works 

Department hosts an annual 

bike rodeo 

http://www.cityofsanmateo.org/

3736/Bike-Rodeo 

 

Moving to Excellent Bike Safety Education in all SMC Cities 

 

Overall, the approach to bicycle safety education in SMC communities is inconsistent. Several of 

the master plans recognize that bicycle safety education is about teaching motorists and cyclists 

of all ages about the guidelines for bicycle safety. Other communities either don’t focus much on 

education or are focused exclusively on “Safe Routes to School”. 

Nonetheless, there are a handful of programs identified in the table below that creatively address 

bicycle safety, which San Mateo County and its municipalities should consider adopting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      12                    
  

   

 

 

RECOMMENDED FOR ALL SMC CITIES 

Support Program Description Webpage 

Establish child and 

adult education 

programs 

Identify and implement 

education programs for 

children and adults that build 

bicyclists’ confidence, done 

in coordination with the Parks 

and Recreation Department, 

Police or Local Schools. 

https://www.portlandoregon.go

v/transportation/article/565224 

 

http://www/cityofsanmateo.org/

2125/Parking-and-

Transportation 

 

Establish Safe 

Routes to School 

Funding 

Establish a stable funding 

source for Safe Routes to 

School programming 

https://www.metro.net/projects/

sr_ts/fund-your-program 

 

Implement and 

promote 

demonstration 

projects 

Implement short-term, high-

visibility bicycle 

demonstration or ‘pop-up’ 

projects to serve as models 

that can be applied throughout 

the city. Market bicycle 

safety. 

https://transportation.bellevuew

a.gov/UserFiles/Servers/Server

_4779004/File/Transportation/P

ublications/PBII_Demo%20Bik

eway%20Brochure_20180205.

pdf 

 

Provide safety 

education program 

for users of all 

modes 

Provide safety education 

programs or communications 

campaigns for people driving, 

bicycling, walking, and using 

micro mobility devices that 

encourage safe travel 

behaviors. 

http://www.pedbikeinfo.org/ 

 

Create a robust 

bicycling webpage 

Develop and maintain a 

content rich mobility 

webpage(s) on the 

County/City website and 

communicate how to reach 

city destinations by bike, on 

foot or on micro-mobility 

devices. Include information 

on these transportation 

options. 

https://www.metro.net/riding/g

o-bike 

 

http://www/cityofsanmateo.org/

2125/Parking-and-

Transportation 

 

 

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      13                    
  

   

 

Bicycle & Pedestrian Master Plans and Advisory Committees: Planning Across the County 

The 2002 SMC Grand Jury Report recommended that all municipalities create Bicycle and 

Pedestrian Master Plans. As a best practice, the municipalities were encouraged to form Bicycle 

and Pedestrian Advisory Committees.  

To date, almost all San Mateo County jurisdictions or cities have Bicycle and Pedestrian Master 

Plans, or Active Transportation Plans. Most, if not all of these plans, align with 

recommendations from the 2011 C/CAG’s San Mateo County Comprehensive Bicycle and 

Pedestrian Plan. The 2021 update of C/CAG’s plan enhances and adds to the 2011 C/CAG San 

Mateo County plan, but most of the cities and towns have not updated their plans to be consistent 

with the 2021 plan. (See Appendix D for a complete list of San Mateo County’s Bicycle & 

Pedestrian Master Plans.) 

The cities’ bicycle and pedestrian master plans help each city by identifying strategies to 

improve bicycle and pedestrian safety. The plans recommend improvements for roadway 

connectivity for bicyclists and pedestrians, within each city as well as with neighboring cities. 

Numerous plans reference the Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition and the League of American 

Bicyclists (LAB) as organizations that have certified instructors for bicycle safety education. At 

least several of the plans also discuss the LAB Bicycle Friendly Community Report Card to 

which five SMC cities and San Mateo County belong. The plans list potential State and Federal 

funding for projects that improve safety and roadway connectivity and make clear the 

importance of annually evaluating and tracking progress against objectives. 

However, in SMC, County committees and municipalities do not always work together to 

generate consistent plans that meet C/CAG’s goal for a Countywide bicycle backbone. Though 

C/CAG does have an advisory committee which includes representatives from municipalities, it 

does not have control over what individual municipalities decide to do regarding grant 

applications, infrastructure projects for better bicycle and pedestrian safety and education 

initiatives. If the municipalities endeavored to work together to prioritize projects and programs 

that are consistent with C/CAG’s priorities, it would benefit all of San Mateo County, especially 

with respect to providing north-south connectivity between municipalities. 

Metrics: If you don’t measure it, you can’t improve it. 

One important measure of bicycle safety is arriving safely at a destination. This is usually 

reflected in the negative; that is, the number of fatalities and injuries during a calendar year 

versus the number of successful bicycle trips.  

In San Mateo County, the cities and county rely heavily on data supplied to the California 

Highway Patrol (CHP) to state the number of fatalities and injuries. The CHP then maintains a 

database, SWITRS (California Statewide Integrated Traffic Records System), which is accessible 



 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      14                    
  

   

to the public. And, UC Berkeley maintains a website, TIMS31 (Transportation Injury Mapping 

System), which can further refine the raw data from SWITRS.  

However, relying on this data to evaluate Bicycle Safety is problematic.  

Law enforcement agencies in the County submit their bicycle accident data to SWITRS based on 

incidents that result in fatality or injury. However, there are bicycle accidents resulting in injury 

which don’t make it into SWITRS because law enforcement is not called. Some examples are 

bicyclists being forced off the road by motor vehicles, collision near misses and, of course, 

bicyclist error. Consequently, the actual number of bicycle accidents is underreported and, more 

importantly, the list of accident locations is not complete. Cyclists that have an incident that does 

not involve either the police or the fire department do not have a consistent means to log their 

experience. That data goes unreported. And this goes both ways; there is no means for a motorist 

to complain about bicycle riders’ unsafe behavior. 

Countywide there is no uniform metric to measure Bicycle Safety. Without such a measure, it’s 

impossible to assess progress while building infrastructure, enforcing laws, and educating 

everyone in safety principles.  

 

An obvious metric is bicycle accidents as recorded by SWTRS and online reports, but there is 

another metric which evaluates the complex equation that results in safe bicycling: Bicycle 

Friendly America Certification32.  

 

The League of American Cyclists is a national organization dedicated to creating “safer roads, 

stronger communities and a Bicycle Friendly America for everyone.” This is a grassroots 

organization dedicated since 1880 to protecting the right to safe and enjoyable bicycling. A 

valuable achievement of this organization is establishing the Bicycle Friendly America (BFA) 

certification for cities and counties. This consists of a very detailed application33 that a city or 

county official fills out to get a comprehensive rating of bicycle safety. BFA defines bicycle 

safety using 5 E’s: 

● Equity and Accessibility: A bicycle-friendly America for everyone 

● Engineering: Creating safe and creative places to ride and park 

● Education: Giving people of all ages and abilities the skills and confidence to ride 

● Encouragement: Creating a strong bike culture that welcomes and celebrates bicycling 

● Evaluation and Planning: Planning for bicycling as a safe and viable transportation option 

[Note that Enforcement, a common element in the 5 E’s of safety, is not included in the 

BFA definition.] 

                                                           
31https://tims.berkeley.edu/summary.php?showArea=city&expandTables=false&injury=3&yearRange=3&showMap

=crashes 
32 https://bikeleague.org/bfa/ 
33 https://bicyclefriendly.secure-platform.com/a/organizations/main/home 



 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      15                    
  

   

The application covers the BFA 5 E’s and investigates what it calls the 10 building blocks of a 

Bicycle Friendly Community (BFC). Finally, the rating includes steps to reaching the next level 

of excellence. Oakland in 2022, for example, received a GOLD rating Report Card34 having been 

BRONZE in 2010 and SILVER in 2014. The following cities and SMC have received the 

following ratings: 

● Menlo Park35: GOLD: 2017 

● Redwood City36: BRONZE: 2016 

● San Carlos37: BRONZE: 2016 

● San Mateo38: BRONZE: 2016 

● South San Francisco39: BRONZE: 2018 

● San Mateo County40: BRONZE: 2016 

The BFC Report Card is a valuable metric that all cities and the County should make use of. If 

SMC cities develop the information necessary to answer objective and comprehensive questions 

about bicycle safety, each jurisdiction would have a consistent metric that can be used to 

measure bicycle safety progress across the County. 

Law Enforcement and Bicycle Safety 

Laws regarding the operation of bicycles are in the California Vehicle Code (CVC), but in 

general, bicycles are governed by the same rules of the road as motor vehicles.  

SMC law enforcement organizations are concerned that there is currently no way for them to 

track bicycle, pedestrian, and vehicle accidents, from near misses to actual contact, that did not 

require police involvement.   And, even if an incident or infraction is reported, an officer may or 

may not go out to speak with the complainant.  

Other than the initial report, there is no single repository in SMC to store and retrieve 

information regarding bicycle-related citations or enforcement of bicycle law so it can be used in 

the future.   

And perhaps most importantly, the enforcement of laws, regarding motorists and bicyclists, is 

inconsistent due to competing priorities and the requirement that a citation requires an incident 

be witnessed by an officer. 

 

                                                           
34 https://bikeleague.org/sites/default/files/bfareportcards/BFC_Fall_2022_ReportCard_Oakland_CA.pdf 
35 https://bikeleague.org/sites/default/files/bfareportcards/BFC_Fall_2017_ReportCard_Menlo_Park_CA.pdf 
36 https://bikeleague.org/sites/default/files/bfareportcards/BFC_Spring_2016_ReportCard_Redwood_City_CA.pdf 
37 https://bikeleague.org/sites/default/files/bfareportcards/BFC_Fall_2016_ReportCard_San_Carlos_CA.pdf 
38 https://bikeleague.org/sites/default/files/bfareportcards/BFC_Fall_2016_ReportCard_San_Mateo_CA.pdf 
39https://bikeleague.org/sites/default/files/bfareportcards/BFC_Fall_2018_ReportCard_South_San_Francisco_CA.p

df 
40https://bikeleague.org/sites/default/files/bfareportcards/BFC_Spring_2016_ReportCard_San_Mateo_County_CA.p

df 

about:blank


 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      16                    
  

   

Conflicting Priorities 

Law enforcement prioritizes assets based on the needs of the community, as well as their 

operating budget, when it comes to providing services. While public and political prioritization 

of bicycle safety issues may come up from time to time, calls for service are always prioritized. 

This results in minimal officer resources dedicated to bicycle safety.  

Police forces will:  

● Focus resources or staff on bicycle safety, if there is an uptick in accidents at a particular 

location, citizen requests/calls, or requests from a jurisdiction’s public works or traffic 

departments to focus on certain locations; or 

● Provide teams to schools and special events for bicycle safety education 

● Much less often, assign their police officers to bicycle safety duty exclusively (some 

police departments do have officers that patrol on bicycles). 

  

In addition, law enforcement agencies do not always enforce eBike laws, but this is mostly due 

to the popularity of eBikes being ahead of law enforcement policies.  

Because of these conflicting priorities, and limited staff, enforcement of bicycle laws pertaining 

to motorists as well as bicyclists appears to be underreported.   

Policing Bicycles and eBikes 

Law enforcement departments in the county are very aware of the importance of bicycle safety. 

Common sense says people generally want the streets to be safe for motor vehicles which 

translates to most officer resources going to motor vehicle enforcement.  

It’s possible that safer bicycle riding could lead to fewer cars and free up police resources for 

more pressing issues.  

The New 3’ Law for Motorists and Bicycles 

In January 2023, California amended the California Vehicle Code (CVC). The new law (AB. 

1909) requires all motorists to give a bicyclist three feet of clearance when passing on the left-

hand side of the bicyclist or (depending on the width of the road) reduce speed appropriately, 

when passing. (See CVC: 21750 (b) (c) (d)). This is particularly crucial on narrow two-lane 

roads where there are many reports of bicyclists being forced off the road or hit by motor 

vehicles. 

Hampering the situation is the requirement that a citation can only be written if the incident is 

witnessed by the officer. With the advent of helmet-worn cameras, cyclists have attempted to 

record these incidents with the hope that the recording can be used as “visual evidence”. But this 

evidence, post incident, cannot be used to issue a citation. 

The San Mateo County Sheriff’s Department recently announced it will allow the public to 

submit these incidents on the Sheriff’s website.41 These reports have since resulted in the 

                                                           
41https://www.almanacnews.com/news/2023/05/12/bicyclists-can-now-report-3-foot-rule-violations-online-in-san-

mateo-county 



 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      17                    
  

   

department sending a violation letter to the offending motorist; this is not a citation. However, 

only incidents that occur in unincorporated San Mateo County, Woodside, Portola Valley, San 

Carlos, Half Moon Bay, and Millbrae can use this online resource.  

Citations vs. Reprimands for Education Purposes: 

It is at the officer’s discretion, when addressing a law infraction, to issue a citation or give a 

reprimand. One advantage of a reprimand is that it creates an opportunity to educate. With 

officers focusing on education, these brief encounters, cumulatively, can do a lot to improve 

bicycle safety, for bicyclists and motorists. But only if these reprimand stops are recorded 

officially can an accurate picture of bicycle safety be established. 

FINDINGS 

F1. Bicycle policy and the approach to ensuring/improving bicycle safety is not consistent across 

San Mateo County due, at least in part, to:  

a. Topography  

b. Urban vs. suburban environments  

c. Types of bicyclists (commuter, recreational)  

d. Varying levels of enforcement of bicycle laws  

e. Differing knowledge of bicycle laws and safe practices. 

  

F2. Bicycle ridership as an alternative means of transportation (e.g., commuting to work, school, 

or transit hubs, running errands) is not increasing due, at least in part, to perceived safety issues. 

 

F3. Bicycle accidents and incidents (such as near misses) are underreported, if reported at all.  

 

F4. Only bicycle accidents or incidents that trigger a 911 call are consistently logged in the State 

(SWITRS) database and law enforcement agencies do not log bicycle accident data consistently. 

  

F5. The amount of enforcement of laws, as they pertain to bicyclists and how motorists and 

bicyclists interact, is inconsistent due to other priorities (e.g., criminal enforcement and general 

automobile traffic) and the requirement that a citation can generally only be written if the 

violation is witnessed by an officer. 

 

F6. There is no official metric in San Mateo County and its cities to evaluate how safe it is to 

ride a bicycle.  

 

F7. Bicycle safety education, for the bicyclist, pedestrians and motorists, is not consistently 

offered across San Mateo County.  

  

F8. Communication between various entities with responsibility for bicycle safety, including 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committees (BPACs), Law Enforcement, City Transportation 

Planning, and Public Works departments, is not formalized, resulting in inefficiencies, and 

missed opportunities (e.g., funding for improvements, shared bike safety education, or improving 

signage).  

 



 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      18                    
  

   

F9. City Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plans or Active Transportation Plans, have not been 

adopted/created by all SMC cities. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

R1. By December 2023, all law enforcement agencies and the County Sheriff should submit 

bicycle related data to SWITRS monthly, and regularly post and update their websites with all 

reported bicycle accident data. 

R2. By December 2023, all law enforcement agencies should begin sending warning letters to 

motorists for violations of the 3 ft. law. 

R3. By June 3, 2024, all law enforcement agencies should provide a means for citizens to report 

bicycle-related incidents that are not currently reported to law enforcement, similar to the SMC 

Sheriff’s Department Online Crime Reporting portal. 

R4. By June 3, 2024 each city, town, and unincorporated SMC should offer a bike safety 

education program for riders and motorists about the laws and safety facts related to bicycles on 

the road.    

R5. By June 3, 2024, each city, town, and unincorporated SMC should update or generate a new 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan (or Active Transportation Plan) if their current plan is older 

than five years; consistent with the 2021 C/CAG San Mateo County Comprehensive Bicycle and 

Pedestrian Plan. 

R6. By June 3, 2024, each city, town, and the county should apply (or reapply) online to generate 

the Bicycle Friendly Community Report Card. 

R7. By February 1, 2024, the County should meet with cities within the County that are willing 

to participate, to consider establishing a regional effort that integrates the cities’ bicycle plans 

and to discuss how the cities and County could work together to apply for grant opportunities as 

a region. 

REQUEST FOR RESPONSES 

Pursuant to Penal Code Section 933.05, the Civil Grand Jury requests responses from the San 

Mateo County Board of Supervisors, County Sheriff and all 20 cities and towns’ governing 

bodies for each Finding and Recommendation.  

The governing bodies should be aware that their comments or responses must be conducted 

subject to the Brown Act's notice, agenda, and open meeting requirements. 

RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS 

California Penal Code Section 933.05, provides (emphasis added): 

(a) For purposes of subdivision (b) of Section 933, as to each grand jury finding, the 

 responding person or entity shall report one of the following:  



 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      19                    
  

   

(1) The respondent agrees with the finding.  

(2) The respondent disagrees wholly or partially with the finding; in which case the 

 response shall specify the portion of the finding that is disputed and shall include an 

 explanation of the reasons, therefore. 

(b) For purposes of subdivision (b) of Section 933, as to each grand jury    

 recommendation, the responding person or entity shall report one of the following  

 actions:  

(1) The recommendation has been implemented, with a summary regarding the  

 implemented action.  

(2) The recommendation has not been implemented, but will be implemented in the 

 future, with a timeframe for implementation.  

(3) The recommendation requires further analysis, with an explanation and the scope 

 and parameters of an analysis or study, and a timeframe for the matter to be  

 prepared for discussion by the officer or head of the agency or department being 

 investigated or reviewed, including the governing body of the public agency when 

 applicable. This timeframe shall not exceed six months from the date of publication 

 of the grand jury report. 

(4) The recommendation will not be implemented because it is not warranted or is not 

 reasonable, with an explanation, therefore. 

  



 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      20                    
  

   

METHODOLOGY 

The Grand Jury used a variety of tools to obtain information regarding bicycle riding and safety 

in San Mateo County: 

● Documents: The Bike and Pedestrian Master Plans that cities use to explain approaches 

to planning, prioritizing projects, and re-engineering their communities to make riding 

and walking easier and safer. These documents came with a variety of titles: 

o Bike and Pedestrian Master Plans 

o Active Transportation Plans 

o Micro-Mobility Plans 

o Transportation Plans 

● Internet: Almost all the historical and current information (including the availability of 

documents) regarding bicycle safety came from internet searches. Information from those 

searches was verified.  

● Survey: The Grand Jury sent a survey in December 2022 using Google Forms to 

understand whether the cities believe eBikes were an issue in their communities. The 

results helped in defining the broader issue of bicycle safety.  

o The survey questions and results are in Appendix A. 

o Participants: The survey was sent to all the cities in SMC and, specifically, the 

City Managers. Many chose to have the chief of police of their city fill out the 

survey. Two cities did not respond to the survey. 

● Interviews: The survey helped the Grand Jury develop a list of individuals for 

interviews. The questions for the interview came as a result of the investigation’s pivot to 

the state of bicycle safety in San Mateo County as a general topic. 

o Participants: 

▪ Cities: Belmont, Daly City, Half Moon Bay, Hillsborough, Pacifica, 

Portola Valley, San Mateo, Woodside 

▪ Unincorporated San Mateo County 

▪ Police Departments: Burlingame, Foster City, Hillsborough, Redwood 

City, South San Francisco 

▪ Sheriff of SMC 

▪ BPACs: CCAG, Unincorporated SMC 

▪ CyclistVideoEvidence.com: Craig Davis 

  



 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      21                    
  

   

GLOSSARY 

3 ft. Rule – Motorists must yield at least 3 feet between their vehicle and a bicyclist on all 

roadways. This rule was amended by State legislation through Assembly Bill 1909, approved by 

the Governor in 2022, and commencing January 2024. Additionally, this bill requires a vehicle 

that is passing or overtaking a vehicle to move over to an adjacent lane of traffic, as specified, if 

one is available, before passing or overtaking the bicycle.  

Active Transportation - A means of getting around that is powered by human energy, primarily 

walking and bicycling.  

BFA – Bike Friendly America. A program sponsored by the League of American Bicyclists to 

evaluate communities with respect to their support for bicycling. As of December 2022, 501 

communities are certified. 

BFC – Bike Friendly Community. A Bike Friendly Awards Report Card that is given to a 

community that applies for a ranking (i.e., Bronze, Silver, Gold, Platinum).  

BPAC – Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 

CATSIP – California Active Transportation Safety Information Pages. An online resource for 

improving pedestrian and bicycle safety in California. This site is administered by UC Berkeley 

Safe Transportation Research and Education Center (SafeTREC)42. Funding for this program 

was provided by a grant from the California Office of Traffic Safety43, through the National 

Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA).  

C/CAG – City County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 

Bicycle Roadways 

● Bike paths (Class I): also termed shared-use or multi-use paths, are paved rights-of-way 

for exclusive use by bicyclists, pedestrians and those using non-motorized modes of 

travel. They are physically separated from vehicular traffic and can be constructed in 

roadway rights-of-way or exclusive rights-of-way. Bike paths provide critical 

connections in the city where roadways are absent or are not conducive to bicycle travel.  

● Bike lanes (Class II): are defined by pavement striping and signage used to allocate a 

portion of a roadway for exclusive or preferential bicycle travel. Bike lanes are one-way 

facilities on either side of a roadway. Whenever possible, bike lanes should be enhanced 

with treatments that improve safety and connectivity by addressing site-specific issues, 

such as additional warning or wayfinding signage. 

● Bike routes (Class III): provide shared use with motor vehicle traffic within the same 

travel lane. Designated by signs, bike routes provide continuity to other bike facilities or 

designate preferred routes through corridors with high demand. Whenever possible, bike 

                                                           
42 http://safetrec.berkeley.edu/ 
43 http://www.ots.ca.gov/ 



 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      22                    
  

   

routes should be enhanced with treatments that improve safety and connectivity, such as 

the use of "Sharrows" or shared lane markings to delineate the road as a shared-use 

facility. 

● Cycle tracks (Class IV): Also referred to as protected bikeways, are exclusive bike 

facilities that combine the user experience of a separated path with the on-street 

infrastructure of a conventional bike lane. A cycle track is physically separated from 

motor traffic and distinct from the sidewalk. The separation may be in the form of posts, 

parked cars or a combination of both. 

eBike – motorized bicycle that comes in three different classes: 

● Class I: Bicycle equipped with a motor that aids only when pedaling and ceases when 20 

mph is reached. 

● Class II: Same capability as a Class 1 eBike with a throttle-actuated motor. No pedaling 

required when operated with the throttle. 

● Class III: Bicycle equipped with a motor that aids only when pedaling and ceases when 

28 mph is reached. 

GJ – Grand Jury 

MTC – Metropolitan Transportation Commission is the transportation planning, financing, and 

coordinating agency for the nine-county San Francisco Bay Area. 

SHARROW – Sharrows are pavement markings that have been installed on city streets to 

provide guidance for both bicyclists and vehicles on roadways when sharing the road. 

SMC ATP: San Mateo County Active Transportation Plan is a comprehensive framework to 

guide the development of active transportation projects and programs for walking, bicycling, and 

other forms of human powered movement for people of all ages and abilities throughout 

unincorporated County communities. 

SWITRS – California Statewide Integrated Traffic Records System. 

TIMS – Transportation Injury Mapping System developed by the Safe Transportation Research 

& Education Center at the University of California, Berkeley. 

TR-INST Form – Notice to Appear form used by law enforcement for law infractions. 

  



 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      23                    
  

   

APPENDIX A: Bicycle Safety Best Practices 

Bicycle Education Best Practices 

There are two excellent examples of California communities that are investing in Bike Safety 

education: Davis and San Diego. 

San Diego Bike Coalition: 

This is an excellent reference tool to see all the kinds of bicycle safety education that can be 

offered and the resources that can be used to teach those courses. Again, the classes range from 

those for a variety of ages of bicyclists, basic bicycling, bicycle friendly motorist safety, and 

others. 

https://sdbikecoalition.org/our-work/education/ 

 

Davis, California: 

 

The City of Davis, CA, which is one of the leading bicycle communities in the US, has several 

pages of information about bike safety education on its website. 

https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/public-works-engineering-and-transportation/bike-

pedestrian-program 

Two Cities Committed to Bicycling: Portland, Oregon and Davis, California 

Portland and Davis have become famous for their commitment to supporting bicycling, not only 

as recreational, but also as a true commuter alternative to motor vehicles and public 

transportation. Both have received the Platinum rating for a Bicycle Friendly Community from 

The League of American Bicyclists, while being quite different communities. 

 

Portland is a large city of 622,000 residents with similar topography to the linked San Mateo 

County cities along El Camino Real: hilly and flat lands, urban centers, urban neighborhoods, 

suburbia, and major freeways. Portland advertises itself as “Bicycle Friendly” and claimed the 

highest percentage of bike commuters in US large cities in 2019 at 6% (Portland does annual 

bike ride census counts). Portland started investing in bicycle infrastructure with the acceptance 

of the 1973 Portland Bike Plan and the formation of a Bicycle Advisory Committee within the 

City Transportation Department. Since then, it has created:  

 

● 385 miles of bikeways 

● 36 miles of protected bike lanes 

● A pedestrian and bicycle only bridge over the Willamette River and protected bike lanes 

on other bridges 

● Intersections with bicycle specific traffic signals 

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      24                    
  

   

● Bicycle boxes44 at intersections to raise the visibility for motorists turning right 

● A Safe Routes for Schools serving 100 schools 

● 6500 bike racks to meet increased demand for safe stow of bicycles 

● 3 bicycle plans over 40 years that establish policy, goals and a bikeway network 

● $60 M spent to 2008 on bicycle infrastructure (one mile of installed freeway costs $60M) 

 

Portland’s safety record is very good for a large city: 4.3% of all traffic injury accidents from 

2015-2019 are bicycle related. In comparison, San Francisco’s number is 14% for the same 

period. Portland also does better than San Mateo County (8%) and a representative city, 

Redwood City (10%). 

 

Davis in California is a small city between San Francisco and Sacramento with a population of 

66,800. It has earned a nationwide reputation for supporting bicycles in its community (there is a 

bicycle on the city logo). The topography of Davis could not be flatter and more conducive to 

bicycle riding. The current statistics indicate that 20% of Davis’s population commutes on 

bicycles. In 1967, Davis was the first community in the US to develop dedicated bicycle lanes (a 

total of 4!). The origins of this project were a couple that had visited the Netherlands, often cited 

as the most bicycle friendly nation in the world. They were so impressed with the bicycle 

infrastructure that they started a grassroots movement in Davis to promote safe bicycle riding. 

The group had to overcome CA law that did not support bike lanes on city streets, but once the 

law was revised, Davis proceeded to create bicycle infrastructure throughout the City: 

● 63 miles of pathways  

● 102 miles of bike lanes 

● 75% of roads have a posted speed limit of 25 mph 

● Of the 169 miles in the road network, 140 miles of roads are posted at 25 mph or less., 21 

miles of roads are posted at between 25 mph and 35 mph, and 8 miles of roads posted 

over 35 mph  

● 1 mile of bicycle boulevards 

● 1 mile of cycle track 

● 4 miles of buffered bike lanes 

● 4,300 bike racks within the City and over 2,000 bike racks downtown 

● 25 grade separated crossings. Four overpasses and 21 underpass crossings. Grade-

separated crossings are used to move people on bikes and pedestrians over and under 

barriers like railroad tracks, busy roads, and the freeway. 

Davis’s bicycle accidents with injury (and fatalities) are high for a city of its size. However, the 

number of total accidents with injury is also very low compared to cities of comparable size. For 

                                                           
44 https://nacto.org/publication/urban-bikeway-design-guide/intersection-treatments/bike-boxes/ 

about:blank


 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      25                    
  

   

example: in 2019 there were 60 bicycle accidents with injury and 221 total vehicle injury 

accidents resulting in 27% of all vehicular accidents involving a bicycle. Redwood City’s 

number is 4.8%, but their number of bicycle commuters is less than 1%. If you look at the 

percentage of accidents with respect to the biking population for 2019, Davis’s percentage is .4% 

and Redwood City’s percentage is 2.4%. Davis’s safety statistics are very good, given the 

number of bicycle riders. 

Both Portland and Davis are renowned environments for bicycle riders because they committed 

early to bicycle infrastructure and consistently improved it over the years. The city government 

and the school systems actively support bicycle education. Both cities conduct counts to 

determine bicycle use. They are both advocates of the Vision Zero policy to reduce accidents and 

fatalities. They use the Bicycle Friendly Community evaluation process to assess their progress 

towards their bicycle plans and goals. 

Disclosure: Portland, beginning in 2020, noted a decline in bicycle commuter percentages. 

Thinking it was an aberration of the pandemic shutdown, it continued to do annual bike counts. 

As of 2022, its percentage had gone down to 3.1%. The current theory of why there has been a 

decline is assumed to be the increase of work from home. Regardless, Portland continues to 

make improvements to its bicycle infrastructure and safety. 

  



 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      26                    
  

   

APPENDIX B: San Mateo County Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan List 

 

Jurisdiction Year Name of Report Link to Report 

Atherton Jul 2014 Town of Atherton Bicycle 

and Pedestrian Master Plan 

https://www.ci.atherton.ca.us/Docume

ntCenter/View/1381/Atherton-

BPMP_Proposed-Final-July-

2014?bidId= 

 

Belmont Nov 2016 City of Belmont 

Comprehensive Pedestrian & 

Bicycle Plan 

https://www.belmont.gov/home/show

publisheddocument/14951/636179086

799900000 

  

Brisbane Feb 2017 Brisbane Pedestrian and 

Bicycle Master Plan 

https://www.brisbaneca.org/sites/defa

ult/files/fileattachments/public_works/

page/149/bikepedmasterplanappendic

es.pdf 

  

Burlingame Dec 2020 City of Burlingame Bicycle 

and Pedestrian Master Plan 

https://www.burlingame.org/business

_detail_T54_R154.php 

  

Colma Feb 2021 Colma El Camino Real 

Bicycle and Pedestrian 

Improvement Plan 

https://www.colma.ca.gov/documents/

ecr-improvement-plan/ 

  

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      27                    
  

   

Jurisdiction Year Name of Report Link to Report 

Daly City  Feb 2020 Walk Bike Daly City; City of 

Daly City Pedestrian and 

Bicycle Master Plan 2020 

https://dalycity.org/1106/Daly-City-

Pedestrian-and-Bicycle-Master- 

  

East Palo Alto Oct 2017 2017 East Palo Alto Bicycle 

Transportation Plan 

https://www.cityofepa.org/sites/defaul

t/files/fileattachments/planning/page/2

801/reso_4905_adopting_2017_bicycl

e_transportation_plan.pdf 

  

Half Moon Bay Sep 2019 City of Half Moon Bay 

Bicycle and Pedestrian 

Master Plan 

https://www.half-moon-

bay.ca.us/DocumentCenter/View/224

3/Bicycle-and-Pedestrian-Master-

Plan-Final?bidId= 

  

Menlo Park Nov 2020 City of Menlo Park 

Transportation Master Plan 

https://beta.menlopark.org/Governme

nt/Departments/Public-

Works/Transportation-

Division/Bicycling 

  

Millbrae 2021/2022 City of Millbrae Active 

Transportation Plan 

https://www.ci.millbrae.ca.us/home/sh

owpublisheddocument/25807/637787

902014030000 

  

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      28                    
  

   

Jurisdiction Year Name of Report Link to Report 

Pacifica Feb 2020 City of Pacifica Bicycle & 

Pedestrian Master Plan 

https://www.cityofpacifica.org/depart

ments/public-

works/engineering/bicycle-pedestrian-

master-plan 

  

Redwood City July 2018 Redwood City Moves, A 

Comprehensive Assessment 

of Transportation with 

Redwood City 

  

San Bruno Jul 2016 City of San Bruno Walk 'n 

Bike Plan 

https://sanbruno.ca.gov/DocumentCen

ter/View/1733/Adopted-San-Bruno-

Walk-n-Bike-Plan-PDF 

  

San Carlos Jun 2020 City of San Carlos Bicycle 

and Pedestrian Master Plan 

Final 

https://www.cityofsancarlos.org/home

/showpublisheddocument/8139/63815

5282314370000 

  

San Mateo Apr 2020 San Mateo Bicycle Master 

Plan April 2020 Final 

https://www.cityofsanmateo.org/Docu

mentCenter/View/85445/2020-Bike-

Master-Plan_Final_Updated-

62021?bidId= 

  

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      29                    
  

   

Jurisdiction Year Name of Report Link to Report 

South San 

Francisco 

Mar 2022 Active South City: South San 

Francisco's Bicycle and 

Pedestrian Master Plan Draft 

https://activesouthcity.com/wp-

content/uploads/2022/03/SSF-

ActiveSouthCity_PublicDraft_31Mar

ch2022_plan_only.pdf 

  

San Mateo 

County 

2021 

  

2021 C/CAG San Mateo 

County Comprehensive 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan 

https://ccag.ca.gov/wp-

content/uploads/2021/06/San-Mateo-

County-Comprehensive-Bicycle-and-

Pedestrian-Plan-Update-Final-

Plan.pdf 

  

 

  

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      30                    
  

   

APPENDIX C: Survey Questions and Results 

 

This is a summary of the responses: 

1. Cities and law enforcement do not track bicycle and eBike accident statistics separately; 

in fact, most respondents did not track eBike specific data at all (94%). 

2. Complaints on Class I Bicycle Roadways include speeding and not yielding to 

pedestrians. 

3. Complaints on Class II and III Bicycle Roadways include speeding, improper signaling, 

mixed use of bikes/eBikes and violation of the 3 ft. Rule. 

4. Of 361 citations issued, only 11 were specifically for eBikes. It is impossible to know if 

there were more eBikes in violation as there is no requirement to ID the type of bicycle 

when filling out the form. 

5. Class 3 eBikes are more powerful machines and have specific laws regarding usage. Only 

50% of the respondents were enforcing the Class 3 eBike laws. 

6. Complaints and incidents regarding bicycles (from riders or others) come mostly through 

police reports, but also from input to City Halls, Redwood City’s “app”, city planning, 

parks and recreation. 

7. 1/3 respondents said there has been an increase in complaints regarding bicycles in the 

last three years (speeding, underage use, reckless behavior, vehicular code). 

8. 2/3 of respondents said there had not been an increase in complaints regarding eBikes and 

25% said they didn’t know. 

9. Civilian bicycle complaints are generally not available to the public (over 50% of 

respondents). 

10. 44% of respondents said they don’t provide bicycle safety education. 

11. Enforcement of bicycle-related law is done where appropriate, with discretionary 

authority. Effort is made to educate at the time of the infraction. Additional enforcement 

is budget driven. 

12. Future planning for the regulation of bicycles and eBikes varies greatly in the responses 

(see Question II-16 in Appendix A). 

List of responses to questions (on the next page): 

 



 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      31                    
  

   

 

Number of bicycle accidents in 2022? 212 

Number of bicycle accidents in 2020 to the end of 2021? 307 

 

 



 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      32                    
  

   

 

 

 

How many Bicycle citations were issued in the last year? 361 

How many eBike Citations were issued in the last year? 0 [Comments: this 

information is not tracked] 



 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      33                    
  

   

 

 

If you are enforcing bicycle/eBike law, how is it accomplished? 

● Nothing too specific. Enforcement during routine patrol if violations are witnessed. The 

PD has done a few details and targeted patrols in our downtown area specifically looking 

for bicycle violations (riding on sidewalks, helmet violations, reckless behavior, etc.). 

● The Police Department enforces all laws as appropriate and with necessary and legal 

discretionary authority. 

● Education and Enforcement 

● All officers are trained to enforce Vehicle Code and Municipal Code law on bicycles and 

eBikes. 

● On view and by complaint. 

● On view and calls for service which result in Education or Enforcement. 

● Traffic enforcement resulting in citations and/or verbal warnings/ education to the public. 

● Through proactive patrols, directed enforcement and calls for service. 

● Most bicycle stops are made for violations occurring on roadways, not on trails or 

sidewalks. Most bike stops result in education and not citations as evidenced by our low 

citation numbers. 

● Primarily through education and warnings. 

● We have not enforced the Bicycle/eBike law because we have not received any 

comments to date that have triggered the Police Department to enforce. 



 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      34                    
  

   

● By Sheriff patrol. 

● We can’t enforce much because of limitations in light of funding and staffing needs 

 

 

 

 



 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      35                    
  

   

 

 

 



 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      36                    
  

   

 

 

Does your city/town have any future plans regarding the regulation of bicycles and eBikes? 

● Not at this time. 

● Yes. Additional and improved bike lanes. 

● Policies in the newly adopted General Plan supporting alternative modes of 

transportation, including bikes. 

● Awaiting the results of the County-wide eBike pilot to determine best practices to 

implement. 

● Not at this time. 

● Not at this time. There have not been complaints/concerns regarding eBikes. 

● Not at this time. 

● Not that I am aware of. 

● No, unless we start receiving complaints. 

● Yes, The City of South San Francisco's Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan. 

● No 

● As the Town begins to understand various micro-mobility issues going forward, eBikes 

being part of that growth pattern, we will plan to prepare plans and outreach material to 

help educate the bike populations on eBike protocols and safety. 

● With the growing development, more bike facilities are being provided for the general 

public. Public outreach and programs to help educate both current/new users are currently 



 

2022-2023 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury                      37                    
  

   

being implemented citywide. Buildout of Bike & Pedestrian master plan is underway. 

Alameda de Las Pulgas and Ralston 4 designs are underway. Creation of a transportation 

master plan is also underway. Parks & Recreation Department is developing a Master 

Plan that also includes implementation of eBikes policies on open space trails. 

● Yes 

● Nothing specific regulatory changes planned at this time. 

● City is currently drafting ordinance language to address the increasing number of electric 

mobility devices that are present on trails and paths. Many conversations have occurred at 

BPAC and council (among other committees and commissions) and will continue in 

2024. 



Staff Report: FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding  Page 1 of 10 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM:  Abigail Dometita, Administrative Technician III 
VIA:        Daniel Barros, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: September 27, 2023 
SUBJECT: FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION DETERMINING ELIGIBILITY FOR GRANT FUNDING, APPROVING 
GRANTS TO ELIGIBLE ORGANIZATIONS, FINDING THAT EACH APPROVED GRANT 
SERVES A PUBLIC PURPOSE, AND AUTHORIZING CONTRACTS WITH EACH 
ELIGIBLE ORGANIZATION FOR THE USE OF TOWN FUNDS PURSUANT TO CEQA 
GUIDELINE 15378 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The proposed resolution finds that each of the following organizations (except ALLICE, Peninsula 
Volunteers, Inc. Meals on Wheels, and San Mateo County Pride Center) have met all the criteria 
and are therefore eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma, that each approved grant 
serves a public purpose and is not a gift of public funds, and that grants should be approved and 
authorized as proposed by Staff: 

Grantee Amount Funded 
FY 2022-23 

Grantee Request 
FY 2023-24 

Staff Proposed 
Grant Amount 

AbilityPath (Community 
Gatepath) $  6,500 $  7,500 $  6,500 
ALLICE $  1,500 N/A N/A (did not apply) 
Asian American Recovery 
Services (HealthRIGHT 360) 

N/A (new in 
FY23-24) $  2,500 $  2,000 

Clinic by the Bay $  4,000 $  8,000 $  4,000 
Colma Daly City Chamber of 
Commerce $  30,000 $  60,000 $  30,000 
Community Overcoming 
Relationship Abuse (CORA) $  7,000 $  10,000 $  7,000 
Daly City Public Library 
Associates (DCPLA) $  5,200 $    5,220 $  5,220 
Daly City Youth Health Center $  6,000 $  10,000 $  6,000 

Item #4



Staff Report: FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding   Page 2 of 10 

Grantee Amount Funded 
FY 2022-23 

Grantee Request 
FY 2023-24 

Staff Proposed 
Grant Amount 

Human Investment Project, Inc. 
(HIP Housing) 1 $                  5,000 $                  5,000 $                  5,000 
JUHSD Community Environmental 
Education Program/Wilderness 
Program (CEEP) $                  4,000 $                11,000 $                  4,000 
LifeMoves 1 $                  4,000 $                  5,000 $                  4,000 
Ombudsman Services of SMC $                  2,500 $                  2,500 $                  2,500 
Operation Santa Claus $                  1,500 $                  2,000 $                  1,500 

Peninsula Volunteers, Inc. Meals 
on Wheels $                  6,000 N/A 

N/A (no longer 
serves clients in 

Colma) 

Renaissance Entrepreneurship 
Center  

N/A (conditionally 
approved in FY22-23 
but passed deadline) $                  5,000 $                  3,500 

San Bruno Mountain Watch 
N/A (did not apply in 

FY22-23) $                  3,000 $                  2,500 
San Mateo County Jobs for Youth $                  4,000 $                  4,000 $                  4,000 
San Mateo County Pride Center $                  3,000 N/A N/A (did not apply) 
Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition $                  3,500 $                  3,500 $                  3,500 
Sitike Counseling Center $                  6,500 $                  7,500 $                  6,500 
Skyline College (SMC Community 
College District) $                  4,000 $                  5,000 $                  4,000 
South San Francisco Education 
Foundation 

N/A (new in  
FY23-24) $                13,200 $                  5,000 

Sustainable San Mateo County $                  1,000 $                  5,000 $                  1,000 
TOTALS $             105,200 $             174,920  $              107,720 

A total of $174,920 has been requested by the various entities. 

If Council approves the funding levels as proposed by Staff, the total amount funded will be under 
budget by $37,280.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

The 2023-24 budget includes a total of $145,000 for grant funding (spread through two 
departments). 

ENVIRONMENTAL 

The City Council’s action in approving grant funding is more akin to an administrative or 
organizational activity of the Town that will not result in direct or indirect physical changes in the 
environment pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guideline 15378.  It is also 
a government fiscal activity where no potentially significant impact on the environment will occur 
pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15378. 

 
1 Funding to come from Legal Mandates line item in Planning Department budget 



Staff Report: FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding   Page 3 of 10 

BACKGROUND 

The Town’s process for non-profit funding requests, as outlined in subchapter 4.03 of the Colma 
Administrative Code, spells out several requirements for organizations to be funded by the Town.  

Grants may be made to three types of eligible organizations: IRS 501(c)(3) charities, government 
entities, and the Chamber of Commerce. In addition, the amount of each grant must be roughly 
proportional to the benefit provided by the organization to the Town or its residents and 
businesses.  Additionally, to be eligible to receive a grant, each organization must meet the 
following requirements: the organization’s mission must include providing a benefit to a defined 
geographical area that encompasses the Town of Colma (for example, a food pantry that serves 
residents of San Mateo County); the organization’s governing board must reflect the diverse 
interests of the community; the organization must have policies and procedures to assure that 
the grant’s purposes are met; and the organization must be in compliance with the required 
registration and reporting requirements set forth by the California Attorney General’s Registry of 
Charitable Trusts. 

Grants cannot be given to fund existing debts; to a religious organization unless it is for a general 
need and the project does not promote the teachings of a particular church; or to support a 
political campaign. Grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no obligation 
or commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee.  

To help guide the organizations in identifying a public purpose in their requested program and 
assist the Council in making that determination, five categories of qualifying programs or projects 
are established in the Administrative Code. To qualify for a grant, the program or project to be 
funded must: 

(1) Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of those programs (Necessities 
of Life);  

(2) Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs 
(Integrated Care Services); 

(3) Educate and engage residents (Education); 

(4) Promote economic development or support businesses located or doing business 
in the Town (Economic Development); or 

(5) Provide a service that the Town could provide to its residents or businesses or, 
support, complement or enhance a service or program that the Town provides to 
its residents or businesses (Complementary Service). 

The $145,000 in available funding is broken down into two discrete budget line items: $135,000 
allocated to the City Council budget under the line item Donations; and $10,000 allocated to the 
Planning Department budget under the line item Legal Mandates.  

For all entities, staff’s proposed grant amounts are equivalent from the funding that was approved 
in Fiscal Year 2022-23. Of course, the City Council has ultimate discretion regarding the actual 
amount of funding granted; however, if City Council opts to increase the proposed funding beyond 
the available budget, a budget amendment may need to be processed at a future meeting.  



Staff Report: FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding   Page 4 of 10 

ANALYSIS 

The Council must make two determinations with respect to each application: first, that the 
applicant meets the criteria for an eligible organization set forth in section 4.03.030 of the Colma 
Administrative Code, and second, that each proposed use of funds will serve a public purpose, as 
set forth in section 4.03.020 of the Colma Administrative Code. There is substantial evidence in 
each application to support findings on each of these determinations. 

Findings of Organizational Eligibility & Public Purpose 

AbilityPath (Community Gatepath) is registered with the California Attorney General as a 
public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating 
that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to empower people with 
special needs to achieve their full potential through innovative, inclusive programs and community 
partnerships. The Town of Colma is within its service area. The Town benefits by having people 
with disabilities becoming active members of the community, spending money at local businesses, 
volunteering and working in the Town.  

The expenditure of public funds to pay for a culinary vocational program for people with 
disabilities, the opportunity to learn the importance of healthy eating through basic nutrition 
education, menu planning, ingredient purchasing, food preparation, and cooking offered by 
AbilityPath (Community Gatepath), will provide an identifiable benefit to the Colma 
community at large. The Town further benefits by having people with disabilities become active 
members of the community through recreational, educational, and volunteer opportunities with 
businesses in the Town. The services offered by Community Gatepath are readily accessible to 
Colma residents and the public benefit is substantial as people with disabilities have the 
opportunity to learn and thrive.      

Asian American Recovery Services (HealthRIGHT 360) is registered with the California 
Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a 
letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is 
to provide an array of culturally competent services to the Asian-Pacific Islander and other 
ethnically diverse communities of the San Francisco Bay Area by reducing the impact and 
incidence of substance use. The Town of Colma is within its service area. 

The expenditure of public funds to support the planning and implementation of a youth 
conference for at-risk young women, as requested by Asian American Recovery Services 
(HealthRIGHT 360), will provide an identifiable benefit to the Colma community at large. 
Specifically, it will provide a safe space for young women to be vulnerable and make positive 
changes in their lives. This is especially important as Colma has a large Asian/Asian-American 
populace.   

Clinic by the Bay is registered with the California Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit 
corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from 
tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to understand and serve, with dignity and respect, 
the health and wellness needs of the medically underserved in the San Francisco Bay Area. The 
Town of Colma is within its service area. The Town benefits by having low-income adults, in the 
Town and in the surrounding area, served by free primary medical care from Clinic by the Bay.  
The Town also benefits as Clinic by the Bay provides residents with meaningful volunteer 
opportunities to be part of a neighborhood solution to health care issues.  The grant funds will 
be used to expand the Food Security Program which benefits patients and their families to obtain 
food post-pandemic. 



Staff Report: FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding   Page 5 of 10 

The expenditure of public funds to support healthy food program to low income, working and 
uninsured adults, as requested by Clinic by the Bay, will provide an identifiable benefit to the 
community at large. The Town and the community at large will benefit from the partnership of 
the food grocery voucher program. This service is readily accessible to Colma residents, and the 
public benefit is substantial as the Town and the community all benefit from a healthy populace.   

Colma Daly City Chamber of Commerce Foundation Inc., aka Colma Daly City Chamber 
of Commerce (“Chamber”), is registered with the California Attorney General as a mutual 
benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a copy of a letter from the Internal 
Revenue Service (“IRS”) stating that it is exempt from tax under Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) 
section 501(c)(6). Its mission is to encourage business development and networking, and to 
provide members with useful information and services. The Chamber serves commercial 
establishments within the Town of Colma and the City of Daly City. The Town of Colma is located 
within the Chamber’s membership area. The Chamber takes an active leadership role in promoting 
economic, professional, commercial, and civic vitality for the Town of Colma and surrounding 
communities. The Chamber’s programs and activities benefit its members by providing them with 
business development and networking opportunities as well as educational materials. These 
programs and activities improve the quality of services rendered to the public by the Chamber’s 
members and help increase its members’ sales. In turn, improved services and increased sales 
will increase the Town’s tax revenues, which ultimately inure to the benefit of all residents and 
businesses located in the Town. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for networking opportunities, office space, business 
promotions, facilitating workshops for businesses, and operational costs, as requested by the 
Colma Daly City Chamber of Commerce Foundation Inc., aka Colma Daly City Chamber 
of Commerce, could be provided by the Town but the Town has chosen otherwise. Specifically, 
the Town could provide these same services as part of its economic development program. In 
that case, the Town would likely expend the amount of the grant in staff time and incidental 
materials to provide these services.  

Community Overcoming Relationship Abuse (CORA) is registered with the California 
Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a 
letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is 
to provide safety, support and healing for individuals who experience abuse in an intimate 
relationship and educate the community to break the cycle of intimate partner abuse. CORA 
serves all of San Mateo County and the Town of Colma is within its service area. If the City Council 
approves funding, the organization will have to submit a copy of their completed IRS 990 form 
filed for 2021 or later as a condition for funds to be disbursed. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for programmatic support of the Safe House Program, as 
requested by Community Overcoming Relationship Abuse (CORA), will provide an 
identifiable benefit to the community at large. The funds will be used to house domestic violence 
victims and their families and provide plans for self-reliance.  

Daly City Public Library Associates (DCPLA) is registered with the California Attorney 
General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from 
the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section code 501(c)(3). Its mission is to raise 
private funds to supplement public funding of the four branch libraries in Daly City. The Town of 
Colma is located within its service area. Colma residents may borrow materials from any of the 
Daly City branch libraries. Thus, Colma residents are benefited by the support provided to the 
Daly City Library by DCPLA.  



Staff Report: FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding   Page 6 of 10 

The expenditure of public funds for a learning computer and five tablets, as requested by the 
Daly City Public Library Associates (DCPLA), will help support literacy in children ages 5 and 
under via early education technology. These services could be provided by the Town, but the 
Town has chosen otherwise. Specifically, the Town could provide these same services through its 
Recreation Services program. In this case, the Town would likely expend the amount of the grant 
to provide these services.  

Daly City Youth Health Center (DCYHC), as part of the Jefferson Union High School District 
(JUHSD), is a California governmental entity. The school-linked program’s mission statement is 
to ensure young people reach their full potential and thrive through optimal health, 
empowerment, and strong support networks. The Town benefits from DCYHC providing 
accessibility and availability of integrated wellness services to youth, especially those who belong 
to the low-income and immigrant populations residing in Colma. DCYHC also provides counseling 
for Colma youth who are suffering from mental health issues, substance use and abuse, and 
suicidal ideation to help youth better cope with their challenges in life.    

The expenditure of public funds to pay for primary medical services and counseling programs for 
underserved teens and young adults, as requested by the Daly City Youth Health Center 
(DCYHC), will provide an identifiable benefit to the community at large. Specifically, it will ensure 
that young adults reach their full potential via optimal health, empowerment, and strong support 
networks, of which all programs are readily accessible to Colma youth. 

Human Investment Project, Inc. aka HIP Housing is registered with the California Attorney 
General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from 
the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to improve 
the housing and lives of people in the community. HIP Housing enables people with special needs 
to live independent, self-sufficient lives in decent, safe, low-cost homes. The Town of Colma is 
within its service area. If the City Council approves funding, the organization will have to: (1) 
update their status from “current – awaiting reporting” to “current” with the Attorney General, 
and (2) submit a copy of their completed IRS 990 form filed for 2021 or later as both are 
conditions for fund disbursement.  

The expenditure of public funds to support its Home Sharing program, as requested by the 
Human Investment Project, Inc. aka HIP Housing, could be provided by the Town but the 
Town has chosen otherwise. Specifically, HIP Housing’s Home Sharing Program matches people 
who have space in their home to share or with people who are searching for an affordable place 
to live. The services offered by HIP Housing are readily accessible to Colma residents. Finally, the 
public benefit is substantial as providing housing to help people live independent lives is important 
for a well-functioning society.   

Jefferson Union High School District Community Environmental Education 
Program/ Wilderness School (CEEP) is a California governmental entity. The Community 
Environmental Education Program - Susan B. Anthony School Project is a joint program 
administered by Jefferson Union High School District. Its mission is to build a student’s leadership 
skills and teach responsibility and to provide elementary school children with field trip chaperones, 
on-site tutors, and positive role models. The project consists of field trips, hiking and camping. 
Many students from the Town of Colma attend Jefferson High School or Susan B. Anthony 
Elementary School, and the number varies from year to year.  

The expenditure of public funds to pay for field trips, transportation, meals, and supplies, as 
requested by Jefferson Union High School District Community Environmental Education 
Program/ Wilderness School (CEEP), will provide an identifiable benefit to the community at 
large. The public benefit provided by these services is substantial as the services provide 



Staff Report: FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding   Page 7 of 10 

education to the Town’s youth, which will make them better, more informed, and more productive 
citizens.  

LifeMoves is registered with the California Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit 
corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from 
tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to end homelessness by providing interim housing, 
support services, and building collaborative partnerships. The Town of Colma is located within 
the LifeMoves’ service area. The Town benefits from LifeMoves’ work as low-income and homeless 
individuals and families in the area are provided support services to reduce the homeless 
population. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for shelter and supportive housing services, as requested 
by LifeMoves, could be provided by the Town but the Town has chosen otherwise. In that case, 
the Town would likely expend the amount of the grant in staff time and incidental materials to 
provide these services. The services offered by LifeMoves are readily accessible to individuals in 
Colma as the Town is located within LifeMoves’ service area. Further, the public benefit is 
substantial as LifeMoves’ services ensure Colma residents, or anyone traveling through LifeMoves’ 
network, have shelter and other support services. 

Ombudsman Services of San Mateo County is registered with the California Attorney General 
as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS 
stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to assure protection 
through advocacy, direct intervention, education, and ongoing case management for all residents 
in long-term care facilities in San Mateo County. The Town of Colma is located within the 
Ombudsman Services of San Mateo County service area. 

The expenditure of public funds will provide advocacy services to Colma residents by investigating 
allegations of abuse for those living in long term facilities, as requested by Ombudsman 
Services of San Mateo County. Ombudsman Services of San Mateo County listed two long-
term facilities, one of which is in Colma where 45 visits were made in the last year. The funding 
will help meet the federally mandated mission to monitor and provide advocacy services. 

Operation Santa Claus is registered with the California Attorney General as a public benefit 
nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is 
exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to provide a traditional Christmas 
experience to families in the communities of Daly City, Colma and Broadmoor that are homeless 
or whose income is less than their monthly expenses. The Town of Colma is within its service 
area. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for toys and store gift cards, as requested by Operation 
Santa Claus, will provide an identifiable benefit to the community at large. Last year, deliveries 
were made to 16 Colma residences.  

Renaissance Entrepreneurship Center is registered with the California Attorney General as 
a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating 
that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to empower and increase 
the entrepreneurial capacities of socially and economically diverse women and men, and thereby 
strengthen communities through the creation of sustainable new businesses, new jobs, and 
financial self-sufficiency. The Town of Colma is within its service area. 

The expenditure of public funds to help low-income residents start, rebuild, maintain, and grow 
small businesses, as requested by Renaissance Entrepreneurship Center, will be used to pay 
for hands-on training classes in technology, marketing and finance. 



Staff Report: FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding   Page 8 of 10 

San Bruno Mountain Watch is registered with the California Attorney General as a public 
benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that 
it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to preserve and protect the 
native ecosystems of San Bruno Mountain through restoration, education, and conservation. The 
Town of Colma is within its service area. 

The expenditure of public funds to develop and support educational content and experiences to 
residents and students, as requested by San Bruno Mountain Watch, will help to deepen 
Colma residents’ appreciation for their unique environment. Funds will be used to cover staff time 
and materials for six field trips to San Bruno Mountain and Colma Creek. 

San Mateo County Jobs for Youth Program is a California governmental entity as it is a 
program sponsored by San Mateo County. Jobs’ mission is to provide youth ages 14-21 assistance 
in achieving their career and higher education goals via three pillars of success: skills workshops, 
job opportunities, and scholarships. Last fiscal year, Jobs for Youth served 324 students from 
Jefferson Union High School District and 284 students from South San Francisco Unified School 
District who attended workshops and became members. The Town of Colma is located within its 
service area.  

The expenditure of public funds to pay for two full scholarships, as requested by the San Mateo 
County Jobs for Youth Program, will provide an identifiable benefit to the Colma community 
at large. Specifically, this program will help young people transition into adulthood and gain work 
experience, which will make them better, more informed, and more productive citizens. The 
services offered by San Mateo County Jobs for Youth are readily accessible to Colma youth. 

Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition (SVBC) is registered with the California Attorney General as 
a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating 
that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to build healthier and more 
just communities by making bicycling safe and accessible for everyone. The Town of Colma is 
within the geographic area that SVBC serves. 

The expenditure of public funds to support Bike to Work/Wherever Days, as requested by the 
Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition (SVBC), will provide an identifiable benefit to the Colma 
community at large. Specifically, this program will encourage the community to bike more with 
goals of reducing carbon emissions, improving local air quality, and improving community health. 

Sitike Counseling Center (“Sitike”) is registered with the California Attorney General as a 
public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating 
that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to provide community-based 
counseling and education in a safe and healing environment. The Town of Colma is located within 
its service area. Sitike provided services to 14 Colma residents last fiscal year. If the City Council 
approves funding, the organization will have to: (1) update their status from “current – reporting 
incomplete” to “current” with the Attorney General, and (2) submit a copy of their completed IRS 
990 form filed for 2021 or later as both are conditions for fund disbursement. 

The expenditure of public funds to maintain client access to treatment and services, as requested 
by the Sitike Counseling Center (“Sitike”), will provide an identifiable benefit to the Colma 
community at large. Funding will help reduce financial barriers to treatment while ensuring that 
community members are able to engage in services that support their overall well-being, health, 
and recovery. The services offered by Sitike are readily available to Colma residents and the public 
benefit is substantial as Sitike helps stop the cycle of dependency and mental health issues. 



Staff Report: FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding   Page 9 of 10 

Skyline College is part of a California governmental entity. It is one of three institutions within 
the San Mateo County Community College District. Its mission is to empower and transform a 
global community of learners. The Town of Colma is within the geographic area that the college 
serves.  

The expenditure of public funds to support The President’s Innovation Fund, as requested by 
Skyline College, will support a mini-grant process that encourages innovative ideas that from 
faculty, staff and students at Skyline College that support their mission, vision, and values. The 
Town and the community at large will benefit from increased educational programs by ensuring 
a well-educated public and citizen base.  The services offered by Skyline College are readily 
accessible to any Colma residents attending the institution. Further, the public benefit is 
substantial as 21.7% of the student body reside in Colma/Daly City. 

South San Francisco Education Foundation is registered with the California Attorney General 
as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS 
stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section code 501(c)(3). Its mission is to support and 
enhance public education in the South San Francisco Unified School District in a way that 
prioritizes students, equity, and transparency. The Town of Colma is located within its service 
area. Colma residents who attend schools in the district benefit by the support provided to the 
South San Francisco Education Foundation. If the City Council approves funding, the organization 
will have to submit a copy of their completed IRS 990 form filed for 2021 or later as a condition 
for funds to be disbursed.  

The expenditure of public funds for purchasing library books, as requested by the South San 
Francisco Education Foundation, will help support literacy, engagement, and a love for 
learning. School libraries in the district do not have a dedicated budget for restocking books, and 
improving access to updated, high-quality books helps Colma students reach their highest 
potential.  

Sustainable San Mateo County is registered with the California Attorney General as a public 
benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that 
it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to drive impactful action on 
economic, environmental, and social equity issues that lead to sustainable practices and improves 
long-term health in San Mateo County. The Town of Colma is within the geographic area served 
by Sustainable San Mateo County and the Indicators Report covers the area where the Town is 
located. 

The expenditure of public funds will support program managers who coordinate volunteer 
researchers, writers, graphic designers, printing, and dissemination of reports, as requested by 
Sustainable San Mateo County. In general, the funds will be used to support the research 
and production of the Indicators for a Sustainable San Mateo County Report.  The Indicators 
Report evaluates the health of San Mateo County and its cities in terms of sustainability and 
provides a mean for city officials, non-profits, and business leaders, to make educated decisions 
when considering sustainable policies. In addition, these funds will help cover the costs of 
community meetings and events. 

  



Staff Report: FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding   Page 10 of 10 

Public Purpose Limitations  

Each of these organizations has adopted and follows policies and procedures to ensure that the 
terms and conditions of all grants are satisfied, and none has participated or intervened in any 
political campaign (including publishing or distributing campaign statements) on behalf of or in 
opposition to any candidate for public office within the past 36 months. 

None of these grants will be used to fund existing obligations, debts or liabilities, national and 
regional charitable organizations, religious organizations, a political campaign, or lobbying 
activities. The grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no obligation or 
commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee and that the grantee will not 
discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, gender, age, weight, height, sexual orientation, 
marital status, national origin, disability, or other characteristic protected by law. 

Values 

By providing public funds for charitable purposes, the Council is being compassionate to the needs 
of others. At the same time, by adhering to the Council’s policies and procedures, the Council is 
acting with responsibility. 

Alternatives 

The Council could fund some entities at a different level than staff’s proposed amount. Doing so, 
however, could result in the need to identify additional funding sources as the Adopted 2023-24 
Budget includes only $145,000 in available grant funding. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the Council adopt the resolution which sets grant funding levels as proposed 
by staff. 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution 
B. Funding request summary 
C. Historical funding levels 
D. Funding requests 

 



Res. 2023-__, FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding Page 1 of 12 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION DETERMINING ELIGIBILITY FOR GRANT FUNDING, 
APPROVING GRANTS TO ELIGIBLE ORGANIZATIONS, FINDING THAT EACH 

APPROVED GRANT SERVES A PUBLIC PURPOSE, AND AUTHORIZING 
CONTRACTS WITH EACH ELIGIBLE ORGANIZATION FOR THE USE OF TOWN 

FUNDS PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINE 15378 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background

(a) Pursuant to subchapter 4.03 of the Colma Administrative Code and the police power 
granted to cities by the California Constitution, the Town of Colma may expend public 
money by making grants upon finding that the organization is eligible for grant funding, 
the expenditure will serve a public purpose, the services will be readily accessible to Colma 
residents or businesses, and there is a direct and substantial benefit to the public.  

(b) To be eligible, an organization must be an IRC 501(c)(3) charity, a governmental entity, 
or a chamber of commerce. In addition, the organization’s mission must include providing 
a benefit to a defined geographical area that encompasses the Town of Colma, the 
organization’s governing board must reflect the diverse interests of the community, the 
organization must have policies and procedures to assure that the grant’s purposes are 
met, and the organization must be in compliance with the required registration and 
reporting requirements set forth by the California Attorney General’s Registry of Charitable 
Trusts. 

(c) Grants cannot be given to fund existing debts; to a religious organization unless it is for a 
general need and the project does not promote the teachings of a particular church; to 
support a political campaign; or to organizations which discriminate on the basis of race, 
color, religion, gender, age, weight, height, sexual orientation, marital status, national 
origin, disability, or other characteristic protected by law. Grants will be made with the 
understanding that the Town has no obligation or commitment to provide any additional 
support to the grantee.  

(d) An organization may submit a request for determination of eligibility for grant funding, 
which shall include documents and information described in section 4.03.050 of the Colma 
Administrative Code. 

2. Findings of Eligibility for Grant Funding

The City Council has reviewed the funding requests from each of the following organizations and 
finds as follows: 

(a) AbilityPath (Community Gatepath) is eligible for grant funding from the Town of 
Colma. 

Discussion. AbilityPath (Community Gatepath) is registered with the Attorney General as 

Attachment A



Res. 2023-__, FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding  Page 2 of 12 

a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the 
IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to 
empower people with special needs to achieve their full potential through innovative, 
inclusive programs and community partnerships. The Town of Colma is within its service 
area.  

(b) Asian American Recovery Services (HealthRIGHT 360) is eligible for grant funding 
from the Town of Colma.  

Discussion. Asian American Recovery Services (HealthRIGHT 360) is registered with the 
California Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the 
Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 
501(c)(3). Its mission is to provide an array of culturally competent services to the Asian-
Pacific Islander and other ethnically diverse communities of the San Francisco Bay Area 
by reducing the impact and incidence of substance use. The Town of Colma is within its 
service area. 

(c) Clinic by the Bay is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma.  

Discussion: Clinic by the Bay is registered with the California Attorney General as a public 
benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating 
that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to understand and 
serve, with dignity and respect, the health and wellness needs of the medically 
underserved in the San Francisco Bay Area. The Town of Colma is within its service area. 
The Town benefits by having low-income adults, in the Town and in the surrounding area, 
served by free primary medical care from Clinic by the Bay.  The Town also benefits as 
Clinic by the Bay provides residents with meaningful volunteer opportunities to be part of 
a neighborhood solution to health care issues.  The grant funds will be used to expand 
the Food Security Program which benefits patients and their families to obtain food post-
pandemic.  

(d) Colma Daly City Chamber of Commerce Foundation Inc., aka Colma Daly City 
Chamber of Commerce, is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma.  

Discussion: The Chamber of Commerce is registered with the California Attorney General 
as a mutual benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a copy of a 
letter from the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) stating that it is exempt from tax under 
Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) section 501(c)(6). Its mission is to encourage business 
development and networking, and to provide members with useful information and 
services. The Chamber serves commercial establishments within the Town of Colma and 
the City of Daly City. The Town of Colma is located within the Chamber’s membership 
area. The Chamber takes an active leadership role in promoting economic, professional, 
commercial, and civic vitality for the Town of Colma and surrounding communities. The 
Chamber’s programs and activities benefit its members by providing them with business 
development and networking opportunities as well as educational materials. These 
programs and activities improve the quality of services rendered to the public by the 
Chamber’s members and help increase its members’ sales. In turn, improved services 
and increased sales will increase the Town’s tax revenues, which ultimately inure to the 
benefit of all residents and businesses located in the Town.  



Res. 2023-__, FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding  Page 3 of 12 

(e) Community Overcoming Relationship Abuse (CORA) is eligible for grant funding 
from the Town of Colma but subject to the organization submitting a copy of their 
completed IRS 990 form filed for 2021 or later as a condition for funds to be disbursed.  

Discussion: CORA is registered with the California Attorney General as a public benefit 
nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it 
is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to provide safety, support 
and healing for individuals who experience abuse in an intimate relationship and educate 
the community to break the cycle of intimate partner abuse. CORA serves all of San Mateo 
County and the Town of Colma is within its service area.   

(f) Daly City Public Library Associates (DCPLA) is eligible for grant funding from the 
Town of Colma. 

Discussion: DCPLA is registered with the California Attorney General as a public benefit 
nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it 
is exempt from tax under IRC section code 501(c)(3). Its mission is to raise private funds 
to supplement public funding of the four branch libraries in Daly City. The Town of Colma 
is located within its service area. Colma residents may borrow materials from any of the 
Daly City branch libraries. Thus, Colma residents are benefited by the support provided to 
the Daly City Library by Library Associates.  

(g) Daly City Youth Health Center (DCYHC) is eligible for grant funding from the Town 
of Colma. 

Discussion: Daly City Youth Health Center, as part of the Jefferson Union High School 
District (JUHSD), is a California governmental entity. The school-linked program’s mission 
statement is to ensure young people reach their full potential and thrive through optimal 
health, empowerment, and strong support networks. The Town benefits from DCYHC 
providing accessibility and availability of integrated wellness services to youth, especially 
those who belong to the low-income and immigrant populations residing in Colma. DCYHC 
also provides counseling for Colma youth who are suffering from mental health issues, 
substance use and abuse, and suicidal ideation to help youth better cope with their 
challenges in life.  

(h) Human Investment Project, Inc., aka HIP Housing, is eligible for grant funding from 
the Town of Colma but subject to the organization completing the following: (1) 
updating their status from “current – awaiting reporting” to “current” with the Attorney 
General, and (2) submitting a copy of their completed IRS 990 form filed for 2021 or later 
as both are conditions for fund disbursement. 

Discussion: Human Investment Project, Inc. is registered with the California Attorney 
General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter 
from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is 
to improve the housing and lives of people in the community. HIP Housing enables people 
with special needs to live independent, self-sufficient lives in decent, safe, low-cost homes. 
The Town of Colma is within its service area.   

 



Res. 2023-__, FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding  Page 4 of 12 

(i) Jefferson Union High School District Community Environmental Education 
Program/Wilderness School (CEEP) is eligible for grant funding from the Town of 
Colma. 

Discussion: CEEP is a California governmental entity. The Community Environmental 
Education Program - Susan B. Anthony School Project is a joint program administered by 
Jefferson Union High School District. Its mission is to build a student’s leadership skills 
and teach responsibility and to provide elementary school children with field trip 
chaperones, on-site tutors, and positive role models. The project consists of field trips, 
hiking and camping. Many students from the Town of Colma attend Jefferson High School 
or Susan B. Anthony Elementary School, and the number varies from year to year.   

(j) LifeMoves is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion: LifeMoves is registered with the California Attorney General as a public benefit 
nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it 
is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to end homelessness by 
providing interim housing, support services, and building collaborative partnerships. The 
Town of Colma is located within the LifeMoves’ service area. The Town benefits from 
LifeMoves’ work as low-income and homeless individuals and families in the area are 
provided support services to reduce the homeless population.  

(k) Ombudsman Services of San Mateo County is eligible for grant funding from the 
Town of Colma. 

Discussion: Ombudsman Services of San Mateo County is registered with the California 
Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with 
a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its 
mission is to assure protection through advocacy, direct intervention, education, and 
ongoing case management for all residents in long-term care facilities in San Mateo 
County. The Town of Colma is located within the Ombudsman Services of San Mateo 
County service area.  

(l) Operation Santa Claus is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma.  

Discussion: Operation Santa Claus is registered with the California Attorney General as a 
public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the 
IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to 
provide a traditional Christmas experience to families in the communities of Daly City, 
Colma and Broadmoor that are homeless or whose income is less than their monthly 
expenses. The Town of Colma is within its service area.  

(m) Renaissance Entrepreneurship Center is eligible for grant funding from the Town of 
Colma. 

Discussion: Renaissance Entrepreneurship is registered with the California Attorney 
General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a 
letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its 
mission is to empower and increase the entrepreneurial capacities of socially and 



Res. 2023-__, FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding  Page 5 of 12 

economically diverse women and men, and thereby strengthen communities through the 
creation of sustainable new businesses, new jobs, and financial self-sufficiency. The 
Town of Colma is within its service area.  

(n) San Bruno Mountain Watch is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion:  San Bruno Mountain Watch is registered with the California Attorney General 
as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the 
IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to 
preserve and protect the native ecosystems of San Bruno Mountain through restoration, 
education, and conservation. The Town of Colma is within its service area. 

(o) San Mateo County Jobs for Youth Program is eligible for grant funding from the 
Town of Colma.  

Discussion. San Mateo County Jobs for Youth is a California governmental entity as it is a 
program sponsored by San Mateo County. Jobs’ mission is to provide youth ages 14-21 
assistance in achieving their career and higher education goals via three pillars of success: 
skills workshops, job opportunities, and scholarships. Last fiscal year, Jobs for Youth 
served 324 students from Jefferson Union High School District and 284 students from 
South San Francisco Unified School District who attended workshops and became 
members. The Town of Colma is located within its service area.  

(p) Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition (SVBC) is eligible for grant funding from the Town of 
Colma.  

Discussion: SVBC is registered with the California Attorney General as a public benefit 
nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that 
it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to build healthier and 
more just communities by making bicycling safe and accessible for everyone. The Town 
of Colma is within the geographic area that SVBC serves.  

(q) Sitike Counseling Center (“Sitike”) is eligible for grant funding from the Town of 
Colma but subject to the organization completing the following: (1) update their status 
from “current – reporting incomplete” to “current” with the Attorney General, and (2) 
submit a copy of their completed IRS 990 form filed for 2021 or later as both are conditions 
for fund disbursement.  

Discussion: Sitike is registered with the California Attorney General as a public benefit 
nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it 
is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to provide community-
based counseling and education in a safe and healing environment. The Town of Colma 
is located within its service area. Sitike provided services to 14 Colma residents last fiscal 
year.  

(r) Skyline College is eligible for grant funding grom the Town of Colma 

Discussion: Skyline College is part of a California governmental entity. It is one of three 
institutions within the San Mateo County Community College District. Its mission is to 



Res. 2023-__, FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding  Page 6 of 12 

empower and transform a global community of learners. The Town of Colma is within the 
geographic area that the college serves. 

(s) South San Francisco Education Foundation is eligible for grant funding from the 
Town of Colma but subject to the organization submitting a copy of their completed IRS 
990 form filed for 2021 or later as a condition for funds to be disbursed. 

Discussion: South San Francisco Education Foundation is registered with the California 
Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with 
a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section code 501(c)(3). 
Its mission is to support and enhance public education in the South San Francisco Unified 
School District in a way that prioritizes students, equity, and transparency. The Town of 
Colma is located within its service area. Colma residents who attend schools in the district 
benefit by the support provided to the South San Francisco Education Foundation.  

(t) Sustainable San Mateo County is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion: Sustainable San Mateo County is registered with the California Attorney 
General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter 
from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is 
to drive impactful action on economic, environmental, and social equity issues that lead 
to sustainable practices and improves long-term health in San Mateo County. The Town 
of Colma is within the geographic area served by Sustainable San Mateo County and the 
Indicators Report covers the area where the Town is located.   

3. Findings of Public Purpose 

The City Council has reviewed the applications for grant funds from each of the following 
organizations and finds as follows:  

(a) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to AbilityPath (Community Gatepath) will 
serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for a culinary vocational program for 
adults with developmental disabilities, provides the opportunity to learn the importance of 
healthy eating through basic nutrition education, menu planning, ingredient purchasing, 
food preparation, and cooking offered by AbilityPath (Community Gatepath). This will 
provide an identifiable benefit to the Colma community at large. The Town benefits by 
having people with disabilities become active members of the community through 
recreational, educational and volunteer opportunities with businesses in the Town. The 
services offered by Community Gatepath are readily accessible to Colma residents and the 
public benefit is substantial as people with disabilities have the opportunity to learn and 
thrive.  

(b) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to Asian American Recovery Services 
(HealthRIGHT 360) will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to support the planning and implementation 
of a youth conference for at-risk young women, as requested by Asian American Recovery 



Res. 2023-__, FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding  Page 7 of 12 

Services (HealthRIGHT 360), will provide an identifiable benefit to the Colma community 
at large. Specifically, it will provide a safe space for young women to be vulnerable and 
make positive changes in their lives. This is especially important as Colma has a large 
Asian/Asian-American populace. 

(c) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to Clinic by the Bay will serve a public 
purpose.  

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to support healthy food program to low 
income, working and uninsured adults, as requested by Clinic by the Bay, will provide an 
identifiable benefit to the community at large. The Town and the community at large will 
benefit from the partnership of the food grocery voucher program. This service is readily 
accessible to Colma residents, and the public benefit is substantial as the Town and the 
community all benefit from a healthy populace. 

(d) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to Colma Daly City Chamber of Commerce 
Foundation Inc., aka Colma Daly City Chamber of Commerce, will serve a public purpose.  

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to pay for networking opportunities, office 
space, business promotions, facilitating workshops for businesses, and operational costs, 
as requested by the Colma Daly City Chamber of Commerce Foundation Inc., aka Colma 
Daly City Chamber of Commerce, could be provided by the Town but the Town has chosen 
otherwise. Specifically, the Town could provide these same services as part of its economic 
development program. In that case, the Town would likely expend the amount of the 
grant in staff time and incidental materials to provide these services.  

(e) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to Community Overcoming Relationship 
Abuse (CORA) will serve a public purpose.  

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to pay for programmatic support of the Safe 
House Program, as requested by Community Overcoming Relationship Abuse (CORA), will 
provide an identifiable benefit to the community at large. The funds will be used to house 
domestic violence victims and their families and provide plans for self-reliance.   

(f) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Daly City Public Library Associates 
(DCPLA) will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds for a learning computer and five tablets, as 
requested by the Daly City Public Library Associates (DCPLA), will help support literacy in 
children ages 5 and under via early education technology. These services could be 
provided by the Town, but the Town has chosen otherwise. Specifically, the Town could 
provide these same services through its Recreation Services program. In this case, the 
Town would likely expend the amount of the grant to provide these services. 

(g) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Daly City Youth Health Center (DCYHC) 
will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to pay for primary medical services and 
counseling programs for underserved teens and young adults, as requested by the Daly 



Res. 2023-__, FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding  Page 8 of 12 

City Youth Health Center (DCYHC), will provide an identifiable benefit to the community 
at large. Specifically, it will ensure that young adults reach their full potential via optimal 
health, empowerment, and strong support networks, of which all programs are readily 
accessible to Colma youth.. 

(h) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Human Investment Project, Inc. aka 
HIP Housing will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to support its Home Sharing program, as 
requested by the Human Investment Project, Inc. aka HIP Housing, could be provided by 
the Town but the Town has chosen otherwise. Specifically, HIP Housing’s Home Sharing 
Program matches people who have space in their home to share or with people who are 
searching for an affordable place to live. The services offered by HIP Housing are readily 
accessible to Colma residents. Finally, the public benefit is substantial as providing housing 
to help people live independent lives is important for a well-functioning society.   

(i) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to Jefferson Union High School District 
Community Environmental Education Program/Wilderness School will serve a public 
purpose.  

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to pay for field trips, transportation, meals, 
and supplies, as requested by Jefferson Union High School District Community 
Environmental Education Program/Wilderness School, will provide an identifiable benefit 
to the community at large. The public benefit provided by these services is substantial as 
the services provide education to the Town’s youth, which will make them better, more 
informed, and more productive citizens. 

(j) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to LifeMoves will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to pay for shelter and supportive housing 
services, as requested by LifeMoves, could be provided by the Town but the Town has 
chosen otherwise. In that case, the Town would likely expend the amount of the grant in 
staff time and incidental materials to provide these services. The services offered by 
LifeMoves are readily accessible to individuals in Colma as the Town is located within 
LifeMoves’ service area. Further, the public benefit is substantial as LifeMoves’ services 
ensure Colma residents, or anyone traveling through LifeMoves’ network, have shelter 
and other support services. 

(k) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to Ombudsman Services of San Mateo County 
will serve a public purpose.  

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds will provide advocacy services to Colma 
residents by investigating allegations of abuse for those living in long term facilities, as 
requested by Ombudsman Services of San Mateo County. Ombudsman Services of San 
Mateo County listed two long-term facilities, one of which is in Colma where 45 visits were 
made in the last year. The funding will help meet the federally mandated mission to 
monitor and provide advocacy services. 

 



Res. 2023-__, FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding  Page 9 of 12 

 

(l) A grant in the amount shown in Section 4(a) to Operation Santa Claus will serve a public 
purpose. 

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to pay for toys and store gift cards, as 
requested by Operation Santa Claus, will provide an identifiable benefit to the community 
at large by providing goodwill to Colma families. Last year, deliveries were made to 16 
Colma residences. 

(m) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to Renaissance Entrepreneurship Center will 
serve a public purpose.  

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to help low-income residents start, rebuild, 
maintain, and grow small businesses, as requested by Renaissance Entrepreneurship 
Center, will be used to pay for hands-on training classes in technology, marketing and 
finance. 

(n) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to San Bruno Mountain Watch will serve a 
public purpose. 

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to develop and support educational content 
and experiences to residents and students, as requested by San Bruno Mountain Watch, 
will help to deepen Colma residents’ appreciation for their unique environment. Funds 
will be used to cover staff time and materials for six field trips to San Bruno Mountain 
and Colma Creek. 

(o) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to San Mateo County Jobs for Youth Program 
will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to pay for two full scholarships, as requested 
by the San Mateo County Jobs for Youth Program, will provide an identifiable benefit to 
the Colma community at large. Specifically, this program will help young people transition 
into adulthood and gain work experience, which will make them better, more informed, 
and more productive citizens. The services offered by San Mateo County Jobs for Youth 
are readily accessible to Colma youth. 

(p) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition (SVBC) will 
serve a public purpose. 

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to support Bike to Work/Wherever Days, as 
requested by the Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition (SVBC), will provide an identifiable benefit 
to the Colma community at large. Specifically, this program will encourage the community 
to bike more with goals of reducing carbon emissions, improving local air quality, and 
improving community health. 

(q) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Sitike Counseling Center (“Sitike”) will 
serve a public purpose.  



Res. 2023-__, FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding  Page 10 of 12 

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to maintain client access to treatment and 
services, as requested by the Sitike Counseling Center (“Sitike”), will provide an 
identifiable benefit to the Colma community at large. Funding will help reduce financial 
barriers to treatment while ensuring that community members are able to engage in 
services that support their overall well-being, health, and recovery. The services offered 
by Sitike are readily available to Colma residents and the public benefit is substantial as 
Sitike helps stop the cycle of dependency and mental health issues 

(r) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Skyline College will serve a public 
purpose. 

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to support The President’s Innovation Fund, 
as requested by Skyline College, will support a mini-grant process that encourages 
innovative ideas that from faculty, staff and students at Skyline College that support their 
mission, vision, and values. The Town and the community at large will benefit from 
increased educational programs by ensuring a well-educated public and citizen base.  The 
services offered by Skyline College are readily accessible to any Colma residents attending 
the institution. Further, the public benefit is substantial as 21.7% of the student body 
reside in Colma/Daly City. 

(s) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to South San Francisco Education Foundation  
will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds for purchasing library books, as requested by 
the South San Francisco Education Foundation, will help support literacy, engagement, 
and a love for learning. School libraries in the district do not have a dedicated budget for 
restocking books, and improving access to updated, high-quality books helps Colma 
students reach their highest potential. 

(t) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Sustainable San Mateo County will 
serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds will support program managers who 
coordinate volunteer researchers, writers, graphic designers, printing, and dissemination 
of reports, as requested by Sustainable San Mateo County. In general, the funds will be 
used to support the research and production of the Indicators for a Sustainable San Mateo 
County Report.  The Indicators Report evaluates the health of San Mateo County and its 
cities in terms of sustainability and provides a mean for city officials, non-profits, and 
business leaders, to make educated decisions when considering sustainable policies. In 
addition, these funds will help cover the costs of community meetings and events. 

(u) None of these grants will be used to fund existing obligations, debts or liabilities, national 
and regional charitable organizations, religious organizations, a political campaign, or 
lobbying activities.  

(v) The grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no obligation or 
commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee and that the grantee will 
not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, gender, age, weight, height, sexual 
orientation, marital status, national origin, disability or other characteristic protected by 



Res. 2023-__, FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding  Page 11 of 12 

law. 

4. Order 

(a) The City Council approves grant funding to each of the following organizations in the 
amounts shown, subject to any limitations or prerequisites for certain organizations to 
provide required information to the Town prior to the disbursement of any funds: 

Grantee Staff Proposed Grant Amount 
AbilityPath (Community Gatepath) $6,500 
Asian American Recovery Services 
(HealthRIGHT 360) $2,000 
Clinic by the Bay $4,000 
Colma Daly City Chamber of Commerce $30,000 
Community Overcoming Relationship Abuse 
(CORA) $7,000 
Daly City Public Library Associates (DCPLA) $5,220 
Daly City Youth Health Center  $6,000 
Human Investment Project, Inc. (HIP 
Housing)1 $5,000 
JUHSD Community Environmental Education 
Program/Wilderness Program (CEEP) $4,000 
LifeMoves1  $4,000 
Ombudsman Services of SMC $2,500 
Operation Santa Claus $1,500 
Renaissance Entrepreneurship Center  $3,500 
San Bruno Mountain Watch $2,500 
San Mateo County Jobs for Youth $4,000 
Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition $3,500 
Sitike Counseling Center $6,500 
Skyline College (SMC Community College 
District) $4,000 
South San Francisco Education Foundation $5,000 
Sustainable San Mateo County $1,000 
Total $107,720 
 

(b) Each Grantee must execute a Grant Agreement with the Town before any funds may be 
paid. The Grant Agreement shall include a statement of the goal or purpose of the Grant, 
a time within which the goal is expected to be achieved, and reporting requirements. 

(c) The City Council hereby directs and authorizes the City Manager to execute each Grant 

 
1 Funding to come from Legal Mandates line item in Planning Department budget 



Res. 2023-__, FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding  Page 12 of 12 

Agreement on behalf of the Town in a form approved by the City Attorney. 

 

Certification of Adoption 
 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2023-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of said 
City Council held September 27, 2023 by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 

 
    

John Irish Goodwin 
 

    
Ken Gonzalez 

 
 

 
  

Carrie Slaughter 
 

    
Helen Fisicaro 

 
    

Voting Tally 
  

   
 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 



Requesting Party Organization's Purpose Town's Money Will be Spent On Number of Colma Residents or 
Businesses Served Last Year Public Benefit  Amount Requested 

AbilityPath (Community Gatepath) Help people with special needs & 
disabilities gain independence

Culinary classes at Colma 
kitchen, cost of food, rental, 
transportation

30 residents & 7 businesses Life & vocational skills  $  7,500 

Asian American Recovery Services 
(HealthRIGHT 360)

Provide culturally competent services 
to the Asian-Pacific Islander & other 
ethnically diverse communities of the 
San Francisco Bay Area by reducing the 
impact & incidence of substance use

Planning/implementation of 
youth conference

2 residents Life skills; education  $  2,500 

Clinic by the Bay To understand & serve the health & 
wellness needs of the medically 
underserved in the Bay Area

Food Pharmacy Program 
(healthy food), purchase & 
distribute food vouchers, 
Bounty Box program, stipend for 
Food intern

231 residents Healthcare/food  $  8,000 

Colma Daly City Chamber of 
Commerce 

To encourage business development & 
networking, providing members with 
useful information & services

Office space, pay staff, 
bookkeeping membership 
program, advertisement, 
networking opportunities for 
local businesses

All residents & businesses Economic development; 
educate & engage 
residents

 $  60,000 

Community Overcoming 
Relationship Abuse (CORA)

Safety, support & shelter for individuals 
who experience abuse in an intimate 
relationship

Safe House Program Available to all residents; 
served 4 residents in the last 
year

Safe shelter & resources  $  10,000 

Daly City Public Library Associates To supplement public funding of the 
Daly City libraries

Learning computer & (5) tablets All residents Access to programs & 
books at the library

 $  5,220 

Daly City Youth Health Center To ensure young people reach their full 
potential and thrive through optimal 
health, empowerment, and strong 
support networks

Primary medical services, 
counseling program, health 
education, substance use 
presentations

11 residents Healthcare  $  10,000 

Human Investment Project 
(HIP Housing)

Improving the housing & lives of people 
in the community

Support Home Sharing Program 
(stable & affordable housing)

9 individuals who live and/or 
work in Colma

Safe, affordable housing  $  5,000 

JUHSD CEEP Wilderness School To provide field trip chaperones & tutors 
for Wilderness students as they learn 
community awareness & practice 
leadership skills

Field trip fees, transportation, 
meals & supplies

50 students Education, community & 
environmental 
awareness

 $  11,000 

LifeMoves Provide interim housing & supportive 
services for homeless families & 
individuals

Support operations at six San 
Mateo County interim shelters

22 residents Affordable housing, 
shelter

 $  5,000 

Ombudsman Services San Mateo 
County

Protect residents in long-term care 
facilities through advocacy, direct 
intervention & education in 
collaboration

Investigating allegations of 
abuse in long term care 
facilities

2 facilities in 
Colma/Broadmoor

Advocacy for 
healthcare

 $  2,500 

Operation Santa Claus To provide a traditional Christmas 
experience to families & individuals 
facing financial hardships

Toys & gift cards 16 families Community resource  $  2,000 

Renaissance Entrepreneurship 
Center

Empower & increase the 
entrepreneurial capacities of socially & 
economically diverse women & men

Helping low-income residents 
start, rebuild, maintain & grow 
small businesses

1 resident Economic development  $  5,000 

Funding Request Summary FY 2023-24
Attachment B



Requesting Party Organization's Purpose Town's Money Will be Spent On Number of Colma Residents or 
Businesses Served Last Year Public Benefit  Amount Requested 

San Bruno Mountain Watch To preserve & protect the native 
ecosystems of San Bruno Mountain & 
teach the public about its history

fund (6) field trips to San Bruno 
Mountain & Colma Creek

All students in JUHSD & SSFUSD Education & 
conservation

 $                  3,000 

San Mateo County Jobs for Youth Support youth in achieving career & 
higher education goals via workshops, 
job opportunities & scholarships

Fund two higher education 
scholarships

2 students received 
scholarships & 362 students in 
94014/94080 zip codes 
attended workshops

Scholarships/
Employment services

 $                  4,000 

Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition To build healthier & more just 
communities by making bicycling safe 
& accessible for everyone

Bike to Work/Wherever Days 
(BTWD) program

1 resident sign-up & 12 
people visited the CCC 
energizer station

Community education & 
engagement

 $                  3,500 

Sitike Counseling Center To provide community-based 
counseling & education to those 
affected by addiction & mental illness

Maintain access to treatment & 
services for the unemployed, 
the underemployed, the 
unhoused & other vulnerable 
populations

14 residents Community counseling 
& education

 $                  7,500 

Skyline College (SMC Community 
College District)

To empower & transform a global 
community of learners

Create mini-grant process to 
fund innovative ideas

3255 students from 
Colma/Daly City

Education  $                  5,000 

South San Francisco Education 
Foundation

Support & enhance public education in 
the SSFUSD that prioritizes students, 
equity & transparency

Restock books All students Access to books at the 
library

 $                13,200 

Sustainable San Mateo County To drive impactful action on economic, 
environmental, and social equity issues 
that lead to sustainable practices and 
improves long-term health in San 
Mateo County

Support program manager & 
other staff positions; cover costs 
for free community events & 
collaborative local agency 
meetings

All residents & businesses Provides information to 
city officials, residents & 
businesses

 $                  5,000 

 $              174,920 



Name of Organization FY 2018-19 
Funded

FY 2019-20 
Funded

FY 2020-21 
Funded

FY 2021-22 
Funded

FY 2022-23 
Funded

FY 2023-24 
Requested

Funded vs. 
Requested 

Change
AbilityPath (Community Gatepath) 6,500$       6,500$       6,500$       6,500$       6,500$       7,500$       1,000$       
ALLICE 1,500$       1,500$       
Asian American Recovery Services (HealthRIGHT 360) 2,500$       2,500$       
Clinic by the Bay 3,000$       3,500$       4,000$       4,000$       4,000$       8,000$       4,000$       
Colma - Daly City Chamber of Commerce 25,000$     6,500$       30,000$     60,000$     30,000$     
CORA 2,500$       3,000$       5,000$       5,000$       7,000$       10,000$     3,000$       
Daly City Partnership Collaborative 15,000$     15,000$     15,000$     15,000$     
Daly City Public Library Associates 4,000$       5,000$       5,220$       5,220$       5,200$       5,220$       20$            
Daly City Youth Health Center 6,000$       6,000$       6,000$       6,000$       6,000$       10,000$     4,000$       
Human Investment Project, Inc. (HIP Housing) * 5,000$       5,000$       5,000$       5,000$       5,000$       5,000$       -$          
Jefferson Union (Wilderness School - CEEP) 5,000$       6,000$       6,000$       4,000$       11,000$     7,000$       
LifeMoves * 4,000$       4,000$       4,000$       4,000$       4,000$       5,000$       1,000$       
North Peninsula Food Pantry & DCDC 12,500$     15,000$     15,000$     17,000$     
Ombudsman Services SMC 2,000$       2,000$       2,500$       2,500$       2,500$       -$          
Operation Santa Claus 1,000$       1,000$       1,500$       2,000$       1,500$       2,000$       500$          
Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center 1,380$       1,380$       
Peninsula Volunteers, Inc. Meals on Wheels 5,000$       5,500$       6,000$       
Renaissance Entrepreneurship Center (Ren Center) 5,000$       5,000$       
San Bruno Mountain Watch 2,000$       2,500$       3,000$       3,000$       
San Mateo County Jobs for Youth 2,000$       2,500$       3,000$       3,000$       4,000$       4,000$       -$          
San Mateo County Pride Center 2,500$       3,000$       3,000$       3,000$       3,000$       
San Mateo County Resource Conservation District 5,000$       -$          
Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition (SVBC) 3,500$       3,500$       -$          
Sitike Counseling Center 6,500$       6,500$       6,500$       6,500$       6,500$       7,500$       1,000$       
Skyline College (SMC Community College District) 3,500$       3,500$       4,000$       4,000$       4,000$       5,000$       1,000$       
South San Francisco Education Foundation 13,200$     13,200$     
Sustainable San Mateo County 3,500$       2,500$       1,000$       1,000$       1,000$       5,000$       
Veterans Sportsman Alliance 1,200$       1,200$       
West Alano Bay Club 2,500$       

Total (including Housing Element required grantees) 115,080$   101,580$   99,720$     99,220$     105,200$   174,920$   76,220$     

Footnotes: 

* Indicates a Housing Element required grantee;
funding will come from Planning Department budget

Historical Funding Levels

Attachment C



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



6/26/2023 Page 1 of 6 

Town of Colma 
Non-Profit Funding Request Form 

FY 2023-24 

Please do NOT write “see attached” as a response to any of the questions. You must 
submit all answers on this form. You may submit additional attachments, but they 
will not replace any of the responses. 

Name of Organization: 

Contact Person: 

Address: 
Street Address  City  State  Zip Code 

Phone Number: Email Address: __________________ 

1. Mission Statement:
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. Amount of Request: $________________

a. Total Agency Annual Budget: $_______________

b. Number of Agency Employees: _______________

c. Payroll is ________% of the Agency’s total Annual Budget.

3. Please identify a public purpose for the requested funding by identifying one of the
following categories:

A. Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life; 
B. Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or 

Integrated Care Services;  
C. Educate and engage residents;  
D. Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business 

in the Town; or Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a 
service that the Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6

75

X

 350 Twin Dolphin Drive, Suite 123, Redwood City, CA 94065

The mission of AbilityPath is to empower people with special needs to achieve 
their full potential through innovative, inclusive programs and community 
partnerships. Our vision is a world where people of all abilities are fully 
accepted, respected, and included. AbilityPath’s work is guided by our 
mission, vision, and values – community, inclusion, people first, dedication, 
collaboration, and innovation – which were developed through a collaborative 
process with our management team. We have been a cornerstone of the community 
since 1920, with services that have expanded through the years to meet the 
evolving needs and interests of individuals with developmental disabilities.

ahong@abilitypath.org

7,500

AbilityPath

218

Anne-Marie Hong, Grants Manager

650-250-7130

26,066,291

Attachment D



6/26/2023  Page 2 of 6 
 

3a.       Describe how the funding will support the selected category: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Describe reason for request and how funds will be used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6

This request supports category B by providing health, independent living, and 
pre-vocational skill building for adults with developmental disabilities in a 
community-based setting at the Colma Community Center. Our project focuses on 
nutrition, healthy eating, cooking skills, physical health, and community inclusion. 
Obesity rates for individuals with disabilities are approximately 57% higher than for 
adults without disabilities, making these skills critical to the health and wellbeing 
of those we serve. Additionally, as a result of sheltering-in-place for the Covid-19 
pandemic, the healthy living routines for many individuals were disrupted. An ongoing 
emphasis has been placed on returning to healthy living routines to combat a decline in
 physical health. Modifications to physical activities have helped rebuild stamina 
through fitness classes, community hikes, and neighborhood walks. To return to healthy 
eating habits, participants will learn about nutrition, portion sizes, and preparation 
of healthy meals on a budget. Participants also initiated an on-going healthy snacks 
project by re-evaluating vending machine offerings at AbilityPath sites. They decided 
which items should be substituted for healthier choices, removed soda completely, and 
continue to reassess if they are providing healthy (+ cost effective) options. We will 
rent the kitchen at the Colma Community Center and purchase groceries, which will also 
support businesses in the Town (category D). 

We intend to rent the Colma kitchen at least once per week, permitting the kitchen's 
availability, for educational and instructional classes including basic nutrition 
education, meal planning, food selection, following a recipe, food preparation, food 
storage methods. Participants will purchase ingredients for recipes by following a 
budget, reading food labels, purchasing the items - all of which include social and 
financial skill practice. Traveling to the community center also addresses learning and 
practicing how to use public transportation. Other areas of instruction incorporated 
into these sessions include following direction, safety awareness, and working together.
 AbilityPath is also piloting a culinary vocational program that will provide skills 
training and employment opportunities for individuals who are interested in the culinary
 industry; the Colma kitchen will be utilized for these culinary program sessions as 
well. Funds will support the cost of food, the rental of the Colma kitchen at least 
weekly for three months, and transportation to the kitchen.



6/26/2023  Page 3 of 6 
 

5. If the amount of the request is higher than the previous year, provide a detailed 
explanation of the need for the increase: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Describe the benefit to the Town derived from funding your organization: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6

AbilityPath participants will support local Colma businesses and organizations when 
they learn about activities in the town as well as how to access and enjoy them using 
public transportation. They are more likely to utilize these resources and contribute 
to the local economy on an on-going basis once they are more familiar with the town. 
Additionally, Colma residents and businesses will have opportunities to interact with 
people who have developmental disabilities, increasing understanding, respect, 
acceptance, and inclusion. Finally, Colma's residents who have family members with 
disabilities will see a future of inclusion in their local community for their family 
members.

N/A



6/26/2023  Page 4 of 6 
 

7. Describe the following: 
A. Number of Colma residents or businesses (or both) served by the organization 
in the years prior to the grant application;  
B. The location(s) where Colma residents or businesses may receive the recipient 
organization’s services or programs; and  
C. The nature and extent of the efforts of the recipient organization to reach out 
to Colma residents and businesses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Provide a detailed account of how the FY 2022-23 contribution was used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6

A: Throughout our programs, we've served at least 7 businesses and 30 residents.
B: The program will visit and utilize the Colma Community Center, Target, Starbucks and 
BART. During other outings not related to this grant request, participants will also 
visit the following: Metro Center Complex, Colma Historical Museum, Cypress Golf Course,
 Starbucks, and Kohl's. 
C: AbilityPath staff have a positive relationship with Colma Community Center based on 
past/current history of renting the kitchen. Staff also explore the area in person and 
online to identify new locations for activities and volunteer opportunities. 
Additionally, we reach Colma residents and businesses through marketing. 

The 2022-2023 grant provided by the Town of Colma allowed AbilityPath to offer important
 life skills and pre-vocational training to adults with developmental disabilities. As 
our programs gradually returned to in-person services, we continued to offer hybrid 
schedules to meet the needs, the stamina, and the comfort of the 271 day program 
participants we served (141 of whom are San Mateo County residents). Halfway through the
 year, we had approximately 70% back on hybrid schedules of 2-3 days of in-person and 
the remaining days as virtual programming. By June 2023, we had approximately 90% of 
participants on this hybrid schedule; of those individuals, over 50% are attending 5 
days per week. The remaining individuals continue to utilize a hybrid schedule; for 
some, this is based on choice, and others are navigating transportation barriers. We 
offered 25 fitness classes each week; 100% of participants had access to & participated 
in at least one fitness/exercise activity each day (including 3 daily virtual class 
options). Classes/activities included yoga, drumming for fitness, seated chair exercise,
 walking, tai chi, hiking, basketball, soccer, and going to the gym. We offered 24 
health and nutrition classes each week; 100% of participants had access to & 
participated in at least one nutrition/health-related class each day. Classes included 
cooking, healthy snacks, general nutrition education, self-care, art therapy, 
mindfulness, & meditation. We finally returned to the Colma Community Center kitchen in 
September 2022 to put our Health & Wellness curriculum into hands-on practice. We 
utilized the kitchen 1-2 times per week for educational and instructional classes 
including basic nutrition education, meal planning, food selection, following a recipe, 
food preparation, food storage methods. Participants purchased ingredients for recipes 
by following a budget, reading food labels, purchasing the items - all of which include 
social and financial skill practice. Other areas of instruction incorporated into these 
sessions included following directions, safety awareness, hygiene, and working together.
 We also held cooking classes at our Burlingame site each week.FY2022-2023 funds 
supported salaries & wages for staff, food and program supplies for participants, and 
rental fees for the Colma kitchen. 



6/26/2023  Page 5 of 6 
 

9.        List contributions requested and received from other cities in FY 2022-23 and requested 
or expected in FY 2023-24: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10. Did the organization participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 

publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate 
for public office within the past 36 months (please select one)?   

 
Yes __________ No ______________ 
 
If yes, please provide details.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6

 

City of Burlingame $3,260 (received FY 2022-23), $3,500 (received FY 2023-24)
City of Menlo Park $3,000 (received FY 2022-23), $5,000 (expected FY2023-24)
City of Palo Alto $66,047 (received FY 2022-23), $58,725 (expected FY 2023-24)
City of Sunnyvale $13,885 (received FY 2022-23), $13,606 (expected FY 2023-24)

X



6/26/2023  Page 6 of 6 
 

11. Charitable Trust # or EIN #          
 
 
 
Please attach a copy of the following: 
 

 Roster of current governing board 
 Current Year Annual Operating Budget 
 Proof of organization’s tax exempt status 
 Completed IRS 990 form (filed for 2022 or 2021)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Optional Attachments 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6

94-1156502



 

 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
Executive Committee 
 
Bryan Neider, CEO 
AbilityPath 
 
Steve Eskenazi, Chair 
Angel Investor 
 
Jennifer Wagstaff-Hinton, Vice Chair  
Community Leader/Hewlett Packard (Retired) 
 
Christopher Murphy, Treasurer  
Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher, & Flom, LLP 
 
Cynthia Owyoung, Secretary 

Breaking Glass Forums 

 
Linda Leao, Immediate Past Chair 
Community Leader 
 
Marc McGeever, Via Services Immediate Past Chair 
Community Volunteer  
 
Board of Directors 
 
Ken Barker 
Finance Consultant 
 
Jeff Brown 
Business Consultant 
 
Alexandria Cabral 
National Housing Trust 
 
Amber Checky 
Inclusion Counts 
 
Cassy Christianson, OTR/L 
Developmental Specialist 
 
Jack Easterbrook 
Strategy Law, LLP 
 
Carolyn Irvine 

AbilityPath Auxiliary Vice President 
 

Rex Ishibashi 

Originator Inc. 

 
 

 

Tyler Kawaguchi 

Follett Corporation at Stanford Bookstore 

 

Ishrag Khababa 

Satellite Healthcare 

 

Helen Marlo, Ph.D. 

Notre Dame de Namur University/Private Practice 

 

Kirsten McCarthy 

AbilityPath Auxiliary President 

 

Carole Middleton 

Community Leader, Philanthropist 

 

Denise Pollard 

CLASS 

 

Suman Prasad 

Google 

 

Mike Reed 

Franklin Templeton Investments 

 

Felicia Stacker 

Luna Innovations Incorporated 

 

Tracy Warman-Gries 

NetApp, Inc. 

 

Sibylle Whittam 

Philanthropy Advisor 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6



AbilityPath

Organization Budget FY24

Revenue

  Contributions 2,007,024

  Special Events 1,237,500

  Grant Revenue

    4115 Billable Grants 1,220,060

    4120 Operating Grants 555,025

  Total Grant Revenue 1,775,085

  Regional Center & DOR

    4300 Fees - Regional Centers 11,110,008

    4302 Fees - Dept of Rehab Federal 778,069

    4310 CIE Payments 209,200

  Total Regional Center & DOR 12,097,277

  Private Pay 7,602,538

  Enterprise Business Revenue 360,878

  Investment Income 720,000

Total Revenue 25,800,302

Expense

  Salary & Wages 15,223,832

  Employee Benefits 4,846,205

  Direct Expenses

    5320 Legal Fees 52,000

    5330 Audit Fees 105,000

    5340 Medical Fees 1,760

    5350 Investment Mgmt. Fees 30,000

    5360 Payroll Processing Fees 12,000

    5390 Other Contract Fee Payments 967,396

    5410 Offices Supplies 25,440

    5445 Postage 9,775

    5450 User Fees & Application Support 449,008

    5470 Minor Equipment Purchases 21,600

    5500 Program Supplies 239,500

    5510 Program Food Expense 71,760

    5710 Telephone 235,691

    6510 Equip. Rent/Lease 50,000

    6610 Equip Maint/Repair 12,000

    6650 Printing 49,650

    6660 Video and Photography 18,000

    6670 Subscriptions 65,152

    6680 Marketing 38,996

    6681 Digital Ads 92,560

    6682 Print Ads 9,800

    6683 Signage 9,000

    6684 Swag 15,550

    6685 Community Outreach & Events 5,690

    6710 Gas & Oil - Agency Vehicles 79,070

    6720 Repairs - Agency Vehicles 90,000

    6730 Insurance - Agency Vehicles 52,944

    6740 Licenses & Permits-Agency Veh. 4,800

    6810 Mileage & Parking 113,776

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6



    6820 Hotels, Meals, and Incidential 3,000

    6910 Meeting Space and equipment rental 1,250

    6920 Meeting & Conferences 25,200

    6930 Food & Beverages 36,330

    6960 Employee Development 70,900

    7030 Transportation for Participants 180

    7110 Individual Dues 800

    7120 Agency Dues 28,000

    7130 Golf Tournament 35,000

    7340 Power of Possibilities 233,985

    7370 Authors Luncheon 86,000

    7390 Other Special Events 20,000

    7410 Moving & Recruitment 310,000

    7420 D&O Insurance 24,588

    7430 Bank & Other Charges 41,200

    7440 Interest Expense 30,000

    7450 Employee Award 82,175

    7500 Miscellaneous Expense 9,000

    7599 Intercompany Chargebacks - Operating Expenses (20,000)

  Total Direct Expenses 3,945,526

  Occupancy 2,050,728

Total Expense 26,066,291

Net Surplus (Loss) Excluding Depr (265,989)

8010 Depreciation 620,547

Net Surplus (Loss) (886,536)

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6



Accept. Respect. Include.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-2022

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6



Another exciting highlight of the 

year was our inspiring 13th Annual 

Power of Possibilities event hosted at 

Filoli Gardens.  With your generous 

support, we raised over $750,000 to 

support our programs.  Celebrating 

the accomplishments of Jennifer 

Gorman, this year’s Neal Poppin Award 

winner, was one of my favorite parts 

of the evening!  Jennifer found her 

dream job in the bakery at Lucky in 

Redwood City.  Her dedication and 

warm personality have made Jennifer 

a valued member of the Lucky Bakery 

Team. Congratulations, Jennifer!  

Finally, we continue to spend 

significant time reflecting on the 

importance of our work around 

diversity, equity, and inclusion - values 

that are at the core of our vision.  As 

part of our efforts, we expanded our 

DEI Core Curriculum and staff trainings.  

We expanded and now support six 

active Employee Resource Groups 

As we reflect on all we’ve accomplished 

this past year, I’d like to thank you for 

your support in helping us maintain 

critical services for children and 

adults with developmental disabilities. 

During another year of the pandemic, 

our teams served more than 1,000 

individuals on a daily basis. We 

maintained high-quality standards and 

excelled at innovating new and creative 

ways to deliver services in both virtual 

and in-person environments.

Our Children’s Therapy Services 

team offered both in-person and 

tele-therapy and relaunched group 

classes. Learning Links’ early learning 

and inclusive preschool centers made 

numerous improvements to physical 

spaces and taught hundreds of children 

with and without special needs. 

Our Family Support Services team 

provided emotional support, connected 

families with resources, and screened 

nearly 500 children to support early 

identification of developmental delays.

Adult Programs provided services in a 

variety of formats to meet individual 

needs based on comfort levels with 

returning in person. Our Day Program 

continued to roll out the new Pathways 

curriculum, which helps individuals 

build skills and confidence by working 

together to take a project from 

concept to completion; one of the four 

projects this year was the production 

of the program’s first ever yearbook, 

including links to musical and audio 

narratives along with photo montages. 

Our Independent Living Skills program 

hosted six different clubs, providing 

social and learning opportunities for 

adults. Our Employment Services team 

supported over 50 adults to secure 

new jobs in the community.

AbilityPath also led a successful 

statewide advocacy campaign with 

1,800 advocates who sent 2,800+ 

messages to elected officials 

about accelerating rate increases 

from California Department of 

Developmental Services, which is a 

start to addressing two decades of 

chronic underfunding.  These advocacy 

efforts helped lead to a rate increase 

that will result in an additional $400K 

in annual revenue for AbilityPath.

Leading Innovation, Advocacy, and 
Inclusion in Our Community

and work in close partnership with our 

teams to support the annual DEI goal 

setting for each department.  While 

we’re proud of the progress we’ve 

made, we know there is more work to 

do.

I look forward to seeing what the 

AbilityPath family can achieve in the 

coming year. Thank you wholeheartedly 

for supporting our mission and 

inspiring inclusion.

Bryan Neider

CEO

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6



Vision

Mission

Values

A world where people of all abilities are fully accepted, respected, and included.

Empower people with special needs to achieve their full potential through 

innovative, inclusive programs, and community partnerships.

People First

Collaboration

Inclusion

Dedication

Innovation

Community

Our mission to accept, respect, and include people of all abilities 

extends to every member of our community. As an organization, 

we are committed to the lifelong process of diversity, equity, 

and inclusion (DEI) learning and application as we continue to 

build a more inclusive culture, where everyone plays a role in 

advancing DEI and has opportunities to represent themselves 

authentically. We aspire to use our advocacy to challenge 

ableism and all corresponding systems of privilege and 

oppression through our programs and services. We will always 

have work to do, and we look forward to doing it TOGETHER!

Learn more at abilitypath.org/DEI

Better Together,  
Better With YOU

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6



Vilma* was introduced to AbilityPath 

through our Tú y Yo class, where Spanish-

speaking parents learn about their 

child’s development through play and 

practice strategies to support their child. 

She quickly learned about AbilityPath’s 

other services and worked with our Help 

Me Grow Care Coordinator, Danielle, to 

complete a developmental screening 

because she was worried that her son 

Diego* was not speaking or developing 

as expected for his age. The screening 

results confirmed her concerns and 

*not pictured

Vilma immediately felt panicked, unsure 

what to do. Danielle calmly reassured 

her, explaining the benefits of early 

identification, describing how other 

families have helped their children, and 

presenting Vilma with several options for 

her son. 

Since Vilma’s English is limited, 

Danielle helped her complete all the 

documentation for a speech and language 

evaluation. Then she worked with Vilma 

to find services, helping her understand 

the process and making it easier for her. 

Every week, Danielle followed up. She stayed with Vilma for every step 

until Diego was connected to services. She even came to Vilma’s house 

with a bag of supplies and provided information about free community 

resources, programs, and events. Vilma says, “They showed me how to 

advocate for my child’s rights and not to be afraid to ask for help. They 

also assisted me in navigating through the hard systems and long wait 

lists to be able to get the early intervention that my son needed for future 

success.”  With Danielle as her ally, Diego got the speech and language 

therapies he needed, and Vilma received the support she needed to 

become a critical part of her child’s care team.

585
children received 29,000 hours of 

speech, occupational, and physical 

therapy, and early intervention 

services

465  

children screened for early 

identification of developmental 

delays

367  

children with and without special 

needs learned together in our 

inclusive preschools 

787  

families received 1:1 guidance 

through 4,500 interactions with 

our Family Support Services 

coordinators to support their child’s 

development

Family Support and Access to 
Services Promote Each Child’s 
Development

They showed me how to advocate 
for my child’s rights and not to be 
afraid to ask for help.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6



When you walk into Savers in San Jose you’ll see a flurry 

of activity and at the center of that is Ravi Ayer, a store 

associate. Ravi started at Savers through an internship, 

which was a great success. Working with his job 

developer, Joanne, Ravi applied to become a part-time 

employee, interviewed for the job, and was hired!

Speaking about his work, Ravi says: “What I like most 

about my job is helping customers and putting out the 

clothes in the kids and adult sections. I want to keep 

working hard and achieve my goals.” Ravi’s mother, 

Mandeep, says she has seen a big change in Ravi since 

he started work. “He has so much more confidence,” she 

says. “He speaks more clearly and he looks forward to 

Tuesday each week when he goes back to work.” 

 

When deciding on his goals for the coming year, Ravi 

said he is working on developing his customer service 

skills, particularly responding to customer questions 

when on the shop floor.  And whenever asked about his 

performance at work, Ravi’s supervisors say they wish he 

could work more often because he’s such a pleasure to 

have around!

 

Ravi is now a happier person, gaining skills, confidence, 

and independence - and helping to make his community 

a better place.  

Access to Opportunities and Inclusion 
Benefit Our Entire Community

What I like most about my job is helping customers… 
I want to keep working hard and achieve my goals.

60+
community outings each week

16
exhibitions in the community 

featuring artwork by adults in our 

Phil Egan Program for the Arts

Launched
a CareerPath Culinary Training 

Program, supporting participants to 

earn their Food Handler Certification

600
adults supported to achieve their 

individualized goals in health, 

recreation, independent living, and 

employment 

216
adults with developmental 

disabilities with paid work in the 

community

30
new employment partners

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6



Partnerships Expand Program 
Opportunities and Support 
Sustainability
In addition to delivering high quality 

services in FY22, our team expanded 

program offerings through mergers 

and affiliations.  We are now one of the 

only providers of community-based 

rehabilitation programs and therapy 

services on the Peninsula for adults who 

have experienced a stroke or traumatic 

brain injury.  Services for Brain Injury 

(SBI) and REACH Program were the two 

remaining organizations on the Peninsula 

providing these services prior to their 

closures due to the economic impact 

of the pandemic. AbilityPath assumed 

employment services for SBI in 2019, 

and since taking on their operations, 

we have grown the number of adults 

in that program by nearly 300%.  In 

December 2021, AbilityPath assumed the 

therapy programs offered by REACH, 

retaining their staff and location in Palo 

Alto, ensuring these important services 

continued to be offered.    

In June, we signed an Affiliation 

Agreement with Via Services, making 

us one of the largest and most 

comprehensive providers of services to 

people with developmental disabilities 

and their families on the Peninsula.  As 

part of the Affiliation, we have added First 

Step children’s therapy services and Camp 

Via West, an incredible 13.5 acre campus, 

where the dedicated staff provide 

weekend daytime respite services and a 

summer camp program serving youth and 

adults with developmental disabilities. 

This incredible resource is located right in 

the heart of Silicon Valley.

Along with the mergers of ALLS and 

Abilities United, these actions were part of 

a strategy we developed nearly five years 

ago in order to overcome the challenges 

of the high cost of doing business in the 

Bay Area and nearly two decades of 

underfunding from the State of California. 

As a result of these efforts, we have 

streamlined administrative, marketing, 

and overhead functions, allowing us to 

redeploy more resources to support staff 

and programs so we can expand, innovate, 

and improve our lifespan of services for 

children, adults, and families.

(2021)

(2022)
(2019)

(2019)

(2017)

Allowing us to redeploy more resources to support staff 
and programs so we can expand, innovate, and improve 

our lifespan of services

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6



Through the generosity of our donors and as a result of strong fiscal management, 

AbilityPath was able to deliver high quality programs, invest in staff, and upgrade 

facilities, while managing during a time of uncertainty created by the pandemic.  

We are proud to have been able to maintain employee wages, support professional 

development, and expand benefits offerings; both which constitute 75% of 

operating expenses.  For example, in FY22 we provided our staff with additional 

PTO days and additional mental health benefits during another challenging year. 

 

There were two significant financial benefits in FY22 that impacted our results. First 

was the $2.6M forgiveness of a “Payroll Protection Program” loan under the U.S. 

CARES Act of 2021 which provided small businesses with the resources necessary 

to maintain payroll during COVID-19; proceeds from the loan were used to support 

staff retention during the pandemic.  Second, $1.6M of restricted funds associated 

with the Abilities United Affiliation were contributed to AbilityPath in FY22; these 

restricted funds cannot be used for general operations. 

 

Looking ahead, we anticipate FY23 will be a more challenging year financially.  

Economic uncertainty may impact our financial reserves and it may also affect 

philanthropic support.  In addition, a tight labor market and hiring challenges might 

constrain our ability to fully staff our programs.

Operational Outcomes

Support and Revenue

Adult Services

   Public Funding 30% $6.7M

Children and Family Services

   Public Funding 10% $2.3M

   Private Fees 26% $5.8M

Donations, Grants, and Bequests

   Unrestricted Contributions

   Transfer of Restricted Gift

17%

7%

$3.7M

$1.6M

PPP Loan Forgiveness 12% $2.6M

Investment Losses 2% $(0.6)M

Support and Revenue Total 100% $22.1M

Operations and Net Surplus

Programs

   Adult Services 28% $6.1M

   Children and Family Services 34% $7.5M

   Occupancy 8% $1.7M

Marketing and Development 7% $1.5M

Administration 12% $2.7M

Total Operations 88% $19.4M

Net Surplus 12% $2.7M

Total Operations and Net Surplus 100% $22.1M

8,000 
hours from volunteers and 

interns

59 
interns, including 42 adult 

services interns with specialized 

training in Psychology, 

Occupational Therapy, 

Recreational Therapy, and Music 

Therapy

20 
hours of training on average per 

employee

210  

employees

$287K  

value of in-kind donations

1,200  

donors

Our teams served more than 1,000 
individuals on a daily basis.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6



360 Degrees
4Cs of San Mateo County
AbilityPath Auxiliary
AchieveKids
Ada’s Café
Adobe Systems Inc.
Aegis
Ala Costa Centers
Linda Alepin, You As a Leader
The Alliance
Amazon
ANCOR
Aramark (SAP)
Arbor Bay School
The ARC CA
The ARC San Francisco
Association of Regional Center 

Agencies (ARCA)
Atria Park of San Mateo
Avenidas
Ayudando Latinos A Soñar 

(ALAS)
B.O.K. Ranch
Baby Basics
Bailard
Bayshore Elementary School 

District
Bed Bath & Beyond
Assemblymember Marc Berman
Big Wave Farm
BJ’s Restaurant and Brewhouse
Blue Shield
BoardSource
BOK Ranch
Bon Appétit
Bon Appetit - Google
Bon Appetit - Linkedin
Bon Appetit - Yoshka’s & Go Cafe 

Manager
Boys & Girls Clubs of the Peninsula
Susan Bradley
Bravemaker
Burlingame Library 
Burlingame Parks & Recreation 

Department
Burlingame Rotary
Burlingame School District
Burlingame University Transition 

Program

C2 education 
Cabrillo Unified School District
Cache Café
Cal State University East Bay
Cal State University Northridge
California Children’s Services 

(CCS)
California Disability Services 

Association
California Health and Human 

Services Agency
California State University, 

Sacramento
California’s Great America
Caminar
Canada College
Capella University
Carl’s Junior
Preston Carter
CaseMagic
The Cat Inn
CAW Architects
Center for Independence (CID) 
Center for Optimal Brain 

Integration - Julie Kurtz
Chan Zuckerberg Initiative
Channing House
Charity Navigator
Children’s Discovery Museum
Children’s Health Council
The Children’s Movement
Chuck E Cheese
Kenneth Chun
Cisco
City of Daly City
City of Mountain View
City of Palo Alto 
City of South San Francisco
City of Sunnyvale
Clocktower Coffee
Coalition for Dementia Care 

Services for Adults with IDD
Cognoa
College of Adaptive Arts
Michael Collopy
Colma Community Center
Commission on Disabilities
Community School of Music and 

Art

Congregational Church of Palo 
Alto

Conscious Leadership Guild
CORA
Costco - Mountain View
County of San Mateo
County of Santa Clara
CQEL
Cupertino Union School District
CuriOdyssey
CVS
Daly City Partnership
Dave & Buster’s 
Department of Developmental 

Services (DDS)
Department of Rehabilitation
DH Scott
Doelger Center, City of Daly City
Down Syndrome Connection of 

the Bay Area
Draeger’s Market Place
Disability Rights California (DRC)
ED Collaborative
Eden Housing
Electronic Arts
Emerson Univeristy
Congresswoman Anna Eshoo
ESPA with Stanford
Family Giving Tree
Family Housing and Adult 

Resources, Inc.
FedEx
Filoli
First 5 San Mateo County
First Congregational Church Palo 

Alto
First Presbyterian Church of San 

Mateo
Fitness 19
Foothill College
Forbes Nonprofit Council
Foster City Library
Franklin Templeton
Freebird Development Company
Futures Explored
Nob Hill Gazette
Golden Gate Regional Center
Golden Valley Bank
Goldfarb and Lipman LLP

Gonzaga University
Good Shepherd School 
Goodwill
Goodwill of Silicon Valley
Google Inc (Micro Kitchen)
Graybird Foundation
Great American Framing Co.
Greater Opportunities
GreatNonprofits
The Grill on the Alley
Supervisor Carole Groom
Guidestar
H&M Clothing Store
Habitat
Harvard Business School
Haven House
Heal Project
Health Plan of San Mateo
Henry’s Place
Hicklebee’s
Hill Physicians
HIP Housing
Home Depot
Home Goods
Homewood Suites by Hilton Palo 

Alto
Marty Honda 
Hope Services
Housing Choices
Wendy Hsiao
Humane Society Silicon Valley
IHSS
Inclusion Counts
Infant Devleopment Association 

(IDA)
InsideSource
Izzi Early Education
Intercommunal Preschool
Jameco Electronics 
Jefferson Union High School 

District and Transition Program
Jiffy Lube - Campbell
John Stewart Company 
Juut Salon
Kainos
Kaiser Permanente
Kara
Kathy’s Creative Kakes
Kepler’s

Employment & Community Partners 
Thank you to our more than 350 employment and community partners!

Barbara Key, You As a Leader
Kidzplace 
King Center, City of San Mateo
La Comida
The Lanterman Coalition
Lanterman Housing Alliance
Leadership Council of San Mateo 

County
Assemblymember Alex Lee
Legal Aid Society of San Mateo
Levi’s Jeans
Life Services Alternatives
Life Steps Foundation
LifeMoves
Los Altos Library
Los Gatos Union High School 

District
Los Prados Community Garden
Lucky
Magical Bridge
Magnolia Center, City of South 

San Francisco
The Magnolia of Millbrae
Marin Ventures
Marriott
Mazzetti’s Bakery 
Millbrae Library
Millbrae Parks & Recreation 

Department
Mills Legal Clinic, Stanford Law 

School
Sutter Health, Mills-Peninsula 

Medical Center
Milpitas Food Bank
Mitchell Park
Mitchell Park Library
Monitor Deloitte
Mother’s Milk Bank
Mountain View Police Department
Assemblymember Kevin Mullin
MW Properties
National Charity League
Neighborhood Christian Preschool
Neighborhood Infant and Toddler 

Center
Neighbors Helping Neighbors
Nob Hill 
Notre Dame de Namur
OCRA Office of Clients Rights
OK Lumber
One Step Beyond
OnTrac
Oracle
Our Second Home

PACE
Pacific Art League
Pacific Nurseries
Pacifica Gardens
Pacifica School District
Palo Alto Art Center
Palo Alto Chamber of Commerce
Palo Alto Daily Post
Palo Alto Family YMCA
Palo Alto Fire Department
Palo Alto High School
Palo Alto Kiwanis Club
Palo Alto Nursing Center
Palo Alto Online
Palo Alto Police Department
Palo Alto Unified School District
Palo Alto Weekly
Parca
Parents Helping Parents
Peninsula Family Service
Peninsula Health Care District
Peninsula Jewish Community 

Center
PetSmart
Pick of the Litter, Burlingame 

SPCA
Supervisor Dave Pine
Pomeroy Recreation and 

Rehabilitation Center
The Primary School
Project Open Hand
Ravenswood Family Health Center
Redwood City Chamber of 

Commerce
The Renaissance Center
Joe Roark
Ronald McDonald House at 

Stanford
Rose’s Kitty Rescue
Rotary Club of Palo Alto
Safeway
Salvation Army
Samaritan House
SamTrans ParaTransit 

Coordinating Council
Samuel Merrit Univeristy 
San Andreas Regional Center
San Bruno Church
San Bruno Park School District
San Carlos Charter Learning 

Center
San Carlos Senior Center
San Francisco State University
San Jose Conservation Core

San Jose State University
San Mateo - Foster City School 

District
San Mateo Adult School
San Mateo County Health System
San Mateo County Human Service 

Agency
San Mateo County Libraries
San Mateo County Office of 

Education
San Mateo County Special 

Education Local Plan Area
San Mateo County Voting 

Accessibility Advisory 
Committee

San Mateo Daily Journal
San Mateo Leadership Program
San Mateo Recreation Center
San Mateo Senior Center 
San Mateo Union High School 

District
Santa Clara County Special 

Education Local Plan Area
Santa Clara University
Satellite Health Care
Savers
Second Harvest Food Bank
Senator Josh Becker
Senior Citizen Center of San 

Mateo, City of San Mateo
Sequoia Health Care District
SF-Marin Food Bank
Shartsis Fries LLP
Silicon Valley Community 

Foundation
Supervisor Joe Simitian
Skyline College
Smile Farm
University of Oklahoma 
Eclectic Cookery
South San Francisco Community 

Learning Center
South San Francisco Library
South San Francisco Unified 

School District
South San Francisco Union High 

School District and Transition 
Program

Special Olympics of Northern 
California

Speech Goals
Congresswoman Jackie Speier
Sprouts
St. Francis High School

St. Ignatius Preparatory School 
Stanford Athletic Department
Stanford Book Store
Stanford Children’s Health: Lucile 

Packard Children’s Hospital
Stanford Graduate School of 

Business Alumni Consulting 
Team for Nonprofits

StarVista
State Council on Developmental 

Disabilities
Stella & Dot
Stevenson House
Sunnyvale Community Center
Sutro Stewards
Taekwon Kids
Target
Ted Lempert and Children Now
Ted’s Village Pharmacy
Thrive
Assemblymember Phil Ting
TJ Maxx - San Jose
TRACE Transition Program, 

Sequoia Union High School 
District

Trader Joe’s
Tuesday Mornings 
UNIQLO
Unitarian Church
Unity Church
University of San Francisco
Veterans Memorial Senior Center
Via Services
Walgreens
Washington State University
Western Rigging
Whole Foods
WIC (Women, Infants & Children)
Willow Commons
Wings Learning Center
YMCA of the Peninsula
Young Men’s Service League 

(YMSL)
Zynga

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6



AbilityPath Auxiliary
For more than 70 years, the AbilityPath Auxiliary has hosted fundraising and social events, volunteered in our programs, 

and engaged in advocacy campaigns to support children and adults with developmental disabilities. We are grateful to 

the 150 members – who volunteered a combined 4,500 hours this year and made significant financial contributions – for 

their dedication to our mission and steadfast support. In total, the Auxiliary and its members have donated more than $6 

million to support those we serve! 

Louise Agardy

Marilyn Alberding

Suzanne Barberini

Betty Barnes

Jane Barr

Pat Barr

Cathy Beardsley

Pauline Beare

Pearl Bender

Kate Bennett

Kay Benz

Bonnie Bertetta

Helen Bigelow

Bambi Bisho

Susan Bloom

Mickey Bock

Kathryn Breaux

Carole Brooks

Joy Brorsen

Denyse Browne

Norreen Bulotti

Carolyn Bunje

Melody Butterworth

Gayle Carboni

Anne Carey

Cheri Carr

Jane Carr

Mary Chigos

Connie Clark

Lynne CoBabe

Elaine Cohen

Susan Comartin

Mary Connelly

Kathy Cook

Betty Cookson

Margot Cookson

Gloria Corey

Barbara Curry

Mary Lee Delehanty

Susan Desautels

Kim Diefendorf

Sylvia Dowd

Happy Dumas

Nancy Fick

Madalyn Fitzpatrick

Roxie Folsom

Caroline Friedman

Barbara Frohman

Jean Garcia

Gay Gentry

Barbara Gilmartin

Marjorie Giordano

Louise Gray

Barbara Gross

Lynn Gross

Betsy Grotte

Janet Grove

Marianne Guttas

Pam Hakman

Ellen Hallsted

Roberta Hamilton-

Puccinelli

Lynzie Haynes

Ruth Haynes

Christine Hevener

Sky Hill

Charlene Hines

Jamie Hock

Janet Hooper

Carolyn Irvine

Leila Jensen

Carol Kalb

Louise Karr

Carol Kary

Karen Key

JoAnne Kiefus

Lynn Kiley

Vicky King

Jennifer Kockos

Gail Kriessmann

Julie Layton

Kay Lee

June Levin

Maria Levy

Chris Lilly

Diana Linden

Lynda Locke

Danette Magilligan

Janet Martic

Kirsten McCarthy

Charlotte McFadden

Sara McLellan Jungroth

Marilyn Miller

Carole Millhauser

Joyce Molinelli

Janet Morris

Claudette Morrison

Betsy Murray

Candy Nagare

Cathy Nessier

Reddie Nichols

Lynn Nieberding

Margo Pace

Margaretha Paxton

Marie Pease

Rosa Perez

Susan Pizzi

Patti Poindexter

Kathy Quale

Colleen Rafferty

Sharon Rau

Joan Riggs

Beth Ritchie

Virginia Roberts

Linda Rogerville

Patricia Rourke

Mary Rutgers

Vivian Salama

Roberta Salma

Jeanne Sartorio

Clyde Schauer

Sue Schellenberg

Christina Scribner

Peg Shambarger

Katie Sharp

Susan Shea

Anne Siberell

Ranada Stephenson

Alice Stern

Belinda Steyer

Sue Stockton

Bev Stowell

Beth Straccia

Suzanne Sullivan

Sandra Ann Tilch

Pat Toft

BeBe Trinkner

Molly Wantuch

Genie Watermulder

Linda Wilhelm

Kris Willig

Carol Windsor

Gayle Youlden

Barbara Zwierlein

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6



Anonymous (3)
Brian Beckwith
Martin M. Berndt
Carolyn and Richard Brennan
Carolyn Caddes and Robin Robinson
Patricia J. Campbell
Estate of Maria Carter
Mary D. Chigos
Linda and Ray Chin
Elaine and George Cohen
Mary and Emilio Colombo
Mike and Beth Connor
Eleanor B. Crippen
Marla J. de Broekert
Carrie Drake
Estate of Gail Dunning
Estate of Phil Egan
Ellen and Tom Ehrlich
Linda and John L. Elman, J.D., CLU
Shannon and Jeff Fallick
Heidi M. Feldman
Jerianne Foley
Sharon and Joel Friedman
Karen Gaydon and Geoff Badger
Estate of Walter Howard Girdlestone
Mary and David Goodman
Estate of George Greene
Larry and Betsy Grotte
Geri Hadley and Ron Cote
Harry and Susan Hartzell
Ruthann and Robert Herendeen

Frank Hunt
Pat Irish
Laurie T. Jarrett
Trish and Tim Jemison
John and Alice Kataoka Trust
Suzanne Keith
Estate of Raymond and Dorothy Kelley
Estate of Marie Kieraldo
Kathleen P. Kilcare Trust
Victoria and Paul Kojola
Wendy Kuehnl and Porfirio Ortiz
Mary F. Kutz Trust
Carol Leynse
Chris and Dan Logan
Terry Lucido
Jane Mallen
Juanita Mast
Agnes Michaels Trust
Susan Monjauze
Karen Moore and Peter Watkins
Tami and Timothy Mulcahy
Katie and Bryan Neider
Donald Ostrus, D.D.S.
Beverly D. Pabst
David Parry
Jane Paulson
Nancy and Steve Player
Mieko and Nick Poppin
Richard Pospisil
Ann Poulson
Gina and Michael Rayfield

Barbara and Paul Regan
Judith and David Richardson
Katherine Allen Sharp
The Robert R. Snell Trust
Burnie and Cheri Sparks
Estate of Lynda J. Steele
Maddy and Isaac Stein
Heloise and Howard Stewart
Estate of Freddie and Arthur 

Stromberg
Kent Taylor
Jacqueline S. Thielen Living Trust
Martha W. Thompson Estate
Sandra Ann Tilch
Daren and Mitch Tuchman
Ellen and Mike Turbow
Beth and Kurt von Emster
John F. Weigan, MD
Mary Ellen White-Vondran
Mary S. Wilhelmson
Estate of Louisa Williams
Betty Wright Trust
Christine Wyborn
Sheryl Young

If you have included AbilityPath in your 

estate plans, or would like information on 

how to make a bequest, please contact 

650-201-9596 or 

legacygiving@abilitypath.org.

Anonymous (10)
AbilityPath Auxiliary
Alberta and Bill Aldinger
American Century Companies 

Foundation
Carrie Anderson
Arrillaga Family Foundation
AT&T
Atkinson Foundation
Bailard, Inc.
Nasrallah and Ekbal Behbehani
Bothin Foundation
Deborah and Jeff Byron
Chan Zuckerberg Initiative
Cisco Systems Foundation
City of Burlingame
City of Palo Alto
Elizabeth and Michael Connor
Cotchett, Pitre & McCarthy
County of Santa Clara
David and Lucile Packard Foundation
Department of Developmental 

Services
Nancy Drapkin
Dudley-Vehmeyer-Brown Memorial 

Foundation
Ellen and Tom Ehrlich
Electronic Arts, Inc.
Heidi Feldman and Jay McClelland
First 5 San Mateo County
Flora Family Foundation

Sharon and Joel Friedman
Genentech Foundation
Mary and Clinton Gilliland
Graybird Foundation
The Jill Grossman Family Charitable 

Fund
Eva Grove
Ronald Cote
Harry and Susan Hartzell
Hurlbut-Johnson Charitable Trust
Laurie T. Jarrett
Sara and James Jungroth
Christina Kenrick
Nancy Lynn Kiley
Linda and Richard Leao
Juanita Mast and Jeanne Durnford
May and Stanley Smith Charitable 

Trust
Yvonne and Niall McCarthy
Carole Middleton
Moore Family Foundation
Katie and Bryan Neider
Antje and Paul Newhagen
Alicia Newman
Norman S. Wright Mechanical 

Equipment
The O’Donnell Foundation
Pierre and Pamela Omidyar Fund
Oracle
Rachel and Adam Paley
Melinda Parry

Peninsula Health Care District
Mieko and Nick Poppin
The Rathmann Family Foundation
REDF
Barbara and Paul Regan
William Reller
Judith and David Richardson
Helen Rubin
San Jose Mercury News Wish Book
Sand Hill Foundation
Rachel and Simon Segars
Sequoia Healthcare District
Carol and Michael Shealy
Silicon Valley Community Foundation
Sobrato Family Foundation
Stanley E. Hanson Foundation
Sutter Health, Mills-Peninsula Medical 

Center
Sandra and John Thompson
TOSA Foundation
Town of Colma
United Way Silicon Valley
Valley Foundation
Susan and Sanjay Vaswani
Beth and Kurt von Emster
Jenn Wagstaff Hinton and John Hinton
Mary Weersing
Wells Fargo
Patty and Jim White
William Randolph Hearst Foundation

Legacy Giving Society
We thank the members of our community who have chosen to name AbilityPath in their estate plans.

1920 Giving Society
In recognition of lifetime philanthropy of $100,000+

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6



$100,000+

Nasrallah and Ekbal Behbehani 
County of Santa Clara

The Gail and Susan Dunning Trust 
Heidi Feldman and Jay McClelland 
Sharon and Joel Friedman

Linda and Richard Leao

Rachel and Simon Segars

Sobrato Family Foundation

$50,000-$99,999

City of Palo Alto

Cotchett, Pitre & McCarthy

Sara and James Jungroth

Carole Middleton

Katie and Bryan Neider

The O’Donnell Foundation

Sequoia Healthcare District

Sutter Health, Mills-Peninsula Medical 

Center

$25,000-$49,999

Anonymous

AbilityPath Auxiliary

Laura and Ken Barker

Graybird Foundation

Laurie T. Jarrett

The Khachaturian Foundation

Peninsula Health Care District

Mieko and Nick Poppin

$10,000-$24,999

Anonymous (2)

Alberta and Bill Aldinger

Atkinson Foundation

Darrell W. Baggs

Bailard, Inc.

Bank of America Charitable Foundation

Patricia and Steve Barulich

Jeanne and William Barulich

Nina and Frank Berry

Janice Berthold, Heffernan Insurance 

Brokers

Breaking Glass Forums

Kate and Dick Breaux

Kate and Jeff Brown

Mike Brownrigg and Marty Burchell

City of Sunnyvale

Elaine and George Cohen

Cynthia Maus Delehanty and Sean 

Delehanty

Department of Health and Human 

Services

Nancy Drapkin

Ebay, Inc.

Electronic Arts, Inc.

Shannon and Jeff Fallick

Kathleen Foley-Hughes and Tony Hughes

Jay Gellert

Goldman Sachs Gives

Graybird Foundation

Hillsborough Concours D’Elegance

Hurlbut-Johnson Charitable Trust

Christina Kenrick

Tammy and Tom Kiely

Jere and Bernard King

Carol Leynse

Yvonne and Niall McCarthy

Christopher Murphy

Antje and Paul Newhagen

Norman S. Wright Mechanical Equipment

Palo Alto Weekly

Adam Pannell

Barbara and Paul Regan

Judith and David Richardson

Stanley E. Hanson Foundation

Jennifer Wagstaff Hinton and John Hinton

Wells Fargo Foundation

Patty and Jeff Wheeler

Patty and Jim White

$5,000-$9,999

Anonymous(4)

Aetna

Anthem Blue Cross

Beere&Purves

BenefitMall

Blue Shield of California

Karelle Celestin and Sean Quinlan

Cassy Christianson and Michel Sayag

CIGNA HealthCare

Claudia Claussen

Decker Electric

D’Elia Construction

Carrie Drake and Glenn Procter

Dudley Vehmeyer-Brown Foundation

The Philip Egan Living Trust

Endue Foundation

Judith Fallick

Joseph Field

Anne and Jim Gemmer

Karen and Todd Gemmer

Betsy and Larry Grotte

Kerry Murphy-Hagan

Holmes Helping Hands Foundation

Ellen Jones

Nandini Joseph and Mathews Cherian

Heather and Jeff Karp

Cheryl and Bruce Kiddoo

Nancy Lynn Kiley

Theresa and Jerry Lajoie

Level, Inc.

Danette Magilligan

Diane and Charles Mason

John McNellis

Sue Merrill

Wallace Mersereau

Steve and Laurel Miranda

Elizabeth and Mark Moragne

Cynthia and Dennis Moreau

Javad Mostofizadeh

Palo Alto Community Fund

Sam and Stephanie Parker

Marie Pease

Betty and Andris Ramans

William Reller

Lilli J. Rey

Connie and Bill Ring

Barbara and Andrew Rosenberg

Satellite Healthcare

Katherine and Robert Sharp

A. Lee and Victor Sher

Cheri and Burnie Sparks

Linda and Greg Stroud

Darcy and Harry Tarbell

Margaret Taylor

Thelma Doelger Charitable Trust

Town of Colma

Janice Uccelli

UnitedHealthcare Services, Inc.

Susan and Sanjay Vaswani

Sally Vitello

Warner Pacific Insurance Services

Karin and Paul Wick

Wilson, Sonsini, Goodrich & Rosati 

Foundation

Florence Wong and Andrew Haskell

Sherry and Bill Young

$2,500-$4,999

Anonymous (2)

Sharon Andrews

Phyllis and Scott Bedford

Sandra and David Behling

Barbara and Andy Billings

Boucher Family Foundation

Thomas and Wallace Brunner

Thank You to Our Donors
AbilityPath is grateful to the donors who made gifts between July 1, 2021 and June 30, 2022.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6



Carolyn G. Bunje and Robert P. Bunje

Anne Carey and Steven Frie

Mary D. Chigos

City of Burlingame

D’Elia Construction

Cindy Hohle-Duncan and Keith Duncan

John Dunlop

Abby and Matthew Edling

Ellen and Tom Ehrlich

Tracy and Steve Eskenazi

Julie Fieber

First Republic Bank

Helen and Joseph Galligan

Barbara and Robert Gilmartin

Sara and Mike Hammond

Harry and Susan Hartzell

Marlin Harvey

Nicole and Rex Ishibashi

Mary and David Kabakov

Karen Key

Ishrag Khababa

Jason Krikorian

Helen Marlo and Lawrence D’Arcangelis

David and Janne-Linn McQuarrie

Morrison & Foerster Foundation

Jodi and Dave Murphy

Alicia Newman

Georgene E. Petri

Denise Pollard and Ross Berman

Suzy and Robert Redfern-West

Jean and David Rozzi

San Mateo County Office of Education

Leonard Shustek and Donna Dubinsky

St. Philip Lutheran Church

Judith Stewart

Bev and Dan Stowell

Sheila and George Tichy

David and Angie Tinson

Robert and Olenka Villarreal

Janet and David Wilson

Elizabeth B. Wolf

Ruth and Jack Woodruff

$1,000-$2,499

Anonymous

Mark Adams

Danny Allustiarti

Lage Andersen

Marilyn Austin and Jerome Strom

Fay and Rodger Baldwin

Barulich Dugoni & Suttman Law Group, 

Inc.

Marc Baseman

Betsy and Randy Baum

Cathy and Duncan Beardsley

Pauline and John Beare

Pearl and Michael Bender

Kay and August Benz

Anne and Jeff Berens

Lauren Berman

Bonnie and Fred Bertetta Jr.

Jeanne Berube Collora

Mickey Bock

Tessa and Ryan Bone

Sheila Brutoco Young and James Linehan

Alexandria Cabral

Gayle and Vic Carboni

Joanie and Gregory Cattermole

Park and Joan Chamberlain

City of Menlo Park

Columbian Foundation

Tom Cooper

Christine and Christopher Culter

Florence and Thibaut De Bretagne

Mary Lee and Brian Delehanty

Cynthia Dillon

Sylvia and Gerald Dowd

Jeannie Duisenberg

Patricia Dwyer

John Dwyer

Dan and Marilu Eddleman

Keith Eggleton

Shirley Ely

Erik Feldman

First Congregational Church of Palo Alto

Jean and Ralph Garcia Jr.

Dianne and Charles Giancarlo

Roberta Hamilton-Puccinelli

Alice and David Herbst

Alison and Peter Hill

Nancy and Jerre Hitz

Alex Hua and Tim Coogan

Chip Huggins

Leannah Hunt

Hutton Family Foundation

Jane and David Jackson

James and Alvina Bartos Balog 

Foundation

Sara and Ricardo Jenez

Joshua Ets-Hokin Photography

Gay and Harvey Kaplan

Patricia Kinney and James Marks

Kiwanis Club of Palo Alto

Barbara Klein

Thomas Kuntz

Jeanmarie and Ray Labonte

Mary Puma Lange and Eivind Lange III

Kate Goka and YY Lee

Karen and Thomas Leonardini

Philip Letts

Douglas Levick

Abhay Vardhan and Varsha Likhite

Connie and Robert Lurie

Dan and Shannon Maass

Duffy and Marissa Magilligan

The Malaspina Family

Tim and Kirsten McCarthy

Anne and Joe McGee

Marc and Laura McGeever

John Miaullis and Patricia Campbell

Trudy Muller

Susan and Toby Mumford

Candace Nagare

Prakesh and Roopa Narain

LeRoy Neider

Cathy and Steve Nessier

Olive and Rory O’Driscoll

John O’Farrell and Gloria Pincipe

Sayuri Ohno

Suzanne and Todd Oliver

Lu Pena

Philanthropic Ventures Foundation

PM - Alpha Lexi

Patti and Travis Poindexter

Jeanne and Stephen Pope

Karin and Rich Porticos

Shilpi and Suman Prasad

Richard Quadri

Stacy and Francis Rangel

Kate and Michael Reed

Yoshiko and Geoffrey Ribar

Chuck Ristau

Rubens Partners

Matt Sanchez

Susan Schellenberg

Lee Scheuer

Gary Selick

Constance Sevier

Maribeth Shannon and Michael Cramer

Susan Shea

Alene Sieling

Deborah and Joel Skidmore

Jon and Charlotte Soja

Christine and Jonas Stafford

Margaret and Arthur Stauffer

Alice and Ralph Stern

Carl and Susan Thomsen

Sandra Ann Tilch

Ellen Turbow

Ronn and Dahlia Uchihara

Daniel J. Ullyot

James Van Zoeren

Linda Vaughn

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6



Janet Wagner

Anders Wagstaff

Molly Wantuch

Patti and Tim Warner

Sibylle J. Whittam

Michael Williams

Kris and Ed Willig

Carol Windsor and Jim Wells

Diana and Terry Witzel

Ronald and Kathleen Wo

Jason Wong

Lansing and Kingsley Wood

Robin Zimbler

Jamie and Chris Harris

$500 - $999

Anonymous (2)

AA Batarse Foundation

Louise and Franklin Agardy

Gerald Alchimisti

Peg and Frank Austin

Colleen and Aaron Fitch-Avila

Gail and Greg Baker

Debbie Baloff

Anne Barnes

Kathryn Berry

Adi Bittane and Eyal Bilgrai

Blackbaud Giving Fund

Brad Bleichner

Karen Bloom

Susan Borton and Robert Cool

Nelly and John Bracken

Connie and Robert Brown

Diana and Barrett Bryan

Florence and Stephen Chan

Aron and Mari Chazen

Deborah Clifford

Nancy Cohen

Tricia and Sam Colella

Carol and Evan Collins

Kathy and David Cook

Pat Cooper

Martha and Warren Cory

Creating Healthier 

Communities

Lisa and Kevin Cullinane

Margaret and Yogen Dalal

Gita and Jan Dedek

Sharon Zezima and Kal 

Deutsch

Elizabeth and James Doherty

Carol Doup Muller and Richard 

Muller

John Draper

Julia and Brad Elman

Zuly Estrella-Falk and Peter 

Falk

Georgia and Armaghan Farooq

Kathy Klein and Scott Fink

Madalyn and Tom Fitzpatrick

Roxie Folsom

Doug and Lupe Fox

Karen French

Carol C. Friedman and Joel P. 

Friedman, MD

Andrew Frisch

Shirley and David Gemmer

Grace and Patrick Gengoux

Mariciel and Andy Georg

Pat and John Giosso

Chela Gonzalez and Chris 

Neider

Dixie and Richard Grossman

Ann, Ken and Theresa 

Guinasso

Ronald Haak

Felynn and Mark Haberecht

Susan and Michael Hahn

Lisa Hane and Hugh Rienhoff

Colleen and Doug Helm

Hicklebees, Inc

Bethany Hill

Homewood Suites by Hilton 

Palo Alto

Amy Hoyt

Jackie Hsu

Donald Hughes

Tracy Hydorn

Carolyn and Michael Irvine

Scott and Julie Jackson

Carol and Christopher Kalb

Patricia Sandoval and Jon 

Kannegaard

Louise Karr

Michelle Kennison

Emily Keyser

Bernadette and Scott Kramer

Isa and Michael Kravitz

Vicki and Peter LaBoskey

Elaine Lai

Judith and Nick Larsen

Katherine Lee

Margie and Phil Lerner

Grace and Paul Leung

Kathleen and Ray Levitt

Lost Coast Outfitters

Joelle Lumish

Nancy and Michael MacDonald

Rose and William Mark

Aris and Tony Markoulis

Heidi McHugh Pendleton and 

Forrest Pendleton

Lauren and Ron McLeod

Lawrence Mello

JoAnn and Larry Nally

Shannon and Bill Nash

Julie Neider

Network for Good

Diane Harrold and Bruce 

Osterhout

Cynthia Owyoung and Barry 

Fong

Pacific Gas and Electric 

Company

Prasheela Patel

Barbara and John Pavkovich

Dominique Philippine

Ashley Poon

Colleen Rafferty

Nancy and Glenn Rankin

Gina and George Rodriguez

Paul and Linda Rogerville

Shauna Marie Rose and 

Raymond Sullivan

Leslie Rubin

Hartmut and Shaila Sadrozinski

Mr. and Mrs. Claude Salama

Marcia and Murray Schneider

George Semaan

Ellen Shay and Edwin Selker

Donald Shoecraft

Ellen and Dennis Smith

Isabelle Stanton and Brian 

Gawalt

Estate of Freddie and Arthur 

Stromberg

Leslie Stupple

Douglas Tao

The William and Flora Hewlett 

Foundation

BeBe and Roger Trinkner

Harold and Janet Van Zoeren

Carol and Shel Virden

Nate Wall

Mara and Rick Wallace

Eugenia and Paul Watermulder

White Stallion Ranch

Don and Cyndy Wieland

Diane and Steven Williams

Julie Winkler

Wanda and Lawrence Wong

Mr. and Mrs. Thomas C. Young

Pingping Zheng

Ann and Geoffrey Ziman

Sabrina Zirkel

Lisa and James Zuegel

$250 - $499

Anonymous (4)

Glenn and Debra Adler

Linda and Ronald Alepin

Allied Arts - Cafe Wisteria

Maya Altman

AmazonSmile

Carol Bacchetti

Jose Jorel Balitactac

Julie Barney

Penelope and Patrick Barrett

Matt Bell

Amrita Bindra

Megan and Mike Bohnert

Tony and Grace Brettkelly

Sophie and Arthur Brody

George Brown

Marcie Brown

Marda Buchholz

Maria and James Burns

Patricia and Rich Campbell

Kristin and Jeff Campbell

Stuart Canfield

Karen and Edgar Canty

Julie Cape

Charlie Cardillo

Kevin Carey

Norna Cash

Unice Chang

Shirley Chen

Concannon Vineyard

Ann and Thomas Connelly

Khuyen Dang

Carrie and Grant Dubois

Nancy DuBois

Ralph Duvall

Kathryn and Jim Dwyer

Sally Esk

Simon Everett

W. Ferrell and Page Sanders

Susan and David Ferro

Lesley and Charles T. 

Fetterman

Anne Fischell

Eric Fischer

Jeanne and Frank Fischer

Janet and Robert Fisher

Dorothy Fletcher

Cynthia and William Floyd

Bill Foderaro

Judith and O.L. Frost

Karen and Gary Fry

Suzanne Garadis

Noelia Garcia

Maikel Garcia

Marna Ghiglieri

Marjorie and Joseph Giordano

Nancy and Richard Goldcamp

Theresa and Hall Gong

Gonzalo and Rosa Gonzalez

Janet and D. Wylie Greig

Carolyn and Thomas Harder

Margaret and Robert 

Harrington

Ann and Barry Haskell

Kathryn Haysbert

Chris Hirano and Chiyomi 

Kuroki-Hirano

Dana Hooper and Alicia 

Swanson

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6



Ron Horn

Veronica Howard

Jae Soon and Soo Yop Hwang

IBM Employee Services Center

Anna Jaklitsch

Eric Joe

Peter Johnson

Jane Johnston

Patricia and Donald Kassner

Nerissa Ko

Christine and Jeff Krolik

Elizabeth Landergren and Ellie 

and Philip Chambers

Austin Lastinger

Louise Levy

Nell and Dave Levy

Doris Lin

Jin Choo

Christina and Philip Ma

Nancy Magee

Kevin Maher

Kimberly and Sushant Malhotra

Carol and Nubar Manoukian

Erlinda and Celestino Marquez

Mary Martinson

Susan Matranga

Karen and Bruce McCaul

Penny and James Meier

Jo and Steven Mitchell

Joyce and Jim Molinelli

Steve Molinelli

Erikka and Mark Molumphy

Denise and Mark Moriarty

Soheila and Rahmat Mozayan

Brooke Neider

Megan Neider

Joane Nelson

Louise Noble

Toby O’Brien

F Sayuri Ohno

Mr. and Mrs. Lou Palatella

Andrea Peretz

Colleen and Ken Peterson

Elizabeth and Robert Plaschke

James Rawls

Greg Regan

Ann and Bill Regan

Ruthann and Jay Richter 

Hammer

Marilyn and Patrick Romzek

Dana Scadden

Alice Schaffer Smith

Margaret Scott

Linda and Ed Selden

Shartsis Friese, LLP

Maryann Wong

John Sikora

Corwin Silva

Eileen Silver

Joy Sleizer

Congresswoman Jackie Speier

Renee Spooner

Bharadwaj Srinivasan

Felicia Stacker

Leslie and James Stafford

Joanne Stage

Susan Stockton

George Ting

Constance Tomal

Charles Turk

Unitarian Universalist Church 

of Palo Alto

Nader Vahdat

Sarah Verity

Gini Wade

Virginia and Baldwin Wade

Jackie Walker

Elizabeth Wall

Thomas Waller

Tom Waller

Jean Wang

Whitehall Lane Winery

Linnea Wickstrom

John Wiesler

Keith Willig

David Wisnom III

Tiffany and Sean Woods

Julie Wynn-Riley

Lisa and Frank York

Shana Young

Up to $249

Anonymous (17)

Elizabeth Abramson

Accenture

Peter Adams

Joy Addison

Eileen Adler

Nisha Advani and Arun Tolani

Adam Ahlbach

Ron Alcantara

Soraya Alexander

Eva Alma

Karen Anderson and Jeff 

Morehouse

Patricia Anixter

Janice Apol and Mark 

McCormick

Mark and Cheryll Arams

Robert Arends

Laurie Armstrong

Nancy Arnett

Martina Ashamalla

Barbara August

Rex Babiera

Lita Baca

Nicholas Bagley

Terri and Thomas Bailard

Laurie Baldwin and Mark 

Mickelson

Shawn Balsdon

Diane Barbera-DeLany

Mousumi Bardhan

Carolyn and John Barnes

Julia Battaglia

Rosemarie Bayham

Mary Bell

Nina and Ron Berkovits

Janice and Dennis Berkowitz

Berzin Family

Mary Lou Biancalana

Helen Bigelow

Eneko Bilbao

Sheila and Michael Bilich

Jason Bleau

Harriet and Herbert Bloom

Vanajakshi Bolagyathanahally

Stuart Bonn

Norman and Judith Book

Gilles Bouvier

Lynda Bowman

John Bradford

Michael Breard

Bright Funds Foundation

Carole and David Brooks

Karen Brown

Michael Brown

Ryan Brown

Patricia Brown

Judy and Don Brown

Sara Burdick

Caroline Burns

Marie D Butkuss

Jose and Teresita Cabaccan

Joyce Cabrera

Carlos Calonge

B & T Canniffe

Douglas Canovas

Ruth Carleton

Conor Cassidy

Hans Ten Cate

Joy Cazares

Johanna Cazares

David Chad

Tina Chan and Alexander Go

Karen and Ricky Chan

Arng Chang

Michael Chang

Maggie Chen

James Chen

Beth and John Chiorini

Julie and Calvin Chow

Eione Claros

Matthew Claussen

Mary Clements

Lourdes and Jim Codromac

Jessica Codromac

Gwen Coffey

Andrew Cohen

Judy Cohn

Ryan Cole

Todd and Sophie Cole-Foster

Paula and David Collins

Terrence Connelly

Jerry Connolly

Linda and John Conover

Ellen Cookman

Marri Corpuz

Mark Corso

Jeannette Cosby

JoAnn Cox

Linda Craig and Evan Hughes

Judith Creek

Kathleen (Cassy) Curran

Theodore D’Afflision

Mary Dahlquist

Doug Dalziel

Catherine and William 

Danigelis

Edward Davis

Elizabeth Davis

Ann and Robert DeBusk

John Deegan

Ann DeHovitz

Cornelius and Terri Dempsey

Sally and William Denning

Susan and Harry Dennis

Steph Dere

Elizabeth and Samuel 

DeSimone

Andrew Deutsch

Sheila Devore

Boo and Dan DeWitt

Elise DeYoung and Michael De 

Young

Emile Diedericks

Peter Dimitropoulos

Donna R. Dini

Chey Do

John Doherty

Anne and Matt Dolan

Margaret Mary Dolan

Mike Donohoo

Cindy Dorsa

Ted Drake

Basil Dsouza

Joann Dugoni Cox and Tom 

Cox

Robert Dugoni

William and Patricia Dugoni

Karen and Thomas Dugoni

Edma Dumanian

Linda and David Duncan

Eileen and Jack Easterbrook

Marcia Eisner

Debbie Elia

Carol Elliott

Rosemary and Alain Enthoven

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6



Colleen Erickson

Pamela Esmon

Eugene Evans

Sally and Craig Falkenhagen

Gary Falzon

Janice Fambrini

Chelsea Farrington

Mike Faust

Nina Feirman

Jerd and Arlene Ferraiuolo

Nancy and Harold Fick

Thomas and Nancy Fiene

Mike Flaherty

John Flaningam

Caroline and Edward Flank

Harvey Fong

Leslie Francavilla

Stuart Friedman

Barbara Frohman

Lynn Dinelli and Gary Fry

Chantal Gaines

Monique Galvin

Diana Garcia

Rao and Sudha Gattupalli

JF Gazmen-Dabir

Adam Gerken

Eric Ghost

Davide Giannella

Mary Gill

Denyse Ginzberg

Nadine Ginzberg

Mark Girotti

Amy Givens

Daniel Givens

Elisabeth Goddard

Mary and David Goodman

Lea Gottlieb

David Grady

Shelby Graham

Martha and Paul Gregory

Karen and David Gregory

Lindsay Gross

Milton and Phyllis Grossberg

Michele Grundmann

Aaron and Masako Guadamuz

Kathy Guibara

Rona and Steve Gundrum

Mary Louise and Anthony 

Hanley

Cheryl Harms

Bridget Harnett

Patti Harris

Brooke Harris

Sheryl Heckmann

Melinda and Gregory 

Heppberger

Ruthann and Robert 

Herendeen

Maie Herrick

Barbara Heydorn

Steven Hibshman

Samantha Hidlebird

David Hiebert

Marian and Tom Hill

Judi and Robert Hinkle

Edwina Ho

J T Hoeksema

Michael Holloway

Katherine and Andrew Holtz

Gloria and Peter Hom

Mitchell Honeyman

Harlan Hornbruch

Stephen Hoyt

Evan and Marissa Huang

Nancy and Joseph Huber

Jennifer Hughes

Gene Hunner

Frank Hunt

Brian Hupp

John and Lisa Hutar

Kobi Iki

Karthik Injarapu

Beth and Luther Izmirian, Jr.

Steven and Janice Jarrett

Emiko Jasper

Maureen Lennon and Frederick 

John

Charlene Johnson

Vince Joly

Lenore and Carl Jones

Ed Jones

Cindy Jose and Henry 

Magnuski

Alex Kami

David Karp

Tom and Sharon Kelley

Eric Kelly

Steve Kempton

Hall Kesmodel

Barbara Key

Scott Kidd

Michael Kiley

Lea Kim

Mary and Matthew Kircher

Beverly Kirks

Jean Kiser

Susan Kitazawa

Jennifer and James Kleckner

Melisa Knoble

Chris Ko

Paige Kolze

Theresa Kong

Thomas Kowalski

Gail Kriessmann

Michael Krigel

Paul and Jackie Kuckein

Ingrid Lai and William Shu

James and Janet Lamonica

Louis and Judith Landini

Maureen Langan

Karen and Mark Lawrence

Jessica Layne

Matthew Leao

Matthew Lee

Wendy Lee

Cornelia Kip Lee

Annette Legallet

Linda, Robert and Bobby 

Leggero

Matt Lemen

Edward and Margaret Lenox

Howard Levy

Maria and Allan Levy

Maritza Lew

Christopher Lin

Diane Lippi

Carter Lipscomb

Sonja and Peter Lobban

Alison Locke

Dale and David Loutzenheiser

Anne and Brent Lucas

Stephen Lundin

Jonathan Macquitty

Robert and Delia Madrona

Kenneth Mahar

Chris Mak and Renee Tam

Abby Mandel

Susan Manheimer

Bonni and Tom Marantette

Maya Margaronis

Maria Larrenaga

Sam Marra

Stephen J. Martin

Priscilla and Tony Marzoni

Juanita Mast and Jeanne 

Durnford

Maureen M Mattews

Jim May

Carole Mayer

Kevin McCambridge

Tim McGaw

Debora Mcglynn

Windy Hill Media

Jeanne McMahon

Martine McNeill

Kristine Meuse

Joan Meyers

Charles Meyerson

Dr. John Michael

Greg Miller

Marilyn and Art Miller

Jeff Mills

Geoffrey Mitchell

Robert Mitchell

Robert Moberg

Amba and Jyotsna Mohlajee

Chris Mohlenhoff

Chris Molnar

Erin and Griffith Montgomery

Efraim Morales

Tom and Iris Moran

Ali Mozayan

Sara Mozayan

Kitty and Tom Mullooly

Donald and Lillian Munakata

Constanza Munevar

Alfonso Munevar

Jose Munevar

Susan Myers

Maryanne and James Nahmens

Suzanne Nakamura

Nicholas Neider

Pamela Newman

Sheraden Nicholau

Lynn and Paul Nieberding

Roberto Nunez

Helen and Joseph O’Connor

Imelda and David Oki

Rho Olaisen

Cherilyn Olguin

Charlotte and Lynden Olstead

Ebony Omelagah

Audrey Osburn

Joy Osmundson

Margo and Stephen Pace

Kyle Pacheco

Marisol Palafox

Guotong Pan

Lucia Panini

Bernie Paragas

Sonia and Ken Parekh

Nancy and William Parker

Jane and Nicolas Parnes

Amy Patel

Stacy Pearl

Lyndsay Pearson

Anthony Pedrotti

Rosa and Omar Perez

Christine and Ron Perris

Shauna Perry

Jean Perry

Dan and Debbie Persyn

Ann Peters

Jeffrey Peterson

Kathleen and John Petrilla

Tevy Phork

Janice and Stephen Pickering

JoAnn Pitz

Gloria Pizzinelli

Brennan Plunkett

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6



Kim Pocek

Anindya Poddar

Atarah Price

Laura Prickett

Patricia Puso

Jackie Radenbaugh

Mary Radu and Richard Auger

Herbert Rahm

Paul Ramsbottom

Maya and Israel Rand

Julie and Rob Reis

Matthew Reising

Mark Rentfrow

Marilou and Eduardo Reyes

Marissa Rico

Jackie Ridd

Paula and Mario Rini

Sarah Ritchie

Tracy Robert

Brett Rodarte

Robin A. Rodricks

Carolyn Rogers and Thomas 

Stepien

Heidi Roizen

Monica Romanski

Annemarie Rosengreen

Jessica and Sammy Rotich

Jennifer and Justin Rowe

Tricia Ruby

Joan Ryan and Rick Berg

Philip Sanfilippo

Margaret Sansom

Antonio Santos

Kevin Sawyer

Sarah Schaadt

Paolo Sechi

Jim and Patricia Sharp

Shwetha Shivarama

Mickelle Shults

Deidre and T. R. Shymanski

Rasa Sidagyte

Bonnie Silverman

Jean and George Simon

Mala Singh

Meenakshi Singla

Lori Sitrin

A. Smith

Ellen Smith

Christine Smith

Grete Sorensen

Shirley Sparks

Terri Spicer

Barbara and James Stafford

Stanford Bookstore

Beth Steinberg

Nancy Stimson

Bonnie and Myron Stone

Jenny and Thomas Stone

Dr. and Mrs. Ronald Stoney

Beth and Robert Straccia

Bonnie and Bryan Street

David Strong

Mike Suess

Mohammad Suleiman

Constance Sullivan

Lauren Sullivan

Chardel and Michael Sullivan

Sandra Sullivan

Sherrill Sullivan

Suzanne and William B. 

Sullivan

Laura and Leonard Takayama

David Takeuchi

Philip Tan

Marcy Tandberg

Dale and Bob Tatum

Ann Telfer

Cassi Tessandori

Susan Tierney

Harvey Tilkin

Ginny and Jerry Tilton

Chris Tobin

Cheryl and Chris Toeppen

Carol Torgerson

Jennifer Torres

Edith Tousey

Richard Treglia

Susan Trivisonno

Tony Tropea

Sean Truesdale

Lin-Wei Tseng

Elena and Mikhail Tsypkin

Kelly Turner

Alina Usher

Louise Valente

Eddie Vehouni

Inge Verschueren

Jose Vidaurre

Celia Vigil

Shannon Vincent

Anne Vitullo and Jonathan Poe

Joan and Ron Wachter

Anita and Ranvir Wadera

Gerald and Barbara Wagger

Leslie and Edmond Wagstaff

Jan Wagstaff

Peggy Wall Slyker

Elizabeth and Michael Wallace

Jessie Wan

Li Wang

Janice Warda

Jamie Warden

Judith and Jack Warner

Hadley Weiler

Twyla Weinberg

Diane Werner

Kathleen Westling

Sarah and George Wheaton

Patti and Ed White

Debra Whitten

June Wider

Judy and Larry William

Tiffany Williams

TC Williams

Debra Williams

Brent Willman

Laurie and Robert Withers

Bryan and Loreen Wolf

Lisa Wolfklain

Jeremy Wong

Fung and Lawrence Wong

Serina Wong

Wayne Wright

Chenguang Yang

Cynthia Yip

Jon Yoshimine

YourCause LLC Texas 

Instruments Inc.

Melanie and Kent Yunk

Gail and Mark Zetter

Jane Zuckert

Aryela Zulman

Donor-Advised Fund 

Programs

American Endowment 

Foundation

Fidelity Charitable Gift Fund

Glenmede

Goldman Sachs Gives

Jewish Community Federation 

& Endowment Fund

Jewish Family & Children’s 

Services

JP Morgan

Morgan Stanley

Philanthropic Ventures 

Foundation

Schwab Charitable Fund

Silicon Valley Community 

Foundation

T. Rowe Price Charitable

UBS Financial

Vanguard Charitable

Corporate Matching Gifts

Abbvie

Accenture

Digital Insurance, LLC

Electronic Arts, Inc.

Equinix

GE Foundation

Google

Lucile Packard Foundation for 

Children’s Health

OneDigital

AbilityPath makes every effort to recognize our donors accurately. If 

you are listed incorrectly, please email development@abilitypath.org 

so we can update our records for future listings.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6



Ken Barker

Jeff Brown
Business Consultant

Alexandria Cabral*
National Housing Trust

Anne Carey
AbilityPath Auxiliary

Amber Checky
Inclusion Counts

Cassy Christianson, OTR/L
Developmental Specialist

Matt Edling, Secretary
Sher Edling LLP

Steve Eskenazi, Vice Chair
Angel Investor

Jeff Fallick
OneDigital

Rex Ishibashi
Originator Inc.

Tyler Kawaguchi
Follett Corporation at Stanford Bookstore

Ishrag Khababa
Satellite Healthcare

Linda Leao, Chair
Community Leader

Helen Marlo, Ph.D.
Notre Dame de Namur University/Private Practice

Kirsten McCarthy* 
AbilityPath Auxiliary Vice President

Carole Middleton*
Community Leader
Philanthropist

Christopher Murphy, Treasurer
Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP

Bryan Neider
AbilityPath CEO

Cynthia Owyoung
Breaking Glass Forums

Denise Pollard*
CLASS

Suman Prasad
Google

Michael Reed
Franklin Templeton Investments

Felicia Stacker*
Luna Innovations Incorporated

Beverly Stowell*
AbilityPath Auxiliary

Jennifer Wagstaff Hinton, Development 
Committee Chair
Community Volunteer / Hewlett Packard (Retired)

Sibylle Whittam
Philanthropy Consultant

* Served during a portion of the fiscal year

Board of 
Directors
We are grateful for the financial, 

volunteer and leadership support of 

every board member.

Committee 
Members
We are grateful to the following 
individuals who volunteered their time 
alongside board members to support 
our mission through eight active 

committees.

Alberta Aldinger
Community Leader

Daniel Allustiarti
Grant Thornton LLP

Diane Christensen Mason
Christensen & Rafferty Fine Jewelry

Tish Dipman
B.O.K. Ranch

Sam Franco
AbilityPath

Todd Gemmer
Morgan Stanley

Grace Gengoux, Ph.D.
Stanford University School of Medicine and 
Stanford Children’s Health

Felynn Haberecht
Wells Fargo

AC Hernandez
Journalist

Erica Iyer
Parent

Jeff Karp
Electronic Arts

Toby Mumford
Franklin Templeton Investments (Retired)

Patrick Romzek
Cisco Systems (Retired)

Sraddha Shukla
MBA (Finance) & Parent

Renee Spooner
Graybird Foundation

Dave Wisnom III
SightCast Inc.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6



CEO Advisory 
Council
AbilityPath’s Advisory Council is 
comprised of dedicated volunteers, 
including former board members and 
community leaders, who provide strategic 

advice and support

Georgia D. Farooq née Antonopoulos
Thrive

Andy Billings
Electronic Arts, Inc.

Elaine Cohen, Ed.D.
University Administrator/Professor (Retired)

Dorothy Fletcher, M.A.
Educator

Joel Friedman
Accenture (Retired)

Larry Grotte
SonomaLife

Laurie Jarrett
Parent/Community Leader

Jeff Karp
Electronic Arts

Jere King
Cisco Systems (Retired)

Ray Marino
Mission West Properties Inc.

Toby Mumford
Franklin Templeton Investments (Retired)

Supervisor Dave Pine
San Mateo County Board of Supervisors

Burnie Sparks
Bailard

Renee Spooner
Graybird Foundation

Olenka Villareal
Magical Bridge Foundation

Sheryl Young, Member Emeritus
Philanthropic Ventures Fund

AbilityPath 
Housing Board 
of Directors
AbilityPath Housing is an affiliated 
nonprofit organization focused on 
supporting affordable housing projects 
that promote inclusion and independence 

for adults with developmental disabilities.  

Joel Friedman
Accenture (Retired)

Supervisor Carole Groom
County of San Mateo

Larry Grotte, Treasurer
SonomaLife

Cynthia Maus*
PJT Park Hill

Bryan Neider
AbilityPath and AbilityPath Housing CEO

Paul Regan, Chair 
Hemming Morse, Inc., CPAs

*Incoming FY23

Via Services 
Board of 
Directors
Looking ahead to FY23, we are excited 
about the Via Services affiliation and look 
forward to working with the new Board 
of Directors and Operating Committee to 

expand opportunities for those we serve. 

Brad Baron, Vice Chair
RBC Wealth Management

Elaine Cohen, Ed.D., Chair
University Administrator/Professional (Retired)

Shannon Fallick
Coastal Haven

Todd Gemmer
Morgan Stanley

Bryan Neider
CEO, AbilityPath and Via Services

Jim Toby
Lea & Braze Engineering

Camp Via West 
Operating 
Committee
In October 2022, the AbilityPath and Via 
Services Board of Directors formed a 
Camp Via West Operating Committee to 
offer strategic guidance and formulate 
plans to upgrade and improve camp 
facilities and explore new and innovative 
programs. 

Jan Cohen
Consultant, Trainer & Interim Executive

Tish Dipman
B.O.K. Ranch, Inc.

Adam Dolinko
Ouster, Inc.

Michelle Gottlieb
Independent Consultant, CPA

Marc McGeever
Community Volunteer

Sallie Price
Easterseals Camp Fairlee

Kit Sluder
Camp Blue Skies (Retired)

David Solo
Special Olympics Northern California and Nevada

Jessamy Tang
Stanford Down Syndrome Research Center

David Wilson
Attorney (Retired)

Brent Wolfe
American Therapeutic Recreation Association 
(ATRA)
University of North Carolina, Greensboro 
Department of Community and Therapeutic 
Recreation

Sabrina Zirkel
Santa Clara University School of Education and 
Counseling Psychology

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6



Abil ityPath

Sobrato Center for Nonprofits   

350 TWIN DOLPHIN DRIVE,  SUITE 123 

REDWOOD CITY,  CA 94065

Non-Profit Org

U.S. Postage

PAID

Burlingame, CA

Permit No.19

Inspiring Inclusion

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CBD6789-199D-4B28-9C0C-47B95FBF0DC6



 

 

 

 

 

June 22, 2023 

 

Mr. Brian Dossey 

Ms. Abigail Dometita 

Town of Colma, City Manager’s Office 

1198 El Camino Real 

Colma, CA 94014 

 

RE: Final Report on FY22-23 Grant 

 

Dear Mr. Dossey and Ms. Dometita, 

 

Thank you again for the grant of $6,500 from Town of Colma. With your 

support, 141 adults with developmental disabilities learned important pre-

vocational and life skills through participation in the health, fitness, and 

cooking classes provided by AbilityPath. Your support made an impact 

while we continued a gradual return to in-person programming. We are 

happy to report that approximately 90% of our program is back to in-

person services.  

 

On the following pages, we are pleased to highlight the outcomes of the 

program during the grant period. Your support is helping create a world in 

which people of all abilities are fully accepted, respected, and included. If 

you have any questions, please contact Anne-Marie Hong, Grants 

Manager, at 650-250-7130 or ahong@abilitypath.org.  

 

With gratitude, 

   

Kim Malhotra 

Vice President, Marketing & Development 

kmalhotra@abilitypath.org  

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:ahong@abilitypath.org
mailto:kmalhotra@abilitypath.org


AbilityPath grant report to Town of Colma – June 30, 2023 

 

Results of the Program 

 

The 2022-23 grant provided by Town of Colma enabled AbilityPath to offer valuable life 

skills and pre-vocational training to adults with developmental disabilities. Our Adult Day 

Program now serves individuals from San Jose to South San Francisco with a total of 271 

participants. We serve 141 individuals in our Day Program-North, which consists of San 

Mateo County residents.  

 

In FY23, we continued a gradual return to in-person services to emerge from the Covid-19 

pandemic. Halfway through the year, we had approximately 70% back on hybrid schedules 

of 2-3 days of in-person and the remaining days as virtual programming. By June 2023, we 

had approximately 90% of participants on this hybrid schedule; of those individuals, over 

50% are attending 5 days per week. The remaining individuals continue to utilize a hybrid 

schedule; for some, this is based on choice, and others are navigating transportation 

barriers. 

 

Over the last year, we emphasized returning to healthy living routines to combat a decline 

in physical health from the pandemic. We modified physical activities to build stamina 

through fitness classes, community hikes, and neighborhood walks. To return to healthy 

eating habits, participants learned about nutrition, portion sizes, and preparation of healthy 

meals on a budget.  

 

We offered 25 fitness classes each week; 100% of participants had access to & participated 

in at least one fitness/exercise activity each day (including 3 daily virtual class options). 

Classes/activities included yoga, drumming for fitness, seated chair exercise, walking, tai 

chi, hiking, basketball, soccer, and going to the gym. Staff reported an improved motivation 

to participate in fitness activities in comparison to pre-pandemic. A morning walking group 

was developed, and many individuals found it was a positive method to start their day, and 

they’d also participate in an additional exercise activity later in the day. Participants who 

were previously known to not enjoy exercise-focused activities often passed the manager’s 

office enthusiastically saying, “I’m going on my morning walk now – see you later!” 

 

We offered 24 health and nutrition classes each week; 100% of participants had access to & 

participated in at least one nutrition/health-related class each day. Classes included 

cooking, healthy snacks, general nutrition education, self-care, art therapy, mindfulness, & 

meditation. The wellness classes had a significant impact on participants. Program staff 

found that individuals arrived at program with heightened anxiety and stress, and asked 

participants if they wanted to start their day off with something to center themselves, 

decompress from any morning stress, and set them up to have a positive day. Participants 

consistently and enthusiastically engaged with these classes and showed positive changes in 

behaviors.  

 

We returned to the Colma kitchen in September 2022 after a long hiatus due to the 

pandemic. We utilized the kitchen 1-2 times per week for educational and instructional 

classes including basic nutrition education, meal planning, food selection, following a recipe, 

food preparation, food storage methods. Participants purchased ingredients for recipes by 

following a budget, reading food labels, purchasing the items - all of which include social 

and financial skill practice. Other areas of instruction incorporated into these sessions 

included following directions, safety awareness, hygiene, and working together. Staff 

reported that most participants were motivated to experiment with new & more complex 

recipes. We also held cooking classes at our Burlingame site each week.  



 

As they returned to a regular routine, the Adult Day Program engaged in several new 

projects. As a part of our organization-wide DEI vision, we incorporated diversity, equity, 

and inclusion into the program curriculum where possible. Participants created a cookbook 

called "Welcome to Our Kitchens" that reflected their cultural identities while also putting 

their nutrition and healthy living knowledge into practice. They tested out each recipe they 

included in the cookbook and dove deep into the history of a culture and the preparation of 

different foods while being mindful of healthy habits and nutrition-focused practices.  

 

The Day Program also embarked on a Vending Machine Project. A group identified that the 

on-site vending machine did not provide healthy enough snack options, so they sought out 

to identify what types of snacks and drinks should be offered instead. It was a practice in 

reading labels, being mindful of what types of ingredients, foods, and drinks they consume, 

and they immediately ruled out candy, soda, and instant soups. It was also a practice in 

adhering to a budget and learning the financial repercussions of choosing healthier options.  

 

Lastly, the Day Program used to have a food truck come on-site for lunch, which ceased 

during the pandemic. Participants expressed the desire to have it back so they can have 

more choices in lunch options, and they decided to work with staff to identify a healthier 

food truck option. This project is still in progress.  

 

Throughout the year, we've served at least 7 businesses and 30 residents. The program 

visits and utilizes the Colma Community Center, Target, Starbucks, and BART. During other 

outings not related to this grant request, participants also frequent the following: Metro 

Center Complex, Colma Historical Museum, Cypress Golf Course, and Kohl's. 

 

Among all the participants in our day program, 47% required little to no support to learn 

health and physical education skills to help maintain or achieve a healthy weight.  

 

AbilityPath also piloted a culinary vocational program to provide skills training and 

employment opportunities for individuals who are interested in the culinary industry. We 

successfully utilized the Colma kitchen for culinary program sessions, which helped prepare 

6 participants to participate in 3 paid employment opportunities.  

 

We look forward to continuing to rent the Colma kitchen for classes throughout FY24. 

 

Use of Grant Funds 

 

$ 4,500  Salaries & Wages 

$ 1,200 Food and Program Supplies 

$ 800  Colma Kitchen Rental  

 

Supplies for cooking and nutrition classes were provided to staff teaching in-person classes 

at the Colma kitchen and our Burlingame site. The addition of the Healthy Snacks classes 

increased our food purchases as well as the recipe exploration for the cookbook.  

Our rental fees for the Colma kitchen were less than usual due to a surplus in credits for 

fees paid during the pandemic when we were not able to physically use the kitchen. We 

were able to leverage other funding to help offset the rental costs throughout the year.   



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



6/28/2023 Page 1 of 6

Town of Colma
Non-Profit Funding Request Form

FY 2023-24

Please do NOT write “see attached” as a response to any of the questions. You must 
submit all answers on this form. You may submit additional attachments, but they 
will not replace any of the responses.

Name of Organization: 

Contact Person: 

Address: 
Street Address City State Zip Code 

Phone Number: Email Address: __________________

1. Mission Statement:

2. Amount of Request: $________________

a. Total Agency Annual Budget: $_______________

b. Number of Agency Employees: _______________

c. Payroll is ________% of the Agency’s total Annual Budget.

3. Please identify a public purpose for the requested funding by identifying one of the
following categories:

A. Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;
B. Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or

Integrated Care Services;
C. Educate and engage residents;
D. Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business

in the Town; or Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a
service that the Town could provide to its residents or businesses.

Asian American Recovery Services ( )



6/28/2023  Page 2 of 6 
 

3a.       Describe how the funding will support the selected category: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Describe reason for request and how funds will be used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6/28/2023  Page 3 of 6 
 

5. If the amount of the request is higher than the previous year, provide a detailed 
explanation of the need for the increase: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Describe the benefit to the Town derived from funding your organization: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6/28/2023  Page 4 of 6 
 

7. Describe the following: 
A. Number of Colma residents or businesses (or both) served by the organization 
in the years prior to the grant application;  
B. The location(s) where Colma residents or businesses may receive the recipient 
organization’s services or programs; and  
C. The nature and extent of the efforts of the recipient organization to reach out 
to Colma residents and businesses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Provide a detailed account of how the FY 2022-23 contribution was used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6/28/2023  Page 5 of 6 
 

9.        List contributions requested and received from other cities in FY 2022-23 and requested 
or expected in FY 2023-24: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10. Did the organization participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 

publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate 
for public office within the past 36 months (please select one)?   

 
Yes __________ No ______________ 
 
If yes, please provide details.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



6/28/2023 Page 6 of 6

11. Charitable Trust # or EIN # 

Please attach a copy of the following:

Roster of current governing board
Current Year Annual Operating Budget
Proof of organization’s tax exempt status
Completed IRS 990 form (filed for 2022 or 2021) 

Optional Attachments



    

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MAY 2023   
 

OFFICERS 
 
Chair:    
Diane Ireland 
Director since April 2019 
Head of Office Operations 
Pliant Therapeutics 
 
Vice Chair:  
Sankar Venkatraman 
Director since March 2022 
Director of Product Marketing 
LinkedIn 
 
Secretary: Linda Smart 
Director since April 2020 
CIO, Southland Industries 
 
Treasurer: Daniel Binder 
Director since July 2019 
Senior Global Retail Executive 
 
MEMBERS  
 
Dr. Yener Balan 
Director since April 2018 
Executive Director of Behavioral Health, 
Kaiser Permanente 
 
Natalie Beaulieu 
Director since March 2022 
Senior Product Marketing Manager 
Adobe 
 
Rodrigo Boulos 
Director Since April 2023 
Director 
J.P. Morgan 
 
Bryan Graham 
Director since May 2016 
Senior Manager of Facility Engineering 
Gap Inc. 
 

Christopher Gurley 
Director since April 2020 
Tax Attorney, Talley LLP 
 
Kathryn Holmes 
Director since October 2019 
Community Advocate and Volunteer 
 
Talia Pierluissi 
Director since April 2022 
Director/Partner, Wealth Management 
Aspiriant 
 
Karen E. Pointer 
Director since April 2016 
Attorney/Partner, Lerman & Pointer LLP 
 
Alex Pugh 
Director since November 2018 
Attorney/Partner, Lubin, Olson & 
Niewiadomski, LLP 
 
Ahmad Thomas 
Director since June 2020 
CEO, Silicon Valley Leadership Group 
 
Timothy Torres 
Director since January 2020 
Chief Security Officer, TriNet 
 
Board Members on Leave: 
 
Natalie Mitchell 
Director since September 2020 
Philanthropic Advisor 
Curated by Media 
 
Raquel Macfarlane 
Director since January 2022 
Sr. Manager, The Walt Disney Company 
 
 





6/26/2023  Page 1 of 6 
 

Town of Colma 
Non-Profit Funding Request Form  

FY 2023-24 
 

 
 
Please do NOT write “see attached” as a response to any of the questions. You must 
submit all answers on this form. You may submit additional attachments, but they 
will not replace any of the responses. 
 
 
Name of Organization:           
 
Contact Person:            
 
Address:             
  Street Address   City  State  Zip Code  
 
Phone Number:     Email Address: __________________ 
 
1. Mission Statement: 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Amount of Request: $________________ 
 
 a. Total Agency Annual Budget: $_______________ 
 

b. Number of Agency Employees: _______________ 
 
c. Payroll is ________% of the Agency’s total Annual Budget. 

 
 
3.  Please identify a public purpose for the requested funding by identifying one of the 

following categories:  

A. Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;  
B. Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or 

Integrated Care Services;  
C. Educate and engage residents;  
D. Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business 

in the Town; or Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a 
service that the Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1BF6FF56-D2C5-44C6-8F44-790CE62A01C1

 

63

 

To understand and serve, with dignity and respect, the health and wellness 
needs of the medically underserved in the San Francisco Bay Area.

 

___8000_____________

7

X

4877 Mission Street        San Francisco, CA    94112

Harmony King

Clinic by the Bay

harmony@clinicbythebay.or
g

1,009,750

415-405-0222



6/26/2023  Page 2 of 6 
 

3a.       Describe how the funding will support the selected category: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Describe reason for request and how funds will be used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1BF6FF56-D2C5-44C6-8F44-790CE62A01C1

Our clinic serves a diverse population with staggering rates of chronic conditions. 12% 
have diabetes, one-third have hypertension, and over a third have hyperlipidemia. While 
we provide excellent primary and preventive care, we recognize the vital role that 
factors like food security play in managing chronic illnesses.

Our Food as Medicine program is a transformative approach to healthcare that goes beyond
 traditional medical services. We address the immediate needs of struggling patients by 
offering healthy meal boxes filled with essential grains, proteins, vegetables, and 
fruits, accompanied by tailored recipes and health education. We firmly believe that 
nutrition is just as vital as medication and regular check-ups in managing chronic 
diseases.

However, affordability and accessibility pose significant challenges for our patients. 
Many cannot afford nutritious food, lack the confidence to make the right choices, or 
simply struggle with time constraints due to work and family responsibilities.

With a grant from the Town of Colma, we can bolster and expand our Food Pharmacy 
Program, ensuring more patients receive essential staples during our bi-weekly Food 
Pharmacy sessions. Additionally, we'll provide Food Vouchers, enabling patients to 
purchase fresh produce and groceries at local stores.

Our Bounty Box program, powered by dedicated volunteers, will continue to deliver fresh 
produce to those facing transportation or health challenges. 

Your grant will also be used in part to fund the stipend for our Food as Medicine 
Coordinator Intern, whose dedication and experience is vital to the success of our 
program. 

Our Food as Medicine program urgently needs funding to combat the alarming rates of 
food insecurity in our community. Pre-COVID, over 20% of our patients faced food 
insecurity, and the pandemic has exacerbated this issue to a shocking 54%.

As a free clinic, we are uniquely positioned to address this "silent epidemic" with 
compassion and understanding. Our patients trust us, making our efforts even more 
impactful. Through our program, we provide essential services like food vouchers, 
Bounty Box home deliveries, and food as medicine recipes which empower patients to 
access nutritious food. Additionally, our Food Pharmacy offers medically-tailored food 
boxes, bridging the gap between food and managing chronic diseases.

Your support will help us expand these vital services and continue our Health and 
Wellness blog, Healing by the Bay. Together, we can make a tangible difference in the 
lives of those experiencing food insecurity and promote a healthier, more equitable 
community.



6/26/2023  Page 3 of 6 
 

5. If the amount of the request is higher than the previous year, provide a detailed 
explanation of the need for the increase: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Describe the benefit to the Town derived from funding your organization: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1BF6FF56-D2C5-44C6-8F44-790CE62A01C1

Last year, we requested $8,000 and gratefully received $4,000. This year, we are 
expanding services and moving into a larger clinic, which enables us to serve hundreds 
of more residents each year. Because of the clinic move, program expansion, and 
post-pandemic constraints, we are requesting $8,000 in support. Furthermore, despite 
many aspects of daily life returning back to normal, inflation-induced rising food 
costs and essential medical supplies have added to the financial burden of managing 
this program area. 

These challenges inspire us to adapt and grow, continually refining our innovative Food
 as Medicine program, but we need sustainable partnerships. Your generous support 
empowers us to maintain our vital services and provide accessible care to those who 
need it most. 

At Clinic by the Bay, we are on a mission to create a healthier and more vibrant 
community for residents of Colma. Our services reduce preventable emergency room 
visits, bolster the primary care safety net, and elevate health outcomes for low-income
 and uninsured adults in San Francisco and San Mateo Counties.

Sadly, San Mateo County faces a pressing primary care capacity problem, leaving 
uninsured adults on lengthy waiting lists and limited access to vital health services. 
This lack of accessibility affects not only individuals but our entire community: 
families grapple with illness, local businesses contend with a less productive 
workforce, and emergency rooms bear the burden of preventable health issues. But 
together, we can be the beacon of hope for Colma residents in need. Clinic by the Bay 
offers comprehensive, free primary care services, ensuring that no one is left behind. 
Our commitment extends beyond medical care by empowering the community to be part of 
the solution through meaningful volunteer opportunities, as well. 

With your generous support, we will continue to provide healthy food options to our 
patients from Colma. This crucial step aids them in managing their chronic conditions, 
fostering better health outcomes and enabling them to lead productive lives and give 
back to their beloved community.



6/26/2023  Page 4 of 6 
 

7. Describe the following: 
A. Number of Colma residents or businesses (or both) served by the organization 
in the years prior to the grant application;  
B. The location(s) where Colma residents or businesses may receive the recipient 
organization’s services or programs; and  
C. The nature and extent of the efforts of the recipient organization to reach out 
to Colma residents and businesses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Provide a detailed account of how the FY 2022-23 contribution was used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1BF6FF56-D2C5-44C6-8F44-790CE62A01C1

A. 29% of our patients report that they reside in the Town of Colma, which is 231 of our
 currently active patients.  

B. Services are provided at Clinic by the Bay, which is located at 4877 Mission Street
in the far southeastern part of San Francisco (specifically, the Excelsior
neighborhood) and is easily accessible from Colma by public transportation or car.
Some of the services mentioned in this application are received at the residents'
homes (our Bounty Box food delivery program). Later in the Fall of 2023, we will be 
moving a block away to the historic site of the former Alemany Emergency Hospital at 35 
Onondaga Avenue.

C. Community outreach is performed through resource fairs, flyers, and referrals from
our more comprehensive network of community partners, including other medical and
social service providers. 

We used the Town of Colma’s 2022-23 grant to help fund our Food as Medicine program, 
specifically: purchasing food vouchers through the EatSF Vouchers for Veggies program, 
our Food Security Program Coordinator’s (paid internship) stipend, and supplementing the
 ingredients we purchase for food in the boxes we distribute at our Food Pharmacy.  The 
funds also helped support the salary of our Volunteer Program Manager whose job it is to
 make sure our food access programs are staffed with volunteers to provide the services.
  

2022-23 Program Accomplishments:

Bounty boxes delivered - 1288
Patients enrolled in our Food Pharmacy - 51
Total boxes distributed at our Food Pharmacy- 1625
Patients who received vouchers- 58
Vouchers redeemed - 2,980



6/26/2023  Page 5 of 6 
 

9.        List contributions requested and received from other cities in FY 2022-23 and requested 
or expected in FY 2023-24: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10. Did the organization participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 

publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate 
for public office within the past 36 months (please select one)?   

 
Yes __________ No ______________ 
 
If yes, please provide details.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1BF6FF56-D2C5-44C6-8F44-790CE62A01C1

We received no contributions from other cities in fiscal year 2022-23, nor do we
expect this fiscal year. Colma is the only town that we have requested funding from
for this project.

 X



6/26/2023  Page 6 of 6 
 

11. Charitable Trust # or EIN #          
 
 
 
Please attach a copy of the following: 
 

 Roster of current governing board 
 Current Year Annual Operating Budget 
 Proof of organization’s tax exempt status 
 Completed IRS 990 form (filed for 2022 or 2021)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Optional Attachments 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1BF6FF56-D2C5-44C6-8F44-790CE62A01C1

26-2593712



Clinic by the Bay 2023 Board of Directors
Business and Professional Affiliations

Janet Reilly - President/Co-founder & Executive Committee member
San Francisco, CA
Affiliations:

-Clinton Reilly Company
-Co-owner & columnist, Nob Hill Gazette

Scott Hauge - Vice President/Co-founder & Executive Committee member
San Rafael, CA
Affiliations:

-Owner and Corporate Vice President, CAL Insurance and Associates, inc. (Retired)
-President and founder of Small Business California and
-Board member of Volunteers in Medicine America

Karen Kaufman - Secretary
San Francisco, CA
Affiliations:

-Senior Manager, Engagement & Inclusion, Workplace Culture - Kaiser Permanente

Jon S. Wolin, CPA, MBA, JD - Treasurer & Executive Committee member
San Mateo, CA
Affiliations:

-Healthcare Attorney and Consultant, Jonathan Wolin ConsultingAffiliations:
-Head of Customer Success, Augmedix

Deborah Torres
Castro Valley, CA
Affiliations:

-Senior Stakeholder Relationship Tax Consultant - Internal Revenue Service

Deborah Greer
San Francisco, CA
Affiliations:

-Medical Director, Advisory Services - Sound Physicians, Sequoia Hospital Redwood
City

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1BF6FF56-D2C5-44C6-8F44-790CE62A01C1



Debra Caywood-Rukas, Ph.D (retired)
San Francisco, CA
Affiliations:

-Retired Educational Psychologist and Adjunct College Professor

Nanette Duffy
San Francisco, CA
Affiliations:

-Nanette Duffy Projects | Events | Solutions

Nupur Srivastava
San Francisco, CA
Affiliations:

-Senior VP Product - Grand Rounds, Inc.

Paul Turek, MD, FACS, FRSM, Board Certified Urologist
Burlingame, CA
Affiliations:

- Director and Founder, The Turek Clinic

Rita Semel (retired)
San Francisco, CA
Affiliations:

-Community Activist
-Founder of the San Francisco Interfaith Council

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1BF6FF56-D2C5-44C6-8F44-790CE62A01C1



Unrestricted

2023-2024 
Approved 

Budget

Additional 
Release & 

New 
Building 

costs

Income

40000 · Contributed Revenue

40100 · Foundation & Other Non-Profits 335,000

40200 · Corporate Contributions 30,000

40300 · Individual Donations 200,000

40400 · Patient Contributions 2,500
40800 · Release of Temp Restricted 95,000 47,250

Total 40000 · Contributed Revenue 709,750

41000 · In-Kind Income

42000 · Special Event

42100 · Special Event Income 325,000

42500 · Special Event Expenses (25,000)

Total 42000 · Special Event 300,000

48000 · Interest & Investment Income 0
49000 · Other Income 0

Total Income 1,009,750
Expense

50000 · Salaries & Wages

50500 · Management and Administrative 218,050

50550 · Clinic Management & Staff 330,058

50650 · Development & Marketing 40,000
50700 · Volunteer Manager 50,918

Total 50000 · Salaries & Wages 639,026

51000 · Employee Benefits

51100 · FICA 45,462

51110 · Medicare 8,600

51150 · Unemployment Insurance 1,000

51200 · Workers' Compensation 3,300

51300 · All Health, Dental, Vision 51,000

51900 · Vacation Expenses 0

Total 51000 · Employee Benefits 109,362

52000 · Consulting & Professional Fees

52100 · Professional Fees - Clinical 30,000

52500 · Professional Fees - Accounting 25,000

52600 · Professional Fees - IT 14,000
52900 · Professional Fees - Other 12,000

Total 52000 · Consulting & Professional Fees 81,000

53000 · Ancillary Services

53100 · Laboratory 0
53300 · Radiology 2,800

Total 53000 · Ancillary Services 2,800

54000 · Consumable Supplies

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1BF6FF56-D2C5-44C6-8F44-790CE62A01C1



54100 · Medical Supplies 20,000

54150 · Dental Supplies 5,000

54500 · Patient Supplies 4,500

54600 · Admin & Other Supplies 5,000
54750 · Janitorial & Maint. Supplies 1,000

Total 54000 · Consumable Supplies 35,500

55000 · Equipment

55200 · Equipment rental/lease 6,000

55300 · Minor equipment purchases 500

55400 · Medical Equipment 500

55450 · Dental Equipment 1,000

Total 55000 · Equipment 8,000

56000 · Insurance

56100 · Malpractice 11,000
56200 · General Liability and Other 7,000

Total 56000 · Insurance 18,000

57000 · Occupancy

57100 · Rent 48,680

57200 · Utilities 12,000
57300 · Facility Repairs & Maintenance 5,000

Total 57000 · Occupancy 65,680

60000 · Administrative

61000 · Telecommunications 10,000

61500 · Postage & Delivery 2,500

63000 · Printing and copying costs 1,000

63500 · Community PR and Outreach 3,000

63700 · Fundraising 2,000

64000 · Volunteer Expenses 4,000

65000 · Professional pubs/subscriptions 0

65100 · Professional org fees and dues 1,500

65300 · Travel Expenses 2,000

65400 · Business Meeting Expenses 1,000

65700 · Professional conference fees 1,000

66000 · Staff Training - General 500

67500 · IT software lic. & maintenance 4,000

67800 · Business Licenses 3,000

68000 · Finance/Bank/Credit Card Chrges 7,500
69900 · Miscellaneous Expenses 3,000

Total 60000 · Administrative 46,000

70000 · Depreciation Expense 0

Total Expense 1,005,368

Net Income 4,382

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1BF6FF56-D2C5-44C6-8F44-790CE62A01C1



 
 
 

Clinic by the Bay is immensely grateful for the unwavering partnership we share with the Town 
of Colma, whose steadfast support has been instrumental in our mission to provide primary and 
preventive care for uninsured working adults in Colma. With deep appreciation, we present this 
report highlighting the program's impactful activities and notable achievements during the grant 
period from October 2022 through June 2023. Together, we have made a significant difference 
in the lives of those in our community, fostering a healthier and more resilient future for all. 
 
Description 
 
Clinic by the Bay remains committed to provide exceptional and compassionate care to 
uninsured working adults in our community. The impact of our services continues to grow, with 
29% of our patients now hailing from the Town of Colma, and nearly half of our patients residing 
in San Mateo County—a number that continues to rise. 
 
Thanks to the generous support from the Town of Colma, we have primarily directed their recent 
gift towards our Food Security program. This vital initiative was launched amidst the challenging 
backdrop of the COVID-19 crisis. A comprehensive patient survey conducted prior to the 
pandemic revealed that over 20% of respondents reported experiencing food insecurity. 
However, after implementing the USDA Household Food Security Survey, we uncovered an 
even more alarming reality—54% of our screened patients were identified as food insecure. 
 
Our program was purposefully designed to address the immediate needs of our patients who 
were grappling with feeding themselves and their families. Moreover, it aimed to ensure that our 
patients had access to healthy food options crucial for managing their chronic conditions. We 
take immense pride in the remarkable growth and accomplishments of our program since its 
inception in 2020, and we are thrilled to share these transformative achievements with you in 
this comprehensive report. 
 
Together, we are making a profound impact on the lives of our patients, tackling food insecurity, 
and empowering individuals to lead healthier, more vibrant lives. Your continued support and 
partnership are instrumental in driving these incredible outcomes, and we are deeply grateful for 
your unwavering commitment to our mission. 
 
Through this report, we invite you to witness the tangible difference we have made and join us 
in celebrating the collective achievements that have shaped a brighter future for our community. 
Together, let us continue to forge ahead, breaking barriers, fostering resilience, and creating 
lasting change that will reverberate far beyond the confines of our clinic walls. 
 
 
 
 

4877 Mission Street 
San Francisco 
CA 94112 

415.405.0207 (p) 
415.405.0223 (f) 
 

clinicbythebay.org 

 



Evaluation 
 
● Food Voucher Program: Our transformative Food Voucher Program empowers enrolled 
patients with $40 per month in food vouchers to access fresh, nutritious essentials like fruits, 
vegetables, grains, dairy, and proteins at a local grocery store. With an impressive enrollment of 
59 patients and a remarkable distribution of 2,673 vouchers since June 2020, we have 
witnessed an outstanding utilization rate of close to 85%. 
 
● Bounty Box Program: Our Bounty Box Program serves as a lifeline for patients facing 
mobility or transportation challenges, as well as those at higher risk of contracting COVID-19 by 
visiting grocery stores. With utmost dedication, our compassionate volunteers deliver weekly 
boxes of fresh produce directly to the doorsteps of 39 enrolled patients. Since its inception in 
June 2020, we have proudly distributed 1,288 boxes of nourishing produce, ensuring that our 
patients have access to the vital nutrients they need to thrive. 
 
● Food Pharmacy: Our groundbreaking Food Pharmacy program represents a significant 
milestone in our commitment to a "food as medicine" approach for managing chronic diseases. 
Through the distribution of weekly healthy meal boxes, meticulously curated with wholesome 
grains, proteins, vegetables, and fruits, we empower our enrolled patients to take control of their 
health journey. Each box is accompanied by customized recipes and vital health information 
tailored to their specific chronic conditions, offering nutrition and education as key pillars of their 
self-care. With 35 patients currently benefiting from this program and a remarkable distribution 
of 1,568 boxes of nourishment since its launch in December 2020, we are revolutionizing the 
way chronic diseases are managed through the power of proper nutrition. 
 
These impactful programs showcase our unwavering commitment to addressing food insecurity 
and promoting holistic health among our patients. Together, we are not only nourishing bodies 
but also transforming lives, fostering resilience, and creating a community built on wellness and 
well-being. 
 
 
Accounting 
 
The $4,000 received from the Town of Colma have been used as follows for the 2022-2023 
fiscal year: 
 
● Invoice payments for food vouchers through the EatSF Vouchers for Veggies Program: 
$4,000 
 
We cannot express enough gratitude for your unwavering support that has made all of the 
above initiatives possible. Your partnership with Clinic by the Bay is a testament to your deep 
commitment to our community, enabling us to provide the transformative power of "Food as 
Medicine" to our low-income, uninsured, and hard-working neighbors in need. Your generosity 
and belief in our mission have ignited positive change, fostering a healthier, more resilient 



community where everyone has access to the nourishment and care they deserve. Together, 
we are making a profound impact on lives, one meal, one patient at a time. Thank you for 
standing with us and for being an indispensable force in creating a brighter and healthier future 
for all. 
 
Gratefully, 
 

 
 
 

Sarah Gordon   
Executive Director 
Clinic by the Bay 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



6/26/2023 Page 1 of 6

Town of Colma
Non-Profit Funding Request Form

FY 2023-24

Please do NOT write “see attached” as a response to any of the questions. You must 
submit all answers on this form. You may submit additional attachments, but they 
will not replace any of the responses.

Name of Organization: 

Contact Person: 

Address: 
Street Address City State Zip Code 

Phone Number: Email Address: __________________

1. Mission Statement:

2. Amount of Request: $________________

a. Total Agency Annual Budget: $_______________

b. Number of Agency Employees: _______________

c. Payroll is ________% of the Agency’s total Annual Budget.

3. Please identify a public purpose for the requested funding by identifying one of the 
following categories: 

A. Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life; 
B. Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or 

Integrated Care Services; 
C. Educate and engage residents; 
D. Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business 

in the Town; or Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a 
service that the Town could provide to its residents or businesses.



6/26/2023  Page 2 of 6 
 

3a.       Describe how the funding will support the selected category: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Describe reason for request and how funds will be used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6/26/2023  Page 3 of 6 
 

5. If the amount of the request is higher than the previous year, provide a detailed 
explanation of the need for the increase: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Describe the benefit to the Town derived from funding your organization: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6/26/2023  Page 4 of 6 
 

7. Describe the following: 
A. Number of Colma residents or businesses (or both) served by the organization 
in the years prior to the grant application;  
B. The location(s) where Colma residents or businesses may receive the recipient 
organization’s services or programs; and  
C. The nature and extent of the efforts of the recipient organization to reach out 
to Colma residents and businesses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Provide a detailed account of how the FY 2022-23 contribution was used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6/26/2023  Page 5 of 6 
 

9.        List contributions requested and received from other cities in FY 2022-23 and requested 
or expected in FY 2023-24: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10. Did the organization participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 

publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate 
for public office within the past 36 months (please select one)?   

 
Yes __________ No ______________ 
 
If yes, please provide details.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



6/26/2023 Page 6 of 6

11. Charitable Trust # or EIN # 

Please attach a copy of the following:

Roster of current governing board
Current Year Annual Operating Budget
Proof of organization’s tax exempt status
Completed IRS 990 form (filed for 2022 or 2021) 

Optional Attachments



Daly City Colma Chamber of Commerce  
Page 2 of Ques on No. 5  
 

 

f) Chamber Development - to exercise best effort to achieve an increase in Chamber 
presence, work at increasing membership & retention with a Membership Drive,  
Direct Social Media project or partner. 

g) Business Development - to host and/or proactively seek sponsors, co-partners to 
create an indoor or outdoor event for Colma with bay area businesses & food 
vendors’ i.e.... Exotic Car Show/Taste of Our Cities/RUN FOR YOUR LIFE 5k run 
along with showcasing Auto row.  We have made contact to ColmaPD and Lexus.  
We are in talks with Lexus’s referral.  

h) Leadership Forum Classes/ or a Series of Business seminars workshops -- working 
with Renaissance Business Entrepreneurship Center, Amanda Anthony 

i)   Cypress Business Appreciation Awards Ceremony Gala—Nomination will come from 
our membership roster and award plaques to small, medium, & large businesses – Plus 
Golden Apple, Leadership, Lifetime Achievement, Special Humanitarian, All-Star 
Membership, Presidential, Centennial 50, 60,75, 100 years Awards.  We will also install a 
new Board of Director, Mr. Kevin Tong of Farmer’s Insurance.  

j) Breakfast ( Briefings on Business at Breakfast (BBB) meeting with leaders of the 
town/city to update community.    

k) Preliminary plans (open to the public) Business Resource Center -pop up or brick & 
mortar or renting a temporary room or space.  In think tank stage of gathering a group 
of interdisciplinary scholars to perform research around this issue.  

 



                           
                                                                  
 
 
EXECUTIVE BOARD 

  

   
CEO   
Leong, Felicia Chief Executive Officer                              

Staff 
650.755.3900 

 
 
 
 

362 Gellert Blvd. 
Daly City, CA 94015 
felicia@dccchamber.org 

 
415.627.8111 m 

   
President Corcoran Global Living 415.706.4722 m 
Husted, Rebecca 
 

Realtor/Realtor Consultant 
362 Gellert Blvd 

 

 Daly City, CA 94015 
rebecca@rebeccahusted.com 

 
 
 

   
2nd Vice President & CFO 
Serrato, Eleanor  

City Toyota Daly City 
HR Manager 

415.825.4251  

 
 
 
 

255 San Pedro Rd. 
Daly City, CA 94014 
ele@citytoyota.com 

 
415.606.3859 m 

Committees: Co-Chair Bowling   
   
   
1st Vice President  
Sit, Ross 

Sit Group  
Realty One Group Infinity 
Realtor  

650.302.1268 m 

 883 Sneath Lane, #227 
San Bruno, CA 94066 
sitross@gmail.com 

 
 

Committees:  Chair Halloween, 
Membership, Events, Bowling, 
Schoarlship 

  

   
   
   
Secretary 
Villarosa, Marie  
 

Serramonte Center 
Marketing & Event Manager 
3 Serramonte Center 
Daly City, CA 94015 
MarieVillarosa@regencycenters.com 
Committees: Membership, Events, Taste of Our 
Cities, Mixers, Bowling, Golf, 
Scholarship,Halloween 

415.706.4722 m 

2022-2023 Board of Directors 



 
   
   
BOARD OF DIRECTORS   
   
   
Chase, Dustin Lucky Chances Casino 

General Manager 
650.758.2237 
925.487.8400 m 

 
 
 
Committees:  Chair-Scholarship, Golf 

1700 Hillside Blvd. 
Colma, CA 94014 
Dustinc@luckychances.com  

 

   
   
Chiang, Bill P. G & E.  

Local Government Affairs 
650.339.1627 m 
 

 275 Industrial Road  
 San Carlos, CA.  94070  
Committee: Golf, Scholarship wwc9@pge.com  
   
   
   
DeVincenzi, Matthew Classic Bowling Center 

Manager 
650.995.3000 m 
 

 
 
 
Committees: Chair Bowling, Business 
Mixer, Golf, Events, Membership, 
Scholarship 
 
 

900 King Drive 
Daly City, CA.  94015 
matt@classicbowling.com 

 

 
 
Devincenzi, Monica 

 
 
Republic Services Daly City 
Municipal Sales Manager 
1680 Edgewood Avenue 

 
 
415.604.9014 

 Daly City, CA. 94015 415.218.0935 m 
Committees: Golf, Scholarship 
Events, Membership 

MDevincenzi@republicservices.com  

   
House, Steven Budget Blinds 

Owner 
650.303.1890 m 
 

 
 
 
Committee: Golf 

2700 Junipero Serra Boulevard 
Daly City, CA 94015 
Steven.House@budgetblinds.com  

 

   
   
Li, Daisy Moonstar Restaurant 

Owner 
415.519.1140 m 

 
 
 
Committees: Scholarship,  
Membership, Events, Taste of our 
Cities, Mixers 

405 S. Canal Street 
South San Francisco, CA 94080 
dd_moonstar@yahoo.com  

 

   
   



   
   
   
   
   
Proano, Teresa Duggan’s Serra Mortuary 

Assistant to the President 
650.756.4500 
 

 500 Westlake Avenue 650.296.3161 m 
 Daly City, CA.  94014  
 tproano@pacbell.net 

 
 

 

Committees:  Scholarship, Bowling, 
Events, Golf, Taste of our Cities, 
Membership 

  

   
   
CHAMBER STAFF   
   
   
 
Wilson, Alison 

 
alison@dccchamber.org 

 
650.755.3900 
 
415.640.9875m 

 
 

 

 
Last updated August 5, 2022 



 
 

 

  



 
 

 

 



Grant Report Requirements 
(a)          By June 30, 2023, or within 90 days after completion of the program or project, 

whichever is earlier, Grantee will present a final report to the Town that: 

(i)           Describes the results of the program or project funded by the grant; 
Results of the $30,000 funding supports the chamber to bring back and complete events and 
funds have help in our re building ( put back together) our office operations’ process.   

(ii)          Evaluates the results of the program or project funded by the grant; 
Please see below all the events that we were able to complete with funding and to be able to 
maintain paying bills and be more active in our community as a Board. All our work of reaching 
out to the community is also logged on our YouTube channel @dccchamber, Facebook:DalyCity 
Colma Chamber, Instagram @dccchamber & feliciammarieee Instagram & Felicia Leong Linked 
in, along with our website dalycitycolmachamber.org or dccchamber.org  

(iii)         Provides an accounting of the use of the grant funds. See Budget 

(b)          If the program or project is not completed by June 30, 2023, Grantee shall 
present an interim report by then describing the status of the program or project and its 
expected completion date. 

  
I will send out another reminder email a week before the deadline. Applications for FY 

2023-24 will be available in July. Please forward updated contact information on who 

should receive any future correspondence and I will update our records. Let me know if 

you have any questions. 
  

(i) Describes the results of the program or project funded by the grant 
 

These funds acquired from the Town of Colma are used to operate the Colma-Daly City 
Chamber of Commerce which maintained the following most successful events with reaching 
our goals of attendees  

• provide networking opportunities for local business – 

I. June 28, 2022- Social Mixer at Moonstar  
II. August 24, 2022- Social Mixer at Dave & Busters 

III. November 4, 2022 – Annual Turkey Bowling Tournament  
IV. February 23, 2023- Chamber Cow Palace Mixer 

V. May 3rd, 2023 – In Celebration of National Small Business Week Mixer 
VI. Bi monthly Coffee with Cars at Lexus  

VII. Colma Coffee with Cops meetings 

• town hall meetings, ribbon cuttings and grand openings, social mixers, B2B,  

B2B, Breakfast meeting, virtual directories and 2.0 Enewsletters,  

Colma Daly City Chamber of Commerce 



• 2.0 E newsletter is emailed every Friday-from 200 contacts we have increased to 
1,400 contact 

1. Grand Openings: September 27, 2022 – Cadillac  
i. January 17th, 2023 – Planet Fitness 

ii. January 20th, 2023 – Boot Barn 
iii. March 8, 2023 – Good Feet  
iv. March 31, 2023 – Burlington Coat Factory 
v. June 28th, 2023 – Simmer Huang Hot Pot Restaurant 

vi. August 22, 2022-Super Duper 

• October 27th, 2022-Access to Higher Education College & Career Faire, Serramonte 
Mall 

• Annual Crab Feed - March 7th, 2023 
• Halloween Contest at Serramonte- October 31, 2022 

 

• maintain and make available on request to the Town an automated list of  

Chamber members.  

• to partner with the Colma Historical Association/Park & Recreation & the  

Council or any other entity to represent Colma in the community 

• July 9, 2022 –  The Chamber participated and marketed the Town of Colma 
Community Fair  

• Colma Historical Meetings on Sundays  

 

• to promote the various points of interest, such as local cemeteries, the Car Row 
industry, large businesses i.e. Lucky Chances, Colma Recreation Services events, 280 
Metro business development support. And/or partner to education the community on 
new health requirements/recommendations, new public safety information and any new 
local developments.  

I. Serramonte Walk About – February 17th, 2022 
II. St. Patrick’s Day Luncheon – March 16th, 2023 

III. Annual Aloha Festival August 14th, 2022 
IV. Annual Scholarship Awards Ceremony- May 11, 2023 
V. Annual Holiday Party – December 9, 2022 

VI. Operation Santa Claus – December 13, 2022 

 



• continuing to maintain a Town of Colma branding presence on the internet, which 
includes Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, Tic Tock, YouTube and on the Chamber’s 
website to provides civic information, events, photos & miscellaneous noted content  

• participation in Mayoral walks  
1. June 17th, 2022, Mayoral Walk to : Holy Cross,Pacific Coast Supply, Royal Auto 

Body & Repair, Andy’s Wheels & Tires, Image Autobody, John’s Auto Center, 
Ditos Motors, CG Moving Company 

2. Sept 16, 2022 – Mayoral Walk to Tesla, Carmax, Subaru, Volkswagen, Honda, 
Nissan, Chevrolet, Lexus 

3. Jefferson & Westmore Highschool scholarship awards presentation at the schools 
to the awardees, May 2023 

4. Thomas Polliicita Middle School Graduation Awards presentation of giftcards May 
2023 

 

 

 

 

• Chamber drop in’s to meet and greet members  

Mayoral walk businesses are above 

Blo Blow Dry Spa 

Simmer Huang 

Lexus 

Daly City History Guild meetings 

 

• facilitating business mixers and workshops for the Colma business community  
• maintaining a log of incoming request and inquiries regarding the Town of  

Colma  

• Representation to San Mateo County at events, forums, conferences,  

seminar, mixers, candidate’s forums  

Candidates Forum September 21, 2022 Daly City. Colma opt out  



Pet Costume Contest October 22, 2022 Serramonte Center  

Daly City Partnership Meeting October 6, 2022 

Cow Palace Rodeo October 7th, 2022 

Skyline College Presidents Council Oct 2022-Mar 2023 

Daly City Library Trustees meetings October 18, 2022 – Feb. 2023 

SMC Chamber Chief Executive Officers meetings, once a month  

Skyline College Neighborhood Center for Adult@Jefferson High School 

 

SF Peninsula Meetings 

SMC Resource Fair 4/29/23 Serramonte Center 

SMC Supervisors award of Measure K grant April 2023 

JUHSD Certificate of Recognition for On Going Support -  May 2023 

Special Guest at Skyline, CSM & Canada College Graduations – May 2023 

 

 

• Participate in Town of Colma special events  

Town of Colma Business Recognition Luncheon Awards Recipient October 20th, 2022 

Town of Colma State of the City Address – January 25th, 2023 

Town of Colma National Night Out – August 2, 2022 

Coffee with Colma Police – October 5, 2022 & March 8th, 2023 

Colma Veteran’s BBQ – November 10 & Dec 22, 2022 & June 15th, 2023 

Colma Tree Lighting – Dec 1, 2022 

Colma Re organization – December 13, 2022 

           Colma Flag Raising:  2022 & 2023 -  Pride, Philippines, Italian, Israel 



 Lucky Chances Colma 25th Anniversary Celebration - June 17th, 2023  

 Attend Colma Firemen’s Social Club events  

 Town of Colma Town Wide Garage Sale April 15, 2023 

280Metro events:  

1. June 26th, 2022 Summer Sunday event  
2. December 4th, 2022 - Santa Flew into Colma California 

 

  

 

 

 

 



                  2023 Calendar  

                        from the Desk Calendar of Felicia Leong, CEO  
  
    

JANUARY   
▪ Town of Colma State of Our Cities Address 

▪ Planet Fitness Remodel Grand Opening / Red Ribbon Cutting  

▪ Boot Barn Grand Opening Ribbon Cutting  

▪ Skyline College JUHSD Neighborhood Center lead funding for donated dinners chick fil 

a, super duper, moonstar  

▪ Meeting with Dr Rod 

▪ Meeting with Tom Picolotti Laisni Tatum  
 

FEBRUARY  
▪ 23 Cow Palace Mixer 

▪ 17 Serramonte Walk About  

▪ 10 Meeting with David Canepa 

▪ Goodfeet ribbon cutting  

▪ 10 Meeting with Tom Piccolloti 

▪ 22 zoom  SF Peninsula Food week prep May 19-27  

▪ Meet greet w/Matt RH Drip & Melt 

MARCH  
▪ 7 CrabFeed  

▪ 3 Elected Officials Leadership Program  

▪ 16 skyline College Presidents Day Breakfast  

▪ 16 DCPLA St. Patrick’s Day luncheon -speaking  

▪ 17 Burlington Coat Factory Grand Opening/ Ribbon Cutting -Rebecca Husted 

▪ Apply for SMC Measure K Funding  

 



APRIL  
▪ Measure K funding $75,000 

▪ CEO visit Blo Blow Dry Spa  

MAY  
▪ May 3 National Small Business Week Celebration Mixer  

▪ Drop in for Certificates photo opp May 3  

▪ 11 Access to Higher Education Scholarship Awards Ceremony  

▪ 16th JUHDS recognition  

▪ 17th Westmoor senior awards  

▪ 18th Jefferson senior awards  

▪ SF restaurant week may19-27 

▪ Meeting with Westlake Village Apartments  

▪ 24th Renaissance Business Resource meeting  

▪ Skyline, CSM, Canada college graduations  

▪ 30th Thomas Pollicita graduation  

JUNE  
• Re Apply for Colma Grant  

• John Leland service 

• DCPD Krispy Kreme meeting  

• 13th Pride & Philippino Flag Raising DC 

• 14th Pride & Philippino Flag Raising 

• Veteran’s luncheon Ross Sit  

•  3rd Daly City’s Children’s Day Celebration Gellert park  

▪ 23rd Town of colma Mayoral Walk  

▪  17th Lucky Chances Ann  

▪ 28th Simmer Huang Grand Opening  

  

      JULY  

•  

AUGUST  
• Brian Dossey retirement party  

• Seton Mixer maybe  



SEPTEMBER  

 

OCTOBER  
▪ Launch Scholarship 2024  

▪ JUHSD College Faire Serramonte  

▪ Halloween Activities  

NOVEMBER  
▪ 3 Annual Turkey Bowling Tournament  

DECEMBER  
▪ 6th Cypress Business Achievements Gala  

▪ Town of Colma Reorganization  

▪ City of Daly City Reorganization  

Look out for Annual Mayoral Walks,  Police & the Chamber visits businesses, more Grand Opening Ribbon Cuttings & 

other community happenings during the year.  UPCOMING events can be found on dccchamber.org or the WEEKLY 

eChamber Newsletter 2.0.     

362 Gellert Blvd., Daly City, CA  94015         650-755-3900          felicia@dccchamber.org     

Subject to change.                                                                                                                                                                                                       Updated: June 28, 2023 

        



6/26/2023  Page 1 of 6 
 

Town of Colma 
Non-Profit Funding Request Form  

FY 2023-24 
 

 
 
Please do NOT write “see attached” as a response to any of the questions. You must 
submit all answers on this form. You may submit additional attachments, but they 
will not replace any of the responses. 
 
 
Name of Organization:           
 
Contact Person:            
 
Address:             
  Street Address   City  State  Zip Code  
 
Phone Number:     Email Address: __________________ 
 
1. Mission Statement: 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Amount of Request: $________________ 
 
 a. Total Agency Annual Budget: $_______________ 
 

b. Number of Agency Employees: _______________ 
 
c. Payroll is ________% of the Agency’s total Annual Budget. 

 
 
3.  Please identify a public purpose for the requested funding by identifying one of the 

following categories:  

A. Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;  
B. Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or 

Integrated Care Services;  
C. Educate and engage residents;  
D. Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business 

in the Town; or Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a 
service that the Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2240A4FD-3576-4BD3-81B8-3A1EAFC0ED4C

69

 

X

CORA provides safety, support and healing for individuals who experience abuse
 in an intimate relationship and educates the community about breaking the 
cycle of domestic violence. We envision a society where intimate partners 
treat one another with respect, where domestic violence and others forms of 
relationship abuse are not tolerated, and where services are accessible to all
 who need them.

2211 Palm Avenue, San Mateo, CA 94403

64

8,289,925

10,000

 

 

Cindy Kilpatrick

cindyk@corasupport.org650-652-0800

Community Overcoming Relationship Abuse (CORA)



6/26/2023  Page 2 of 6 
 

3a.       Describe how the funding will support the selected category: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Describe reason for request and how funds will be used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2240A4FD-3576-4BD3-81B8-3A1EAFC0ED4C

CORA is requesting funds in support of our Safe House program, which provides emergency 
shelter for domestic violence victims. CORA provides vital services by sheltering 
domestic violence victims and their children when they have nowhere else to turn. CORA's
 Safe House services support clients' individual plans for self-reliance and empowerment
 and include crisis intervention; safety planning; advocacy with housing, employment, 
and education; referrals to CORA services, public benefits, and other external 
resources.

This funding request is for the purpose of: 3a) providing safe, emergency shelter for 
victims of domestic violence who are fleeing their abuser. For 45 years, CORA - 
Community Overcoming Relationship Abuse - has been the only organization in San Mateo 
County solely focused on survivors of domestic violence and their children. CORA’s 
free, trauma-informed, culturally appropriate, client-centered services include 
emergency shelter, supportive housing, crisis intervention, legal assistance, mental 
health services, community education, and community advocacy. While also providing 
shelter, food, and clothing, CORA’s Safe House Program empowers victims of domestic 
violence to escape abusive relationships, avoid homelessness, secure safety, and begin 
a new life free from the threat of violence, and for their children to break the 
intergenerational cycle of abuse.



6/26/2023  Page 3 of 6 
 

5. If the amount of the request is higher than the previous year, provide a detailed 
explanation of the need for the increase: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Describe the benefit to the Town derived from funding your organization: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2240A4FD-3576-4BD3-81B8-3A1EAFC0ED4C

CORA's request for support remains the same as previous years, although we are facing 
increased costs for providing ongoing support, advocacy, food, clothing, diapers, and 
other household supplies.

Support from the Town of Colma leverages funds from other cities in San Mateo County – 
including Burlingame, Menlo Park, Redwood City, San Mateo, and South San Francisco – to
 help domestic violence survivors and their families. CORA’s well-established Safe 
House Program provides a direct gateway between intimate partner abuse-related 
life-threatening situations, and safe and stable interim housing, with an ultimate goal
 of permanent housing. As CORA is San Mateo County’s only agency specializing in 
serving intimate partner abuse victims and survivors, our Safe House program plays a 
critical role in addressing local homelessness.



6/26/2023  Page 4 of 6 
 

7. Describe the following: 
A. Number of Colma residents or businesses (or both) served by the organization 
in the years prior to the grant application;  
B. The location(s) where Colma residents or businesses may receive the recipient 
organization’s services or programs; and  
C. The nature and extent of the efforts of the recipient organization to reach out 
to Colma residents and businesses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Provide a detailed account of how the FY 2022-23 contribution was used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2240A4FD-3576-4BD3-81B8-3A1EAFC0ED4C

To protect the safety and confidentiality of our clients, CORA is not able to disclose 
locations for our shelters, motel sites, businesses utilized, etc. However, in FY 22-23,
 4 clients identified Colma as their city of residence. CORA is the only agency in all 
of San Mateo County providing comprehensive services specifically for survivors of 
domestic violence. In order to reach out to San Mateo County residents, including Colma 
residents, CORA publicizes its 24-Hour Crisis Hotline on its website and in other social
 media posts and publicity materials. In addition, CORA has an ERP (Emergency Response 
Provider) agreement with San Mateo County Sheriffs and Police Departments. This 
agreement ensures that responding officers at the scene of a domestic violence incident 
provide victims with contact information and referrals (which they are not required to 
accept) to CORA counselors and other supportive DV services. If the victim wishes to 
contact CORA at the time of the incident, the responding law enforcement will help 
facilitate the call.

CORA’s Safe House Program served a total of 26 individuals--12 adults and 14 children. 
In addition, 14 survivors (9 adults and 5 children) benefited from emergency hotel 
services and did not enter the Safe House. The Safe House Programs provided resource 
referrals to 100% of clients entering shelter. 80% of clients exited to safe, 
alternative housing; the remaining 20% did not disclose their exit destination. 



6/26/2023  Page 5 of 6 
 

9.        List contributions requested and received from other cities in FY 2022-23 and requested 
or expected in FY 2023-24: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10. Did the organization participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 

publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate 
for public office within the past 36 months (please select one)?   

 
Yes __________ No ______________ 
 
If yes, please provide details.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2240A4FD-3576-4BD3-81B8-3A1EAFC0ED4C

 

CORA received contributions from the following other cities in FY 22-23:

Burlingame $3,100
Menlo Park $5,000
Redwood City $14,136
San Mateo $17,300
South San Francisco $21,500
San Carlos $50,000
San Mateo $17,300

CORA projects the following contributions from other cities in FY 23-24:

Burlingame $5,000
Menlo Park $5,000
Redwood City $14,136
San Mateo $17,300
South San Francisco $21,500
Foster City $10,000
San Mateo $17,300

X



6/26/2023  Page 6 of 6 
 

11. Charitable Trust # or EIN #          
 
 
 
Please attach a copy of the following: 
 

 Roster of current governing board 
 Current Year Annual Operating Budget 
 Proof of organization’s tax exempt status 
 Completed IRS 990 form (filed for 2022 or 2021)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Optional Attachments 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2240A4FD-3576-4BD3-81B8-3A1EAFC0ED4C

94-2481188



CATEGORY
 10 ‐ Supportive 

Housing 
 70 ‐ Advocacy 
& Safe Haven 

 20 ‐Mental 
Health   30 ‐ Legal 

 40 ‐ Crisis 
Support 

 50 ‐ 
Community 
Education  60 ‐ Prevention   80 ‐ Admin 

 90 ‐ 
Development 

FY23‐24 
BUDGET

Federal 1,045,310$        37,500$             44,639$               ‐$                     1,127,449$        
State 700,000              175,953             521,914               643,823             422,196              103,393              161,268               111,691           ‐                       2,840,238$        
County 493,503              135,365             449,528               80,000               492,365              7,270                   ‐                       1,658,031$        
City 98,136               12,800               10,100                35,000                 ‐                       156,036$           
Total Government 2,238,813$        446,954$          1,016,081$          736,623$           924,661$            138,393$            168,538$            111,691$        ‐$                     5,781,754$        

Foundations 17,250               302,000               65,000               25,000                ‐                       ‐                       653,250           ‐                       1,062,500$        
Indivdiual/Business 100,000             720,000           3,000                   823,000$           
Corp Sponsors 120,000              120,000$           
Speical Event 100,000              100,000$           
Other ‐ Program Fees 1,000                   5,000               6,000$                
Total Non‐ Government ‐$                     117,250$          302,000$             65,000$             25,000$              1,000$                 ‐$                     1,378,250$     223,000$            2,111,500$        

Release Restricted Assets 66,778                 29,014               35,745                147,619           279,156$           
In‐Kind Revenue 259,583$            150,000$          60,000$               15,000$             200,000$        684,583$           

Total Revenue 2,498,396$        714,204$          1,444,859$          845,637$           985,406$            139,393$            168,538$            1,837,560$     223,000$            8,856,993$        

Direct Client Assistance 1,292,445           54,938               3,319                    2,000                  20,000                ‐                       ‐                       ‐                   3,000                   1,375,702          
Salaries & Wages 598,592              262,734             889,127               521,971             635,729              78,454                 95,248                 1,409,385       151,125              4,642,365          
Fringe Benefits 134,683              59,115               200,054               117,443             143,039              17,652                 21,431                 317,112           34,003                1,044,532          
Total Personnel 733,275              321,849             1,089,181            639,414             778,768              96,106                 116,679               1,726,497       185,128              5,686,897          

Professional Services Fees ‐                       ‐                     40,000                 42,956               ‐                       ‐                       3,250                   48,750             15,500                150,456              
Program Supplies ‐                       1,800                 1,546                    ‐                      10,505                ‐                       6,627                   ‐                   ‐                       20,478                
Office Expenses ‐                       1,426                 ‐                        2,844                  ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       43,411             2,100                   49,781                
Technology & Communications 8,820                   2,280                 17,414                 2,058                  ‐                       ‐                       2,520                   281,212           10,960                325,264              
Occupancy Expenses ‐                       133,932             ‐                        402                     ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       116,000           ‐                       250,334              
Travel ‐                       1,220                 500                       2,104                  ‐                       800                      ‐                       11,533             2,550                   18,707                
Marketing and Advertising 1,000                   6,300                 2,300                    ‐                      ‐                       ‐                       1,050                   ‐                   63,150                73,800                
Staff development and training ‐                       900                    21,000                 250                     ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       33,500             1,500                   57,150                
Depreciation Expense ‐                       ‐                     ‐                        ‐                      ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       138,777           ‐                       138,777              
Insurance ‐                       ‐                     ‐                        ‐                      ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       40,579             ‐                       40,579                
Interest Expense ‐                       ‐                     ‐                        ‐                      ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       52,000             ‐                       52,000                
Board Expense ‐                       ‐                     ‐                        ‐                      ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       10,000             ‐                       10,000                
Other Expense ‐                       ‐                     ‐                        ‐                      ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       33,000             7,000                   40,000                
Indirect 203,273              39,559               209,599               138,609             176,133              42,291                 37,258                 (846,722)         ‐                       ‐                      
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,238,813$        564,204$          1,384,859$          830,637$           985,406$            139,197$            167,384$            1,688,537$     290,888$            8,289,925$        

In Kind 259,583              150,000             60,000                 15,000               ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       200,000           684,583$           
Investment Income (Loss) 49,627$           67,888$               $           117,515 

NET INCOME (LOSS) (0)$                       (0)$                     0$                         (0)$                      (0)$                       196$                    1,154$                 (1,350)$           (0)$                       (0)$                      

CORA ‐ Community Overcoming Relationship Abuse
FY2023‐24 Board Approved Budget

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2240A4FD-3576-4BD3-81B8-3A1EAFC0ED4C



 
 

 
 
 

FY23-24 |BOARD OF DIRECTORS* 
 

Linda Adler, Board Chair 
Healthcare Consultant, Self-Employed 

 
Dan Rave, Board Vice Chair, Finance Committee Co-Chair 

SVP & Senior Lead Business Execution Consultant, Wells Fargo Wealth & Investment Mgmt 
 

Phoebe Venkat, Treasurer, Finance Committee Co-Chair 
Community Strategist, Self-Employed, and Planning Commissioner, Foster City 

 
Jill Morris, Fund Development Committee Co-Chair 

Store Leader, Everlane (Stanford) 
 

Kevin Imboden, Fund Development Committee Co-Chair 
Global Director for Market and Competitive Intelligence, EdgeConneX 

 
Christelle Carlon, Board Development Committee Co-Chair 

Attorney, ADZ Law LLP 
 

Karuna S. Chibber, Board Development Committee Co-Chair 
Evaluation & Learning Officer at The David and Lucile Packard Foundation 

 
Michelle Fowler, Board Member 

Self-Employed 
 

Elizabeth Gomez, Board Member 
Self-Employed – Gomez Iron Works 

 
Donald “Duffy” Magilligan, Board Member 

Partner, Cotchett, Pitre & McCarthy 
 

Toni Martinez, Board Member 
Director, Clinical Operations for Protagonist Therapeutics 

 
Lara McDonald, Board Member 

Principal and HR Consultant, LMM HR Consulting 
 

Sarah Mirza, Board Member 
Senior Staff Attorney and Ethics Advisor, U.S. Government Accountability Office 

 
 
* As of July 7th, waiting for final Board Vote to name new Secretary 



 
 
  

Community Overcoming Relationship Abuse (CORA)  
Town of Colma - Final Report 

Reporting Period: July 1, 2022 – June 30, 2023 
 
Community Overcoming Relationship Abuse (CORA) is grateful to the Town of Colma for 
continued support during FY21-22 (July 1, 2022 – June 30, 2023). The entirety of the $7,000 
grant award was expended on CORA’s Safe House Program. This report covers the program’s 
accomplishments, challenges, and successes during the last award year. 
 
PROGRAM ACCOMPLISHMENTS 
During FY22-23, CORA’s Crisis Support Services (CSS) department responded to 4,542 calls to 
our 24-hour Crisis Hotline. When DV victims/survivors use this important service, they are 
referred provided with referrals to supportive services and assisted with safety plans as 
needed. Additionally, 81 individuals (43 adults and 38 children) were provided shelter through 
hotel stays, with a total of 477 individual bed nights provided. Some hotel clients also went on 
to stay in a CORA Safe House. In total, CORA’s emergency shelter options housed 36 adults and 
35 children last fiscal year, with 5,833 individual bed nights provided. CORA’s shelter capacity 
has opened up more bed space since the start of 2023 and continues to provide many services 
to all clients. When CORA’s shelter occupancy is at capacity, clients are provided with hotel 
stays, San Mateo County Coordinated Entry System (CES) referrals, and emergency housing 
vouchers (EHV vouchers) from Housing Authority of San Mateo County. CORA shelter staff have 
been able to provide various services to shelter and motel clients such as increased emotional 
support and increased food support for clients due to generous donations from CORA’s 
community partners. 
 
PROGRAM CHALLENGES 
Challenges include the high need for more emergency shelter. CORA Safe House is limited in 
space as we have only a 28-bed capacity for all of San Mateo County. In addition, the 
confluence of trauma caused by the abuse contribute to the ongoing high mental health needs 
among the clients. CORA’s services have been able to support clients’ needs as well as our 
community partners. 
 
CLIENT STORY 
Ryan* called CORA’s 24-Hr Crisis Hotline because they had recently fled an abusive situation.  
Ryan stated their partner has gotten particularly aggressive and threatened them with a knife 
and a nail gun, and also engaged in sexual and physical violence against them. Ryan mentioned 
that they had noticed that there have been multiple attempts to hack their bank and email 
accounts. Ryan reported that their partner had been threatening their friends and that was also 
a reason they decided they had to leave to protect others. Ryan stated that law enforcement 
was called by people who can hear them arguing. They stated they never wished to press 
charges because they never fully understood how bad the abuse was. Ryan stated that they've 
been offered help and perspective many times since they were 17, but did not begin to realize 
they needed it until now. CORA’s crisis counselor assessed the situation and offer motel 

http://www.corasupport.org/


services and provided them with transportation and food for the night. 
*name of the client was changed to protect confidentiality 
 
Thank you for Colma’s continued support of DV victims in your community and across San 
Mateo County! 



6/26/2023  Page 1 of 6 
 

Town of Colma 
Non-Profit Funding Request Form  

FY 2023-24 
 

 
 
Please do NOT write “see attached” as a response to any of the questions. You must 
submit all answers on this form. You may submit additional attachments, but they 
will not replace any of the responses. 
 
 
Name of Organization:           
 
Contact Person:            
 
Address:             
  Street Address   City  State  Zip Code  
 
Phone Number:     Email Address: __________________ 
 
1. Mission Statement: 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Amount of Request: $________________ 
 
 a. Total Agency Annual Budget: $_______________ 
 

b. Number of Agency Employees: _______________ 
 
c. Payroll is ________% of the Agency’s total Annual Budget. 

 
 
3.  Please identify a public purpose for the requested funding by identifying one of the 

following categories:  

A. Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;  
B. Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or 

Integrated Care Services;  
C. Educate and engage residents;  
D. Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business 

in the Town; or Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a 
service that the Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 739A4099-13FE-4423-B1EE-4F84BB865B35

108,000

 

1

X

The mission of DCPLA is to raise private funds to supplement public funding of
 the Daly City libraries. We accomplish this by developing community, civic, 
and business support for fundraising, advocacy, and innovative programs that 
benefit our diverse community.

 

Daly City Public Library Associates

 

24

5220

   PO BOX 3283       DALY CITY,      CA         94015   

Victoria Magbilang

 info@dcpla.org415-596-8194



6/26/2023  Page 2 of 6 
 

3a.       Describe how the funding will support the selected category: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Describe reason for request and how funds will be used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 739A4099-13FE-4423-B1EE-4F84BB865B35

The funding will be used to purchase early education technology that supports literacy 
in children ages 5 and under. Education begins with curiosity as a child. When 
curiosity is fostered and developed in school age children this leads to a hunger for 
knowledge and  encourages curiosity, and the cycle continues. Daly City Library 
Branches provide computers, tablets and Wonderbooks that are a catalyst for increased 
curiosity. The parents are encouraged to participate with the child. Each week there is
 a tech-one-on-one course for the families that is promoted through the library 
calendar which allows the librarians to help the families in a more specific way. 

Daly City Public Library Associates seeks to develop community, civic and business 
support for fundraising, advocacy, and innovative programs that benefit our diverse 
community and promote greater awareness of the Library's valuable resources. Currently 
the Daly City Public Library is in need of increased funding for the early childhood 
literacy program, as the budget constraints for the current year do not currently have 
room for expanding the early literacy program and digital needs. 

1 AWE Learning Computer @ $4, 215
Currently throughout the Daly City Library Branches there are seven of these computers, 
that were purchased many years ago. These are in popular demand and many families come 
to the Library with the main purpose of using the computers. In recent months, at least 
two of these computers have become unreliable (not responding or turning on) and very 
slow to use. We are asking the City of Colma to replace one of these computers.  The 
early learning computers are available whenever the library is open. These computers 
offer programs and applications on them such as, ABC Mouse, Jurassic Words, Everyday 
Adventures and much more. Each computer is ready for children to use, with the goal of 
learning to read and reducing the learning gap to computer usage in these minority 
communities. These computers also have programs that help with using imagination to 
create with music, practicing early education fundamentals, developing creative 
problem-solving skills, expanding vocabulary and exploring different emotions.

5 LaunchPads @ $ 201
The LaunchPad program is a program where children are able to check out a learning 
tablet from the library. These LaunchPad tablets have learning applications in both 
English and Spanish. Children are able to read along with books, test their knowledge, 
and build a solid foundation for preschool and kindergarten. The goal is for children to
 master preschool skills from math to English, explore other languages, and practice the
 recognition of shapes, colors, numbers, and patterns. With the increase in fun during 
the learning process, children learn quickly and are soon reading books by themselves. 
Other skills that are taught are counting, sorting, and basic math skills. Currently the
 Library has a few of these and adding more to the program will allow for a greater 
reach as there is often a waitlist for the LaunchPads. 

Total request : $5,220 consisting of one AWE Learning Computer, $4,215 and 5 LaunchPad 
Tablets, $201 each. 



6/26/2023  Page 3 of 6 
 

5. If the amount of the request is higher than the previous year, provide a detailed 
explanation of the need for the increase: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Describe the benefit to the Town derived from funding your organization: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 739A4099-13FE-4423-B1EE-4F84BB865B35

The Library serves residents of San Mateo County, this represents over 110,000 
residents in northern San Mateo County. The number of children under the age of 5 is 
around 6,500 at the last census.  The majority of residents are foreign born, 51% of 
the population, therefore the Library is committed to providing English as a Second 
Language programs available to all citizens. The Daly City Public Library has a 
comprehensive plan for literacy improvement, including classes for children and adults.
 As these families are taught the skills of reading and writing, their income potential
 increases along with their dream of a more integrated lifestyle. As a public library, 
the Daly City Public Library program for early literacy is available to all preschool 
aged children, regardless of socio-economic status, household income, family 
background, citizenship status, or race. The Library is a free resource to all 
residents. 

We are requesting the same amount as last year.



6/26/2023  Page 4 of 6 
 

7. Describe the following: 
A. Number of Colma residents or businesses (or both) served by the organization 
in the years prior to the grant application;  
B. The location(s) where Colma residents or businesses may receive the recipient 
organization’s services or programs; and  
C. The nature and extent of the efforts of the recipient organization to reach out 
to Colma residents and businesses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Provide a detailed account of how the FY 2022-23 contribution was used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 739A4099-13FE-4423-B1EE-4F84BB865B35

The entire population of Colma is served by the Daly City Public Libraries, in their 
Serramonte (40 Wembly Dr.), John Daly (134 Hillside Blvd.), Westlake (275 Southgate 
Ave.), and Bayshore (460 Martin St.) locations. Invitations to the Daly City Public 
Library Associates’ programs, Author Talks, and events are advertised to Colma residents
 through social media, print advertising, direct mail, and word of mouth. Many Colma 
businesses are generous supporters of Daly City Public Library Associates events, such 
as; our annual St. Patrick’s Day luncheon.

Due to a number of factors, including personal and family health issues and a staffing 
shortage in the City of Daly City’s Public Works Department, I applied for and was 
granted a project extension to May 31, 2024.  The collaboration between the State 
Library’s award of $5,000 and the Town of Colma’s award, Daly City Public Library is in 
the process of installing a StoryWalk in Gellert Park, adjacent to the Serramonte Main 
Branch, and one in the Bayshore Heights Park, adjacent to the Bayshore Branch. 
Currently, the stories have been selected and the pedestals have been ordered and 
received. Panel design is nearly complete and ready for print. Once we receive the 
panels, we’ll be ready to install the StoryWalks. In the meantime we will be planning 
and promoting the StoryWalks and related programming.



6/26/2023  Page 5 of 6 
 

9.        List contributions requested and received from other cities in FY 2022-23 and requested 
or expected in FY 2023-24: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10. Did the organization participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 

publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate 
for public office within the past 36 months (please select one)?   

 
Yes __________ No ______________ 
 
If yes, please provide details.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 739A4099-13FE-4423-B1EE-4F84BB865B35

 

DCPLA receives no funding from other cities.

X



6/26/2023  Page 6 of 6 
 

11. Charitable Trust # or EIN #          
 
 
 
Please attach a copy of the following: 
 

 Roster of current governing board 
 Current Year Annual Operating Budget 
 Proof of organization’s tax exempt status 
 Completed IRS 990 form (filed for 2022 or 2021)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Optional Attachments 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 739A4099-13FE-4423-B1EE-4F84BB865B35

27-3262898



 
 
 
Daly City Public Library Associates 
Board of Directors- updated January 1, 2023 
  
Executive Board 

1.     President: Monica Devincenzi (second term ends 12/31/2025) 

MDevincenzi@republicservices.com, mobile: (415) 218-0935 
2.     Vice President: Trisha deVera (first term ends 12/31/2023) deverat03@gmail.com  

mobile: (650) 580-4847 

3.     Secretary: Caitlin Corley (first term ends 12/312023), ccorley@colma.ca.gov, mobile: 
650-451-8123 

  
4.     CFO: Amie Haiz (second term ends 12/31/2025) amiehaiz@gmail.com,  

mobile: (415) 290-4000 

  

Board of Directors 
5.     Charles Cannon (first term ends 12/31/2025), Charles.Cannon@lexusofserramonte.com, 

6.     Kristine Espinola (first term ends 12/31/2025), kespinola@gmail.com, mobile: (650) 274-

7003,  

7.     Mark Johnson (second term ends 12/31/2025), j.mark.johnson@gmail.com,  

mobile: (415) 265-4645,  

8. Clayton Koo (first term ends 12/31/2025), claykoo@gmail.com, mobile (650) 455-4167 

9.     Teresa Proaño (second term ends 12/31/2025), tproano@pacbell.net,  

mobile: (650) 296-3161 

10.     Sara Watson (second term ends 12/31/2025) sarawatson@tcbk.com,  
mobile: (650) 868-5690  

11.   Jose Villalobos (first term ends 12/31/20224) jrvillalobos@gmail.com,  

mobile: (415) 350-2231 

  
  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 739A4099-13FE-4423-B1EE-4F84BB865B35

mailto:claykoo@gmail.com


2023 Budget

2023 Budget
INCOME
Direct Public Support
Individual & Business Contributions $5,000
Membership $10,000
Total Public Support Income $15,000

Special Event Income
St. Patrick's Day Luncheon
  Fund the Need $15,000
  Donations/Sponsorships $8,000
Youth Poet Laureate Event $5,000
Art & Lit Fest $25,000
Total Special Event Income $53,000

Grant Income $40,000

Total Income $108,000

EXPENSE
Program
Library Grants $30,000
Sponsorships $900
Total Program Expense $30,900

Operating
Bank Service & Merchant Fees $600
Dues & Membership $250
Filing Fees $50
Insurance (General Liability, D&O, Worker's $3,272
Webhosting Expense $350
Advertising & Marketing $750
Meeting/ Retreat Expense $1,500
Office Supplies $500
Director Compensation $26,400
Bookkeeper $5,000
Legal & Accounting $400
Membership & Admin Coordinator $3,000
Postage $500
Printing $1,000
Total Operating Expense $43,572

Fundraising
Grant writer $5,000
St. Patrick's Day Luncheon $3,000
Art & Lit Fest $2,000
Youth Poet Laureate competition $5,000
Total Fundraising Expense $15,000

Total Expense $89,472

NET INCOME $18,528

DocuSign Envelope ID: 739A4099-13FE-4423-B1EE-4F84BB865B35



 

 

June 29, 2023 

 

Midproject Narrative Report 

Grant Description 

Name of Grantor: Town of Colma 
Name of Grantee: Daly City Public Library Associates 
Mailing Address: PO Box 3283, Daly City, CA 94015-3283 
Telephone number: (415) 596-8194 
Executive Director: Victoria Magbilang 
Project Title: Storywalks 
Date: September 24, 2021 
Grant amount: $5,220 

 
I applied for the California State Library’s 2022-2023 Parks Pass Grant with the intention of 
installing two StoryWalks and hosting programming around them by the end of June 2023. Due 
to a number of factors, including personal and family health issues and a staffing shortage in 
the City of Daly City’s Public Works Department, I applied for and was granted a project 
extension to May 31, 2024. This is a midproject narrative report for the Town of Colma. 
 
With the State Library’s award of $5,000 and the Town of Colma’s matching award, Daly City 
Public Library will install a StoryWalk in Gellert Park, adjacent to the Serramonte Main Branch, 
and one in the Bayshore Heights Park, adjacent to the Bayshore Branch. We will also hold a 
kick-off event in each park featuring the StoryWalks and giving away drawing journals and 
colored pencils.  
 
The Bayshore community was selected because it has the highest percentage of residents living 
below the poverty line in Daly City and the Serramonte area was chosen because of the number 
of families that frequent the area. 
 
Youth Services Manager, Sarah Spence, helped select our two picture book titles. The Bayshore 
StoryWalk will present Woodland Dreams, written by Karen Jameson and illustrated by Marc 
Boutavant. In Gellert Park we will present Where’s Rodney?, written by Oakland-based author 
Carmen Bogan and illustrated by Floyd Cooper. In Woodland Dreams, the protagonist is seen 
drawing her observations from her walks through the woods around her house. In Where’s 



Rodney?, a young boy dreams of being outside. Each will be a great jumping off point for 
nature-based programming. 
 
Since we plan to have the StoryWalks in place for 1-2 years at a time, we are using permanent 
frameless pedestals from Envirosigns. The panels are currently being designed by Derrick Shiu 
and his supervisor, Romeo Benson, in the Recreation Division. Recreation is also assisting us 
with translating introductory content on the first panels into Spanish and Chinese. The panels 
will be produced by a local print shop, Sterling Graphics. The same materials will be used as 
those in San Francisco Public LIbrary’s Presidio StoryWalk, which was on display and in good 
condition for about 1.5 years in a similarly foggy, windy climate. The Bayshore StoryWalk will 
include 14 panels and the one in Gellert will include 20, for a total of 34 pedestals and panels. 
 
Both parks will require some creativity in placing panels in a logical but also aesthetically 
pleasing manner.  
 
Library Services Manager Chela Anderson and I met with staff from the Daly City Department of 
Public Works’ Maintenance and Parks divisions and the Daly City Recreation division to review 
and assess each of the parks for feasible sites for each post and panel. Limitations at Gellert 
Park include the inability to place frames in spots lawn mowers need to go over, areas with 
sprinkler systems, and spots too close to soccer fields, baseball diamonds, or handball courts.  
 
Limitations at Bayshore Heights Park include lack of space. However, the walking path makes it 
possible to have an obvious loop.  
 
At both parks, we will try grouping panels in groups of two and three when possible. 
 
We have ordered and received the pedestals. Panel design is nearly complete and ready for 
print. Once we receive the panels, we’ll be ready to install the StoryWalks. In the meantime we 
will be planning and promoting the StoryWalks and related programming. 
 
 

Outcomes and Evaluation 

 
The following are outcomes we have set and how we plan to achieve and measure them: 

● Use of equity, diversity, inclusion, and/or belonging in the implementation of the 
Storywalks 

○ We are translating the introductory content on the first panels into Spanish and 
Chinese. Promotional materials will also be translated. 

○ We will count the number of new library users from Spanish and Chinese surveys 
returned. 



● Increased awareness among families with children 0-18 of the library’s presence in the 
community and what it has to offer 

○ Promotion and outreach via community partners will be critical. 
○ We hope the StoryWalks themselves and related programming will draw new 

users to the libraries. 
○ We’ll use these survey questions: Did you visit with any youth 0-18 today? Have 

you used the library before? Did you learn something new about what the library 
has to offer? How likely are you to visit the library again? 

● Positive health outcomes 
○ We hope the StoryWalks will encourage community members to enjoy being 

outdoors as well as the associated health benefits. 
○ We’ll use the survey question: I believe that spending time outdoors as part of 

this library program/activity/resource was beneficial for my health (strongly 
agree, etc.). 

● Increased usage of Parks Passes 
○ We hope drawing new users to the libraries will increase awareness of this 

service. 
○ We will capture Parks Passes circulation data before and after installation of the 

StoryWalks. 
 
 

Budget 

 

Item Cost Per Item Estimated Total Incl. 
Tax & Shipping 

Actual Cost 

Panels from Sterling 
Graphics, 34 

$105 $4,054.39  

Frameless Pedestals 
from Envirosigns, 34 

$141.38 $5,961.99 $5,961.99 

Hardware to attach 
Panels to Pedestals 
from McMaster or 
Home Depot 

 $300.00  

Drawing Pad and 
Colored Pencil Set from 
Amazon, 50 Sets 

 $320.00  

TOTAL $10,636.38 $5,961.99 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



6/26/2023  Page 1 of 6 
 

Town of Colma 
Non-Profit Funding Request Form 

(Exempt Organizations Only)  
FY 2023-24 

 

 
 
Please do NOT write “see attached” as a response to any of the questions. You must 
submit all answers on this form. You may submit additional attachments, but they 
will not replace any of the responses. 
 
 
Name of Organization:           
 
Contact Person:            
 
Address:             
  Street Address   City  State  Zip Code  
 
Phone Number:     Email Address: _______________________ 
 
1. Mission Statement: 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Amount of Request: $________________ 
 
 a. Total Agency Annual Budget: $_______________ 
 

b. Number of Agency Employees: _______________ 
 
c. Payroll is ________% of the Agency’s total Annual Budget. 

 
 
3.  Please identify a public purpose for the requested funding by identifying one of the 

following categories:  

A. Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;  
B. Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or 

Integrated Care Services;  
C. Educate and engage residents;  
D. Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business 

in the Town; or Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a 
service that the Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5B441A66-3D0F-4A8A-8D6B-5897E99DA06C

16

2,520,279

X

dcyhcgrants@jeffersonunion.net

Our mission is to ensure young people reach their full potential and thrive 
through optimal health, empowerment and strong support networks. 

86

350 90th Street, 3rd Floor, Daly City, CA 94015

10,000

Daly City Youth Health Center

6504651119

 

Mackinnon Ross

 

 



6/26/2023  Page 2 of 6 
 

3a.       Describe how the funding will support the selected category: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Describe reason for request and how funds will be used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5B441A66-3D0F-4A8A-8D6B-5897E99DA06C

The Daly City Youth Health Center (DCYHC) was founded in 1990 in response to the 
health disparities among BIPOC low-income youth in San Mateo County. DCYHC is a unique
 school-linked program of the Jefferson Union High School District (JUHSD) and 
clinical satellite facility of the San Mateo Medical Center (SMMC). DCYHC services 
include primary health care, behavioral health counseling, substance use prevention 
services, and comprehensive sexual health education. Our mission is to ensure young 
people reach their full potential and thrive through optimal health, empowerment and 
strong support networks. 
Primary Care: Our decades-long partnership with SMMC has enabled us to provide a 
higher level of care that brings a variety of providers and client systems together to
 function as a collaborative wrap-like team. Our physician-led medical services 
include diagnosis and treatment of illnesses, referrals to specialists, physicals, 
immunizations, STI testing and treatment, etc.
Behavioral Health: We support youth and their families to heal intergenerational 
trauma and replace maladaptive relational patterns with healthy supportive 
communication to successfully navigate school, relationships, and adulthood. DCYHC 
provides mental health screenings, Severe Mental Illness (SMI) and Mild/Moderate 
mental health services to youth ages 6 to 26 and their families. 
Substance Use Prevention: Be The Change (BTC) trains youth leaders to facilitate 
substance use prevention presentations and youth-led research. Innovative Strategies 
for Prevention and Intervention through Restorative Education (INSPIRE) is a social 
justice approach to address inequitable suspensions of BIPOC students due to substance
 use by using Brief Interventions.
Educational Programs: Project PLAY (Peer Leadership Alternatives for Youth), trains 
youth leaders by increasing their sexual health knowledge, empowering them to 
self-advocate, establish boundaries, and peer educate using socio-emotional learning. 
Our 10-day sex education curricula, which meets 92% of the California Healthy Youth 
Act law, and our 5-day Refresher curricula, serves about 1,000 unduplicated youth 
yearly

Funding will support our general operations and programs, which support youth and 
families in San Mateo County. This year, our goals include:   

1) Primary Medical Services - For the upcoming year, the program goal is to provide 
primary healthcare services to a minimum of 1,700 unduplicated youth and young adults.
        

2) Behavioral Health Counseling Program – Behavioral health clients will achieve an 
average of at least a 60% reliable or clinically significant improvement in their 
wellbeing. For the upcoming year, the program goal is to provide behavioral health 
screening and counseling to a minimum of 300 unduplicated youth and young adults.

3) Project PLAY (Peer Leadership Alternatives for Youth) – In fiscal year 23-24, PLAY 
will provide health education to a minimum of 1,000 unduplicated teens and young 
adults and train a minimum of 60 peer health educators.

4) Alcohol and Other Drugs (AOD) - In fiscal year 23-24, AOD will reach 500 students 
through community education presentations and 30 students through INSPIRE. 



6/26/2023  Page 3 of 6 
 

5. If the amount of the request is higher than the previous year, provide a detailed 
explanation of the need for the increase: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Describe the benefit to the Town derived from funding your organization: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5B441A66-3D0F-4A8A-8D6B-5897E99DA06C

Our greatest need is general operating support to continue providing high quality 
services and programs to the youth of San Mateo County. San Mateo County’s Suicide 
Prevention Roadmap of 2017-2020, found that compared to neighboring counties, San 
Mateo County has the highest rate of self-injury hospitalizations for youth. A 
majority of the youth we serve are living in inadequate housing, are homeless, or are 
at-risk for homelessness. According to the CA Healthy Kids Survey, 51% of 11th grade 
students reported chronic sadness or hopeless feelings and 16% seriously considered 
attempting suicide in 2020. Students in Thornton High School in Daly City reported a 
rise in Alcohol and Marijuana usage in 2021 from 57% and 68%, respectively, to 80% for
 both - likely exacerbated by the pandemic. The 2021 California Health Interview 
Survey (CHIS) states, “36.7% of respondents ages 13 to 17 said they needed help for 
emotional or mental health problems, but 26.2% of them did not receive any counseling 
in the past year.”

While we have addressed the mental health barriers for clients who qualify for 
Medi-CAL, we continue to see a significant number of community members who fall into 
the “middle class.” They do not qualify for Medi-CAL, and are unable to afford mental 
health services due to the high cost of living in this area. Even people who have 
private health insurance have come up against barriers to accessing and receiving 
timely care.

Further general operating support is important to DCYHC as we are experiencing 
significantly higher volumes of youth seeking services. We have expanded our mental 
health, substance use prevention, and education services and have higher costs related
 to more staff and infrastructure. 

We are a centrally located health center that supports surrounding cities, including 
Colma. We support Colma youth and families by providing free mental health services, 
medical care, and health education. We strive to make our services accessible to all 
by not only outreaching to Colma citizens, but also by going directly to our clients 
when needed. Including their homes and other community locations.

DCYHC serves as a one stop shop where community members can address needs surrounding 
physical and mental wellbeing and receive case management support around needs such as
 housing and food insecurity, obtaining health insurance and linkage to other 
community resources. If families cannot come to our on-site location, we bring 
services directly to them. DCYHC serves as a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC),
 bridging together medical, behavioral health and school based care. The relationship 
with the Behavioral Health team and San Mateo County Medical Center (SMMC) under one 
roof as one health center, working in partnership with the Jefferson Union High School
 District (JUHSD) enables us to reach more youth and address their needs in a 
comprehensive and integrated way.



6/26/2023  Page 4 of 6 
 

7. Describe the following: 
A. Number of Colma residents or businesses (or both) served by the organization 
in the years prior to the grant application;  
B. The location(s) where Colma residents or businesses may receive the recipient 
organization’s services or programs; and  
C. The nature and extent of the efforts of the recipient organization to reach out 
to Colma residents and businesses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Provide a detailed account of how the FY 2022-23 contribution was used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5B441A66-3D0F-4A8A-8D6B-5897E99DA06C

People who are worried about their very basic needs such as shelter, food, and physical
 health, are often unable to devote time and energy to their mental health needs, while
 their mental health is increasingly impacted by their struggles. The Town of Colma 
grant supported our efforts to provide snacks and sustenance to our clients which 
served to increase their capacity to address their mental health challenges. 

The generous donation of $6,000 from the Town of Colma enabled our mental health team 
to provide healthy and nourishing snacks and drinks to our youth engaging in  
individual and group mental health services. The following is how the $6,000 was spent:

Individual Counseling Snacks               $2,548.65
Peer Support Group Snacks                            $3,451.35

Total                                                                                  
     $6,000   

A. We have provided 11 Colma residents with health services in 2022-2023.

B. Daly City Youth Health Center is located at 350 90th Street, Floor #3 in Daly City. 
We serve clients at our location, within local schools,  and in our client’s homes or 
community.

C. Outreach: We have expanded our outreach efforts by tabling at back to school nights 
and community fairs, posting to social media, and forging new community partnerships. 
These efforts resulted in a dramatic increase of visits to our website, self-referrals,
 and outside community referrals. Additionally, we have made significant efforts toward
 engaging caregivers, and in particular our immigrant population, who experience 
increased barriers to accessing care. Successfully engaging this population in 
treatment takes a skillful approach, where being trauma-informed is especially 
critical. 

By popular request, we’ve continued our ongoing Single Mothers Support Group and opened
 it up to all mothers. This group aims to fortify our clients' caregivers so they are 
better equipped to care and support our clients. We also plan to expand our groups to 
include poetry, art, and movement based therapeutic groups for youth this year. 



6/26/2023  Page 5 of 6 
 

9. List contributions requested and received from other cities in FY 2022-23 and requested 
or expected in FY 2023-24: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10. Did the organization participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 

publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate 
for public office within the past 36 months (please select one)?   

 
Yes __________ No ______________ 
 
If yes, please provide details.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5B441A66-3D0F-4A8A-8D6B-5897E99DA06C

We did not request or receive funding from other cities in FY 2022-23 and are not aware
 of current available funding from other cities that we are eligible for FY 2023-2024.

X 



6/26/2023  Page 6 of 6 
 

11. Charitable Trust # or EIN #          
 
 
Please attach a copy of the following: 
 

 Roster of current governing board 
 Current Year Annual Operating Budget 
 Proof of organization’s tax exempt status 

 
 
 
 
 
Optional Attachments 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5B441A66-3D0F-4A8A-8D6B-5897E99DA06C

94-3083772



Revenue  
Carry Over 2022-2023 -                                         
Committed Revenue 303,000.00                           
Expected Revenue 2,529,479.04                        

TOTAL REVENUE 2,832,479.04$                      
   
Expenses  
Salaries 1,467,124.33                        
Salaries Total 1,467,124.33                        
Benefits 707,341.31                           
Benefits Total 707,341.31                           

Total Salary/Benefits 2,174,465.64$                      
   
Materials/Supplies (awards, curriculum, food, printing) 25,732.70                             
Meeting PD Supplies 16,893.65                             
Office Supplies -                                         
Custodial Supplies 3,320.00                                
Non Capitalized Equipment -                                         
Conference/training/fieldtrips/travel Mileage 12,400.00                             
Dues and Memberships 20,500.00                             
Repairs 15,000.00                             
Leases/Maintenance Agreements/Printer 1,000.00                                
Consultant (Art Therapy, Security System) 85,140.00                             
Fingerprinting 450.00                                   
Rent 205,949.28                           
Janitorial Service 23,940.00                             
Student Awards 10,500.00                             
Communications (zoom) 1,600.00                                
Postage 1,100.00                                
Indirect Expense 214,337.29                           

Total General Expenses 637,862.92$                         

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,812,328.57$                      
  
NET SURPLUS/DEFICIT 20,150.47$                           

Daly City Youth Center 2023-2024 Organizational Budget



Executive Board - 2023

Andrew Lie, President

Daly City Resident

Director of Finance at Perkins + Will

Kalimah Salahuddin, Vice President

Pacifica Resident

Coordinator at Exelixis

Rosie Tejada, Clerk

Pacifica Resident

Litigation Practice Assistant at Kirkland & Ellis

Jerome Gallegos, Trustee

Pacifica Resident

Project Manager at Brady Air

Sherrett Walker, Trustee

Pacifica Resident

Attorney

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5B441A66-3D0F-4A8A-8D6B-5897E99DA06C



Daly City Youth Health Center
Final Colma Report for 22-23
dcyhc@jeffersonunion.net
POC: Mackinnon Ross

Grant Report Requirements

(a) By June 30, 2023, or within 90 days after completion of the program or project,
whichever is earlier, Grantee will present a final report to the Town that:

(i) Describes the results of the program or project funded by the grant;

People who are worried about their very basic needs such as shelter, food, and physical health,
are often unable to devote time and energy to their mental health needs, while their mental
health is increasingly impacted by their struggles. The Town of Colma grant supported our
efforts to provide snacks and sustenance to our clients which supported their efforts to address
their mental health challenges.

(ii) Evaluates the results of the program or project funded by the grant; and

Our results show that, of the last 100 closed cases, 78.1% of our clients achieved reliable or
clinically significant change in their wellbeing. We also had 4,585 mental health encounters
which was over 1,000 more encounters than we originally projected.

(iii) Provides an accounting of the use of the grant funds.

The generous donation of $6,000 from the Town of Colma enabled our mental health team to
provide sustenance and snacks to our youth seeking individual and group mental health
services. The following is how the $6,000 was spent:

Individual Counseling Snacks $2,548.65
Peer Support Group Snacks $3,451.35

Total $6,000

(b) If the program or project is not completed by June 30, 2023, Grantee shall present an
interim report by then describing the status of the program or project and its expected
completion date.
N/A

mailto:dcyhc@jeffersonunion.net


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



6/26/2023  Page 1 of 6 
 

Town of Colma 
Non-Profit Funding Request Form  

FY 2023-24 
 

 
 
Please do NOT write “see attached” as a response to any of the questions. You must 
submit all answers on this form. You may submit additional attachments, but they 
will not replace any of the responses. 
 
 
Name of Organization:           
 
Contact Person:            
 
Address:             
  Street Address   City  State  Zip Code  
 
Phone Number:     Email Address: __________________ 
 
1. Mission Statement: 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Amount of Request: $________________ 
 
 a. Total Agency Annual Budget: $_______________ 
 

b. Number of Agency Employees: _______________ 
 
c. Payroll is ________% of the Agency’s total Annual Budget. 

 
 
3.  Please identify a public purpose for the requested funding by identifying one of the 

following categories:  

A. Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;  
B. Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or 

Integrated Care Services;  
C. Educate and engage residents;  
D. Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business 

in the Town; or Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a 
service that the Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 00B86957-8702-4A14-BA13-94D9BA3B3951

lfanucchi@hiphousing.org

X

 

 

 

(650) 348-6660

3,209,324.91

HIP Housing (Human Investment Project, Inc.) 

Laura Fanucchi

5,000

67

41

800 South Claremont Street, #210, San Mateo, CA 94402

HIP Housing’s mission is to invest in human potential by improving the housing
 and lives of people in our community. Every year, HIP Housing’s Home Sharing 
Program, Self Sufficiency Program, the newly launched Housing Readiness 
Program, and Property Management Division work in tandem to prevent 
homelessness, counter displacement, and enable more than 1,200 low-income 
individuals in the Town of Colma and throughout San Mateo County to find, or 
remain in, decent, stable, and affordable housing.



6/26/2023  Page 2 of 6 
 

3a.       Describe how the funding will support the selected category: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Describe reason for request and how funds will be used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 00B86957-8702-4A14-BA13-94D9BA3B3951

HIP Housing’s Home Sharing Program is a time-tested solution to the affordable housing 
challenge in San Mateo County. The program is the only one of its kind in the County, 
and one of the most efficient strategies to create readily-available, affordable 
housing. The program is successful because it’s built on the following tactics: 

1. The creation of new affordable housing through the use of existing housing stock. By 
making more efficient use of existing housing inventory, the Home Sharing Program 
creates new affordable housing opportunities for low-income individuals and families in 
Colma.

2. A thorough and in-depth matching process. Clients begin the home sharing process by 
completing a detailed application. Program staff follow up by interviewing the client 
and understanding their specific needs, and carrying out local reference and background 
checks. Once clients are matched, staff bring both parties together to help them outline
 their expectations and agree on rights and responsibilities. 

3. Creative and unique solutions for clients. Home Sharing staff will regularly arrange 
a Reduced Rent Exchange, in which one person completes light household chores in 
exchange for reduced rent. 

4. Ongoing client services and support. Staff check in frequently with matched clients 
and provide technical support and mediation services. 
As a result of this in-depth process, the average Home Sharing match lasts 4.5 years. 

At its core, the Home Sharing Program assists those who are struggling to find a decent,
 stable, and affordable home, or who are trying to remain in their existing home; the 
program has evolved into a vital resource for people of all ages and backgrounds. 

The public purpose for the requested funding is “Option A: Provide shelter, food, or 
clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life."

HIP Housing respectfully requests a grant of $5,000 from the Town of Colma. If our 
request is approved, this grant will be used to support the activities of our 
innovative Home Sharing Program in FY 2023-2024. This funding will also help support 
residents of Colma who are receiving services from our Self Sufficiency Program and 
Housing Readiness Program. 

HIP Housing’s Home Sharing Program matches people who have space in their home to 
share, with people who are searching for an affordable place to live. By making more 
efficient use of existing housing resources in Colma, the Home Sharing Program provides
 a unique, creative, and affordable solution to the lack of affordable housing in the 
Town of Colma, and throughout San Mateo County. In addition, our Self Sufficiency 
Program provides housing scholarships and intensive trauma-informed case management to 
low-income parents and transitional-aged foster youth in school to increase their 
earning power. Our Housing Readiness Program offers follow-up and case-management 
support to individuals who contact us for affordable housing resources.



6/26/2023  Page 3 of 6 
 

5. If the amount of the request is higher than the previous year, provide a detailed 
explanation of the need for the increase: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Describe the benefit to the Town derived from funding your organization: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 00B86957-8702-4A14-BA13-94D9BA3B3951

With your support in FY 2023-2024, HIP Housing’s Home Sharing Program will make more 
efficient use of the Town of Colma’s existing housing stock and expand access to stable
 and affordable housing in Colma. Our staff will enable struggling renters to avoid 
displacement; help low-income individuals find a stable, affordable place to live close
 to work, school, and family; and allow older adults and people with special needs to 
live independently in their own home. 

In the Town of Colma during FY 2023-2024, Home Sharing staff will: 
--Provide housing information, referrals, and assistance to 5-10 individuals who live 
and/or work in Colma.  
--Interview, screen, and provide housing assistance to 2-3 individuals who live and/or 
work in Colma.
--Place 1-2 individuals in new affordable home sharing matches in Colma. 
--Provide ongoing support to 2-5 Colma residents matched in previous years. 

We also recognize that the municipalities throughout the County are interconnected – 
often, individuals commute between cities for work, school, and family.  In total, 
across San Mateo County in FY 2023-2024, Home Sharing staff will interview and screen 
540 new clients for the program and help 375 people to find, or remain in, an 
affordable home sharing match. Additionally, in FY 2023-2024, our Self Sufficiency 
Program staff will support 52-60 families (60-70 adults & 80-100 children) on their 
journey to financial independence and security. Our new Housing Readiness Program will 
provide follow-up case management services to 250 individuals who contact our agency 
for assistance on housing-related issues. We anticipate a majority of these clients 
will be low-income older adults seeking guidance on applications for affordable 
housing. Our Property Management Division will increase our number of owned/managed 
units to 501 by leasing 39 units at an additional property in Redwood City, ultimately 
housing 820 tenants in FY 2023-2024. 

This section is not applicable.



6/26/2023  Page 4 of 6 
 

7. Describe the following: 
A. Number of Colma residents or businesses (or both) served by the organization 
in the years prior to the grant application;  
B. The location(s) where Colma residents or businesses may receive the recipient 
organization’s services or programs; and  
C. The nature and extent of the efforts of the recipient organization to reach out 
to Colma residents and businesses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Provide a detailed account of how the FY 2022-23 contribution was used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 00B86957-8702-4A14-BA13-94D9BA3B3951

A. With grant support from the Town of Colma in FY 2022-2023, HIP Housing’s Home Sharing
 staff: 
--Provided housing information and referrals to 2 individuals who live and/or work in 
Colma.
--Interviewed, screened, and provided housing assistance to 3 individuals who live 
and/or work in Colma.
--Enabled 4 individuals who live and/or work in Colma to find, or remain in, affordable 
housing through the Home Sharing Program. 

B. Home Sharing Program staff offer hybrid services to clients, either supporting 
clients over the phone, Zoom, or in our main office at 800 South Claremont Street in San
 Mateo. Home Sharing Coordinators have also resumed making home visits if requested by 
Home Providers. 

C. Agency outreach activities targeting the Town of Colma in FY 2022-2023 included: 
--Advertising - we advertise our programs via ads and articles in the Daily Journal 
(digital and print), City e-newsletters, Highway billboards, and smchousingsearch.org.
--E-blasts, flyers, and mailing - we sent monthly informational flyers to the faith 
community, school districts, HR directors, city representatives, non-profits, housing 
advocates, homeowner associations, and city councils. 
--Media - the program was featured on Bay Area Bountiful, Nor Cal Public Media.
--Presentations - we presented on the benefits of our Home Sharing Program at Colma’s 
Town Council and at the Colma Community Fair in July 2023. 

The $5,000 contribution from the Town of Colma for FY 2022-2023 was allocated to the 
salaries of our Home Sharing Program Coordinators. Thanks to your generosity and 
support, they were able to achieve the following outcomes during FY 2022-2023: 
--2,145 individuals from across the County contacted our agency for housing information 
and assistance. 
--519  were interviewed and screened by Home Sharing staff. 
--60 individuals were matched in new affordable Home Sharing arrangements. 
--291 clients matched in previous years received ongoing support services from program 
staff. 

The financial relief that Home Providers and Home Seekers experienced through the 
program in FY 2022-2023 was immense. Before finding a housemate, Home Providers in San 
Mateo County served by the Home Sharing Program spent an average of 23% of their income 
on housing, while Home Seekers spent an average of 26% of their income on housing. After
 matching with a housemate, Home Providers reduced their housing costs to an average of 
12% of their income, while the cost of housing for Home Seekers lowered to 22% (and they
 were able to move or remain close to family, work, and/or school). Of the people served
 by the Home Sharing Program in FY 2022-2023:  95% were low-income, poverty level, or 
below; 38% were homeless or at-risk of homelessness; 41% of our program clients were 65+
 years of age; 59% were women; and 30%  lived with a disability. Our program clients  
reflect the racial and ethnic diversity of the low-income population in San Mateo County
 – 41% were White, 22% were Hispanic/Latino, 13% were Asian, 15% were Multiracial, 6% 
were Black, 2% were Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, and 1% were American 
Indian/Alaskan Native. 

We could not have had the impact we did in FY 2022-2023 without your support. Thank you 
for your partnership and commitment to affordable housing solutions! 



6/26/2023  Page 5 of 6 
 

9.        List contributions requested and received from other cities in FY 2022-23 and requested 
or expected in FY 2023-24: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10. Did the organization participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 

publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate 
for public office within the past 36 months (please select one)?   

 
Yes __________ No ______________ 
 
If yes, please provide details.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 00B86957-8702-4A14-BA13-94D9BA3B3951

X 

• Atherton: FY 2022-2023 $2,500 received; FY 2023-2024 $15,000 approved
• Belmont: FY 2022-2023 $5,000 received; FY 2023-2024 $5,000 approved
• Brisbane: FY 2022-2023 $5,000 received; FY 2023-2024 $5,000 projected
• Burlingame: FY 2022-2023 $3,660 received; FY 2023-2024 $5,000 projected
• East Palo Alto: FY 2022-2023 $2,500 received; FY 2023-2024 $2,500 received
• Foster City: FY 2022-2023 $5,000 received; FY 2023-2024 $5,000 approved
• Half Moon Bay: FY 2022-2023 $1,000 received; FY 2023-2024 $1,000 received
• Hillsborough: FY 2022-2023 $2,500 received; FY 2023-2024 $2,500 received
• Menlo Park: FY 2022-2023 $12,000 received; FY 2023-2024 $12,000 projected
• Millbrae: FY 2022-2023 $5,000 received; FY 2023-2024 $5,000 approved
• Pacifica: FY 2022-2023 $1,000 received; FY 2023-2024 $1,000 received
• Portola Valley: FY 2022-2023 $3,000 received; FY 2023-2024 $3,000 approved
• Redwood City: FY 2022-2023 $10,000 received; FY 2023-2024 $10,000 approved via 
Measure K Discretionary Funding in District 4
• San Bruno: FY 2022-2023 $30,000 received; FY 2023-2024 $30,000 approved
• San Carlos: FY 2022-2023 $20,000 received; FY 2023-2024 $20,000 projected
• San Mateo: FY 2022-2023 $50,000 received; FY 2023-2024 TBD 
• South San Francisco: FY 2022-2023 $12,000 received; FY 2023-2024 $12,000 approved
• Woodside: FY 2022-2023 $2,500 received; FY 2023-2024 $2,500 approved 



6/26/2023  Page 6 of 6 
 

11. Charitable Trust # or EIN #          
 
 
 
Please attach a copy of the following: 
 

 Roster of current governing board 
 Current Year Annual Operating Budget 
 Proof of organization’s tax exempt status 
 Completed IRS 990 form (filed for 2022 or 2021)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Optional Attachments 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 00B86957-8702-4A14-BA13-94D9BA3B3951

94-2154614



HIP Housing (Human Investment Project, Inc.)

Board of Directors 2023-2024
Board members may serve a nine-year term.

One-year extensions may be granted on a case-by-case basis.

Mr. Aaron Aknin
Principal
Good City Company
Board term began 3/2021

VICE PRESIDENT
Mr. Joshua Amoroso
Executive Vice President
Lockehouse Retail Group, Inc
Board term began 9/2019

Mr. Ian Bain
Vice President, Corporate Communications
Enterprise DB
Board term began 10/2021

Ms. Lauren Boro
Real Estate Attorney
Carr McClellan P.C.
Board term began 9/2018

Ms. Sophia Brink
Legislative Aide/Project Manager
Office of San Mateo County Supervisor David Canepa
Board term began 10/2021

Ms. LaTisa Brooks
Principal/General Manager
Piccadilly Catering & Event Solutions
Board term began 3/2021

TREASURER
Ms. Nancy Bush
Senior Vice President
Beacon Business Bank
Board term began 9/2017

Mr. Napallo Gomez
Manager, Enterprise Customer Team,
Service Planning and Design
PG&E
Board term began 11/2022

Ms. Ripple Grewal
HR Director
Four Seasons Hotel
Board term began 11/2022

Ms. Rocsana Enriquez
Program Manager, Future Profits Bay Area
Able Works
Board term began 9/2019

Ms. Kalah Espinoza
Board term began 9/2019

Ms. Mary Leahy
SVP, Global Partnering and Shared Services
Franklin Templeton
Board term began 11/2022

Ms. Carolyn Moore
Chief People Officer
InfluxData
Board term began 9/2015

PRESIDENT
Ms. Meris Ota
Senior Vice President
Trammell Crow Company
Board term began 9/2016

Dr. Jennifer Taylor-Mendoza
President
College of San Mateo
Board term began 6/2015

Mr. Rob Zirkle
Founder / CEO
Brick Inc.
Board term began 9/2022

DocuSign Envelope ID: 00B86957-8702-4A14-BA13-94D9BA3B3951



HIP Housing Programs Operating Budget- FY 23/24

17/24/2023

HIP Housing (Human Investment Project, Inc.) FY 23-24 Budget
  Fee Revenue
   Developer Fees 110,000.00
  Total Fee Revenue 110,000.00
  Contribution and Grant Income
   Foundation and Corporate Grants 905,500.00
   Government Grants 296,500.00
   Individual Donations 256,257.00
   Special Events 224,491.00
   Special Purpose Grants 50,000.00
  Total Contribution and Grant Income 1,732,748.00
  Other Revenue
   SSP Program Fees 42,000.00
   Support from Affiliates 975,000.00
   Surplus Cash Distribution 465,814.68
  Total Other Revenue 1,482,814.68
 TOTAL REVENUE 3,325,562.68

 OPERATING EXPENSES
  Payroll & Related Expenses
   Benefits- 401K (Employer) 78,498.00
   Benefits - Pension 0.00
   Benefits Health Ins. 202,928.00
   Bonus Expense 30,000.00
   Employer Elect 0.00
   Payroll - Maintenance 0.00
   Payroll Processing Fees 9,093.53
   Payroll & Related Costs 0.00
   Payroll Taxes-Other 129,008.00
   Salaries 1,686,385.00
   Temporary Help 0.00
   Unemployment Compensation 3,417.41
   Vacation/PTO Expense 0.00
   Workers Comp Insurance 11,467.00
  Total Payroll & Related Expenses 2,150,796.94
  Rent Expenses
   Rent-Office 247,326.24
  Total Rent Expenses 247,326.24
  Administrative Expenses
   Adminstrative Expenses 8,300.00
   Advertising/Promo/Mkt 49,521.36
   AH Incentive - Provider < $1,000 4,000.00
   Audit Expense 10,500.00

DocuSign Envelope ID: 00B86957-8702-4A14-BA13-94D9BA3B3951



HIP Housing Programs Operating Budget- FY 23/24

27/24/2023

   Bank Service Charges 5,912.60
   Board Expense 12,400.00
   Computer Expense 40,372.74
   Software/Technology 16,091.81
   Conventions and Meetings 2,263.99
   Dues and Subscriptions 9,739.00
   Expenses Supported by Grants 56,500.00
   In-Kind Expenses 10,122.41
   Legal Fees 7,315.00
   Credit Reports 511.01
   Mileage and Travel Expense 3,030.11
   Miscellaneous Expense 8,254.42
Miscellaneous HR 7,672.77
   Office Equipment - Non Capitalized 8,600.00
   Office Supplies 9,491.05
   Training and Staff Development 59,362.99
Recruiting Expenses 5,340.89
   Volunteer Expense 1,723.00
   COVID-19 Expenses 600.00
  Total Administrative Expenses 337,625.15
  Operating and Maintenance
   Postage and Delivery 9,303.75
   Printing/Copying/Reproduction 31,916.42
   Professional Fees 162,549.13
   Telephone 38,536.00
  Total Operating and Maintenance 242,805.30
  Taxes and Insurance
   Insurance (Property Fire and Liab.) 10,657.28
  Total Taxes and Insurance 10,657.28
  Service Expenses
   HIP Housing Scholarship 160,000.00
   SSP Supportive Services- Other 12,000.00
   Workshops 12,480.00
   Special Needs 22,500.00
   Self Suff. Counseling 5,000.00
   Eligibility Expenses 400.00
   Adopt A Family 7,500.00
  Total Service Expenses 219,880.00
  Financial Expenses
   Annual Bond Issuer Fee 234.00
  Total Financial Expenses 234.00
 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 3,209,324.91
 OTHER EXPENSES

DocuSign Envelope ID: 00B86957-8702-4A14-BA13-94D9BA3B3951



HIP Housing Programs Operating Budget- FY 23/24

37/24/2023

  Fundraising Expenses 71,581.74
 TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES 71,581.74

 SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 44,656.03

DocuSign Envelope ID: 00B86957-8702-4A14-BA13-94D9BA3B3951



 
 

 
 

 
July 19, 2023 
 
 
Mr. Brian Dossey 
Town Manager 
Town of Colma 
1198 El Camino Real 
Colma, CA 94014 
 
Dear Brian, 
 
HIP Housing’s mission is to invest in human potential by improving the housing and lives of people in our community. 
Over 1,200 adults and children maintain affordable housing annually through our Home Sharing, Self-Sufficiency, and 
Property Development programs. And we’re excited to launch our fourth program, Housing Readiness, which will assist 
the most vulnerable members of our community with case management support and connection to housing resources.   
 
The City of Burlingame’s support of our work is significant and allows us to achieve our mission while expanding services 
in San Mateo County. Below is a summary of the activities accomplished in Burlingame and Countywide during FY 22.23. 
 

TOWN OF COLMA HIGHLIGHTS 
 

• # of Intake Calls received by Colma residents  two households 
• # of applications from Colma residents or employees:  three households 
• # of new Home Sharing matches with a Colma resident: one household 
• # of matched Home Sharing clients who work in Colma: two households 

 
Funding Allocation 
The $5,000 contribution from the Town of Colma was allocated to the salaries for the Home Sharing Program 
Coordinators. 

 
COMMUNITY OUTREACH 

 
Staff, volunteers, and interns increased awareness in the community about our services by establishing partnerships, 
conducting presentations, and developing marketing materials in multi-languages. Outreach activities included: 
 
Ads/Articles in city e-newsletters, Coastside Living Magazine, Daily Journal, Electronic billboards in San Carlos and Foster 
City, Half Moon Bay Review, KHMB, Housing Leadership Council’s Housing Guide, Coastside Buzz, Senior newsletters, 
Pacifica Voice, Pacific Tribune, Ravenswood School district newsletter, San Mateo Chamber, Parks & Recreation guides. 
 
Inservices were conducted by ACCEL San Mateo County, Aging & Adult Services, EPA Can Do, Help Me Grow, Life Moves, 
NOVA Works, Second Harvest of Silicon Valley, and San Mateo County’s Human Services Agency. 
 
Marketing material distribution to CORE Community Centers, 39 San Mateo County Libraries, Child Care Providers, 
Mental Health Matter events, Pacifica Homeowners, and Therapists. 
 



Networking meetings were attended, including Ending Homelessness, HOPE Interagency Council, Immigrant Inclusion 
Network, Inclusive Leaders in a Virtual World, Millbrae Housing Element meeting, New Beginnings Coalition, Pacifica 
Collaborative, Redwood City Interagency Forum, San Carlos Housing Element meeting, San Mateo/Foster City school 
district partners, Sequoia Hospital Community Health Advisory Committee, Westcoast Home Sharing Collaborative. 
 
Presentations were conducted to the American Association of Univ. Women, Atherton ADU presentation, City Councils 
in San Mateo County, East Palo Alto Library, Fair Oaks Senior Center, Foster City Library, Home Sharing Lunch and Learn, 
Immigrant Inclusion Committee, National Hispanic Organization of Realtors, Peninsula Family Service, Phase to Careers, 
Redwood City Housing & Human Concerns Committee, Redwood City North Fair Oaks library, Redwood City Promotores, 
San Carlos library, Senior Roundtable, St. Matthews Church, Supervisor Corzo’s legislative aid. 
 
Social Media posts on Craigslist, HIP Housing’s Social media channels, Nextdoor.com, and Patch. 
 
Tabling Events included Active Aging, Burlingame on the Avenue, Burlingame Senior fair, Celebration of the Arts 
festival, Colma Resource fair, CSM Food Distribution, Daly City health & resource fair, Doelger Senior Center fair, Earth 
Day event in Menlo Park, Foster City Health Fair, Hillsborough’s Neighbor Fest, Hometown Days – San Carlos, Housing 
Leadership Day, Mental Health Association training, Millbrae Health and Wellness event, NDNU Wellness event, OYE 
Latin X conference, Peninsula Volunteers open house, San Carlos Pride, SMC Employee Benefits Fair, SMC Inclusion 
Festival, St. James church event, St. Matthews Church, Voices of Recovery resource event. 
 

HOME SHARING PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS 
 

498 individuals applied to the Home Sharing Program and received ongoing housemate, housing, and community 
resource information.  
 

• Average age of Home Providers was 66, and Home Seekers 51. 

• Sixty-three percent of the Home Seekers were homeless or at risk of homelessness 

• Thirty-two percent of applicants were living with a disability. 

• Trends: Clients with incredible debt; Home Providers needing more care from their housemate because of the 
high cost of caregiving; applicants with extremely low incomes; increase in homeless seniors; increased utility 
expenses; job loss; mental health challenges, job relocation.  

 
25 home sharing matches were arranged for 64 individuals.   
 

• Before having a housemate, Home Providers spent 23% of their income on housing expenses, and Home Seekers 
spent 26% on housing costs. After a housemate moved in, Home Providers were able to reduce their housing 
costs to 12% of their income, while Home Seekers were able to find a new housing arrangement and keep their 
housing costs at 22% of their income.   

• An additional 296 applicants remained in their home sharing match made before the fiscal year.  
 
Additional highlights: 

• All 20 jurisdictions listed HIP Housing in their updated Housing Element 

• Home Sharing team hosts a Lunch and Learn hour. Over 100 community members registered. 

• Home Sharing clients are sent a survey to provide feedback about their interview and application experience. 
84% said our staff is friendly and courteous; 88% said the process was clearly explained. One of the clients 
commented: “The process was easy and seamless for me.”  

• Due to outreach efforts with the Community College SparkPoint Centers, Daniel Barrera, Outreach Specialist, 
attended a food distribution event and distributed over 400 flyers to recipients who drove through the event to 
pick up food. Similar events at Skyline and Canada College have been scheduled 

 
 
 
 



HOUSING READINESS PROGRAM 
 
During FY 22.23, HIP Housing’s staff provided housing and community resource information to 2,145 individuals. 
Whether connecting callers to our programs or answering questions about navigating the affordable housing landscape, 
we aim to share as much information as possible so that the caller understands the available resources. Our vision has 
always been to take one more step in providing support, thus, creating the Housing Readiness Program.  
 
In September 2022, a San Jose State Masters of Social Work intern, HIP Housing staff, and a former Board member 
helped us design the Housing Readiness Program (HRP) framework. Our intern has been working with older adults with 
very low incomes, technology challenges, or language barriers. The case management support activities include helping 
individuals apply to affordable housing waiting lists, including the Department of Housing’s subsidized RentCafe portal, 
while also assessing community resources such as CalFresh or organizations that assist with move-in costs. The 
program's goal is to prepare individuals better to understand how to access affordable housing and help them gain 
lodging. As a result of initial efforts, five individuals who received assistance found affordable housing through the HRP. 
 
During FY 23.24, HRP will expand by following up with every caller who receives housing information, creating a weekly 
eblast with housing and community resources, training volunteers and interns to manage the program, and increasing 
the number of clients who receive more intensive case management.  
 
One of the first clients to participate in our Housing Readiness Program is Basil and his two brothers, Andrew and 
Anthony. The brothers were living with their sister and her family in Pacifica until she decided to move to Arizona. Facing 
homelessness, the three brothers worked with our Program Coordinator, Montse, to complete applications for 
affordable housing. With a lot of follow-up support from Montse, they were able to secure affordable housing in East 
Palo Alto. The process took nearly six months but was well worth the wait. Montse helped secure move-in costs from 
the Daly City Community Center and coordinated correspondence between the Housing Authority and the three 
brothers. Andrew is an older adult who lives on a fixed income; Basil is disabled on a fixed income, while Anthony works 
as a caregiver by trade. Now the three brothers have stable, permanent housing due to Montse’s efforts and their 
consistent follow-through with her.  
 

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT 
 

In 2022, the Property Management Division housed 705 tenants at HIP Housing-owned and -managed properties. The 
organization also began leasing at an additional property (22 units), which increased the number of HIP-owned and -
managed units to 462. In FY 2023-2024, HIP Housing will increase its owned units to 501 adding 39 units in Redwood City 
to our portfolio. 
 
Resident Services at the Senior Properties (Edgewater Isle, Rotary Hacienda, Rotary Floritas) 
 

• Edgewater Isle hosts a twice-a-month Farmers market with items donated by Second Harvest. 

• Peninsula Family Services hosts Get-Appy Bingo monthly and teaches technology classes in English and 
Mandarin. 

• Residents at all three properties received various toiletry items donated by Samaritan House.  

• Great Clips in San Mateo offered residents a $14 haircut on “Senior Tuesdays.” 

• Peninsula Family Services offers a “You talk, we listen” service that gives older adults a counseling session for 
$15.  

• Sutter Safe at Home conducted a presentation regarding their Life Alert System while also reducing the monthly 
fee. 

• Many residents at the three senior properties were affected by being socially isolated during the Pandemic. 
Some new residents who moved in during the Pandemic never got to know their neighbors. Once social 
activities resumed at the senior properties, a “Conversation Café” event was created to allow residents to get to 
know each other, play puzzles/games, and do art therapy activities. The events have been well-attended, and 
new residents feel more at home with their neighbors. 

 



Compliance/Property Management projects: 
 

• The City of Foster City and HIP Housing are working collaboratively to manage 22 workforce housing units on 
Pilgrim Drive.  

• A 39-unit affordable housing complex by Greystar in Redwood City was completed. HIP Housing will be 
managing the units. 

• Over 30 housing units will break ground in San Carlos in 2024. The Planning Commission and City Council have 
approved the project which HIP Housing and Eden Housing will develop. 

 
SELF SUFFICIENCY PROGRAM (SSP) 

 
HIP Housing’s Self Sufficiency Program (SSP) provides housing assistance and Trauma-Informed Case Management 
services to low-income parents and Transitional Aged foster youth with or without children. Adults who are in school 
and aim to increase earnings and become financially independent within 1-5 years are considered for the program. 
Participants receive a rental scholarship while they complete an education or job training program and find employment 
in their field. During the fiscal year, forty-four families representing 50 adults and 68 children were provided support 
through the program. Highlights included: 
 

• High school-aged students volunteered to tutor youth in Math and Science. 

• Cake4Kids, a non-profit group of volunteers who are home-bakers, baked birthday cakes for the youth in SSP. 

• My New Red Shoes (MNRS) provided new shoes for the children in SSP.   

• Holiday Adopt family donors provided gifts to 51 families in SSP and 279 seniors in HIP Housing’s properties. 

• The Activity Fund helped pay for medical, athletic, and educational activities for the youth in SSP. 

• Toni DeMarco, retired Director of San Mateo County’s Behavioral Health and Recovery Services, becomes the 
SSP team’s new Trauma trainer. 

• Volunteer architect is working on a project to put one or two ADUs at Cedar Street Home 

• Celebrated 15 program graduates at a ceremony in September 

• Due to outreach with the mothers’ clubs in San Mateo County, the Burlingame Mothers’ Club offered five free 
memberships to SSP families with children under 5. 

• The City of San Mateo donated 75 free movie passes for SSP families. 

• Met with 2nd Harvest of Silicon Valley to collaborate on making referrals for SSP clients needing food resources. 
SSP clients can pick up food from 2nd Harvest within 24 hours or less.  

• Listen 4 Good is an organization that HIP Housing was introduced by the Sobrato Foundation. 
Listen4Good focuses on increasing nonprofits’ capacity to collect and use client feedback to inform 
organizational decision-making and make services more client-centered. We are working with a Listen4Good 
mentor to design an NPS-type survey that will be sent to current and graduate SSP clients. 

• HIP Housing’s website has been updated to include an “Inquiry Form” similar to the form on our Home Sharing 
webpage.  

 
TRAUMA-INFORMED SYSTEMS CHANGE 

 
A core strategy in our Five-Year Strategic Plan is implementing trauma-informed care throughout our agency. Some 
methods to achieve this goal include trauma-informed training for program staff, trauma-focused client case 
management, and trauma-informed parenting resources. With sustained effort and resources, our programming will link 
stable housing with lasting positive mental and physical health outcomes.  
 

• Julie Kurtz, Founder and CEO of the Center for Optimal Brain Integration and an expert trauma trainer, started a 
year-long trauma resiliency training plan for the entire HIP Housing staff, including workshops and individual 
team meetings.  

• Julie met individually with each department to learn more about each team and begin creating departmental 
strategies to become more trauma-informed.   

• One Life Counseling Center conducted several stress-management presentations during the yea 

https://fundforsharedinsight.org/listen4good/


       VOLUNTEER PROGRAM 
 
During the year, twenty-nine individuals and seven interns volunteered to support outreach activities, tutor youth in the 
Self-sufficiency Program, and assist with office administrative projects. HIP Housing partners with the following 
organizations to host interns:  
 

• Bank of America 

• Cal State East Bay  

• Eastside Prep School in East Palo Alto 

• High Schools, including Notre Dame Belmont, Hillsdale, Aragon, and Palo Alto  

• Peninsula Family Services Second Careers Program 

• San Jose State’s Masters of Social Work program 
 

THANK YOU 
 

HIP Housing’s programs address underlying causes of housing insecurity by 1) increasing the number of affordable units 
available (property acquisition), 2) maximizing underutilized housing stock (home sharing), and 3) providing holistic, 
trauma-informed case management to support individuals in becoming stable (self-sufficiency and housing readiness). 
We appreciate the support from the Town of Colma and look forward to continuing our housing services to residents 
and persons who work in and around Colma and County-wide.  
 
Sincere regards, 
 
Laura Fanucchi 
Director of Programs                 
          
    
      

        
        Self-Sufficiency Program graduates   Mah Jong at Rotary Floritas           My New Red Shoes donation 

 

         
    Our hard-working maintenance staff  Home Sharing match – 11 years!        Tabling at Earth Day in Atherton 
 



 

 

June 29, 2023 

 

Mr. Brian Dossey 
Town Manager 
Town of Colma 
1198 El Camino Real 
Colma, CA 94014 
 
Dear Brian, 
 
HIP Housing’s Fiscal Year ends on June 30, 2023, and end-of-year funding reports will not be completed 
until July 15, 2023. In the interim, please find information on the program statistics for the Town of 
Colma for FY 22-23: 
 
# of Intake Calls received by Colma residents  two households 
# of applications from Colma residents or employees:  three households 
# of new Home Sharing matches with a Colma resident: one household 
# of matched Home Sharing clients who work in Colma: two households 
 

Funding Allocation 

The $5,000 contribution from the Town of Colma was allocated to the salaries for the Home Sharing 

Program Coordinators. 

Like last year, by July 15, 2023, I will submit a more thorough report covering the activities accomplished 

by the agency in FY 22.23. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. We’ll be tabling at the Colma Community Fair on July 8th! 

Warm regards, 

Laura Fanucchi 

Laura Fanucchi 
Director of Programs 
 

 

CC: Abigail Dometita 



6/26/2023 Page 1 of 6 

Town of Colma 
Non-Profit Funding Request Form 

(Exempt Organizations Only)  
FY 2023-24 

Please do NOT write “see attached” as a response to any of the questions. You must 
submit all answers on this form. You may submit additional attachments, but they 
will not replace any of the responses. 

Name of Organization: 

Contact Person: 

Address: 
Street Address  City State Zip Code 

Phone Number: Email Address: _______________________ 

1. Mission Statement:
  
 
 

2. Amount of Request: $________________

a. Total Agency Annual Budget: $_______________

b. Number of Agency Employees: _______________

c. Payroll is ________% of the Agency’s total Annual Budget.

3. Please identify a public purpose for the requested funding by identifying one of the
following categories:

A. Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;
B. Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or

Integrated Care Services;
C. Educate and engage residents;
D. Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business

in the Town; or Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a
service that the Town could provide to its residents or businesses.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3B43311B-1E09-4D1A-BBB3-B41CA7FB9A15

EDWARD LOPEZ

X

650-550-7847/4158061818

80

115 First Ave. Daly City. CA. 94014

Our elementary school students gain field trip chaperones, on-site tutors and 
positive role models.  Our Wilderness students learn and practice leadership 
skills and responsibility to younger children.  Both groups together develop 
greater community awareness.

elopez@jeffersonunion.net

84,400,000>00

Community Environmental Education Program

550

11,000



6/26/2023  Page 2 of 6 
 

3a.       Describe how the funding will support the selected category: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Describe reason for request and how funds will be used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3B43311B-1E09-4D1A-BBB3-B41CA7FB9A15

Our projects will educate and engage residents children through activities they 

would otherwise not have the opportunity to engage.  Through our activities we

expose students to experiences that the Bay Area has to offer. 

Our projects will educate and engage residents children through activities they 

would otherwise not have the opportunity to engage.  Through our activities we

expose students to experiences that the Bay Area has to offer.



6/26/2023  Page 3 of 6 
 

5. If the amount of the request is higher than the previous year, provide a detailed 
explanation of the need for the increase: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Describe the benefit to the Town derived from funding your organization: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3B43311B-1E09-4D1A-BBB3-B41CA7FB9A15

All of our activities contribute to better community awareness and responsibility for 
all students involved.  Youth of our community are learning to trust and take care of 
each other and together they are also taking care of their community.  San Bruno 
Mountain is a community resource right in our backyard; our students will understand 
how to access and protect this neighborhood resource.  Over the years several high 
school students have used the skills they develop in the program to be hired by the 
Colma Park and Recreation Department as well as other jobs connecting with youth.  In 
2012 our efforts with our 
San Bruno Mountain Overnight program was awarded the J. Russell Kent Award.

The increase in the amount requested will be used to supplement the projected 

increase in our field trip cost fees.

This last year food cost was almost double the previous years, transportation cost was
 at least 30% higher.



6/26/2023  Page 4 of 6 
 

7. Describe the following: 
A. Number of Colma residents or businesses (or both) served by the organization 
in the years prior to the grant application;  
B. The location(s) where Colma residents or businesses may receive the recipient 
organization’s services or programs; and  
C. The nature and extent of the efforts of the recipient organization to reach out 
to Colma residents and businesses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Provide a detailed account of how the FY 2022-23 contribution was used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3B43311B-1E09-4D1A-BBB3-B41CA7FB9A15

The number of Colma residents is approximately 50 students.  They will receive services
 
through their enrollment at Susan B. Anthony School.  We make concerted effort to 

purchase and conduct business in Colma

Contracted transportation                                     $ 3718.00
Entrance Fees                                        $ 1882.50
Chicken & Garden supplies                                      $ 916.77
Food                                                           $ 1570.92
Fuel.                                                          $  278.50  
Educational Supplies                                           $  893.29

Total =                                                        $ 9259.98 



6/26/2023  Page 5 of 6 
 

9. List contributions requested and received from other cities in FY 2022-23 and requested 
or expected in FY 2023-24: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10. Did the organization participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 

publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate 
for public office within the past 36 months (please select one)?   

 
Yes __________ No ______________ 
 
If yes, please provide details.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3B43311B-1E09-4D1A-BBB3-B41CA7FB9A15

X 

N/A



6/26/2023  Page 6 of 6 
 

11. Charitable Trust # or EIN #          
 
 
Please attach a copy of the following: 
 

 Roster of current governing board 
 Current Year Annual Operating Budget 
 Proof of organization’s tax exempt status 

 
 
 
 
 
Optional Attachments 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3B43311B-1E09-4D1A-BBB3-B41CA7FB9A15

94-3083772



Board of Trustees 

Rosie U. Tejada  Clerk 
Andrew Lie  President 
Kalimah Y. Salahuddin  Vice President 
Jerome Gallegos  Trustee 
Sherrett Walker  Trustee 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3B43311B-1E09-4D1A-BBB3-B41CA7FB9A15



1 
 

 

 
Jefferson Union High School District 
 
2023-2024 PROPOSED BUDGET 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
May Revision Overview 
 
The May Revision is the last set of data points received before the district must adopt a local 
budget. Once the 2023-2024 State Budget has been adopted, at the end of June, more 
information will be available on what has changed and how to adapt locally. Until then, this is 
the best available budgeting information. 
 
The Governor’s Revised Budget shows that the state revenue is coming in lower than previously 
anticipated and inflation has remained high. The governor’s proposal increases the Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF) base by the statutory cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) of 
8.22%. The remaining Proposition 98 funds (which are required to be used for K-14 education) 
are allocated to a variety of initiatives with continued investments in early childhood education, 
universal meals, the educator pipeline, and a small contribution to the State’s Rainy Day Fund. 
Additionally, there is a new Equity Multiplier proposed that would provide additional LCFF funds 
to school districts that have significant numbers of students from low income families.   
 
Other Revenue Considerations 
 
LCFF Funding – For 23-24, LCFF growth is projected to be 8.22%. The governor is also 
proposing an additional multiplier for high needs school districts. JUHSD will continue to be 
funded outside of the LCFF formula and remain Basic Aid/Community Funded. The gap 
between our tax revenue and our LCFF formula is projected to be about 21%. 
 
Federal Funding – The 23-24 budget shows a decrease from the prior year due to the end of 
COVID relief funding. 
 
Other State Funding – State funding for special education will receive an 8.22% COLA as will 
CTE programs. However, these programs are funded per pupil so we will likely see net 
decreases due to our declining enrollment. There are additional decreases due to the end of 
COVID relief funding and due to the governor’s proposal to take back funds from two state 
programs. The governor’s proposal includes a 50% reduction to the Art, Music, and Instructional 
Materials Discretionary Block Grant and a 32% decrease to the Learning Recovery Emergency 
Block Grant. 
 
Local Funds – These funds are primarily generated by our Parcel Taxes, by grants to Daly City 
Youth Health Center (DCYHC), and through our facility rentals. The anticipated decrease in this 
area reflects the loss of about $500K in rental income from Serramonte del Rey and reflects 
moving DCYHC operations to Fund 63 beginning in 23-24. This move of DCYHC operations 
was recommended by our auditors to more clearly delineate DCYHC activities from general 
education activities. 
 



2 
 

ASSUMPTIONS FOR THE 23-24 PROPOSED BUDGET AND MULTI YEAR PROJECTION 
 
Basic Assumptions 
 
Assumptions are based on the School Services of California (SSC) Dartboard and San Mateo 
County Assessor’s Office information:   
 

Assumptions 23-24 24-25 25-26 
Average Daily Attendance (ADA) 3,560 3,560 3,540 
Property Tax Increase 4.7% 3.8% 3.8% 
COLA 8.22% 3.94% 3.29% 
Consumer Price Index (CPI) 3.54% 3.02% 2.64% 
STRS 19.10% 19.10% 19.10% 
PERS 26.68% 27.70% 28.30% 
Unemployment Insurance 0.05% 0.05% 0.05% 

 
The retirement system for certificated employees, STRS, saw a large increase in 22-23, but is 
projected to remain at 19.10% for the foreseeable future. We continue to see increases to the 
costs for the classified retirement program, PERS. There is a projected 1.31% increase from 22-
23 to 23-24 which will result in about $175,000 in additional PERS expenses for JUHSD in 23-
24. Also of note is that unemployment insurance is projected to return to its pre-pandemic level 
of 0.05% after two years elevated at 0.50%. 
 
Salary Assumptions 
 
JUHSD has settled labor negotiations for 23-24 with a 3% across-the-board salary increase. 
This is reflected in the proposed budget, as is continued district contributions to health and 
welfare benefits. Additionally, the budget includes increases to standard employee 
compensation costs (salary increase from step and column).  
 
Implementation of Reserve Policy BP 3100.1 
 
As a Community Funded school district, JUHSD relies on property taxes for our largest portion 
of revenue. This funding source can be more unpredictable than State Funding, therefore 
maintaining reserves beyond the minimum required by law is recommended. The recently 
approved board policy BP 3100.1 outlines how JUHSD intends to maintain fiscal stability. The 
proposed budget implements a Strategic Reserve as outlined in the policy and anticipates 
making contributions to the Special Reserve Fund 17 each year to reach the goal of 2% reserve 
in Fund 17 by 2028. 
 

Assumptions 23-24 24-25 25-26 
Strategic Reserve Set-Aside 5.0% 3.0% 1.0% 
Contributions to Fund 17 $300K $300K $300K 

 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 87 New Guidelines 
 
In 22-23, new accounting standards, known as GASB 87, were implemented that require 
governmental entities to recognize lease liabilities and assets. This is reflected in an Audit 
Adjustment in 22-23 of over $11.5M. The adjustment makes it appear that JUHSD has more 
money than is actually available. The $11.5M represents inaccessible, fixed assets, not actual 
cash. 



3 
 

General Fund Summary 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26

Beginning Fund Balance 32,167,114     31,175,777 25,793,317 21,460,747 

REVENUES

LCFF/Taxes 59,219,645     61,532,280 63,315,718 65,281,256 

Federal 3,449,863       1,744,897   1,806,665   1,855,980   

Other State 9,477,268       7,679,548   7,689,765   7,681,361   

Local 11,450,479     9,392,797   9,703,556   9,961,470   

Revenue Total 83,597,255     80,349,522 82,515,704 84,780,067 

EXPENDITURES

Salaries 40,009,773     41,904,521 42,328,089 42,758,011 

Benefits/Payroll Costs 18,970,755     19,978,066 20,526,772 20,992,598 

Goods & Services 22,159,250     20,531,512 20,600,235 20,994,567 

Other 3,348,814       2,730,359   2,805,654   2,859,059   

Expenditure Total 84,488,592     85,144,458 86,260,750 87,604,235 

Transfer Out -    COP Payment 100,000           287,524       287,524       287,524       

To Fund 17 300,000       300,000       300,000       

TOTAL EXCESS/DEFICIT (991,337)         (5,382,460)  (4,332,570)  (3,411,692)  

Ending Fund Balance (EFB) 31,175,777     25,793,317 21,460,747 18,049,055 

Restricted Balance 3,265,505       1,749,646   1,680,343   1,374,343   

GASB 87 11,592,235     11,592,235 11,592,235 11,592,235 

Remaining EFB 16,318,037     12,451,436 8,188,169   5,082,477   

RESERVES

Statutory Reserve 2,537,658       2,571,959   2,605,448   2,645,753   

Strategic Reserve 4,286,598   2,605,448   881,918       

Unallocated Funds 13,780,379     5,592,879   2,977,273   1,554,806   

Fund 01 Reserve Percentage 19.29% 14.52% 9.43% 5.76%

Special Reserve Fund 17 823,794           1,128,794   1,433,794   1,738,794   

Total Reserves all Funds 17,141,831     13,580,230 9,621,963   6,821,271   

Total Reserve Percentage 20.26% 15.84% 11.08% 7.73%

Multiyear Projections 
 
An important part of the budget adoption process is the subsequent two-year projection of the 
general fund. In addition to the above mentioned changes, the multiyear projection assumes the 
following: 

- Significant health benefits premium increase of over 10% for 2024 
- 6.16% increase to Workers’ Compensation  
- Net increase of 3 teachers to cover special education preps & increased team teaching 
- Increased stipends for Wellness Interns 
- One-time expense of about $200K in 23-24 for a classification study 
- Debt repayment $287,524 per year, ongoing 

 
The multiyear projection shows deficit spending in all four years, 22-23 estimated actuals, 23-24 
budget year, and the two subsequent years. The deficit is less in 22-23 due to the one-time 
relief funds. This deficit spending shows that JUHSD is using reserve funds to cover costs. 
 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

Ending Fund Balance 
 
The General Fund ending fund balance in the Proposed Budget for 23-24 is comprised of the 
following: 

1. Restricted and non-spendable items totaling $13,341,881: Restricted Balance 
$1,745,646, Revolving Cash $4,000, GASB 87 $11,592,235 

2. Statutory reserve for economic uncertainty $2,571,959 – 3.0%  
3. Strategic reserve per BP 3100.1 $4,286,598 – 5.0% 
4. Unallocated amount $5,592,879 – 6.52% 

The budget anticipates a $300K transfer to Fund 17 – Special Reserve Fund, which will result in 
an additional reserve of $1,128,794 – 1.32%, for a total reserve of 15.84% for 23-24. 
 
Other Funds 
 
All other funds (i.e. adult education, nutrition, etc.) have positive ending fund balances and, 
other than moving DCYHC operations to Fund 63, there are no significant changes over last 
year. The nutrition program continues to be projected as a break-even program. 
 
Next Steps 
 
The State Budget will be adopted by the end of June. The district will begin revising the budget 
this summer to reflect the actual state budget and final district salary and health benefit costs.  
Unaudited Actuals for 22-23 will be presented in September and the 1st Interim Report will be 
presented in November with more accurate information for 23-24 financials. 



THE COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENTAL EDUCATION PROGRAM 
Wilderness School Program 

      Jefferson Union High School District 
 115 First Ave            Daly City • Pacifica, California    Edward L. Lopez 
 Daly City, CA.     Learning • Doing • Reflecting • Internalizing          Teacher 
 94014             
 (650) 550-7847            

  
FY 2022/23 

Non-Profit Funding Annual Report  
 

Mission Statement: 
Our elementary school students gain field trip chaperones, on-site tutors and positive role models.  Our 
Wilderness students learn and practice leadership skills and responsibility to younger children.  Both groups 
together develop greater community awareness. 
 
We entered the 2022/2023 school year with a full itinerary of field trips for more than 80 students. 
This past year we had two unexpected challenges.  Our scheduled trip to University of California, 
Elkus Ranch was cancelled due a road that was washed out during this year’s winter storms.  The 
other was the increase in cost, especially with transportation and food prices that pushed us over 
budget. 

 
 
•   Walking field trip to the Wilderness School for “Pumpkin Day.”  
•   Field trip to Lawrence Hall of Science   
•   Field trip to California Academy of Sciences 
•   Hike up San Bruno Mountain and overnight camping trip for three 3rd grade classes. 
•.  In-class educational supplies 
 
Contracted transportation                                             $ 3718.00 
Entrance Fees                                  $ 1882.50 
Chicken & Garden supplies                                          $   916.77 
Food                                                                                  $ 1570.92 
Fuel.                                                                                   $  278.50   
Educational Supplies                                                      $  893.29 
Total =                                                                               $ 9259.98  
 

 
Our activities contribute to better community awareness and responsibility for all students involved.  
Youth of our community are learning to trust and take care of each other and together they are also 
taking care of our community.  San Bruno Mountain is a community resource right in our backyard; 
students will understand how to access and protect this neighborhood resource.  Over the years 
several high school students have used the skills they develop in the program to be hired by the 
Colma Park and Recreation Department as well as other jobs connecting with youth. In 2012 our 
efforts with our San Bruno Mountain Overnight program was awarded the J. Russell Kent Award. 
 
There is one especially piece of good news this year, I learned that a former Colma Elementary School 
student, who went on our field trips is now a teacher at Jefferson High School. 

 
.   



6/26/2023  Page 1 of 6 
 

Town of Colma 
Non-Profit Funding Request Form  

FY 2023-24 
 

 
 
Please do NOT write “see attached” as a response to any of the questions. You must 
submit all answers on this form. You may submit additional attachments, but they 
will not replace any of the responses. 
 
 
Name of Organization:           
 
Contact Person:            
 
Address:             
  Street Address   City  State  Zip Code  
 
Phone Number:     Email Address: __________________ 
 
1. Mission Statement: 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Amount of Request: $________________ 
 
 a. Total Agency Annual Budget: $_______________ 
 

b. Number of Agency Employees: _______________ 
 
c. Payroll is ________% of the Agency’s total Annual Budget. 

 
 
3.  Please identify a public purpose for the requested funding by identifying one of the 

following categories:  

A. Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;  
B. Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or 

Integrated Care Services;  
C. Educate and engage residents;  
D. Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business 

in the Town; or Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a 
service that the Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7FF4893B-4ABF-43CB-B310-0B9EB3F703E3

kfinnigan@lifemoves.org

48.3

 

End homelessness by providing interim housing, support services, and building 
collaborative partnerships. We envision thriving communities where every 
neighbor has a home.

 

5,000

 

LifeMoves

67,974,724  

X

2550 Great America Way, Suite 201, Santa Clara, CA 95054

417

650-995-4570

Katherine Finnigan



6/26/2023  Page 2 of 6 
 

3a.       Describe how the funding will support the selected category: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Describe reason for request and how funds will be used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7FF4893B-4ABF-43CB-B310-0B9EB3F703E3

LifeMoves is the largest provider of interim housing and support services for 
individuals and families experiencing homelessness on the San Francisco Peninsula and 
in Silicon Valley. With more than 26 sites from Daly City to San José, LifeMoves gives 
our neighbors experiencing homelessness a temporary place to call home while providing 
intensive, customized support through both site-based programs and community outreach. 
On any given night, we feed, clothe, and house approximately 1,500 people, about one in
 six of whom are children.

We credit our success to our tailored case management that addresses the individual 
root causes of homelessness. LifeMoves provides the strategic assistance needed to move
 our clients to stable housing and self-sufficiency. 

We are seeking funding to support operations at our six San Mateo County interim housing
 sites. Last year, LifeMoves served more than 2,000 San Mateo County households. 

Despite effective programs — and the significant effort put forth by nonprofit 
organizations, local governments, and funding partners — the homelessness crisis 
continues. The most recent Point-In-Time Count took place on February 23, 2022, and 
found that housing instability is only increasing within San Mateo County, with more 
than 1,800 residents counted as homeless on this single winter night. And with the 
recent downturn in the local and national economies, we feel the number of individuals 
who are without a home has grown significantly since last February. 

LifeMoves continues to provide critical support services to help local families and 
individuals overcome the barriers to securing and retaining housing. Our clients qualify
 as either “extremely” or “very” low-income, per the regulations set forth by the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development. More than 46% of the individuals LifeMoves 
serves report having disabilities, and 10% of our adult clients are veterans. Forty 
percent of the women served in LifeMoves interim housing sites (including women who are 
heads of households with minor children) report having been victims of domestic 
violence. 



6/26/2023  Page 3 of 6 
 

5. If the amount of the request is higher than the previous year, provide a detailed 
explanation of the need for the increase: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Describe the benefit to the Town derived from funding your organization: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7FF4893B-4ABF-43CB-B310-0B9EB3F703E3

Over the past several years, LifeMoves has provided supportive services and interim 
shelter to more than 80 adults and children from the Town of Colma. During this past 
fiscal year, we provided nearly 2,100 nights of shelter to local residents.

In addition, while the staff working at our various residential sites are critical to 
breaking down the barriers to stable housing, the individuals working within our 
community outreach programs are often the first point of contact for unsheltered San 
Mateo County residents. Members of our Homeless Outreach Team (HOT), Healthcare for the
 Homeless (HCH), Kaiser Outreach, and Rapid Re-Housing programs engaged with nearly 
every Town of Colma household that was served last year. The presence of our interim 
housing sites, programs, and outreach services in San Mateo County enhances the health,
 safety, and economic climate of this town. 

LifeMoves is seeking the same level of funding we sought from the Town of Colma in 
FY23. Of course, we would welcome additional support for Colma residents if funds 
became available.



6/26/2023  Page 4 of 6 
 

7. Describe the following: 
A. Number of Colma residents or businesses (or both) served by the organization 
in the years prior to the grant application;  
B. The location(s) where Colma residents or businesses may receive the recipient 
organization’s services or programs; and  
C. The nature and extent of the efforts of the recipient organization to reach out 
to Colma residents and businesses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Provide a detailed account of how the FY 2022-23 contribution was used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7FF4893B-4ABF-43CB-B310-0B9EB3F703E3

7A. In FY16, LifeMoves served 21 Town of Colma residents. In FY17, we served two 
residents. In FY18 and FY19, we served one resident per year. In FY20 we served eight 
Town of Colma residents. We served 20 residents in FY21 and served 16 Town of Colma 
residents in FY22. Last year, LifeMoves served 13 Town of Colma households, made up of 
22 individual residents.7B. San Mateo County’s Coordinated Entry System determines where
 unhoused Town of Colma residents receive shelter and supportive services. Last year, 
Town of Colma residents were aided at the Redwood City Navigation Center (formerly Maple
 Street) and Family Crossroads in Daly City. Other LifeMoves facilities that may shelter
 Colma families in the coming year include First Step for Families in San Mateo, Redwood
 Family House in Redwood City, Coast House in Half Moon Bay, and Haven Family House in 
Menlo Park. As described in item 6 above, the collaborative efforts of our community 
outreach teams were also instrumental in moving vulnerable individuals and families off 
the streets of the Town of Colma. 7C. Unsheltered local households received support from
 both our site- and community-based teams last year. The Navigation Center served two 
Colma residents last year. Three Colma families made up of 10 individuals received 
support and assistance at our Family Crossroads location in Daly City. Our Motel Voucher
 Program supplied more than 1,250 nights of shelter to six Town of Colma households. Our
 HOT provided services directly to unsheltered homeless individuals living on the 
streets, in encampments, or in vehicles. This team works closely with local police 
departments and other community-based agencies to support our unhoused neighbors. Our 
HCH staff focused on identifying and solving healthcare issues that often serve as a 
barrier to finding stable housing or shelter. Of the 22 Town of Colma residents served 
last year, 17 residents engaged directly with one of or more of these outreach teams 
before moving to interim housing.

The $4,000 grant provided last year by Town of Colma to LifeMoves was targeted to cover 
the operating expenses for our interim housing sites in San Mateo County. We are 
extremely grateful to receive general operating funds, as all of our facilities operate 
at a deficit, especially with the addition of inflated prices impacting everyone today. 

Town of Colma funds helped us offer local residents a safe environment where all their 
household needs were covered, including meals, clothing, and home goods, allowing 
clients to focus on increasing their income and securing stable housing. Our school-aged
 children received age-appropriate support to ensure they stayed on pace academically 
and socially with their housed peers. 



6/26/2023  Page 5 of 6 
 

9.        List contributions requested and received from other cities in FY 2022-23 and requested 
or expected in FY 2023-24: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10. Did the organization participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 

publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate 
for public office within the past 36 months (please select one)?   

 
Yes __________ No ______________ 
 
If yes, please provide details.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7FF4893B-4ABF-43CB-B310-0B9EB3F703E3

 X

FY23
•   City of Burlingame-$8,300 awarded
•   City of Daly City-$18,000 awarded
•   City of Foster City - $10,000 awarded
•   City of Redwood City-$61,700 awarded 
•   City of San Bruno-$10,000 awarded
•   City of San Mateo-$12,800 awarded
•   City of South San Francisco-$26,250 awarded

FY24

•   City of Burlingame-$10,000 application pending
•   City of Daly City-$18,000 awarded
•   City of Redwood City-$34,800 application pending
•   City of San Bruno-$10,000 application pending
•   City of San Mateo-$25,000 application pending
•   City of South San Francisco-$30,000 application pending



6/26/2023  Page 6 of 6 
 

11. Charitable Trust # or EIN #          
 
 
 
Please attach a copy of the following: 
 

 Roster of current governing board 
 Current Year Annual Operating Budget 
 Proof of organization’s tax exempt status 
 Completed IRS 990 form (filed for 2022 or 2021)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Optional Attachments 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7FF4893B-4ABF-43CB-B310-0B9EB3F703E3

77-0160469



 

FY24 Budget 
Revenue  
  Government $43,364,895  

  Private (Unrestricted) Revenue $17,990,344  

  Private (Restricted) Revenue $6,334,778  

  Other Revenue $284,707  

Total Revenue $67,974,724  

  

Expenses  
  Program Expense (Total)  
    Program Salary & Benefits $21,246,273  

    Direct Client Expenses $16,815,784  

    Site Operating Costs $5,474,968  

    Operations Labor and Fringe $11,390,011  

Total Program Expenses $54,927,036  

  

  Administration Expense  
    Administration Expenses $7,088,263  

    Development Expense $4,829,425  

Total Administration Expenses $11,917,688  

  

Total Expenses $66,844,724  

  

Net Positive/(Negative) $1,130,000  

  

Capital Costs $1,130,000  

  

  

Projected Surplus/Deficit $0 

  

*All Numbers Exclude Homekey Funding and Costs  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7FF4893B-4ABF-43CB-B310-0B9EB3F703E3



     Board of Directors 2023 
 

August 16, 2023 

Officers:  

Patrick Heron (Chair) 

Managing Partner 
Frazier Life Sciences 
70 Willow Road, Suite 200 (work) 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 

(W) 650-325-5156 
patrick@frazierhealthcare.com 
Committees: Executive, Board Development  

Years on the Board: 7 

Greg Eckert (Treasurer) 

Partner 
PricewaterhouseCoopers 
181 Constitution Drive (volunteer office) 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 

greg.eckert@me.com 
(C) 415-215-0414 
Committees: Executive, Finance  

Years on the Board: 3 

Melissa Selcher (Vice Chair) 

Chief Marketing & Communications Officer 
LinkedIn 
181 Constitution Drive (volunteer office) 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 

(C) 650-787-1807 
mselcher@linkedin.com  

Committees: Development, Executive, Board 
Development 

Years on the Board: 6 

Pamela Weiss (Secretary) 

Philanthropist, Writer, Community Activist 
181 Constitution Drive (volunteer office) 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 
(C) 650-533-5007 

pamelaweiss@hotmail.com 
Committees: Board Development 
Years on the Board: 5 

Directors:  

Ahmed Khatib  

Senior VP, Private Wealth Advisor  
Merrill Private Wealth Management  
3075B Hansen Way (work) 
Palo Alto, CA 94304 

(W) 650-473-2070 
ahmed.khatib@ml.com 
Committees: Finance  

Years on the Board: 3 

Ajwang Rading 

Lawyer | Policy Wonk | Educator 
ADDRESS TBD 
(C) 650-207-3762 
ajwang@ajwangrading.com 

Committees:  
Years on the Board: 1 

Carrie O. Plietz 

Regional President, Northern Kaiser Foundation 
Health Plan and Hospitals  
ADDRESS TBD 
# TBD 

carrie.o.plietz@kp.org 
Committees:  

    Years on the Board: 1 

Christina Corpus 

Sheriff 
San Mateo County  
181 Constitution Drive (volunteer office) 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 

(W) 650-363-4990 
ccorpus@smcgov.org 
Committees: Resource Development  

    Years on the Board: 3 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7FF4893B-4ABF-43CB-B310-0B9EB3F703E3



     Board of Directors 2023 
 

August 16, 2023 

Danielle Fontaine 
Assistant Controller 
ServiceNow, Inc. 

1001 Harvard Road 
San Mateo, CA 94002 
(C) 408-464-8380 
danielle.fontaine@gmail.com 

Committees: Audit Committee  
    Years on the Board: 1 

Gene Todd 
Executive Vice President – Head of Regional Markets 
Fiduciary Trust International 

One Franklin Parkway, 920, 1st Floor 
San Mateo, CA 94403 
(C) 216-410-1899  
gtodd@ftci.com  

Committees: Finance 
Years on the Board: 1 

Laura Green  
Nurse 
LOCATION TBD  

ADDRESS TBD 
(C) 310-614-1622 
laumoo2193@gmail.com 
Committees:  
Years on the Board: 1 

Lauren Koenig 
Philanthropist, Mentor, Volunteer 
181 Constitution Drive (volunteer office) 

Menlo Park, CA 94025 
(C) 650-245-1882 
lgkoenig@me.com 
Committees: Executive, Resource Development  
Years on the Board: 5 
 

Lori Castillo Martinez 
EVP and Equality Officer 
Salesforce  

415 Mission Street (work) 
San Francisco, CA 94105 
(C) 415-416-9800 
lmartinez@salesforce.com 

Committees: Board Development 
Years on the Board: 1 

May Topper 
Currently Marketing Consultant 
Former Vice President, Marketing, Oral-B 

181 Constitution Drive  (volunteer office) 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 
650-269-9644 
maytopper@gmail.com 

Committees: Resource Development  
Years on the Board: 4 

Pastor Paul Bains 
President & Co-Founder 
WeHope  

1854 Bay Road (work) 
East Palo Alto, CA 94303 
(C) 650-207-1998 

Pbains7@wehope.org  
Committees: Board Development 
Years on the Board: 3 

Scott Goree 
VP, Global Partners & Alliance  
Skyhigh Security 

181 Constitution Drive (volunteer office) 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 
(C) 408-981-3752 

scott.goree@skyhighsecurity.com 
Committees: Resource Development  
Years on the Board: 4 

Tiffany Hong 
SVP, Chief Administrative Officer 
Franklin Templeton  

1 Franklin Parkway (work) 
San Mateo, CA 94403  
(W) 650-312-2989 

(C) 650-302-0288 
tiffany.hong@franklintempleton.com 
Committees: Resource Development  
Years on the Board: 5 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7FF4893B-4ABF-43CB-B310-0B9EB3F703E3



     Board of Directors 2023 
 

August 16, 2023 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
From the LifeMoves By-laws: 

Each director shall hold office for a term of two (2) years or until his or her successor has been elected. A director may not 

serve more than three (3) full consecutive terms; provided, however, that notwithstanding such limitation, (i) a director 
may continue to serve so long as such director is elected as an officer of the Corporation, (ii) a director who serves as Cha ir 
of the Board may continue to serve as a director for a period of two (2) years after his or her successor as Chair is elected, 
or (iii) the term of the Director is extended upon recommendation by the Executive Committee and approval by a majority 

vote of the Board, not including the vote of the Director whose term is being extended. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7FF4893B-4ABF-43CB-B310-0B9EB3F703E3



PEOPLE WHO ARE experiencing homelessness  
in Silicon Valley now have additional relief. Two 
new interim housing sites — the San Mateo County 
Navigation Center in Redwood City and the San Jose 
Bridge Emergency Interim Housing site — provide  
people with a fresh start and an opportunity to find  
permanent housing. The opening of these two new 
interim housing sites is a significant step forward in  
the fight to end homelessness in Silicon Valley. 

Up to 270 residents in the Redwood City site will  
enjoy private rooms, outdoor community spaces,  
an electric commercial training kitchen, and on-site  
case management, and other services.

The San Jose site includes 96 modular units with  
private en-suite showers and restrooms, on-site laundry,  
a kitchen, and outdoor community spaces.

Residents of both facilities can receive a variety of  
supportive services including substance use disorder 
outpatient services, medical care, and access to  
specialists in housing, benefits, and vocational  
services. The centers also offer workshops and  
support groups to provide a path to self-sufficiency.

LifeMoves provides interim housing and supportive services for unhoused families and individuals 
to rapidly return to stable housing and achieve long-term self-su�ciency.

GoodMoves
Summer 2023

INTERIM SUPPORTIVE HOUSING SITE IN REDWOOD CITY

INTERIM SUPPORTIVE HOUSING SITE IN SAN JOSE

New Interim Housing Sites Open in 
Redwood City and San Jose

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7FF4893B-4ABF-43CB-B310-0B9EB3F703E3



F R O M  O U R  C E O
A U B R E Y  M E R R I M A N

It’s Not Real Until  
You Get Your Key

IT WAS HER HOME and her community, but it was  
public land. Now it was needed for a dam. 

When the police came to close the encampment, 
everything was chaos. But instead of arresting 
her, one police officer gave her time to gather her 
things and to connect with LifeMoves.

“Sometimes it’s one person’s decision that makes 
a difference,” Kathlene said.

A creative, inquisitive, passionate woman, she 
has a degree in Interior Design and a Class A 
Commercial driving license. In 2016, she became 
homeless when her car broke down in San Jose.

When Kathlene connected with LifeMoves,  
everything changed. Before the chaotic day  
was done, she had a key to her own room.

“I could finally get 
some things done,  
I could finally get some 
peace, I could finally 
take a shower and not 
be worried about my 
stuff getting stolen,” 
she said. 

Many of her friends 
from the encampment 
are at the San Jose Bridge Emergency Interim 
Housing site so she has her community as well as 
clean clothes, three meals a day, and access to 
social and medical services.

When she connected 
with LifeMoves, 
everything changed. 
Before the day was 
done, she had a key  
to her own room.

“ You saved our lives…
You have patience  
and understanding. 
God bless all of you  
for what you do here.”

   Lisa R.

K AT H L E N E ’ S  S T O R Y

OVER THE PAST YEAR, we have been telling you 
about the new interim housing sites that we have 
been building. It’s great news that will help your 
unhoused neighbors move off the streets. 

But, what’s their next move?

After experiencing loss of a job or breadwinner, 
divorce, domestic violence, intolerance of an  
LGBTQ identity, mental or physical health issue, or 
other challenges, our clients face a harsh reality — 
getting a temporary place to stay is one thing. But 
getting your life stabilized so that you can become 
self-sufficient and remain housed is another.

That’s when their real 
work begins — and 
ours. When someone 
enters a LifeMoves site, 
it’s their moment to turn 
their life around. Our 
dedicated case manag-
ers and support teams 
work diligently with our 
clients to help them plot 
their path to success. Clients receive individualized 
plans for their goals and a full range of services to 
support their needs. Our staff are with them at every 
step, even when the going gets tough. 

Supporting people in their journey is our calling,  
and it starts at the front door. Thank you for helping 
to open it.

Warm regards,

Aubrey

Now the Real 
Work Begins

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7FF4893B-4ABF-43CB-B310-0B9EB3F703E3



We were thrilled to have our first volunteer event  
since our clients moved into the Navigation Center  
in Redwood City. More than a hundred of our  
clients were ecstatic to enjoy a delicious meal in the 
beautiful outdoor community area. A heartfelt thank 
you to Order of Malta for hosting a BBQ with delicious 
food including tri-tip, corn on the cob, coleslaw, and 
more. The meal was prepared by nearly 30 volunteers 
in the site’s new training kitchen — the first volunteer 
group to use it. We are committed to ensuring our  
clients feel welcome by building a sense of community 
and inclusivity. Volunteer events like these are one  
way we achieve that.

Broken Bones, Broken 
Spirit, Moving Forward
BROKEN COLLAR BONE and pelvis, torn liver, bruised 
kidney — an on-the-job injury cost Michael his union 
job, his medical insurance, his savings, and his home. 
The pain led to addiction.

Homeless for three years, he couch surfed until he 
found LifeMoves Maple Street Shelter, where he 
started his recovery. His physical health is better,  
his addiction conquered.

“A lot of things are going in a more positive direction,” 
Michael said. “I have a great support group through 
LifeMoves that has been very supportive and  
educational as well.”

But that was just the start. He recently moved from 
the shelter to the Navigation Center in Redwood City 
where he has his own room and access to medical 
and dental services as well as job counselors, social 
workers, and case managers.

The things most people take for granted are treasured 
at the Navigation Center. “The privacy of your room, 
being able to take a shower—there’s a lot of burdens 
that are lifted so you can focus on going forward,” 
Michael said. 

“The resources we have here 
are just phenomenal!,” he said, 
adding that his case manager 
has connected him with job 
opportunities as well as  
medical care. 

 “I got diagnosed with some-
thing, and had it not been for  

the doctor on site, I may not have found that.”

The next step is permanent housing. “I’m just going 
forward now,” he said. “I’m not gonna let myself 
down, my family down. I’m definitely going forward.”

“ A lot of things 
are going in a 
more positive 
direction.”

   Michael 

M I C H A E L’ S  S T O R Y

Volunteer BBQ for Clients

Summer Camp
Partnership

BANK OF AMERICA has partnered with LifeMoves 
to support our summer camp program. The bank’s 
8-week Student Leaders Program pairs participants 
with a hands-on experience at a 
nonprofit — serving as leaders 
in our summer camp. Camp 
is offered to every child 
enrolled in a LifeMoves 
program, at no cost — 
typically more than 100 
children are enrolled. Campers 
get enrichment and socialization 
opportunities as well as breakfast, 
lunch, and snacks. LifeMoves thanks the Bank of 
America for its continued support over the years.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7FF4893B-4ABF-43CB-B310-0B9EB3F703E3



Breaking the Cycle of Homelessness

2550 Great America Way, Suite 201
Santa Clara, CA 95054

Please note our new address:

650.685.5880  
www.lifemoves.org

Have fun with your friends, family, and coworkers on our community 
ride. Routes for all abilities  — from 6 miles to 66 miles. Support our 
unhoused neighbors and end homelessness in Silicon Valley.

Join us!
Saturday, August 26
VMware Campus – Palo Alto

go.lifemoves.org/RTEHNow

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7FF4893B-4ABF-43CB-B310-0B9EB3F703E3

http://www.lifemoves.org
https://go.lifemoves.org/RTEHNow


 

1 
 

 
 

GRANT REPORT TO THE TOWN OF COLMA 
JUNE 2023 

 
On behalf of the clients LifeMoves has the privilege to serve, thank you for the Town of Colma’s 

generous support of our work. The $4,000 grant we received last October to support programs serving 

Colma residents was utilized immediately to help some of the most vulnerable members of our 

community. Your continued partnership inspires us to continue to seek out innovative solutions to meet 

the needs of those who are unsheltered in Silicon Valley.  

 

SERVICES TO TOWN OF COLMA RESIDENTS 

Five Town of Colma households received shelter and associated supportive services from LifeMoves 

between July 1, 2022, and May 31, 2023. The individuals within these households stayed for more than 

950 days in our San Mateo interim housing sites, including First Step for Families in the City of San 

Mateo, our Maple Street emergency housing facility in Redwood City, or at local motels that are offer a 

respite for those families who are unsheltered and waiting for an available family unit opening.  

During the same period, several Town of Colma residents received assistance via our community 

programs, including Healthcare for the Homeless, Homeless Outreach, Kaiser Outreach, and Rapid 

Rehousing. This community outreach work helped prompt some of these unsheltered residents to seek 

housing support in a LifeMoves site, which is a very important step in getting these clients indoors and 

on the road back to stable housing. 

 

LIFEMOVES OVERVIEW 

During our most recent fiscal year ending on June 30, 2022, LifeMoves served more than 7,000 people 

across our two-county service area. With the help of our 400+ employees and the support of our 

community, LifeMoves provided more than 289,000 nights of shelter to individuals and families 

experiencing homelessness, a 21% increase from the previous year.  

 

This past fiscal year, 82% of families and 65% of all clients who engaged with LifeMoves’ transitional 

housing programs successfully returned to stable housing and achieved self-sufficiency. Thanks to our 

shared focus on serving those who are unsheltered, more than 2,100 of our neighbors successfully 

exited homelessness. We credit our LifeMoves therapeutic service model—which focuses on the root 

causes contributing to homelessness, rather than treating the symptoms—for being the key to the 

outcomes we have achieved. 

 

We provide intensive case management through both shelter programs and community outreach so 

that we can meet people where they are in their journey to housing stability. All LifeMoves programs 

are built on a foundation of “Housing First” principles – that access to secure and safe housing is the 

critical first step necessary for unsheltered individuals to make pivotal changes for their future.  



 

2 
 

 

Each person we help has a different reason for experiencing homelessness, whether it’s the loss of a job, 

the death of a spouse, medical costs, domestic violence, addiction, or untreated mental health issues. 

Unless these issues are addressed, people won’t retain housing. As a result, each person’s journey to 

stable housing must be tailored to best position our clients for long-term success. This requires program 

staff at LifeMoves to constantly provide innovative offerings that will enable transformative change. 

Some of our creative educational resources include life-skills workshops, personal finance and budgeting 

assistance, and credit repair. 

 

ORGANIZATIONAL UPDATES 

The April opening of the new Navigation Center in Redwood City was an organizational highlight for 

LifeMoves. Located near our former Maple Street facility, this location has 240 units available for single 

adults and couples, with a capacity to serve 270 individuals. The County of San Mateo has contracted 

with LifeMoves to operate this new site, which is the first of its kind in the county. This location offers 

the shelter and supportive services that LifeMoves is known for, including mental health and substance 

abuse counseling as needed. In addition, however, it has been purposefully designed to foster a sense of 

community including common areas, a commercial kitchen, dental and medical clinics, laundry and 

storage facilities, a barbecue area, a dog run, and a basketball court. 

In July, our LifeMoves administrative office will move from Menlo Park to Santa Clara. Much like the 

clients we serve, we were unable to secure affordable office space for our growing organization in the 

neighborhood with which we’d become familiar. By expanding our search area, we were able to find a 

space that will grow with us as we expand our operations to serve more individuals and families in need.  

With your partnership, LifeMoves continues to create meaningful opportunities for homeless individuals 

and families to return to stable housing and self-sufficiency. Together, we look forward to building 

lasting solutions to end homelessness. 

CONCLUSION 

As our region continues to face increases in the number of people experiencing homelessness and a 

continued shortage of affordable housing, we are more grateful than ever for partners like the Town of 

Colma. Thank you for your steadfast support of LifeMoves over the years, and for helping to keep our 

neighbors experiencing homelessness safe, healthy, and inspired to transform their lives.  

If you have any questions or there is any additional information we can provide, please do not hesitate 

to contact Katherine Finnigan, Vice President of Institutional Giving, 650-995-4570 or 

kfinnigan@lifemoves.org  

 
 



6/26/2023  Page 1 of 6 
 

Town of Colma 
Non-Profit Funding Request Form  

FY 2023-24 
 

 
 
Please do NOT write “see attached” as a response to any of the questions. You must 
submit all answers on this form. You may submit additional attachments, but they 
will not replace any of the responses. 
 
 
Name of Organization:           
 
Contact Person:            
 
Address:             
  Street Address   City  State  Zip Code  
 
Phone Number:     Email Address: __________________ 
 
1. Mission Statement: 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Amount of Request: $________________ 
 
 a. Total Agency Annual Budget: $_______________ 
 

b. Number of Agency Employees: _______________ 
 
c. Payroll is ________% of the Agency’s total Annual Budget. 

 
 
3.  Please identify a public purpose for the requested funding by identifying one of the 

following categories:  

A. Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;  
B. Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or 

Integrated Care Services;  
C. Educate and engage residents;  
D. Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business 

in the Town; or Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a 
service that the Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 623D527A-2E22-4A7D-97D9-346A9D37A560

Elyse Brummer

650-780-5702

X

2500

70

elysebrummer@ossmc.org

1455 Madison Avenue Redwood City    CA   94061

 

Ombudsman Services of San Mateo County, Inc.

1,121,249_______
______

: 10 (7.8 FTE), 
32 volunteer Om

X

The residents of long-term care facilities are often the most vulnerable in 
our society. OSSMC works to assure the protection of these residents through 
advocacy, direct intervention, education, and ongoing case management with 
service providers.

X



6/26/2023  Page 2 of 6 
 

3a.       Describe how the funding will support the selected category: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Describe reason for request and how funds will be used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 623D527A-2E22-4A7D-97D9-346A9D37A560

We would use the funds from the Town of Colma to support the work our County Supervisor 
does. Our County Supervisor is in charge of several Field Ombudsman that report to her. 
These visits are crucial in ensuring that the resident’s rights are being met and that 
they have a voice to stand up for themselves.

The Town of Colma has funded us in the past because the Town of Colma truly believes and
 cares about the residents that live in licensed long-term care facilities in your city.
 By providing these funds, the Town of Colma helps OSSMC meet the federally mandated 
mission to protect residents that live in licensed long-term care facilities.

We are the only program of its kinds in San Mateo County. We are certified by the state 
of California to monitor licensed long-term care facilities and to advocate for the 
residents to live in these facilities. There is a great need for it and no one else does
 this work.

OSSMC works with licensed long-term care facilities to deliver the highest standards of
 individual care for residents in San Mateo County. We visit these facilities 
throughout the year and are the voices for a vulnerable population. We advocate for the
 health, safety, and dignity for these individuals. Our mission and that of the Town of
 Colma align, looking for the best that can be provided for the residents of Colma.



6/26/2023  Page 3 of 6 
 

5. If the amount of the request is higher than the previous year, provide a detailed 
explanation of the need for the increase: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Describe the benefit to the Town derived from funding your organization: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 623D527A-2E22-4A7D-97D9-346A9D37A560

The Town of Colma in the past has funded us because you take seriously what happens to 
the residents in long-term care in your city. The Town of Colma helps OSSMC meet the 
federally mandated mission by providing services to the residents in your city and by 
investigating allegations of abuse emanating from families in your city. Colma cares 
about all its citizens no matter where they live.

n/a



6/26/2023  Page 4 of 6 
 

7. Describe the following: 
A. Number of Colma residents or businesses (or both) served by the organization 
in the years prior to the grant application;  
B. The location(s) where Colma residents or businesses may receive the recipient 
organization’s services or programs; and  
C. The nature and extent of the efforts of the recipient organization to reach out 
to Colma residents and businesses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Provide a detailed account of how the FY 2022-23 contribution was used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 623D527A-2E22-4A7D-97D9-346A9D37A560

The FY 2022-2023 contribution was used to continue to support funding for the County 
Supervisor, who conducts their own visits and cases and lead a group of trained 
volunteer ombudsman to make facility visits. OSSMC makes do with a small staff of 
well-qualified people due to fair wages that helps prevent employee turnover and allows 
them to keep up with the cost of living. Most of our supervising ombudsman staff have 
been part of OSSMC for years.

A.   Ombudsman Services of San Mateo County, Inc. (OSSMC) serves two facilities in Colma
 for a total of 63 Residents that reside in the facilities. We also serve Skilled 
Nursing and Rehab facilities around the Town of Colma, that residents likely temporarily
 reside.

B.   Ombudsman Services of San Mateo County, Inc.
1455 Madison Ave
Redwood City, CA 94061

Facility Locations in Colma:
-   Angela’s Rest Home I
1816 Louvaine Drive
Colma, CA 94015

-   Peninsula Reflections
205 Collins Ave
Colma, CA 94015

C.   OSSMC reaches out to Colma residents by sending state certified and trained 
ombudsman to visit facilities to provide advocacy services to facility residents. 

OSSMC accomplished the following in the Town of Colma:
-45 facility visits for FY ’22-‘23
-Opened and closed 14 cases



6/26/2023  Page 5 of 6 
 

9.        List contributions requested and received from other cities in FY 2022-23 and requested 
or expected in FY 2023-24: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10. Did the organization participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 

publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate 
for public office within the past 36 months (please select one)?   

 
Yes __________ No ______________ 
 
If yes, please provide details.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 623D527A-2E22-4A7D-97D9-346A9D37A560

X 

Years            FY 2022-23               FY 2023-24
City            Requested   Received   Requested
San Mateo    12,800           6,400           12,800
Burlingame    700           580           700
South San Fran    10,000           19,100           19,100
Menlo Park   3,000           3,000           3,000
Foster City   5,000           5,000           5,000



6/26/2023  Page 6 of 6 
 

11. Charitable Trust # or EIN #          
 
 
 
Please attach a copy of the following: 
 

 Roster of current governing board 
 Current Year Annual Operating Budget 
 Proof of organization’s tax exempt status 
 Completed IRS 990 form (filed for 2022 or 2021)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Optional Attachments 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 623D527A-2E22-4A7D-97D9-346A9D37A560

94-3397402	



 8/16/2023 

 
 

 

 

2023-24 Board of Directors 

 
 

PRESIDENT                   

Mitchell Bailey 

401 Pierce Rd 

Menlo Park, CA 94025 

Chief Administrative Officer 

Boys & Girls Club of the Peninsula 

Phone: (415) 912-7688 

mitchbailey79@gmail.com 

 

 

VICE PRESIDENT 

Monika Lee, Esq.  

3021 Hacienda St. 

San Mateo, CA 94403 

Attorney in Private Practice 

Phone: (650) 572-0821 

monikapleyer@gmail.com  

 

 

SECRETARY/TREASURER 

Bob Montevaldo 

544 Nevada Ave. 

San Mateo, CA 94402 

Retired 

Phone: (650) 464-7705 

rfmonte@comcast.net 

 

 

 

DIRECTORS 

Chet Lexvold, Esq.  

221 Grand Blvd. 

San Mateo, CA 94401 

Attorney/Research Consultant 

LexisNexis 

Phone: (651) 380-2764 

clexvold@gmail.com 

 

 

Sharmin Nabi, Esq. years 

221 Grand Blvd. 

San Mateo, CA 94401 

Attorney/Senior Compliance Manager,  

Managed Care Contracts 

Genentech 

Phone: (651) 724-2202 

sfnabi@gmail.com 

 

 

MEMBER EMERITUS 

Betty Brown 

Lance Reynolds 

Nancy Cronin 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 623D527A-2E22-4A7D-97D9-346A9D37A560

mailto:baileym@smccd.edu
mailto:monikapleyer@gmail.com
mailto:rfmonte@comcast.net
mailto:clexvold@gmail.com
mailto:sfnabi@gmail.com


OMBUDSMAN SERVICES OF SAN MATEO COUNTY, INC

BUDGET FY2023-2024 

Operating Income

Actual    

Jul 22- Apr 

23
FY22-23

FY23-24 

5%

Donations
Annual Report/Newsletter 0 500 500

Appeal Letters Holiday 13870 7,000 7,000

Board Gifts 950 10,000 5,000

Business Funding 500 0 0

Donations 4645 5,000 5,000

Donations-In Memory Of 450 0 0

Volunteer Recognition Luncheon 1050 15,000 15,000

Sub-total 21,465 37,500 32,500

Foundation Funding
Atkinson 15000 10,000 10,000

Deacon Charitable Foundation 0 0 5,000

Gellert Foundation 0 10,000 0

Palo Alto Community Fund 20000 10,000 10,000

Albertson/Safeway Foundation 0 2,500 2,500

TouchPoint 0 3,000 3,000

Twinkle Foundation 1000 0 0

Woodlawn 50000 50,000 45,000

Sub-total 86,000 85,500 75,500

Government Funding
SMC Title IIIB (OAA) 26456 31,298 31,298

SMC Title VIIA 40674 46,804 46,804

SMC General Funds (<60) 43076 52,000 52,000

St Health Facilities Citation Penalty (SHFCPA) 17630 15,852 15,852

SNF Quality Assurance (SNFQAF) 28509 45,209 45,209

State General Fund 73594 87,348 87,348

State Augmentation 99121 123,730 123,730

Public Health L&C Prog Fund (PHL&C) 8042 9,518 9,518

Measure K 81066 121,983 130,668

American Rescue Act 3305 22,736 22,736

CDBG San Mateo 6400 12,800 12,800

CDBG SSF 10000 19,100 19,100

Other City Grants - Burlingame 580 700 700

Other City Grants - Foster City 0 5,000 5,000

Other City Grants - Menlo Park 3000 3,000 3,000

Other City Grants-Town of Colma 2500 2,500 2,500

Sub-Total 443,953 599,578 608,263

Healthcare Districts
Peninsula Health Care District 35000 70,000 70,000

Sequoia Healthcare District 75000 75,000 75,000

Sub-Total 110,000 145,000 145,000

In Kind volunteer hours 81240 115,000 115,000

Interest Income 498

Other Income 2805

Total Revenue 745,961 982,578 976,263

Board Approved 6/16/2023

DocuSign Envelope ID: 623D527A-2E22-4A7D-97D9-346A9D37A560



Expenses

Actual    

Jul 22- Apr 

23
FY22/23

FY23-24 

5%

Development/Marketing
Fundraising

Grant Writing 30000 36,000 36,000

Event Planner 0 0 0

Volunteer Recognition Luncheon 0 10,000 10,000

Fall Event 0 0 0

Holiday Appeal 3695 1,900 1,900

Sub-total 33,695 47,900 47,900

Marketing
Marketing PR 2762 3,500 3,500

Sub-total 2,762 3,500 3,500

Printing & Reproduction
     Newsletter/Annual Report 0 1,000 1,000

     Brochures/tentcards/bus cards 0 3,000 1,500

     Website 319 2,000 1,500

     Other 3 0 0

Sub-total 322 6,000 4,000

Employee Expense Direct
Payroll 542790 688,041 728,294

Benefits (medical, dental) 20697 20,943 17,278

ER Taxes 45678 57,689 60,768

Workers Compensation 2434 2,543 2,704

Sub-total 611,599 769,216 809,044

Employee Indirect Expenses
Education 0 2,000 1,000

Recruiting 2849 750 750

Mileage Reimbursement 16371 10,000 18,000

Payroll Service Fee 3035 3,500 3,500

Sub-total 22,255 16,250 23,250

Operating Expenses
Board Expenses 0 3,000 3,000

Sub-total 0 3,000 3,000

Facilities & Equipment
     Computer Maintenance 600 2,400 2,400

     Computer Software 3380 3,850 3,850

     Maintenance Agreements 4435 2,410 2,410

     Moving Expenses 0 0 6,000

     Office Equipment 0 2,000 2,000

     Office Furnishings 0 1,000 1,000

     Rent 10000 12,000 12,000

Sub-total 18,415 23,660 29,660

Financial Expenses
     Accounting/Audit 14000 14,000 14,000

     Investment Advisory Fees 0 0 0

     PayPal Fees 413 1,500 1,500

     Bank Charges 102 25 25

Sub-total 14,515 15,525 15,525

Insurance
     Directors and Officers 2305 1,935 1,935

     General Liability 3053 3,280 3,280

Membership Dues & Subscriptions 3924 3,000 3,000

Other Meeting Expenses 138 500 500

Office Supplies 2984 3,500 3,500

Postage and Delivery 823 1,500 1,500

Telephone and Internet 4809 5,000 5,000

Sub-total 18,036 18,715 18,715

DocuSign Envelope ID: 623D527A-2E22-4A7D-97D9-346A9D37A560



Expenses

Actual    

Jul 22- Apr 

23
FY22/23

FY23-24 

5%

Program Expense
Misc 1440 1,000 1,000

Intern Stipend 9000 9,000 0

Professional Services/contracted srvcs 3271 0 0

     Hiring Costs for new ED 25000 0 0

Corporate Registration 200 180 180

Taxes 0 125 125

Sub-total 38,911 10,305 1,305

Special Projects

          Alzheimer's Association Conference 0 2,500 0

          Friendly Visitors 8414 6,650 5,000

          Make A Wish For Seniors 2119 0 0

          Music and Me 25028 35,000 35,000

          Robitic Pets 1542 1,500 1,500

          Tablets for Residents 0 10,000 0

Sub-total 37,103 55,650 41,500

Volunteer Expenses 3879 8,350 8,850

Volunteer In-kind hours 81240 115,000 115,000

Total Expenses 882,732 1,093,071 1,121,249

(136,771) (110,493) (144,986)
Endowment Transfer ($100,000 and $25,000 for FY22-23) 125,000 125,000 100,000

Revised Net Income (11,771) 14,507 (44,986)

DocuSign Envelope ID: 623D527A-2E22-4A7D-97D9-346A9D37A560





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



6/26/2023  Page 1 of 6 
 

Town of Colma 
Non-Profit Funding Request Form  

FY 2023-24 
 

 
 
Please do NOT write “see attached” as a response to any of the questions. You must 
submit all answers on this form. You may submit additional attachments, but they 
will not replace any of the responses. 
 
 
Name of Organization:           
 
Contact Person:            
 
Address:             
  Street Address   City  State  Zip Code  
 
Phone Number:     Email Address: __________________ 
 
1. Mission Statement: 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Amount of Request: $________________ 
 
 a. Total Agency Annual Budget: $_______________ 
 

b. Number of Agency Employees: _______________ 
 
c. Payroll is ________% of the Agency’s total Annual Budget. 

 
 
3.  Please identify a public purpose for the requested funding by identifying one of the 

following categories:  

A. Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;  
B. Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or 

Integrated Care Services;  
C. Educate and engage residents;  
D. Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business 

in the Town; or Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a 
service that the Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42874C10-82AD-4698-A10F-EE6D82BC2483

 

20,000

aimeeodsaunders@gmail.com

 

0

Operation Santa Claus 

X

Since 1949, Operation Santa Claus has provided toy and gift assistance to 
families in need at the Holiday Season. We are a donation-driven, 
volunteer-run effort serving families who reside in Colma, Daly City & 
Broadmoor. 

Aimee Saunders

0

2.000

415 744 4049

 

c/o Daly City Fire Department 10 Wembley Drive, Daly City, CA 94015



6/26/2023  Page 2 of 6 
 

3a.       Describe how the funding will support the selected category: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Describe reason for request and how funds will be used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42874C10-82AD-4698-A10F-EE6D82BC2483

The full contribution will support our program's purchases of gifts and gift cards to 
distribute to families enrolled in our program. 

We rely solely on donations and grant contributions to fund the purchase of the gifts we
 give out. We aim to fill a need in the community in a world of rising costs. We do not 
have a staff or any paid employees, The two most important days in our year's calendar 
are the packing day and our delivery night - these are annual efforts that bring 
community members together for our gift distribution effort. The reliability and 
engagement of our veteran volunteer force is a heartening effort to participate in each 
year. 



6/26/2023  Page 3 of 6 
 

5. If the amount of the request is higher than the previous year, provide a detailed 
explanation of the need for the increase: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Describe the benefit to the Town derived from funding your organization: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42874C10-82AD-4698-A10F-EE6D82BC2483

In the past, the Town of Colma has made generous contributions to our efforts. We are 
very grateful for the support and this opportunity to apply again. We are increasing 
our request by $500 this year - from $1500 last year to $2000 this year. 

Operation Santa Claus remains fully volunteer run and community supported. We 
anticipate continued support from the general public but we know this is not a 
guarantee. As well this year, one former foundational funding source is no longer 
available to us. 

Last year, we were able to provide 445 children with newly purchased toys, and 167 
teens gift cards. We are very grateful for the financial and volunteer support that the
 Town of Colma has provided to us in the past, and we hope this additional amount keeps
 us in the position to provide the same level of service and resource we have provided 
for decades now. 

For some families there is hardship presented during the Holiday season in providing 
material goods and gifts on top of daily expenses. While we are no panacea for the 
growing need in our beloved community, we seek to help about 300 families each year, 
providing gifts for any children under age 14 in their household. 

Last year, we were able to provide 445 children with newly purchased toys, and 167 
teens gift cards. Within the limits of our space and time, we try as much as we can to 
meet a need we see in the community. 

We do this in partnership with our community First Responders, the Recreation & Parks 
Department and Daly City Partnership and many dedicated people who give up their free 
time towards the cause. 

Operation Santa Claus is a long-standing volunteer opportunity that engages the 
community each year, promoting civic pride and fellowship among our citizens. People 
look forward to volunteering each year and participating in the effort. 

Most importantly however, and simply put - we exist to provide holiday gift assistance 
to Colma families in need and their Daly City & Broadmoor neighbors. 



6/26/2023  Page 4 of 6 
 

7. Describe the following: 
A. Number of Colma residents or businesses (or both) served by the organization 
in the years prior to the grant application;  
B. The location(s) where Colma residents or businesses may receive the recipient 
organization’s services or programs; and  
C. The nature and extent of the efforts of the recipient organization to reach out 
to Colma residents and businesses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Provide a detailed account of how the FY 2022-23 contribution was used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42874C10-82AD-4698-A10F-EE6D82BC2483

During the 2022 Holiday Season, we assisted 300 families across Colma, Broadmoor and 
Daly City, which included 445 children with newly purchased toys and 167 teens with gift
 cards.

The $1500 donation received from the Town of Colma was included with other fundraising 
results. All donations were entirely used to acquire the items mentioned above. 

In total, our expenses for the season were:

Toy Purchases: $14,000
Gift Cards: $5000
Expenses: $1,700
TOTAL 
$21,700

A) We had 16 families with Colma residences in our 2022 delivery program.

B) We make a huge effort to deliver the toys and gifts to homes in one night. We operate
 out of North County Fire Administration, 10 Wembley Drive in Daly City where gifts can 
be picked up if delivery to the residence is not available.

C) Our application process is facilitated by Daly City Partnership in whose other 
services many of our applicants are enrolled. We also advertise through the school 
district communications to parents about application dates.  



6/26/2023  Page 5 of 6 
 

9.        List contributions requested and received from other cities in FY 2022-23 and requested 
or expected in FY 2023-24: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10. Did the organization participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 

publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate 
for public office within the past 36 months (please select one)?   

 
Yes __________ No ______________ 
 
If yes, please provide details.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42874C10-82AD-4698-A10F-EE6D82BC2483

X 

The Town of Colma is the only municipal entity we received funding from in 22-23, and
 are seeking funding from in 23-24 to my knowledge. All other funding sources are 
private or corporate. 



6/26/2023  Page 6 of 6 
 

11. Charitable Trust # or EIN #          
 
 
 
Please attach a copy of the following: 
 

 Roster of current governing board 
 Current Year Annual Operating Budget 
 Proof of organization’s tax exempt status 
 Completed IRS 990 form (filed for 2022 or 2021)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Optional Attachments 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42874C10-82AD-4698-A10F-EE6D82BC2483

94-2920191



Operation Santa Claus
10 Wembley Drive

Daly City, CA
94015 

Bobby Stuhler, President 
Barney Maffei, Treasurer
Jennifer Linale, Secretary 

Maria DeLucchi
Denise Brown

Romeo Benson
Pat Bohm

Marya Ouro-Gbeleou
Mike Stancil

Cameron Christensen
Aimee O’Donnell Saunders

 
 

2023 Governing Board

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42874C10-82AD-4698-A10F-EE6D82BC2483



DocuSign Envelope ID: 42874C10-82AD-4698-A10F-EE6D82BC2483



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Board of Directors 
Bobby Stuhler, President  Barney Maffei, Treasurer Jennifer Linale, Secretary 

Maria DeLucchi  Denise Brown Romeo Benson  Pat Bohm  Officer Cameron Christensen  

 
TIN 94-2920191 
 

 
June 3, 2023 
 
Abigail Dometita 
Colma City Hall 
1198 El Camino Real 
Colma, CA 94014 
 
Dear Abigail, 
 
On behalf of the Operation Santa Claus board, I wish to thank the officers of the City of Colma for 
the generation donation of $1,500.   
 
During the past holiday season, we assisted 300 families, which included 445 children with newly 
purchased toys, 167 teens with gift cards. 
 
The $1,500 donation received from the City of Colma was included with other fundraising results.  
All donations were entirely used to acquire the items mentioned above: 
 Toy Purchases: $14,000 
 Gift Cards:  $5,000 
 Expenses:  $1,700  
  Total  $21,700 
 
Please contact me should you require any further information. 
 
Once again thank you for your contribution. 
 
Best Regards, 
 
 
 
 
Jennifer Linale 
OSC Secretary 
(415) 828-0062 mobile 
linale@sbcglobal.net 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



6/26/2023 Page 1 of 6

Town of Colma
Non-Profit Funding Request Form

FY 2023-24

Please do NOT write “see attached” as a response to any of the questions. You must 
submit all answers on this form. You may submit additional attachments, but they 
will not replace any of the responses.

Name of Organization: 

Contact Person: 

Address: 
Street Address City State Zip Code 

Phone Number: Email Address: __________________

1. Mission Statement:

2. Amount of Request: $________________

a. Total Agency Annual Budget: $_______________

b. Number of Agency Employees: _______________

c. Payroll is ________% of the Agency’s total Annual Budget.

3. Please identify a public purpose for the requested funding by identifying one of the 
following categories: 

A. Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life; 
B. Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or 

Integrated Care Services; 
C. Educate and engage residents; 
D. Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business 

in the Town; or Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a 
service that the Town could provide to its residents or businesses.



6/26/2023  Page 2 of 6 
 

3a.       Describe how the funding will support the selected category: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Describe reason for request and how funds will be used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6/26/2023  Page 3 of 6 
 

5. If the amount of the request is higher than the previous year, provide a detailed 
explanation of the need for the increase: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Describe the benefit to the Town derived from funding your organization: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6/26/2023  Page 4 of 6 
 

7. Describe the following: 
A. Number of Colma residents or businesses (or both) served by the organization 
in the years prior to the grant application;  
B. The location(s) where Colma residents or businesses may receive the recipient 
organization’s services or programs; and  
C. The nature and extent of the efforts of the recipient organization to reach out 
to Colma residents and businesses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Provide a detailed account of how the FY 2022-23 contribution was used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6/26/2023  Page 5 of 6 
 

9.        List contributions requested and received from other cities in FY 2022-23 and requested 
or expected in FY 2023-24: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10. Did the organization participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 

publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate 
for public office within the past 36 months (please select one)?   

 
Yes __________ No ______________ 
 
If yes, please provide details.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



6/26/2023 Page 6 of 6

11. Charitable Trust # or EIN # 

Please attach a copy of the following:

Roster of current governing board
Current Year Annual Operating Budget
Proof of organization’s tax exempt status
Completed IRS 990 form (filed for 2022 or 2021) 

Optional Attachments



Renaissance Entrepreneurship Center
2023 Budget

 
 
    Revenues
        Corporate Contribution 993,000
        Foundation Contribution 657,250
        Individual Contribution 85,000
        Release from TRNA 720,000
      Total Contributions 2,455,250
      Total Annual Event Revenue 375,000
      Government       
        Federal Grants 3,587,337
        State Grants
        Local Government Grants
        Less: Pass-through awards (400,000)
      Total Government 3,187,337
        Total Tenancy 355,000
        Total Other Events 2,000
        Total Program Service Fees 12,000
      Total Earned Income 369,000
      Total Other Income 250
    Total Revenues 6,386,837

    Expenditures     
      Operating Expense
        Personnel         
          Salary and Wages           
          Total Salary and Wages 3,354,352
          Total Benefits & Fringe 608,283
          Total Recruitment 15,000
        Total Personnel 3,977,635
        Professional Services         
          Total Consultants & Instructors 1,030,000
          Other Professional Services 208,000
        Total Professional Services 1,238,000
        Total Office Expenses 35,900
        Total Facilities & Occupancy 463,000
        Total Software & Equipment 150,000
        Total Travel & Meetings 35,000
        Total Annual Event Expense 150,000
        Total Program Expenses 75,500
        Total Operational Expenses 45,700
        Total Depreciation 125,300
      Total Operating Expense 6,296,035
    Total Expenditures 6,296,035
  Total Revenues over Expenditures 90,802



Board of Directors
July 2023

Board Chair*
Alison Davis
8 years
Managing Partner
Fifth Era
Tiburon, CA 94920

Vice Chair*
Craig Jacoby
16 years
Partner
Cooley LLP
San Francisco, CA 94111

Treasurer*
Karly Wang
7 years
Key Advisor
Berkeley SkyDeck
Piedmont, CA 94611

Secretary*
Melissa Boyd
6 month
Partner
Cooley LLP
San Francisco, CA 94111

Audit Chair*
Sandor Straus
26 years
Managing Member
Tigmera, LLC
Walnut Creek, CA 94596

Gary Cookhorn
1 Month
CFO
Health2047

Yasmin Eichmann Datta
7 years
Investor and Advisor
Los Altos, CA 94024

Munish Gandhi
6 years
Co-Founder and COO
Productiv Inc.
Redwood City, CA 94065

Heidi Gibson**
7 years
Senior Director, Product Lead
Growth, Adobe
Oakland, CA 94510

Neal Gottlieb**
6 years
Founder and CEO
Crain App Inc.
Sausalito, CA 94965

Philip Koblis
Senior Vice President
7 years
Comerica Bank
San Francisco, CA 94111

Duncan Logan
2 years
Co-Founder and Partner
9Zero Ventures
Santa Barbara, CA 93105

Rich McCline, PhD
2 years
McCline & Associates
Entrepreneurial Leadership &
Strategic Management
Consulting
Alameda, CA

Goro Mitchell**
1 year
Owner
Mitchell’s Environmental LLC
East Palo Alto, CA 94303

*Executive Committee member
**Renaissance graduate



6/26/2023  Page 1 of 6 
 

Town of Colma 
Non-Profit Funding Request Form  

FY 2023-24 
 

 
 
Please do NOT write “see attached” as a response to any of the questions. You must 
submit all answers on this form. You may submit additional attachments, but they 
will not replace any of the responses. 
 
 
Name of Organization:           
 
Contact Person:            
 
Address:             
  Street Address   City  State  Zip Code  
 
Phone Number:     Email Address: __________________ 
 
1. Mission Statement: 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Amount of Request: $________________ 
 
 a. Total Agency Annual Budget: $_______________ 
 

b. Number of Agency Employees: _______________ 
 
c. Payroll is ________% of the Agency’s total Annual Budget. 

 
 
3.  Please identify a public purpose for the requested funding by identifying one of the 

following categories:  

A. Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;  
B. Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or 

Integrated Care Services;  
C. Educate and engage residents;  
D. Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business 

in the Town; or Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a 
service that the Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3A28668C-932C-4BA4-9261-8AFE3371AFB1

 

X

44 Visitacion Avenue, Suite 206, Brisbane, CA 94005

205,942

Ariel Cherbowsky Corkidi

63

ariel@mountainwatch.org

 

San Bruno Mountain Watch helps the public learn about and explore San Bruno 
Mountain’s history and environment, works with local communities to restore 
the mountain’s native habitats and cultivate its flora at the Mission Blue 
Nursery, and protects its open space.

San Bruno Mountain Watch

3000

415-467-6631

2

 



6/26/2023  Page 2 of 6 
 

3a.       Describe how the funding will support the selected category: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Describe reason for request and how funds will be used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3A28668C-932C-4BA4-9261-8AFE3371AFB1

San Bruno Mountain Watch requests funding to educate and engage residents about San 
Bruno Mountain’s cultural and natural history. Funding will support educational 
programming that enhances park visitors’ understanding and appreciation of the mountain
 through digital and in-person programming. 
One example is the  "Exploring Colma Creek's Past, Present, and Future" project. This 
initiative aims to provide people with opportunities to learn about the past, present, 
and potential future of the Colma Creek watershed through digital educational materials
 and in-person programming. This effort will help Colma residents of all ages engage 
with various topics related to the watershed they call home and the creek that bears 
the name of their Town. Themes explored include the historical ecology of the 
watershed, the headwaters and tributaries on San Bruno Mountain, the mouth of the creek
 at the San Francisco Bay shoreline, flora and fauna of the creek, urban creek issues, 
flood control efforts, adaptations to forecasted sea-level rise, and more.
The San Bruno Mountain Muses project provides youth and families with opportunities to 
engage in outdoor creative expression, including nature journaling, environmental 
poetry, natural science illustration, land art, and place-based storytelling during 
field trips to San Bruno Mountain State and County Park.
Another example is the San Bruno Mountain Dune Defenders project, which involves 
students in ecological restoration activities on the San Bruno Mountain Dunes (located 
above John F. Kennedy Elementary School and Hillside Park). By removing invasive ice 
plants, and replanting dune wildflowers, students bring back the bloom of the dunes and
 protect the habitat of the endangered San Francisco lessingia plant. Students learn 
about plant and animal adaptations to the dune environment, coastal ecological 
processes, climate change, and sea-level rise. 
Furthermore, our San Bruno Mountain Digital Learning Initiative includes the San Bruno 
Mountain Archives, an online public history project with over 25 themed collections. We
 also have videos, lessons, and activities on our San Bruno Mountain curriculum 
webpage. 

San Bruno Mountain Watch’s funding request is needed to support field trips provided to 
local schools in the vicinity of the Town of Colma so that students can explore San 
Bruno Mountain and Colma Creek. All of the funding requested—$3,000—will be dedicated to
 the costs of preparing and hosting field trips for the projects mentioned in the 
section above (San Bruno Mountain Muses, Colma Creek, San Bruno Mountain Dune Defenders,
 etc.). Each field trip is estimated to cost $500, consisting of staff time dedicated to
 planning and coordinating the trips, developing the field trip curriculum and materials
 such as printed activity booklets, and the set-up, hosting, and clean-up on the day of 
the field trips. This equates to 12.5 hours of staff time at a rate of $40 per hour per 
field trip. The $3,000 request to the Town of Colma would fund six field trips to San 
Bruno Mountain and Colma Creek for local schools serving Colma residents during the 
2023-2024 fiscal year.



6/26/2023  Page 3 of 6 
 

5. If the amount of the request is higher than the previous year, provide a detailed 
explanation of the need for the increase: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Describe the benefit to the Town derived from funding your organization: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3A28668C-932C-4BA4-9261-8AFE3371AFB1

San Bruno Mountain Watch did not submit a grant request in the previous year.

By funding San Bruno Mountain Watch’s educational programming, the Town of Colma will 
be providing its residents with learning resources and active, outdoor experiences that
 will deepen their appreciation, civic pride, and love for the Town's unique 
environmental location and setting—at the base of San Bruno Mountain and within the 
Colma Creek watershed.

Supporting San Bruno Mountain Watch's engagement with local schools will maintain field
 trips to San Bruno Mountain as an enjoyable part of the local school 
experience—providing another example of why these schools are great choices for current
 and future residents. 



6/26/2023  Page 4 of 6 
 

7. Describe the following: 
A. Number of Colma residents or businesses (or both) served by the organization 
in the years prior to the grant application;  
B. The location(s) where Colma residents or businesses may receive the recipient 
organization’s services or programs; and  
C. The nature and extent of the efforts of the recipient organization to reach out 
to Colma residents and businesses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Provide a detailed account of how the FY 2022-23 contribution was used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3A28668C-932C-4BA4-9261-8AFE3371AFB1

A. In prior years, we have provided field trips and classroom presentations to hundreds 
of students from the Jefferson Elementary School District and the South San Francisco 
Unified School District. Some of these students were Colma residents who attend schools 
located in close proximity to the Town of Colma, such as Susan B. Anthony Elementary, 
John F. Kennedy Elementary, El Camino High School, Summit Shasta High School, etc.
B. Colma residents may receive our services or programs on San Bruno Mountain State &
County Park, at their schools, and at our native plant nursery. They may also engage
with our digital educational materials from their homes.
C. We engage Colma residents through the Jefferson Elementary School District and the 
South San Francisco Unified School District by providing students and parent chaperones 
with educational field trips to San Bruno Mountain. Colma residents are among those who 
receive our newsletters and our social media with information about San Bruno Mountain 
and invitations to join free upcoming events, such as public guided hikes and volunteer 
programs. Access to digital educational materials about San Bruno Mountain is freely 
available to all through our website. The Colma Historical Association kindly lists San 
Bruno Mountain Watch and our website in the section of their newsletter featuring other 
local organizations.

San Bruno Mountain Watch did not submit a grant request in the FY 2022-23.



6/26/2023  Page 5 of 6 
 

9.        List contributions requested and received from other cities in FY 2022-23 and requested 
or expected in FY 2023-24: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10. Did the organization participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 

publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate 
for public office within the past 36 months (please select one)?   

 
Yes __________ No ______________ 
 
If yes, please provide details.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3A28668C-932C-4BA4-9261-8AFE3371AFB1

 

San Bruno Mountain Watch received a payment of $1,252.58 from the City of South San 
Francisco for plants sold by our Mission Blue Nursery to the Sign Hill Stewards 
habitat restoration project. A similar plant order and payment are anticipated in FY 
2023-24.

X



6/26/2023  Page 6 of 6 
 

11. Charitable Trust # or EIN #          
 
 
 
Please attach a copy of the following: 
 

 Roster of current governing board 
 Current Year Annual Operating Budget 
 Proof of organization’s tax exempt status 
 Completed IRS 990 form (filed for 2022 or 2021)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Optional Attachments 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3A28668C-932C-4BA4-9261-8AFE3371AFB1

94-3235791



The Board of Directors of San Bruno Mountain Watch

Yoni Angelo Carnice received a Master in Landscape Architecture from the Harvard Graduate
School of Design. His thesis work explored how the design of a mountain trail and gardens can
weave together the stories and materiality of San Bruno Mountain and the Filipino diaspora.
Yoni previously worked on ecological restoration projects in the Presidio and is currently
carrying out a project revolving around the influence of artist and gardener Demetrio Braceros
on Cayuga Park. Yoni is a Designer at Meyer Studio Land Architects.

Christopher Chou is an attorney in public service. He completed his undergraduate education
at Northwestern University and has a PhD and a JD from Stanford University. Chris is
fascinated by how emerging technologies are transforming our urban environment and he's
committed to helping cities and communities innovate to become more dynamic, inclusive,
sustainable, and equitable. For Chris, San Bruno Mountain is an integral part of the urban
landscape and connects us with a shared history, both urban and natural. He lives in Daly City
and is an attorney in the San Francisco City Attorney’s Office.

Tera Freedman serves as the president of the board of directors. As a child, she was involved
in the grassroots efforts to save the mountain alongside her parents. Her father also served on
the board of directors—during his tenure, Tera got involved in the construction of the Mission
Blue Nursery a decade ago. Tera is the Director of Education Outreach at Industrial Design
Outreach. Tera lives in San Francisco.

Reina Kahn is a Geospatial Analyst with a Master's degree in Geospatial Information and
Technology from the University of Southern California. Reina has been a U.S. Peace Corps
volunteer and served in Jamaica and Guatemala developing GIS programs in rural
communities. She has also worked with the CA Department of Food and Agriculture in its
invasive weed and mitigation program. She is a Senior Geographic Information Science
Analyst at Atkins. Reina is interested in using her GIS skills in an environmental capacity
developing and supporting habitat conservation and awareness. Her passion for San Bruno
Mountain stems from her experience living in Brisbane and hiking the mountain daily. She
enjoys the quiet respite of the mountain amidst the urban landscape.

Ann Kircher is a biologist with a B.A. from Washington University and a M.A. from Duke
University. Ann spent her academic career teaching at the College of Alameda. She is
interested in native plants, horticulture, and environmental activism. Her passions for San
Bruno Mountain are protecting the natural environment, restoration of damaged areas,
acquisition of adjacent natural areas, and inclusion of people in the surrounding communities
into the wonders of the Mountain. Ann is retired.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3A28668C-932C-4BA4-9261-8AFE3371AFB1



Candace LaCroix serves as the vice president of the board of directors. Candace is the
Natural Resource Specialist for the City of South San Francisco managing the Sign Hill
Restoration Project. She holds A.S. degrees in Biology, Environmental Science, Environmental
Studies, and Science and Mathematics from City College of San Francisco as well as a B.A.
degree in Psychology from Stephen F. Austin State University. She has worked in various
natural resource conservation efforts including supporting habitat restoration monitoring for
Santa Clara Valley Water District, serving as a Bio-diverse City Intern for Climate Action Now! in
San Francisco, and volunteering as a researcher for Texas A&M University’s research facility in
the Peruvian Amazon monitoring macaw and parrot populations. Prior to embarking on a career
in wildlife conservation, she spent 7 years in social work supporting individuals and families in
improving their housing stability, financial literacy, and career advancement. Her experiences
advocating for underserved communities have made her passionate about the critical role that
public open spaces play in community health.

Thomas Lambert is a retired accountant who previously served for multiple years as the
treasurer of the board of directors. Tom lives in Brisbane near the mountain’s forested canyons
and enjoys hiking the trails close to home.

Emma Lewis serves as the secretary of the board of directors. Emma is studying
environmental law at UC Berkeley’s School of Law and holds a B.S. in Environmental Sciences
and Studio Art from the University of Virginia. She previously worked for the City of South San
Francisco, launching and overseeing the Sign Hill Stewards Habitat Restoration Project. Emma
was also an AmeriCorps member with the Bay Area-based nonprofit Grassroots Ecology and
worked to restore watersheds through volunteer programming. She is passionate about sharing
the unique ecological stories of San Bruno Mountain with its surrounding communities.

Brian Parish serves as the treasurer of the board of directors. Brian is a retired accountant
who worked in the healthcare industry. Before joining the board, Brian was a consistent
volunteer at San Bruno Mountain Watch’s Mission Blue Nursery and still partakes in the nursery
program in his free time. He resides in San Francisco.

Michele Salmon was born and raised in Brisbane, California on the flanks of San Bruno
Mountain on the street where she still lives. In the 1960s, Michele‘s parents played a major role
in thwarting plans to scrape off the top of the mountain for a new city and her father served on
Brisbane’s first City Council. Her deep connection to the mountain inspired her degree in
biology at San Francisco State University. She has retired from a 40-year career in Direct
Marketing and also serves on Brisbane’s Open Space and Ecology Committee. Michele is a
constant advocate for our environment and was featured in a documentary about the
Endangered Species Act.

Danny Yanow is a recently retired middle school history teacher who taught in South San
Francisco at Westborough Middle School and served as the president of the teachers union.
Prior to joining the board, Danny collaborated with San Bruno Mountain Watch on field trips
and volunteer events to San Bruno Mountain for his students and volunteered at the Mission
Blue Nursery.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3A28668C-932C-4BA4-9261-8AFE3371AFB1



San Bruno Mountain Watch
Budget Overview: 2023 SBMW Budget - FY23 P&L

January - December 2023

      !"

TOTAL

Revenue

Total Revenue

GROSS PROFIT $0.00

Expenditures

4220 Cost of Goods or Services Donated 300.00

7000 Payroll

7010 Gross Wages 112,849.00

7020 Payroll Taxes

7021 Federal Payroll Taxes 8,633.00

7022 CA SUI/ETT 881.75

Total 7020 Payroll Taxes 9,514.75

7030 Employee Benefits

7031 Health Care Reimbursements 7,920.00

Total 7030 Employee Benefits 7,920.00

Total 7000 Payroll 130,283.75

7100 Contract Services

7110 Accounting Fees 870.00

7120 Contracted Program Services

7124 Mission Blue Nursery Contractors 750.00

Total 7120 Contracted Program Services 750.00

Total 7100 Contract Services 1,620.00

8000 Occupancy Expenses

8010 Rent

8011 Office Rent 8,100.00

Total 8010 Rent 8,100.00

8020 Nursery Utilities

8021 Portable Toilet 2,050.00

8022 Waste Collection Services 500.00

8023 Water 1,300.00

Total 8020 Nursery Utilities 3,850.00

Total 8000 Occupancy Expenses 11,950.00

8100 Printing and Mailing

8110 Publications, Brochures, Cards, Flyers, & Envelopes 9,000.00

8120 Copier Fees 1,500.00

8130 Mailing

8131 Direct Mail 2,800.00

8132 PO Box 216.00

8133 Postage 500.00

Total 8130 Mailing 3,516.00

Total 8100 Printing and Mailing 14,016.00

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3A28668C-932C-4BA4-9261-8AFE3371AFB1



San Bruno Mountain Watch
Budget Overview: 2023 SBMW Budget - FY23 P&L

January - December 2023

     #!"

TOTAL

8200 Advertisements & Promotional Expenses 700.00

8300 Business Expenses

8320 Dues & Subscriptions 450.00

8340 General Licenses, Permits, and Registrations 200.00

8350 Payment Processing Card Fees 2,000.00

8360 Payroll Service Fees 660.00

Total 8300 Business Expenses 3,310.00

8400 Information Technology

8410 Internet & Phone 275.00

8420 General Software 350.00

8421 Accounting Software 150.00

8423 Email Marketing Software 780.00

8424 Geographic Information System Software 100.00

8425 Website Platform Software & Domain 750.00

8426 Self-Guided GPS Tour Software 1,188.00

8427 Video Conferencing Software 120.00

8428 HRA Software 960.00

8429 Graphic Design Software 150.00

Total 8420 General Software 4,548.00

Total 8400 Information Technology 4,823.00

8500 Nonprofit Insurance 2,874.00

8510 Worker's Compensation Insurance 9,815.00

8600 Program Expenses

8610 Arts & Crafts 1,000.00

8630 Construction Materials 1,000.00

8631 Nursery Storage Containers 2,000.00

8632 Nursery Tables 700.00

8635 Fertilizers & Hormones for Nursery 50.00

8640 Food, Beverages & Supplies for Volunteers or Outreach Events 800.00

8645 Fuel for Equipment 200.00

8650 Landscape Flagging & Signage 150.00

8651 Botanical Signs and Interpretive Signs 1,500.00

8655 Tools 1,500.00

8660 Personal Protective Equipment 700.00

8665 Pest Management Materials and Equipment 5,000.00

8666 Fencing 650.00

8670 Plant Labels 550.00

8675 Pots 1,700.00

8676 Plants and Seeds 500.00

8680 Soil Mix 2,400.00

8685 Laundry of Gloves and Apparel 130.00

8690 Carts and Wheel Barrows 1,000.00

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3A28668C-932C-4BA4-9261-8AFE3371AFB1



San Bruno Mountain Watch
Budget Overview: 2023 SBMW Budget - FY23 P&L

January - December 2023

  "!"

TOTAL

8695 Irrigation Equipment 600.00

Total 8600 Program Expenses 22,130.00

8700 Office Supplies 250.00

8720 Office Equipment 250.00

8850 Fundraising Event Expenses

8852 Event Supplies 800.00

8853 Food and Beverages 1,000.00

Total 8850 Fundraising Event Expenses 1,800.00

8900 Travel & Meetings

8910 Conferences, Meetings & Workshops 500.00

8930 Parking & Tolls 20.00

8945 Truck & Van Rentals 1,300.00

Total 8900 Travel & Meetings 1,820.00

Total Expenditures $205,941.75

NET OPERATING REVENUE $ -205,941.75

NET REVENUE $ -205,941.75

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3A28668C-932C-4BA4-9261-8AFE3371AFB1



5(3257�72�7+(
72:1�2)�&2/0$

),6&$/�<($5������������
121�352),7�25*$1,=$7,21�*5$17

(;3/25,1*�&2/0$�&5((.Ŗ6�3$67��35(6(17��$1'�)8785(

3UHSDUHG�E\
$ULHO�&KHUERZVN\�&RUNLGL

'LUHFWRU�RI�6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ�:DWFK

Staff note: Grant report is from 
FY21-22. It was not included in 
last year's staff report as they did 
not apply for funding in FY22-23.
-A.Dometita



7$%/(�2)�&217(176

6XPPDU\őőőőőő���őőőőőő���őőőőőő���őőőőőő���őőőőőő���őőő�

*UDQW�$FFRXQWLQJ��7LPH�'LVWULEXWLRQ��DQG�3URMHFW�2XWFRPHV�WR�'DWHőőőőőőőőő���

1H[W�6WHSVőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőő������

$SSHQGL[őőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőőő�ő����

�



6XPPDU\

,Q�2FWREHU�RI�������WKH�7RZQ�RI�&ROPD�JHQHURXVO\�SURYLGHG�6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ�:DWFK�ZLWK�D
�������JUDQW�LQ�VXSSRUW�RI�WKH�ŗ([SORULQJ�&ROPD�&UHHNŖV�3DVW��3UHVHQW��DQG�)XWXUHŘ�SURMHFW�

6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ�:DWFK�FRQWLQXHV�WR�EH�JUDWHIXO�IRU�WKH�RSSRUWXQLW\�WR�EH�DPRQJ�WKH�PDQ\
EHQHıFLDULHV�RI�WKH�7RZQŖV�JUDQW�SURJUDP�IRU�ORFDO�QRQ�SURıW�RUJDQL]DWLRQV�

7KH�ıQDQFLDO�VXSSRUW�UHTXHVWHG�E\�6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ�:DWFK�ZDV�LQWHQGHG�WR�SD\�IRU�VWDĳ�WLPH
GHGLFDWHG�WR�WKH�DLP�RI�WKLV�SURMHFW��ŗWR�SURYLGH�SHRSOH�ZLWK�RSSRUWXQLWLHV�WR�OHDUQ�DERXW�WKH�SDVW�
SUHVHQW��DQG�SRWHQWLDO�IXWXUH�RI�WKH�&ROPD�&UHHN�ZDWHUVKHG�WKURXJK�GLJLWDO�HGXFDWLRQDO�PDWHULDOV
DQG�LQ�SHUVRQ�SURJUDPPLQJ�Ř

:H�VRXJKW�WR�KHOS�&ROPD�UHVLGHQWV�RI�DOO�DJHV�HQJDJH�ZLWK�D�YDULHW\�RI�WRSLFV�UHODWHG�WR�WKH
ZDWHUVKHG�WKH\�FDOO�KRPH�DQG�WKH�FUHHN�WKDW�EHDUV�WKH�QDPH�RI�WKHLU�7RZQ��7KHPHV�H[SORUHG
LQFOXGH�WKH�KLVWRULFDO�HFRORJ\�RI�WKH�ZDWHUVKHG��WKH�KHDGZDWHUV�DQG�WULEXWDULHV�RQ�6DQ�%UXQR
0RXQWDLQ��WKH�PRXWK�RI�WKH�FUHHN�DW�WKH�6)�%D\��ĲRUD�DQG�IDXQD�RI�WKH�FUHHN��XUEDQ�FUHHN
FKDOOHQJHV��ĲRRG�FRQWURO�HĳRUWV��SRWHQWLDO�DGDSWDWLRQV�WR�IRUHFDVWHG�VHD�OHYHO�ULVH��DQG�PRUH�

7KURXJK�WKLV�EULHI�UHSRUW��6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ�:DWFK�DLPV�WR�SURYLGH�WKH�7RZQ�RI�&ROPD�ZLWK�DQ
DFFRXQWLQJ�RI�WKH�ZD\V�LWV��������JUDQW�ZDV�H[SHQGHG�DV�SDUW�RI�WKH�SURMHFW��ZKLOH�DOVR�GHVFULELQJ
DQG�HYDOXDWLQJ�WKH�RXWFRPHV�WR�GDWH�RI�WKLV�HĳRUW�DV�ZHOO�DV�WKH�FRQWLQXLQJ�ZRUN�

�



*UDQW�$FFRXQWLQJ��7LPH�'LVWULEXWLRQ��DQG�3URMHFW�2XWFRPHV�WR�'DWH

7KH�ŗ([SORULQJ�&ROPD�&UHHNŖV�3DVW��3UHVHQW��DQG�)XWXUHŘ�SURMHFW�LV�FRPSRVHG�RI�IRXU�SURMHFW
IRFXVHV��DQG�WKH�JUDQW�IXQGV�ZHUH�XVHG�WR�IXQG�WKH�ZRUN�RI�SURMHFW�SHUVRQQHO�LQ�DGYDQFLQJ�WKUHH�RI
WKH�IRXU�IRFXVHV�

$V�QRWHG�LQ�WKH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�EXGJHW��WKH�IRXU�SURMHFW�IRFXVHV�DUH�
�� 'LJLWL]DWLRQ�RI�D�&ROPD�&UHHN�FROOHFWLRQ�LQ�WKH�6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ�$UFKLYHV
�� &ROPD�&UHHN�&XUULFXOXP�9LGHRV
�� 6FKRRO�)LHOG�7ULSV�DQG�3UHVHQWDWLRQV�$ERXW�WKH�&ROPD�&UHHN�:DWHUVKHG
�� 3XEOLF�:DONLQJ�7RXUV�DQG�(YHQWV�DW�&ROPD�&UHHN

7KH�ODERU�FODVVLıFDWLRQ�UDWH�SURSRVHG�LQ�WKH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�IRU�ZRUN�SHUIRUPHG�IRU�WKH�SURMHFW�ZDV����
SHU�KRXU��7KH�7RZQ�RI�&ROPDŖV��������JUDQW�WKHUHE\�VXSSRUWHG������KRXUV�RI�ZRUN��GLVWULEXWHG�LQ
WKH�IROORZLQJ�ZD\�

�� 'LJLWL]DWLRQ�RI�&ROPD�&UHHN�FROOHFWLRQ�LQ�WKH�6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ�$UFKLYHV������������KRXUV�
�� &ROPD�&UHHN�&XUULFXOXP�9LGHRV���������KRXUV���)XQGV�ZHUH�QRW�DSSOLHG�WR�WKLV�HĳRUW�GXULQJ

WKLV�JUDQW�SHULRG�
�� 6FKRRO�)LHOG�7ULSV�DQG�3UHVHQWDWLRQV�$ERXW�WKH�&ROPD�&UHHN�:DWHUVKHG�������������KRXUV�
�� 3XEOLF�:DONLQJ�7RXUV�DQG�(YHQWV�DW�&ROPD�&UHHN��������������KRXUV�

,Q�WKH�IROORZLQJ�VHFWLRQV��,�ZLOO�GHVFULEH�WKH�W\SH�RI�DFWLYLWLHV�WKDW�DUH�SDUW�RI�HDFK�SURMHFW�HĳRUW��DQG
KLJKOLJKW�WKH�RXWFRPHV�

���6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ�$UFKLYHV�'LJLWL]DWLRQ ������ ����KRXUV�

�



���'LJLWL]DWLRQ�RI�D�&ROPD�&UHHN�FROOHFWLRQ�LQ�WKH�6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ�$UFKLYHV �����������KRXUV�

7KH�6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ�$UFKLYHV��KWWSV���ZZZ�PRXQWDLQZDWFK�RUJ�DUFKLYHV� LV�D�GLJLWDO�SXEOLF
KLVWRU\�HĳRUW�WKDW�DLPV�WR�

Ɣ 6KDUH�VWRULHV�WKDW�LOOXPLQDWH�WKH�XQLTXH�VLJQLıFDQFH�RI�6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ
Ɣ *LYH�YRLFH�WR�JUDVVURRWV�DQG�XQFRQYHQWLRQDO�XQGHUVWDQGLQJV�DQG�H[SHULHQFHV�RI�6DQ�%UXQR

0RXQWDLQ
Ɣ ([SORUH�WKH�OLYHO\�DQG�FRPSOLFDWHG�SROLWLFDO�KLVWRU\�RI�6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ
Ɣ 5HFRUG�WKH�FKDQJLQJ�HQYLURQPHQWDO�DQG�VRFLDO�FRQGLWLRQV�RI�WKH�PRXQWDLQ�DQG�LWV

VXUURXQGLQJ�FRPPXQLWLHV
Ɣ (VWDEOLVK�D�SODWIRUP�ZKHUH�SHRSOH�FDQ�ERWK�SHUVRQDOO\�DQG�FROOHFWLYHO\�JDLQ�D�ZLGH�UDQJLQJ

DQG�LQWLPDWH�DSSUHFLDWLRQ�RI�6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ�DQG�LWV�HFRORJLFDO�DQG�FXOWXUDO�GUDPDV
Ɣ *DWKHU��GLJLWL]H��FDWHJRUL]H��DQG�FLUFXODWH�D�YDVW�FROOHFWLRQ�RI�SKRWRJUDSKV��DUWLFOHV��OHDĲHWV�

DQG�PRUH�UHJDUGLQJ�6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ�IURP�D�YDULHW\�RI�VRXUFHV�
Ɣ 6HUYH�DV�D�ZKROHVRPH�UHVRXUFH�IRU�WKRVH�LQYROYHG�LQ�WKH�FUHDWLRQ�DQG�GHOLYHU\�RI�HQJDJLQJ

HGXFDWLRQDO�DQG�LQWHUSUHWLYH�PDWHULDOV�DQG�VHUYLFHV�RQ�6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ�

7KH�ZRUN�RI�GLJLWL]DWLRQ�WDNHV�SODFH�DW�WKH�6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ�:DWFK�RĴFH�DQG�UHPRWHO\�
$W�RXU�RĴFHV��,�RUJDQL]H�DQG�VFDQ�KLVWRULF�SKRWRJUDSKV��GRFXPHQWV��DQG�PRUH�LQWR�H[LVWLQJ
FROOHFWLRQV�RU�QHZ�FROOHFWLRQV��5HPRWHO\��,�VHDUFK�WKURXJK�GLJLWL]HG�QHZVSDSHUV��IURP�WKH�ODWH���WK
FHQWXU\�WKURXJK�WKH���VW�FHQWXU\��IRU�DUWLFOHV�DQG�UHIHUHQFHV�WR�6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ��DQG�WDNH
GLJLWDO�ŗFOLSSLQJVŘ�RI�WKHVH�DUWLFOHV��,WHPV�DUH�WKHQ�XSORDGHG�WR�WKHLU�UHVSHFWLYH�FROOHFWLRQV�DQG
ODEHOHG�ZLWK�WKH�DSSURSULDWH�GDWHV��WLWOHV��DQG�VRXUFHV�

$V�SDUW�RI�WKLV�JUDQW�HĳRUW��WKH�&ROPD�&UHHN�FROOHFWLRQ�LQ�WKH�6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ�$UFKLYHV�QRZ
KROGV�RYHU�����LWHPV��UHDFKLQJ�WKH�JRDO�VHW�RXW�LQ�WKH�JUDQW�SURSRVDOŖV�DFWLRQ�SODQ��(ĳRUWV�WR�FROOHFW
PRUH�LWHPV��SDUWLFXODUO\�QHZVSDSHU�FOLSSLQJV��DUH�RQJRLQJ�

0D\��QG������� 6DQ�)UDQFLVFR�&KURQLFOH 'HFHPEHU���������� 5HGZRRG�&LW\�7ULEXQH

�

https://www.mountainwatch.org/archives


���&ROPD�&UHHN�&XUULFXOXP�9LGHRV ��������KRXUV�

6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ�:DWFK�XWLOL]HG�WKH��������JUDQW�IURP�WKH�7RZQ�RI�&ROPD�IRU�WKH�WKUHH�RWKHU
SURMHFW�FRPSRQHQWV��7KH�SURMHFW�FRPSRQHQW�IRU�GHYHORSLQJ�YLGHRV�DERXW�WKH�&ROPD�&UHHN
ZDWHUVKHG�ZDV�LQLWLDOO\�SURSRVHG�LQ�WKH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�DV�D������OLQH�LWHP�DV�SDUW�RI�D��������EXGJHW�
6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ�:DWFK�ZLOO�SXUVXH�WKLV�SURMHFW�FRPSRQHQW�VHSDUDWHO\�XVLQJ�DOWHUQDWLYH�VRXUFHV
RI�IXQGLQJ�DQG�DLPV�WR�GHYHORS�WKHVH�YLGHRV�LQ�WKH�IXWXUH�

�



���6FKRRO�)LHOG�7ULSV�DQG�3UHVHQWDWLRQV�$ERXW�WKH�&ROPD�&UHHN�:DWHUVKHG ������������KRXUV�

)XQGLQJ�IURP�WKH�7RZQ�RI�&ROPD�ZDV�XVHG�WR�SURYLGH�RQH�ıHOG�WULS�DQG�VL[�LQ�SHUVRQ�SUHVHQWDWLRQV
WR�VWXGHQWV�DW�6XVDQ�%��$QWKRQ\�(OHPHQWDU\�6FKRRO�DQG�-RKQ�)��.HQQHG\�(OHPHQWDU\�6FKRRO��WZR
RI�WKH�PDLQ�HOHPHQWDU\�VFKRROV�WKDW�VHUYH�&ROPD�\RXWK��LQ�0D\�DQG�-XQH�RI������

$W�6XVDQ�%��$QWKRQ\�(OHPHQWDU\��,�GHOLYHUHG�IRXU�LQGLYLGXDO�HGXFDWLRQDO�SUHVHQWDWLRQV�WR�IRXU��UG
JUDGH�FODVVURRPV��0U��)HOL[��0V��.LP��0V��)ORUHV��DQG�0V��*UD\��FRQFHUQLQJ�WKH�&ROPD�&UHHN
ZDWHUVKHG�

$W�-RKQ�)��.HQQHG\�(OHPHQWDU\��,�GHOLYHUHG�WZR�LQGLYLGXDO�HGXFDWLRQDO�SUHVHQWDWLRQV��RQH�IRU�WZR
�UG�JUDGH�FODVVURRPV��0V��*DUFLD�DQG�0V��*UHHQ��FRPELQHG�LQ�RQH�URRP��DQG�RQH�SUHVHQWDWLRQ�IRU
WZR��WK�JUDGH�FODVVURRPV��0V��3RSSLQ�DQG�0UV��.LQJ���FRPELQHG�LQ�RQH�URRP��7KH��UG�JUDGH
VWXGHQWV�DOVR�SDUWLFLSDWHG�LQ�DQ�LQYDVLYH�SODQW�UHPRYDO�DFWLYLW\�LQ�DQ�DUHD�RI�WKH�PRXQWDLQ�DGMDFHQW
WR�WKHLU�VFKRRO�SOD\JURXQG�LQ�RUGHU�WR�GHPRQVWUDWH�RQH�RI�WKH�KDELWDW�UHVWRUDWLRQ�VWUDWHJLHV
GLVFXVVHG�LQ�WKH�FODVV�SUHVHQWDWLRQ�

7KH�SUHVHQWDWLRQ�IRU�WKH��WK�JUDGH�FODVVURRPV�ZDV�SURYLGHG�EHIRUH�D�ıHOG�WULS�WKDW�WRRN�SODFH�WKH
IROORZLQJ�ZHHN��,�MRLQHG�WKHP�IRU�D�PRXQWDLQ�KLNH�RUJDQL]HG�E\�WKH�VFKRROŖV�3ULQFLSDO��0U��+DUULV��
7KH�ZDONLQJ�MRXUQH\�GHSDUWHG�IURP�WKH�VFKRRO�DQG�UHDFKHG�WKH�SHDN�RI�WKH�PRXQWDLQ��7KH�KLNH
SUHVHQWHG�DQ�RSSRUWXQLW\�IRU�WKH�VWXGHQWV�WR�UHDFK�WKH�XSSHU�SRUWLRQ�RI�WKH�&ROPD�&UHHN
ZDWHUVKHG��PRYLQJ�IURP�WKH�ORZHU�SRUWLRQ�RI�WKH�FUHHN��ZKLFK�ĲRZV�XQGHUJURXQG�EHORZ�WKHLU
FDPSXV�SOD\JURXQG�DQG�ıHOG��WR�WKH�XSSHU�WULEXWDULHV�RI�&ROPD�&UHHN�DORQJ�WKH�6XPPLW�/RRS�7UDLO�

7KHVH�HGXFDWLRQDO�SUHVHQWDWLRQV�DQG�WKH�ıHOG�WULS�HQJDJHG�����VWXGHQWV�IURP���FODVVURRPV�DW
6XVDQ�%��$QWKRQ\�(OHPHQWDU\�DQG�-RKQ�)��.HQQHG\�(OHPHQWDU\��DV�ZHOO�DV���WHDFKHUV�DQG�RQH
3ULQFLSDO��0DWHULDOV�UHODWHG�WR�WKHVH�DFWLYLWLHV��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�SUHVHQWDWLRQ�VOLGHV�DQG�D�VDPSOLQJ�RI
OHWWHUV�IURP�WKH�VWXGHQWV�UHVSRQGLQJ�WR�WKH�H[SHULHQFH�SURYLGHG��DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�$SSHQGL[�

,�DOVR�SUHSDUHG�D�SUHVHQWDWLRQ�IRU�D�FODVVURRP�DW�753�0LGGOH�6FKRRO��KRZHYHU��WKH�WHDFKHU�KDG�WR
FDQFHO�WKH�SUHVHQWDWLRQ�GXULQJ�D�OHDYH�RI�DEVHQFH��DQG�D�ıHOG�WULS�WKDW�ZDV�GLVFXVVHG�HDUOLHU�LQ�WKH
VFKRRO�\HDU�ZDV�QRW�DOORZHG�GXH�WR�WKH�VFKRROŖV�&29,'�SURWRFROV�DQG�WKH�ULVH�LQ�FDVHV�DW�WKDW
WLPH��7KH�SUHVHQWDWLRQ�DQG�WKH�ıHOG�WULS�WR�WKH�XSSHU�&ROPD�&UHHN�ZDWHUVKHG�RQ�6DQ�%UXQR
0RXQWDLQ�KDYH�EHHQ�UHVFKHGXOHG�IRU�WKH�IDOO�VHPHVWHU�RI������

�



�



���3XEOLF�:DONLQJ�7RXUV�DQG�(YHQWV�DW�&ROPD�&UHHN �������������KRXUV�

6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ�:DWFK�KRVWHG�ıYH�SXEOLF�HYHQWV�DORQJ�&ROPD�&UHHN��RQ�)HEUXDU\���WK�
)HEUXDU\���WK��0DUFK���WK��$SULO��WK��DQG�0D\��WK�RI�����������SDUWLFLSDQWV�DWWHQGHG�WKHVH�ıYH
HYHQWV��7KHVH�SURJUDPV�LQYROYHG�D�ZDON�DORQJ�WKH�&ROPD�&UHHN�VKRUHOLQH�LQ�6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR�
IROORZHG�E\�YROXQWHHU�UHVWRUDWLRQ�DFWLYLWLHV�EHQHıWWLQJ�D�VDOW�PDUVK�WUDQVLWLRQDO�KDELWDW�DW�WKH�PRXWK
RI�&ROPD�&UHHN��(DFK�SDUWLFLSDQW�UHFHLYHG�DQ�LQWHUSUHWLYH�ERRNOHW�DERXW�WKH�&ROPD�&UHHN
ZDWHUVKHG��ZKLFK�ZDV�SUHVHQWHG�DQG�GLVFXVVHG�DORQJ�WKH�VKRUHOLQH�ZDON��7KH�UHVWRUDWLRQ�DFWLYLWLHV
LQFOXGHG�WKH�UHPRYDO�RI�LQYDVLYH��QRQ�QDWLYH�VSHFLHV�VXFK�DV�LFH�SODQW��ZLOG�UDGLVK��IHQQHO��DQG
,WDOLDQ�WKLVWOH�IURP�WKH�VKRUHOLQH�KDELWDW��)ROORZLQJ�LQYDVLYH�SODQW�UHPRYDO�HĳRUWV��SDUWLFLSDQWV
SODQWHG�����QDWLYH�JUDVVODQG�DQG�VDOW�PDUVK�SODQWV�DV�VKRZQ�LQ�WKH�WDEOH�EHORZ�

7KHVH�HYHQWV�SURYLGHG�WKH�JHQHUDO�SXEOLF�ZLWK�DQ�RSSRUWXQLW\�WR�OHDUQ�DERXW�WKH�YDULHW\�RI
FKDOOHQJHV�IDFHG�E\�WKH�FUHHN�DQG�WKH�HĳRUWV�WR�LPSURYH�WKH�KHDOWK�RI�WKH�&ROPD�&UHHN�HFRV\VWHP�
E\�DFWLYHO\�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�LQ�FUHHN�VWHZDUGVKLS�WKURXJK�KDELWDW�UHVWRUDWLRQ�

�



1H[W�6WHSV

��



��



$SSHQGL[

��



��



��



1H[W�6WHSV

6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ�:DWFK�DLPV�WR�FRQWLQXH�SURYLGLQJ�RSSRUWXQLWLHV�IRU�ORFDO�FRPPXQLWLHV�WR�OHDUQ
DERXW�DQG�FDUH�IRU�WKH�&ROPD�&UHHN�ZDWHUVKHG�

:H�DSSUHFLDWH�WKH�VXSSRUW�RI�WKH�7RZQ�RI�&ROPD�IRU�RXU�ŗ([SORULQJ�&ROPD�&UHHNŖV�3DVW��3UHVHQW�
DQG�)XWXUHŘ�SURMHFW�DQG�ORRN�IRUZDUG�WR�FUHDWLQJ�PRUH�LQWHUSUHWLYH�PDWHULDO�DERXW�WKH�FUHHN�
FRQWLQXLQJ�WR�HQJDJH�VWXGHQWV�ZLWK�RSSRUWXQLWLHV�WR�OHDUQ�DERXW�DQG�YLVLW�GLĳHUHQW�SDUWV�RI�WKH
ZDWHUVKHG��DQG�OHDGLQJ�DGGLWLRQDO�FRPPXQLW\�EDVHG�HFRORJLFDO�UHVWRUDWLRQ�HYHQWV�WR�LPSURYH�FUHHN
KDELWDW�

��



$SSHQGL[

��



��



��



.ƦűŁŒŵĪŊĞɵƄĦąɵűÚŻƄɌɵ
űŵąŻąŊƄɌɵÚŊþɵĜƊƄƊŵą
ŒĜɵ�ŒŁňÚɵ�ŵąąĽ



¡�pɵ��°pxɵnx°pª�RpɵÇ�ª�N
.øŒŁŒĞĪøÚŁɵ�ąŻƄŒŵÚƄĪŒŊɵɡɵpÚƄĪƠąɵ�ŁÚŊƄɵpƊŵŻąŵƧɵɡɵ.þƊøÚƄĪŒŊɵɡɵ�ŒŊŻąŵƠÚƄĪŒŊɵ�þƠŒøÚøƧ

ÇąɵĪŊŻűĪŵąɵÚűűŵąøĪÚƄĪŒŊɵĜŒŵɵƄĦąɵŊÚƄƊŵÚŁɵÚŊþɵøƊŁƄƊŵÚŁɵĦĪŻƄŒŵĪąŻɵŒĜɵ¡ÚŊɵ
�ŵƊŊŒɵnŒƊŊƄÚĪŊɵÚŊþɵűŵŒƠĪþąɵŒűűŒŵƄƊŊĪƄĪąŻɵĜŒŵɵűąŒűŁąɵƄŒɵøŒňňƊŊÚŁŁƧɵ
øÚŵąɵĜŒŵɵƄĦąɵňŒƊŊƄÚĪŊɋ
ɵ

ɵɵɵÚŵĪąŁʫňŒƊŊƄÚĪŊơÚƄøĦɋŒŵĞɵɤɵɵơơơɋňŒƊŊƄÚĪŊơÚƄøĦɋŒŵĞɵɤɵɵ

�ŵĪąŁɵ�ĦąŵöŒơŻĽƧɵ�ŒŵĽĪþĪ
%ĪŵąøƄŒŵɵŒĜɵ¡ÚŊɵ�ŵƊŊŒɵnŒƊŊƄÚĪŊɵÇÚƄøĦɵ



Ⱥɋ ÇĦÚƄɵĪŻɵ�ŒŁňÚɵ�ŵąąĽɒ
Ȼɋ ÇĦÚƄɵĪŻɵƄĦąɵ�ŒŁňÚɵ�ŵąąĽɵơÚƄąŵŻĦąþɒ
ȼɋ ÇĦÚƄɵűŁÚŊƄŻɵÚŊþɵÚŊĪňÚŁŻɵŁĪƠąɵĪŊɵÚŊþɵÚŁŒŊĞɵƄĦąɵøŵąąĽɒ
Ƚɋ NŒơɵĦÚƠąɵűąŒűŁąɵĪŊƄąŵÚøƄąþɵơĪƄĦɵ�ŒŁňÚɵ�ŵąąĽɵĪŊɵƄĦąɵűÚŻƄɒ
Ⱦɋ NŒơɵĦÚƠąɵűąŒűŁąɵøĦÚŊĞąþɵƄĦąɵøŵąąĽɒ
ȿɋ NŒơɵøÚŊɵơąɵøÚŵąɵĜŒŵɵƄĦąɵøŵąąĽɒ

�ŵąąĽɵ�ƊąŻƄĪŒŊŻ







7KH�EHJLQQLQJV�RI�$SULO�%URRN��7ULEXWDU\�RI�&ROPD�&UHHN�







ɩ�ŒŁňÚɵ�ŵąąĽɌɵÚɵƄŵĪöƊƄÚŵƧɵƄŒɵ¡ÚŊɵDŵÚŊøĪŻøŒɵ�ÚƧɌ
þŵÚĪŊŻɵÚɵȺȿɋȼɡŻŴƊÚŵąɡňĪŁąɵÚŵąÚɋɪ

ɩ.ŁąƠÚƄĪŒŊŻɵŵÚŊĞąɵĜŵŒňɵŻąÚɵŁąƠąŁɵÚƄɵƄĦąɵňŒƊƄĦɵŒĜ
�ŒŁňÚɵ�ŵąąĽɵƄŒɵňŒŵąɵƄĦÚŊɵȺɌȼȹȹɵĜąąƄɵÚöŒƠąɵňąÚŊ
ŻąÚɵŁąƠąŁɵŒŊɵ¡ÚŊɵ�ŵƊŊŒɵnŒƊŊƄÚĪŊɋɪ

ɩªĦąɵøŁĪňÚƄąɵŒĜɵƄĦąɵ�ŒŁňÚɵ�ŵąąĽɵöÚŻĪŊɵĪŻɵƄƧűĪøÚŁɵŒĜ
ƄĦąɵ¡ÚŊɵDŵÚŊøĪŻøŒɵ�ąŊĪŊŻƊŁÚɋɵ¡ƊňňąŵŻɵÚŵą
øĦÚŵÚøƄąŵĪưąþɵöƧɵŁŒŊĞɵűąŵĪŒþŻɵŒĜɵơÚŵňɌɵþŵƧɵơąÚƄĦąŵ
ơĪƄĦɵŁĪƄƄŁąɵűŵąøĪűĪƄÚƄĪŒŊɌɵÚŊþɵơĪŊƄąŵŻɵÚŵąɵňĪŁþɵÚŊþ
ĦƊňĪþɋɵ�öŒƊƄɵɁȾɵűąŵøąŊƄɵŒĜɵƄĦąɵÚŊŊƊÚŁɵŵÚĪŊĜÚŁŁ
ŒøøƊŵŻɵþƊŵĪŊĞɵƄĦąɵȾɡňŒŊƄĦɵűąŵĪŒþɵĜŵŒňɵpŒƠąňöąŵ
ƄĦŵŒƊĞĦɵnÚŵøĦɋɪ

cŊŒƄƄɌɵaɋnɋɵɛȺɂɀȼɜɵ.ƴąøƄŻɵŒĜɵ°ŵöÚŊĪưÚƄĪŒŊɵŒŊɵ¡ąþĪňąŊƄÚƄĪŒŊ
ÚŊþɵDŁŒŒþɵDŁŒơŻɵĪŊɵƄĦąɵ�ŒŁňÚɵ�ŵąąĽɵ�ÚŻĪŊɋɵnąŊŁŒɵ�ÚŵĽɌ
�ÚŁĪĜŒŵŊĪÚɋɵ°ɋ¡ɋɵ%ąűƄɋɵŒĜɵƄĦąɵRŊƄąŵĪŒŵɌɵFąŒŁŒĞĪøÚŁɵ¡ƊŵƠąƧɌ
ÇÚƄąŵɵ�ąŻŒƊŵøąŻɵ%ĪƠĪŻĪŒŊɋ



�ŁÚŊƄɵ�ŒňňƊŊĪƄƧɵ%ĪƠąŵŻĪƄƧɵŒŊ
¡ÚŊɵ�ŵƊŊŒɵnŒƊŊƄÚĪŊ

�ǯĿȂǄǸȂĘǪƁȵƨǄǸϔƈƴĻǯƈĿĘȂĘ

ĦƄƄűŻɍɘɘơơơɋňŒƊŊƄÚĪŊơÚƄøĦɋŒŵĞɘĽĪŒŻĽąƦĦĪöĪƄ



ĦƄƄűŻɍɘɘơơơɋňŒƊŊƄÚĪŊơÚƄøĦɋŒŵĞɘĽĪŒŻĽąƦĦĪöĪƄ



ĦƄƄűŻɍɘɘơơơɋňŒƊŊƄÚĪŊơÚƄøĦɋŒŵĞɘĽĪŒŻĽąƦĦĪöĪƄ



ªN.ɵDxFɵ�xF



ªN.ɵDxFɵ�xF
DŒĞ

�ɵøŁŒƊþɵŒĜɵŻňÚŁŁɵơÚƄąŵɵþŵŒűŁąƄŻ
ÚƄɵŒŵɵŊąÚŵɵƄĦąɵŻƊŵĜÚøąɵŒĜɵƄĦąɵ.ÚŵƄĦ

�ŒĞ

ɩơąƄɌɵŻŒĜƄɌɵŻűŒŊĞƧɵĞŵŒƊŊþ
ơĪƄĦɵŻŒĪŁɵøĦĪąƸƧɵøŒňűŒŻąþ
ŒĜɵþąøÚƧĪŊĞɵƠąĞąƄÚöŁąɵňÚƄƄąŵɌɪ
øɋȺȾȹȹɌɵĜŵŒňɵFÚąŁĪøɵÚŊþɵRŵĪŻĦɵöŒĞÚøĦ
ɛxŊŁĪŊąɵ.ƄƧňŒŁŒĞƧɵ%ĪøƄĪŒŊÚŵƧɜ

ɩ�ɵŁŒơɵŁƧĪŊĞɵÚŵąÚɵŻÚƄƊŵÚƄąþɵơĪƄĦɵơÚƄąŵɵøŵąÚƄąŻɵÚɵĦŒŁŁŒơɵŒĜɵþąøŒňűŒŻąþɵƠąĞąƄÚƄĪŒŊɵĪŊɵơąƄɌɵŻűŒŊĞƧɵ
ĞŵŒƊŊþɋɵɋɵɋªĦąɵĞŵŒƊŊþɵŻĪŊĽŻɵƊŊþąŵĜŒŒƄɤøŒŁŁÚűŻąŻɌɵŻƊøĽŻɵƊŊþąŵɋɵRƄɵĪŻɵÚɵŊąƄĦąŵơŒŵŁþɵþĪňŁƧɡŁĪƄɌɵÚŊþɵÚɵ
ŵÚŊĽɵŻňąŁŁɵĦÚŊĞŻɵĪŊɵƄĦąɵÚĪŵɋɵÍąƄɵÚɵöŒĞɵĪŻɵĜÚŵɵĜŵŒňɵþąÚþɋɵɋɵɋɪ
ɛNŒňąɵFŵŒƊŊþɍɵ�ɵFƊĪþąɵƄŒɵƄĦąɵ�ňąŵĪøÚŊɵfÚŊþŻøÚűąɵąþĪƄąþɵöƧɵ�ÚŵŵƧɵfŒűąưɵʬɵ%ąöŵÚɵFơÚŵƄŊąƧɜ



6DQ�)UDQFLVFR�IURP�6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ��������$QVHO�$GDPV�



&ROPD�&UHHNŖV�KHDGZDWHUV�DQG�6DQ�)UDQFLVFRŖV�KLJK�WRZHUV��







&ROPD�&UHHN��EHIRUH�
*XDGDOXSH�&DQ\RQ�3DUNZD\��
����V��-DPHV�5RRI



&DOLIRUQLD�EHH�SODQW�DQG�FRZ�SDUVQLS�LQ�EORRP�EHQHDWK�ZLOORZV��



&UHHN�GRJZRRG��



%HUULHV�DQG�EDUH�VWHPV�RI�SRLVRQ�RDN��



3DFLıF�EODFNEHUU\��



:
HV
WH
UQ
�V
Z
RU
G�
IH
UQ
�D
QG
�F
Rĳ
HH
�E
HU
U\
��



&ROPD�&UHHN�+HDGZDWHUV�:HW�0HDGRZ�



�ŒŁňÚɵ�ŵąąĽɵ�ĪŵþŁĪĜąɍ
ÇĪŊĞŻɵ�ňŒŊĞɵƄĦąɵÇąƄŁÚŊþŻ
.ƦøąŵűƄŻɵĜŵŒňɵƄĦąɵ¡ąŴƊŒĪÚɵ�ƊþŒöŒŊɵ¡ŒøĪąƄƧɵÚöŒƊƄɵƄĦąɵÚöƊŊþÚŊƄɵöĪŵþŁĪĜąɵĜŒƊŊþɵĪŊɵ
ƄĦąɵĦąÚþơÚƄąŵŻɵŒĜɵ�ŒŁňÚɵ�ŵąąĽɏɵ
ɛĦƄƄűɍɘɘöĪŵþĪŊĞɋŻąŴƊŒĪÚɡÚƊþƊöŒŊɋŒŵĞɘþąŻøŵĪűƄĪŒŊɋűĦűɒŁŒøʕȺɀʬűʕȹɜɵ

ɩRŊɵƄĦąɵöŒĞĞƧɵÚŵąÚŻɵƧŒƊɵøÚŊɵĦąÚŵɵƄĦąɵ�ŒňňŒŊɵÍąŁŁŒơƄĦŵŒÚƄɵ
þąĜąŊþĪŊĞɵĪƄŻɵƄąŵŵĪƄŒŵƧɋɪ

�ŒňňŒŊɵÍąŁŁŒơƄĦŵŒÚƄɵÇÚŵöŁąŵ
ɛɵFąŒƄĦŁƧűĪŻɵƄŵĪøĦÚŻɵɜ



�ŒŁňÚɵ�ŵąąĽɵ�ĪŵþŁĪĜąɍ
ÇĪŊĞŻɵ�ňŒŊĞɵƄĦąɵÇąƄŁÚŊþŻ
ɩRŊɵơąƄɵƧąÚŵŻɌɵÚɵŻňÚŁŁɵűŒŊþɵĦÚŻɵöąąŊɵÚɵŊąŻƄĪŊĞɵŻĪƄąɵĜŒŵɵÚɵűÚĪŵɵ
ŒĜɵnÚŁŁÚŵþŻɵÚŊþɵÚɵơĪŊƄąŵɵĦŒňąɵĜŒŵɵÚɵűÚĪŵɵŒĜɵÇĪŁŻŒŊɲŻɵ¡ŊĪűąɋɪ

ɋ

nÚŁŁÚŵþ
ɛɵ�ŊÚŻɵűŁÚƄƧŵĦƧŊøĦŒŻɵɜ

ÇĪŁŻŒŊɬŻɵ¡ŊĪűą
ɛɵFÚŁŁĪŊÚĞŒɵþąŁĪøÚƄÚɵɜ



�ŒŁňÚɵ�ŵąąĽɵ�ĪŵþŁĪĜąɍ
ÇĪŊĞŻɵ�ňŒŊĞɵƄĦąɵÇąƄŁÚŊþŻ
ɩxøøÚŻĪŒŊÚŁŁƧɵĞŁÚŊøąɵƊűơÚŵþɵÚŊþɵƧŒƊɵňÚƧɵöąɵŵąơÚŵþąþɵơĪƄĦɵ
ÚɵƠĪąơɵŒĜɵŒŊąɵŒĜɵƄĦąɵňÚŊƧɵŵÚűƄŒŵŻɵƄĦÚƄɵŻÚĪŁɵŒƠąŵɵƄĦĪŻɵÚŵąÚɋɵ
pŒŵƄĦąŵŊɵNÚŵŵĪąŵŻɌɵÇĦĪƄąɡƄÚĪŁąþɵcĪƄąŻɌɵ�ąþɡɵŻĦŒƊŁþąŵąþɵ
NÚơĽŻɏÚŻɵơąŁŁɵÚŻɵÚɵŵąŻĪþąŊƄɵűÚĪŵɵŒĜɵ�ąþɡƄÚĪŁąþɵNÚơĽŻɵĦÚƠąɵ
ĜŵąŴƊąŊƄąþɵƄĦąɵÚŵąÚɋɵɋɵɋɪ

ɋ

�ąþɡƄÚĪŁąþɵNÚơĽ
ɛɵ�ƊƄąŒɵĺÚňÚĪøąŊŻĪŻɵɜ

�ąþɡŻĦŒƊŁþąŵąþɵNÚơĽ
ɛɵ�ƊƄąŒɵŁĪŊąÚƄƊŻɵɜ

ÇĦĪƄąɡƄÚĪŁąþɵcĪƄą
ɛɵ.ŁÚŊƊŻɵŁąƊøƊŵƊŻɵɜ



�ŒŁňÚɵ�ŵąąĽɵ�ĪŵþŁĪĜąɍ
ÇĪŊĞŻɵ�ňŒŊĞɵƄĦąɵÇąƄŁÚŊþŻ
ɩxøøÚŻĪŒŊÚŁŁƧɵĞŁÚŊøąɵƊűơÚŵþɵÚŊþɵƧŒƊɵňÚƧɵöąɵŵąơÚŵþąþɵơĪƄĦɵ
ÚɵƠĪąơɵŒĜɵŒŊąɵŒĜɵƄĦąɵňÚŊƧɵŵÚűƄŒŵŻɵƄĦÚƄɵŻÚĪŁɵŒƠąŵɵƄĦĪŻɵÚŵąÚɋɵ
pŒŵƄĦąŵŊɵNÚŵŵĪąŵŻɌɵÇĦĪƄąɡƄÚĪŁąþɵcĪƄąŻɌɵ�ąþɡɵŻĦŒƊŁþąŵąþɵ
NÚơĽŻɏÚŻɵơąŁŁɵÚŻɵÚɵŵąŻĪþąŊƄɵűÚĪŵɵŒĜɵ�ąþɡƄÚĪŁąþɵNÚơĽŻɵĦÚƠąɵ
ĜŵąŴƊąŊƄąþɵƄĦąɵÚŵąÚɋɵɋɵɋɪ

ɋ

pŒŵƄĦąŵŊɵNÚŵŵĪąŵ
ɛɵ�ĪŵøƊŻɵĦƊþŻŒŊĪƊŻɵɜ



�ŒŁňÚɵ�ŵąąĽɵ�ĪŵþŁĪĜąɍ
ÇĪŊĞŻɵ�ňŒŊĞɵƄĦąɵÇąƄŁÚŊþŻ
ɩRŊɵnÚƧɵÚŊþɵaƊŊąɵƧŒƊɵÚŵąɵŻąŵąŊÚþąþɵöƧɵƄĦąɵąƄĦąŵąÚŁɵŻŒŊĞɵŒĜɵ
¡ơÚĪŊŻŒŊɲŻɵªĦŵƊŻĦɪ

ɋ

¡ơÚĪŊŻŒŊɬŻɵªĦŵƊŻĦ
ɛɵ�ĪŵøƊŻɵĦƊþŻŒŊĪƊŻɵɜ



�ƊƄƄąŵƸĪąŻɵĜŒƊŊþɵơĪƄĦĪŊɵ
ƄĦąɵ�ŒŁňÚɵ�ŵąąĽɵÇÚƄąŵŻĦąþ
.ƦÚňűŁąɍɵ¡ÚŊɵ�ŵƊŊŒɵ.ŁƷŊ

ÇĦÚƄɵÚŵąɵøŵĪƄĪøÚŁɵĜąÚƄƊŵąŻɵŒĜɵ¡ÚŊɵ�ŵƊŊŒɵ.ŁƷŊɵĦÚöĪƄÚƄɒɵ

ªĦąɵ¡ÚŊɵ�ŵƊŊŒɵ.ŁƷŊɵöƊƄƄąŵƸƧɵŒŊŁƧɵĦÚŻɵŒŊąɵɩĦŒŻƄɵűŁÚŊƄɌɪɵơĦĪøĦɵĪŻɵƄĦąɵöŵŒÚþɡŁąÚƠąþɵ
ŻƄŒŊąøŵŒűɵɛ¡ąþƊňɵŻűÚƄĦƊŁĪĜŒŁĪƊňɜɋɵªĦąɵĜąňÚŁąɵöƊƄƄąŵƸĪąŻɵþąűŒŻĪƄɵąĞĞŻɵŒŊɵƄĦąɵ�ÚøĪƷøɵ
ŻƄŒŊąøŵŒűɎɵơĦąŊɵƄĦąɵŁÚŵƠÚąɵĦÚƄøĦɌɵƄĦąƧɵĜąąþɵŒŊɵƄĦąɵŁąÚƠąŻɵÚŊþɵƸŒơąŵŻɵŒĜɵƄĦĪŻɵűŁÚŊƄɋ

ªĦąɵÚþƊŁƄɵöƊƄƄąŵƸĪąŻɵĜąąþɵŒŊɵɩŊąøƄÚŵɵűŁÚŊƄŻɌɪɵąŻűąøĪÚŁŁƧɵĜŒŒƄĦĪŁŁɵþąŻąŵƄɡűÚŵŻŁąƧɵ
ɛfŒňÚƄĪƊňɵƊƄŵĪøƊŁÚƄƊňɜɋ

¡ŒɌɵƄĦąŻąɵöƊƄƄąŵƸĪąŻɵňƊŻƄɵŁĪƠąɵĪŊɵÚŵąÚŻɵơĦąŵąɵ�ÚøĪƷøɵŻƄŒŊąøŵŒűɵÚŊþɵĜŒŒƄĦĪŁŁɵ
þąŻąŵƄɡűÚŵŻŁąƧɵÚŵąɵĞŵŒơĪŊĞɐ



�7?�,7�A7=�*17*41<B��
�

.ƦűŁŒŵĪŊĞɵƄĦąɵfĪĜąɵ
ŒĜɵƄĦąɵÇÚƄąŵŻĦąþ
ϔ

°ŻĪŊĞɵĪpÚƄƊŵÚŁĪŻƄ





















ÇĦąŵąɵþŒąŻɵ�ŒŁňÚɵ�ŵąąĽɵƄŵÚƠąŁɵÚŻɵĪƄɵƸŒơŻɵĜŵŒňɵ¡ÚŊɵ
�ŵƊŊŒɵnŒƊŊƄÚĪŊɵƄŒɵƄĦąɵ¡ÚŊɵDŵÚŊøĪŻøŒɵ�ÚƧɒ

�ŵąąĽɵ�ƊąŻƄĪŒŊ



$�3KRWRJUDSKLF�	�+LVWRULFDO�-RXUQH\�
)ROORZLQJ�&ROPD�&UHHN
)URP�6DQ�%UXQR�0RXQWDLQ�WR�WKH�%D\
E\�$ULHO�&KHUERZVN\�&RUNLGL



&ROPD�&UHHN�RQ�WKH�PDUJLQV�RI�
*XDGDOXSH�&DQ\RQ�3DUNZD\��



8UEDQ�ZDWHUIDOO���



3DVVDJH�RYHU�DQG�XQGHU��



'XFN�FURVVLQJ�



:DWHU�DQG�ZLOORZV�LPSULVRQHG�



/HDYHV�EHKLQG�EDUV��



&KDLQ�OLQN�FUHHN��



&RQFUHWH�&UHHN�





7KH�&UHHN�&UHZ�



&DQDO�GXFNV��



+HDGVWRQHV�IDFLQJ�ZLOORZV��



)ORZHU�SURGXFWLRQ�DORQJ�&ROPD�&UHHN��



)ORZHU�SRWV�DORQJ�WKH�EDQNV�RI�&ROPD�&UHHN��



5HPQDQW�FRDVW�OLYH�RDN�RQ�WKH�
QHZ�FUHHN���



7KH�LQGXVWULDO�FUHHN��



*XPSODQW�DQG�WKH�UDLQ\��ULVLQJ�ZDWHUV�RI�&ROPD�&UHHN��



&DQDGD�JHHVH�JOLGH�WKURXJK�WKH�UDLQ��



6QRZ\�HJUHW��SLFNOHZHHG��DQG�SODVWLF��



%ODFN�QHFNHG�VWLOWV�LQ�ĲLJKW�DERYH�&ROPD�&UHHN��



0DUEOHG�JRGZLWV�RYHUKHDG�DQG�RYHUFDVW�VN\��



7KH�HGJHV�RI�DQ�LQGXVWULDO�FUHHN��



:DUHKRXVH�URRIWRS�WULEXWDU\��



*UHDW�EOXH�KHURQ��JUH\�ZDWHU��DQG�IRJJ\�UDLQ��















NŒơɵĦÚƠąɵűąŒűŁąɵĪŊƄąŵÚøƄąþɵơĪƄĦɵ�ŒŁňÚɵ�ŵąąĽɵĪŊɵƄĦąɵ
űÚŻƄɒ

NŒơɵĦÚƠąɵűąŒűŁąɵøĦÚŊĞąþɵƄĦąɵøŵąąĽɒ

�ŵąąĽɵ�ƊąŻƄĪŒŊ



%HHOHU��0���ŗ6RQRPD��&DUTXLQH]��8PXQKXP��&ROPD��6RPH�'LVSXWHG�&DOLIRUQLD�
1DPHV�Ř�:HVWHUQ�)RONORUH��9RO������1R�����2FW�����������SS����������



¡�pɵ��°pxɵnx°pª�RpɵR¡ɵ��n�Íª°¡NɵxNfxp.ɵf�p%

nƊŵÚŁɵĜŵŒňɵxĦŁŒŊąɵ�ÚŵĽɵĪŊɵ�ąŵĽąŁąƧ



¡�pɵ��°pxɵnx°pª�RpɵR¡ɵ��n�Íª°¡NɵxNfxp.ɵf�p%

nƊŵÚŁɵĜŵŒňɵxĦŁŒŊąɵ�ÚŵĽɵĪŊɵ�ąŵĽąŁąƧ



¡�pɵ��°pxɵnx°pª�RpɵR¡ɵ��n�Íª°¡NɵxNfxp.ɵf�p%

nƊŵÚŁɵĜŵŒňɵ�ňƄŵÚĽɵ¡ƄÚƄĪŒŊɵĪŊɵ�ąŵĽąŁąƧ



�ÚňÚƧƄƊŻĦɵxĦŁŒŊąɵɡɵªĦąɵRŊþĪĞąŊŒƊŻɵ�ąŒűŁąɵŒĜɵ¡ÚŊɵ�ŵƊŊŒɵnŒƊŊƄÚĪŊ

ĦƄƄűŻɍɘɘơơơɋňŒƊŊƄÚĪŊơÚƄøĦɋŒŵĞɘĽĪŒŻĽąƦĦĪöĪƄ



�ÚňÚƧƄƊŻĦɵxĦŁŒŊąɵɡɵªĦąɵRŊþĪĞąŊŒƊŻɵ�ąŒűŁąɵŒĜɵ¡ÚŊɵ�ŵƊŊŒɵnŒƊŊƄÚĪŊ

ĦƄƄűŻɍɘɘơơơɋňŒƊŊƄÚĪŊơÚƄøĦɋŒŵĞɘĽĪŒŻĽąƦĦĪöĪƄ



xĦŁŒŊąɵ�ƊŁƄƊŵąɵÚŊþɵªŵÚþĪƄĪŒŊŻɵ�ąňÚĪŊɵ�øƄĪƠąɵÚŊþɵDŵƊĪƄĜƊŁɵĪŊɵƄĦąɵ�ŵąŻąŊƄɵ%ÚƧ

ɩ�öŒƊƄɵȻȹɵƧąÚŵŻɵÚĞŒɌɵxĦŁŒŊąɵöÚŻĽąƄơąÚƠąŵɵfĪŊþÚɵÍÚňÚŊąɵ
öąĞÚŊɵŵąŻąÚŵøĦĪŊĞɵƄĦąŻąɵŵąňÚĪŊĪŊĞɵöÚŻĽąƄŻɋɵɵ¡ƄƊþƧĪŊĞɵ
ąƄĦŊŒĞŵÚűĦĪøɵƷąŁþɵŊŒƄąŻɵÚŊþɵƄÚűűĪŊĞɵĪŊƄŒɵƄĦąɵĽŊŒơŁąþĞąɵŒĜɵ
øŒŊƄąňűŒŵÚŵƧɵöÚŻĽąƄơąÚƠąŵŻɵơĦŒɵƊŻąɵƄĦąɵŻÚňąɵűŁÚŊƄɵ
ňÚƄąŵĪÚŁŻɵÚŻɵƄĦąɵxĦŁŒŊąɌɵfĪŊþÚɵňÚþąɵĦąŵɵƷŵŻƄɵƄŵÚþĪƄĪŒŊÚŁɵ
öÚŻĽąƄɵĪŊɵȺɂɂȽɋɵɵRƄɵơÚŻɵƄĦąɵƷŵŻƄɵxĦŁŒŊąɵöÚŻĽąƄɵƄŒɵöąɵňÚþąɵĪŊɵ
ŒƠąŵɵȺȾȹɵƧąÚŵŻɋɪ

ĦƄƄűŻɍɘɘơơơɋÚøƄÚŒŊŁĪŊąɋŒŵĞɘűŵŒƷŁąɘŁĪŊþÚɡƧÚňÚŊąɘ
ĦƄƄűŻɍɘɘŻŁøŒŊŻąŵƠÚŊøƧɋŒŵĞɘĪŊŻűĪŵąɘŁĪŊþÚɡƧÚňÚŊąɡÚŊþɡøąŵąňŒŊĪÚŁɡöÚŻĽąƄɡøơɡȾɘ

ɩfĪŊþÚɵÍÚňÚŊąɬŻɵĜąÚƄĦąŵąþɵöÚŻĽąƄɌɵňÚþąɵĜŵŒňɵơĪŁŁŒơɵŻƄĪøĽŻɌɵ
ŻąþĞąɵŵĦĪưŒňąŻɌɵŵąþơĪŊĞɵöŁÚøĽöĪŵþɵĜąÚƄĦąŵŻɌɵňÚŁŁÚŵþɵþƊøĽɵ
ĜąÚƄĦąŵŻɌɵÚŊþɵŒŁĪƠąŁŁÚɵŻĦąŁŁɵöąÚþŻɋɪ



xĦŁŒŊąɵ�ƊŁƄƊŵąɵÚŊþɵªŵÚþĪƄĪŒŊŻɵ�ąňÚĪŊɵ�øƄĪƠąɵÚŊþɵDŵƊĪƄĜƊŁɵĪŊɵƄĦąɵ�ŵąŻąŊƄɵ%ÚƧ

ɩDŒŵɵƄĦŒƊŻÚŊþŻɵŒĜɵƧąÚŵŻɌɵĪŊþĪĞąŊŒƊŻɵűąŒűŁąŻɵƄĦŵŒƊĞĦŒƊƄɵƄĦąɵ
øƊŵŵąŊƄɡþÚƧɵ�ÚƧɵ�ŵąÚɵƊŻąþɵƄƊŁąɵŵąąþŻɵƄŒɵøŵąÚƄąɵÚɵŵÚŊĞąɵŒĜɵ
ƄŒŒŁŻɌɵøŁŒƄĦĪŊĞɌɵÚŊþɵąŴƊĪűňąŊƄɌɵĪŊøŁƊþĪŊĞɵƠÚŵĪÚƄĪŒŊŻɵŒĜɵŵąąþɵ
öŒÚƄŻɌɵňŒŻƄŁƧɵƊŻąþɵĜŒŵɵƷŻĦĪŊĞɵÚŊþɵƄŵÚŊŻűŒŵƄÚƄĪŒŊɋ

ªĦąɵ¡ąÚŻĪþąɵŵąŻĪþąŊƄɵøŒŊŻƄŵƊøƄŻɵĦąŵɵöŒÚƄŻɌɵøÚŁŁąþɵĽœŊŒŊɵĪŊɵ
ĦąŵɵnŒŊƄąŵąƧɡÚŵąÚɵ�ƊňŻĪąŊɵxĦŁŒŊąɵŁÚŊĞƊÚĞąɌɵƊŻĪŊĞɵƄĦąɵƄƊŁąɵ
ŵąąþŻɵƄĦÚƄɵŻƄĪŁŁɵƸŒƊŵĪŻĦɵĪŊɵ�ÚŁĪĜŒŵŊĪÚɬŻɵơąƄŁÚŊþŻɋ

ɩnƧɵơŒŵĽɵƄŒɵöŵĪŊĞɵöÚøĽɵŁŒŊĞɡŁŒŻƄɵƄŵÚþĪƄĪŒŊŻɵĦÚŻɵöąąŊɵ
ŻÚƄĪŻĜƧĪŊĞɵŒŊɵŻŒɵňÚŊƧɵŁąƠąŁŻɌɵąŻűąøĪÚŁŁƧɵƄŒɵŻĦŒơøÚŻąɵƄĦąɵ
öąÚƊƄƧɵÚŊþɵøŒňűŁąƦĪƄƧɵŒĜɵxĦŁŒŊąɵøƊŁƄƊŵąɌɵöŒƄĦɵĜŒŵɵŒƊŵɵŒơŊɵ
øŒňňƊŊĪƄƧɵÚŊþɵÚŻɵÚɵơÚƧɵŒĜɵąþƊøÚƄĪŊĞɵƄĦąɵűƊöŁĪøɵÚƄɵŁÚŵĞąɌɪɵ
ŻÚƧŻɵƄĦąɵŻŒĜƄɡŻűŒĽąŊɵÚŵƄĪŻƄɋ

ĦƄƄűŻɍɘɘňÚĞÚưĪŊąɋŻøƊɋąþƊɘňÚĞÚưĪŊąŻɘơĪŊƄąŵɡȻȹȺɂɘƄƊŁąɡňÚĞŊĪƷøąŊƄɘ

ɩxĦŁŒŊąɵŊÚƄĪƠąɵÚŊþɵŻøĦŒŁÚŵɵ
fĪŊþÚɵÍÚňÚŊąɵűÚþþŁąŻɵÚɵƄƊŁąɵ
öŒÚƄɵŻĦąɵøŒŊŻƄŵƊøƄąþɵĜŒŵɵƄĦąɵ
nŒŊƄąŵąƧɵ�ÚƧɵ�ŴƊÚŵĪƊňɌɵ
ơĦĪøĦɵƊŻąŻɵĪƄɵĪŊɵÚŊɵ
ĪŊƄąŵÚøƄĪƠąɌɵąþƊøÚƄĪŒŊÚŁɵ
ŻĦŒơɋɪɵɘɵ
RňÚĞąɵøŒƊŵƄąŻƧɵnŒŊƄąŵąƧɵ
�ÚƧɵ�ŴƊÚŵĪƊň



���������������
ɵɵɵɵɵɵɵɵɵɵɵɵɵơơơɋňÚĽÚňĦÚňɋøŒň

ɩx°�ɵDxx%ɵR¡ɵ�fÇ�Í¡ɵ¡x°��.%ɵ
D�xnɵx°�ɵf�p%ɪ



ɩÇąɵơĪŁŁɵĦÚƠąɵĜŒƊŵɵþĪƴąŵąŊƄɵŁŒøÚŁɌɵpÚƄĪƠąɵƄąÚŻɵƄĦÚƄɵơąɵ
ĞÚƄĦąŵɵÚƄɵƄĦąɵŻƄÚŵƄɵŒĜɵąÚøĦɵơąąĽɵɤɵŵŒŻąɵĦĪűɌɵƧąŵöÚɵöƊąŊÚɌɵ
ĦƊňňĪŊĞöĪŵþɵŻÚĞąɌɵÚŵƄąňĪŻĪÚɌɵąŁþąŵöąŵŵƧɌɵöŁÚøĽɵŻÚĞąɌɵÚŊþɵ
ňÚŊưÚŊĪƄÚɵöąŵŵƧɵÚŵąɵŻŒňąɵƄĦÚƄɵơąɵơĪŁŁɵĦÚƠąɵŵąĞƊŁÚŵŁƧɌɵ
ơĦąŊɵƄĦąŻąɵűŁÚŊƄŻɵÚŵąɵÚƠÚĪŁÚöŁąɋɵÇąɵơĪŁŁɵþąŻøŵĪöąɵƄĦąɵ
ŁÚŊĞƊÚĞąɵÚŊþɵƄĦąɵøƊŁƄƊŵÚŁɵƊŻąŻɵŒĜɵƄĦąɵƄąÚŻɌɵÚŊþɵŒƊŵɵŁĪƠĪŊĞɵ
øŒŊŊąøƄĪŒŊŻɵƄŒɵƄĦąɵŒŁþɵűŁÚøąŻɵơĦąŵąɵƄĦąƧɲŵąɵĞÚƄĦąŵąþɌɵÚŻɵ
ơąŁŁɵÚŻɵƄĦąɵöąŊąƷƄŻɵƄĦąƧɵŒƴąŵɋɪ



ɩªĦąɵűŵĪňÚŵƧɵűƊŵűŒŻąɵŒĜɵňÚĽɡɬÚňĦÚňɵĪŻɵƄŒɵơŒŵĽɵĪŊɵøŒŁŁąøƄĪƠąɵ
ơÚƧŻɵơĪƄĦɵŒƊŵɵűąŒűŁąɵƄŒɵąňűŒơąŵɵƄĦąɵxĦŁŒŊąɵøŒňňƊŊĪƄƧɵơĪƄĦɵ
ŒƊŵɵƄŵÚþĪƄĪŒŊÚŁɵøƊŁƄƊŵąɵÚŊþɵŒƊŵɵĦąŵĪƄÚĞąɵĜŒŒþŻɵɤɵƄŒɵöąŻƄɵ
ÚøøŒňűŁĪŻĦɵƄĦĪŻɵĞŒÚŁɌɵĪŊƄąŊŻąɵÚňŒƊŊƄŻɵŒĜɵƄĪňąɵĪŻɵŻűąŊƄɵþĪŵąøƄŁƧɵ
ơĪƄĦɵŒƊŵɵªŵĪöąɵÚŊþɵøŒňňƊŊĪƄƧɵŒŊɵĞÚƄĦąŵĪŊĞɵƄŵĪűŻɌɵøŒŒĽĪŊĞɵ
øŁÚŻŻąŻɌɵÚŊþɵƄŵĪöÚŁɵĜƊŊøƄĪŒŊŻɵŻŒɵƄĦÚƄɵŒƊŵɵxĦŁŒŊąɵĜŒŒþŻɵŵąňÚĪŊɵÚɵ
ŁĪƠĪŊĞɌɵƄĦŵĪƠĪŊĞɵűÚŵƄɵŒĜɵŒƊŵɵøŒŊƄąňűŒŵÚŵƧɵøƊŁƄƊŵąɋɪ



8QLWHG�6WDWHV�'LVWULFW�&RXUW����������'LVHþR�GHO�5DQFKR�%XUL�
%XUL���6DQ�0DWHR�&R���&DOLI��%DQFURIW�/LEUDU\��8&�%HUNHOH\



0DWWKHZVRQ��5�&��3ODW�RI�WKH�5DQFKR�%XUL�%XUL��ıQDOO\�FRQıUPHG�WR�
-RVH�GH�OD�&UX]�6DQFKH]�HW�DO����>6DQ�0DWHR�&R���&DOLI�@���������0DS��
>��������@��%DQFURIW�/LEUDU\��8&�%HUNHOH\�



$HULDO�YLHZ�RI�HDVWHUQ�6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR�����V��66)�3XEOLF�/LEUDU\



ƁȂȂǪǸϝϫϫȭȭȭϛƴǄȎƷȂĘƈƷȭĘȂĿƁϛǄǯŰϫƢƈǄǸƢœȴƁƈĻƈȂ



86*6����������6DQ�
)UDQFLVFR�6RXWK�����0LQXWH�
4XDGUDQJOH��0DS��>��������@



86*6����������6DQ�
)UDQFLVFR�6RXWK�����0LQXWH�
4XDGUDQJOH��0DS��
>��������@



86*6����������6DQ�
)UDQFLVFR�6RXWK�����
0LQXWH�4XDGUDQJOH��
0DS��>��������@



86*6����������6DQ�
)UDQFLVFR�6RXWK�����
0LQXWH�4XDGUDQJOH��
0DS��>��������@



6SUXFH�$YHQXH�'ULYH�LQ�7KHDWHU��
�����ĲRRG�
6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR�3XEOLF�/LEUDU\



)ORRG�LQ�6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR��������
6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR�3XEOLF�/LEUDU\



)ORRG�LQ�6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR��������
6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR�3XEOLF�/LEUDU\







xøƄŒöąŵɵȾƄĦɌɵȺɂɀȹɵ
ªĦąɵ¡ÚŊɵDŵÚŊøĪŻøŒɵ.ƦÚňĪŊąŵ





NŒơɵøÚŊɵơąɵĪňűŵŒƠąɵƄĦąɵĦąÚŁƄĦɵŒĜɵ�ŒŁňÚɵ�ŵąąĽɒ

NŒơɵøÚŊɵơąɵƄÚĽąɵøÚŵąɵŒĜɵŒƊŵɵơÚƄąŵŻĦąþɒ

�ŵąąĽɵ�ƊąŻƄĪŒŊ







ÌǄȎǯĿœϝϔ`�ÌÌ:��ϔ
ƁȂȂǪǸϝϫϫȭȭȭϛƁĘǸǸœƨƨǸȂȎņƈǄϛĿǄƴϫǪǯǄƜœĿȂϫĿǄƨƴĘϮĿǯœœƢϮĘņĘǪȂĘȂƈǄƷϮǪƨĘƷƷƈƷŰ





ÌǄȎǯĿœϝϔ`�ÌÌ:��ϔƁȂȂǪǸϝϫϫȭȭȭϛƁĘǸǸœƨƨǸȂȎņƈǄϛĿǄƴϫǪǯǄƜœĿȂϫĿǄƨƴĘϮĿǯœœƢϮĘņĘǪȂĘȂƈǄƷϮǪƨĘƷƷƈƷŰ



)ORRG�LQ�6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR��������
6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR�3XEOLF�/LEUDU\



)ORRG�LQ�6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR��������
6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR�3XEOLF�/LEUDU\



)ORRG�LQ�6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR��������
6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR�3XEOLF�/LEUDU\



)ORRG�LQ�6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR��������
6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR�3XEOLF�/LEUDU\



)ORRG�LQ�6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR��������
6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR�3XEOLF�/LEUDU\



)ORRG�LQ�6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR��������
6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR�3XEOLF�/LEUDU\



)ORRG�LQ�6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR��������
6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR�3XEOLF�/LEUDU\



)ORRG�LQ�6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR��������
6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR�3XEOLF�/LEUDU\



)ORRG�LQ�6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR��������
6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR�3XEOLF�/LEUDU\



)ORRG�LQ�6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR��������
6RXWK�6DQ�)UDQFLVFR�3XEOLF�/LEUDU\















nŒƊƄĦɵŒĜɵ�ŒŁňÚɵ�ŵąąĽ





[ƺƧǍǳƧǩƜƧǍǳܪ�ǶƽǍƣƧǩǬܪۓ/ǓƝے



�ÚŊŊŒŊɌɵaŒąɋɵɛȻȹȹɁɜɋɵ�ŒŁňÚɵ�ŵąąĽɵNąÚþơÚƄąŵŻɵ�ąŻƄŒŵÚƄĪŒŊɵ�ŵŒĺąøƄɌɵ¡ÚŊɵ�ŵƊŊŒɵ
nŒƊŊƄÚĪŊɵ¡ƄÚƄąɵÚŊþɵ�ŒƊŊƄƧɵ�ÚŵĽɌɵDĪŊÚŁɵ�ąűŒŵƄɋɵªĦąɵÇÚƄąŵŻĦąþɵ�ŵŒĺąøƄɋ









ªĦÚŊĽɵƧŒƊɐ



.ƦűŁŒŵĪŊĞɵƄĦąɵűÚŻƄɌɵ
űŵąŻąŊƄɌɵÚŊþɵĜƊƄƊŵą
ŒĜɵ�ŒŁňÚɵ�ŵąąĽ ªĦÚŊĽɵƧŒƊɐ



6/26/2023  Page 1 of 6 
 

Town of Colma 
Non-Profit Funding Request Form 

(Exempt Organizations Only)  
FY 2023-24 

 

 
 
Please do NOT write “see attached” as a response to any of the questions. You must 
submit all answers on this form. You may submit additional attachments, but they 
will not replace any of the responses. 
 
 
Name of Organization:           
 
Contact Person:            
 
Address:             
  Street Address   City  State  Zip Code  
 
Phone Number:     Email Address: _______________________ 
 
1. Mission Statement: 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Amount of Request: $________________ 
 
 a. Total Agency Annual Budget: $_______________ 
 

b. Number of Agency Employees: _______________ 
 
c. Payroll is ________% of the Agency’s total Annual Budget. 

 
 
3.  Please identify a public purpose for the requested funding by identifying one of the 

following categories:  

A. Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;  
B. Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or 

Integrated Care Services;  
C. Educate and engage residents;  
D. Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business 

in the Town; or Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a 
service that the Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5FEB601B-E503-49C5-89C5-8661E8E150BA

X

jpascual@smcgov.org

89

455 County Center, 5th Floor Redwood City, CA 94063

 

2

 

The Jobs for Youth program supports San Mateo County youth ages 14-21 in 
achieving their career and higher education goals via our three pillars of 
success: skills workshops, job opportunities, and scholarships.

4,000

 

271,319.70

Jordy Pascual

650-363-4386

County of San Mateo Jobs for Youth 



6/26/2023  Page 2 of 6 
 

3a.       Describe how the funding will support the selected category: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Describe reason for request and how funds will be used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5FEB601B-E503-49C5-89C5-8661E8E150BA

By supporting the Jobs for Youth Scholarships, the Town of Colma helps high-need youth
 build a better future for themselves, their families and our communities. The Town of
 Colma generously provided $500 in 2016, $1,500 in 2017, $2,000 in 2018, $2,500 in 
2019, $3,000 in 2020, $3,000 in 2021, and $4,000 in 2022.

This fiscal year, Jobs for Youth is requesting $4,000 to fully fund two higher 
education scholarships. The Jobs for Youth Operating Budget is fully sustained by the 
County of San Mateo; 100% of all grant monies received will directly support San Mateo
 County youth in achieving their higher education vocational training and, ultimately,
 long-term career and financial goal that will benefit them and our society.

100% of funding will go directly to the Jobs for Youth Scholarship Trust Fund. Founded
 in 2005 by former Mayor of Daly City Al Teglia, the Scholarship trust fund was born 
out of the recognition that low-income Jobs for Youth participants needed support to 
achieve their higher education and vocational goals. The Scholarship Trust Fund is 
available to all San Mateo County youth ages 16-21 who are at least a high school 
junior with a 2.0 cumulative GPA and have attended at least one Jobs for Youth job 
skills workshop, with strong preference given to low-income youth who have encountered
 hardship. Jobs for Youth Scholars may only receive one JFY scholarship in their 
lifetime. 

In addition, Jobs for Youth provides Jobs for Youth members access to an online job 
board. New jobs are added to the job board daily to help youth find jobs near their 
home.  Jobs for Youth posts employment opportunities located in the Town of Colma to 
help youth connect to business and help with economic development. Some of the 
businesses are Men’s Wearhouse, Bath & Body Works, Ashley Home Store, Old Navy, Dollar
 Tree, Ross, Ulta Beauty, The Home Depot, Target, GameStop, Michael's, Office Depot, 
Chipotle.



6/26/2023  Page 3 of 6 
 

5. If the amount of the request is higher than the previous year, provide a detailed 
explanation of the need for the increase: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Describe the benefit to the Town derived from funding your organization: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5FEB601B-E503-49C5-89C5-8661E8E150BA

The Town of Colma’s 2023-25 strategic plan includes a focus on community, with planned
 programs to expose and develop lifelong skills for youth. By partnering with Jobs for
 Youth, the Town of Colma will be supported in achieving these goals.  Jobs for Youth 
offers various different workshops that help youth develop interpersonal skills, 
technical skills, job preparedness skills. Town of Colma youth who take one of our 
workshops not only become eligible for the scholarship, but also receive other 
exclusive benefits which include 1:1 mentoring, access to our youth focused job board,
 a monthly newsletter that highlights development opportunities, eligibility for our 
Summer Internship program in various departments throughout the County of San Mateo, 
and membership with the Jobs for Youth Alumni Association. 

N/A.  The JFY program is requesting the same amount. 



6/26/2023  Page 4 of 6 
 

7. Describe the following: 
A. Number of Colma residents or businesses (or both) served by the organization 
in the years prior to the grant application;  
B. The location(s) where Colma residents or businesses may receive the recipient 
organization’s services or programs; and  
C. The nature and extent of the efforts of the recipient organization to reach out 
to Colma residents and businesses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Provide a detailed account of how the FY 2022-23 contribution was used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5FEB601B-E503-49C5-89C5-8661E8E150BA

A. In the 2022-23 fiscal year, 324 students from Jefferson Union High School District 
and 286 students from the South San Francisco Unified High School District attended JFY
 workshops and became JFY members. 362 of these students live in Colma’s zip codes of 
94014 & 94080. 

B. Most youth attend workshops on the campus of their schools during the regular school
 day. JFY went to all the high schools in the Jefferson Union High School District and 
the South San Francisco Unified High School District. Some of our members attend 
virtual public workshops or workshops hosted by local libraries and local community 
organizations throughout the County.

C. JFY works closely with partners in schools and community organizations, including 
teachers and administrators at Jefferson Union High School District and the South San 
Francisco Unified High School District, to schedule workshops and advertise our 
Scholarship program to Colma students, parents, and staff. We also send JFY Members a 
monthly newsletter which features scholarship information, upcoming workshops, new job 
and volunteer opportunities, career development tips, and community resources and 
events.

The generous $4,000 contribution from the Town of Colma funded two full scholarships. 
Alexis Aguilar Frias and Gaby Ramos were each awarded $2,000 to help them achieve their
 higher education dreams!

Alexis will be pursuing a degree in Civil Engineering to make an impact in his 
community. “I have made it my life's mission to try to make as much of a positive 
impact on my community and beyond as I can. I want to help solve problems of 
infrastructure in ways such as ensuring that the Bay Area is prepared for the 
increasing effects of climate change and helping develop the plumbing and electrical 
system in my parents’ hometown back in Mexico. I want to be innovative and leave a mark
 on this world”.  Gaby will be attending Skyline College in the fall where she will be 
learning how to become a pediatrician.  Originally Gaby was interested in becoming a 
mechanic, but after revaluating her values and goals, she decided to change her career 
path. “Since I really love and care for kids, youth and young adults, I want to become 
a pediatrician to take care of them and look out for their health.”

Both scholars have two years to fully claim their scholarships. Gaby has already 
claimed her scholarship and Alexis plans to claim his scholarship in the very near 
future. 



6/26/2023  Page 5 of 6 
 

9. List contributions requested and received from other cities in FY 2022-23 and requested 
or expected in FY 2023-24: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10. Did the organization participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 

publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate 
for public office within the past 36 months (please select one)?   

 
Yes __________ No ______________ 
 
If yes, please provide details.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5FEB601B-E503-49C5-89C5-8661E8E150BA

 X

In the 2022-23 fiscal year, Jobs for Youth received the following contributions from 
the San Mateo County cities:
$4,000  The Town of Coma
$3,000  The City of Foster City
$1,000 The City of Burlingame

This fiscal year, we are requesting the following amounts: 
$4,000  The Town of Coma
$4,000  The City of Burlingame (just notified we were awarded $1,100 from the City of 
Burlingame)



6/26/2023  Page 6 of 6 
 

11. Charitable Trust # or EIN #          
 
 
Please attach a copy of the following: 
 

 Roster of current governing board 
 Current Year Annual Operating Budget 
 Proof of organization’s tax exempt status 

 
 
 
 
 
Optional Attachments 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5FEB601B-E503-49C5-89C5-8661E8E150BA

94-6000532



SAN MATEO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Jobs for Youth has a number of stakeholders who provide direct and indirect oversight of our
program. These stakeholders include the County of San Mateo Board of Supervisors, the
Executive Director of the County of San Mateo Human Resources Department, and a core group
of dedicated volunteers who make up our Jobs for Youth Workgroup. 

2023 Board of Supervisors 

HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT LEADERSHIP TEAM

Jobs for Youth is part of the Organizational Development and Communications division of the
County of San Mateo Human Resources Department. The Manager of the Organizational
Development and Communications division is Conrad Fernandes. Jobs for Youth also
receives oversight from Deputy Director Theresa Rabe and Executive Director Rocio Kiryczun. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5FEB601B-E503-49C5-89C5-8661E8E150BA



JOBS FOR YOUTH WORKGROUP MEMBERS 
Name                                 Affiliation                                                          Title  
Cherie Colin                       Skyline College                                                 Dir. of Community Relations
Erika Dugay                       Youth Leadership Institute                            Program Manager
Hal Kataoka                       Career Valor                                                     Founder & Director 
Leslie Lowe                       County of San Mateo EDD                             Retired 
Molly Lai                             Genentech Inc.                                                Research Associate  
Rubie Macaraeg               County of San Mateo Office of Education   College/CTE Coordinator 
Dana Reynolds Faataui   Roblox                                                               Sr. L&D Business Partner
Sylvia Yeh Kataoka          Career Valor                                                      Assistant Director 

JOBS FOR YOUTH WORKGROUP

JFY Workgroup 

Jobs for Youth has a special core group of dedicated 
volunteers who make up our Jobs for Youth Workgroup. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5FEB601B-E503-49C5-89C5-8661E8E150BA



JFY OPERATING BUDGET$207,944.75 
 

The Jobs for Youth Operating Budget for FY 2022-23 is as follows:

JFY OPERATING BUDGET

JFY OPERATING BUDGET

Jobs for Youth has two financial accounts, an Operating Budget account and a Scholarship Trust
Fund account. The monies in these two accounts remain 100% separate, with 100% of the
Scholarship Trust Fund account used exclusively for Scholarships. 

The 2023-24 Operating Budget is currently under development, and we are happy to provide it
once it is finalized.  Please note that the JFY operating budget is reevaluated every two fiscal
years. 

CURRENT YEAR ANNUAL OPERATING BUDGET

Town of Colma
 

JOBS FOR YOUTH
2023  24  GRANT APPL ICATION ATTACHMENTS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5FEB601B-E503-49C5-89C5-8661E8E150BA



2022-23 Final Report

Jobs for Youth Al Teglia ScholarshipJOBS FOR YOUTH Town of Colma Grant Report

(i) Describes the results of the program or project funded by the
grant;

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

(ii) Evaluates the results of the program or project funded
by the grant; and

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(iii) Provides an accounting of the use of the grant funds.

 
 
 



Not applicable



Best Regards,
Alexis Aguilar-Frias
Jobs for Youth Scholar

Dear Town of Colma,

2023 Al Teglia Scholars Overview

The 2023 Town of Colma Sponsored Scholars

2022-23 Final Report

The Jobs for Youth Scholarship Committee, composed of staff and volunteers, selected 20 inspiring youth to receive
the 2023 JFY Al Teglia Scholarships. The 2023 Scholars have continuously shown resiliency and hope. Receiving the
Jobs for Youth Al Teglia Scholarship is just one small brushstroke in what these bright youth will do as they paint
their own paths to their colorful future. The Town of Colma's $4,000 grant sponsors two of these Scholars: Alexis
Aguilar Frias & Gaby Ramos. We are pleased to share the bios and thank you notes from each Scholar.

Jobs for Youth Al Teglia ScholarshipJOBS FOR YOUTH

19
high school

students

Town of Colma Grant Report

in Scholarship funds awarded

$40,00020
total

Scholars

1
full time college
student

Alexis is committed to serving those in his community and bettering the world we live in. 
Alexis just graduated from South San Francisco High School, where he lead the Latinos con 
P.O.D.E.R. organization, started a campaign to raise money for a child in Latin America, and 
had planned field trips to the Mission District’s mural scene. Alexis also created an 
educational website highlighting farmworkers’ working conditions. Alexis dedicated his high 
school years to uplifting the Latino community and beyond. With dreams of becoming a civil 
engineer, Alexis’ goals include building a more equitable world for underserved communities. 
We look forward to seeing the beautiful world Alexis will help paint in the years to come!

I wanted to start off by thanking you for the sponsorship and for the opportunity to be a Jobs for Youth Scholar. This
award has truly shown me how the work I have done in my community and academically is seen and appreciated.
Coming from a low income family your financial support will help propel me to aching my academic goals.

Getting a degree in Civil Engineering to me is more than just about making a living. I have made it my life's mission to
try to make as much of a positive impact on my community and beyond as I can. I want to help solve problems of
infrastructure in ways such as ensuring that the Bay Area is prepared for the increasing effects of climate change and
helping develop the plumbing and electrical system in my parents hometown back in Mexico. I want to be innovative
and leave a mark on this world.

I am truly humbled by your generosity and support, and I promise to work hard and make the most of this
opportunity. Thank you again for investing in my future and for helping me achieve my dreams.



Dear Town of Colma,

Thank you so much for helping me win this scholarship. This is an amazing and unique opportunity for me to be able to 
pay for my college and be able to help my family and I to not worry as much financially . Thank you for helping me be 
able to achieve and follow my dreams through my life in college. Without your help I would not be in the position I am 
today, I am very grateful for all your help and support. I again am very thankful for the help and support I have received.

Sincerely,
Gaby Ramos

2022-23 Final Report

Jobs for Youth Al Teglia Scholarship
Town of Colma Grant ReportJOBS FOR YOUTH

Gaby Ramos is steadfast and fierce. Gaby just graduated from Jefferson High 
School, where she had been a part of the high school soccer team. She is a leader 
on and off the pitch, and never quits. Gaby immigrated to the United States 
several years ago, having to learn a new language and adapt to a whole new 
country. Passionate about cars and eager to follow in her father’s footsteps, 
Gaby’s goal is to join Skyline College’s Mechanic program. She loves cars and is 
fascinated by the way a mechanic can leave their mark on a vehicle, the makings 
of a true artist! We are thrilled to have Gaby as a 2023 Al Teglia Scholar!

Thank you Town of Colma!



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



6/26/2023  Page 1 of 6 
 

Town of Colma 
Non-Profit Funding Request Form  

FY 2023-24 
 

 
 
Please do NOT write “see attached” as a response to any of the questions. You must 
submit all answers on this form. You may submit additional attachments, but they 
will not replace any of the responses. 
 
 
Name of Organization:           
 
Contact Person:            
 
Address:             
  Street Address   City  State  Zip Code  
 
Phone Number:     Email Address: __________________ 
 
1. Mission Statement: 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Amount of Request: $________________ 
 
 a. Total Agency Annual Budget: $_______________ 
 

b. Number of Agency Employees: _______________ 
 
c. Payroll is ________% of the Agency’s total Annual Budget. 

 
 
3.  Please identify a public purpose for the requested funding by identifying one of the 

following categories:  

A. Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;  
B. Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or 

Integrated Care Services;  
C. Educate and engage residents;  
D. Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business 

in the Town; or Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a 
service that the Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6F1959B4-D310-4EA6-876E-3787E030104B

 

Violeta Palatto

PO Box 1927,  San José, CA 95109

To build healthier and more just communities by making bicycling safe and 
accessible for everyone. 

We envision a community that values, includes, and encourages bicycling for 
all purposes for all people. Our overarching goal is to increase the number 
and diversity of people using bicycles for everyday transportation.

 

72.5

1,847,104

X

16

violeta@bikesiliconvalley
.org

 

(408)673-4794

3,500

Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition



6/26/2023  Page 2 of 6 
 

3a.       Describe how the funding will support the selected category: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Describe reason for request and how funds will be used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6F1959B4-D310-4EA6-876E-3787E030104B

Bike Month in May and Bike to Work/Wherever Days (BTWD) on May 16-18, 2024 are part of 
a national effort to encourage bicyclists to bike to work, parks, schools, libraries, 
and shops (in conjunction with public transit) with goals of reducing carbon emissions,
 improving local air quality, and improving community health. 

Locally, Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition (SVBC) coordinates and oversees a variety of 
activities in this effort to increase active transportation. Funds received from Colma 
would go toward: 

Free Bicycling classes to all residents and employees in San Mateo and Santa Clara 
county. Workshops to educate the general public about using your bicycle to commute or 
replace car trips, including bicycling safety, overcoming barriers to riding, and using
 bicycles in conjunction with public transportation like BART and SamTrans.
Outreach to Colma-based companies and organizations to help promote employee bicycle 
commuting and a local partner for hosting a Energizer Station during Bike to Wherever 
Days.

This is possible with cooperation and collaboration with the city or other local groups
 to help communicate the details of the Bicycling 101 Workshops and Bike Month 
activities to the local Colma community. 

The program works to encourage bicycling because it is fun, creates a sense of 
community, and normalizes bicycling. People realize that they don’t have to be an elite
 athlete, wear special clothing, or have an expensive bike to be a bike commuter. 

We are requesting funding because we believe participating in BTWD and encouraging 
bicycle commuting is a way for the Town of Colma to improve neighborhood quality of 
life, reduce greenhouse emissions and promote the use of public transit. Funding will go
 towards running a successful BTWD program during the month of May and continue to 
strengthen bicycle infrastructure and culture throughout the region.



6/26/2023  Page 3 of 6 
 

5. If the amount of the request is higher than the previous year, provide a detailed 
explanation of the need for the increase: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Describe the benefit to the Town derived from funding your organization: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6F1959B4-D310-4EA6-876E-3787E030104B

Bike to Wherever Day (BTWD) & Bike Month --BTWD is our signature event designed to 
encourage folks to give bicycling anywhere a try. A positive experience on BTWD 
inspires new cyclists to continue the habit year-round. In 2024 we’ll continue to 
organize in-person and virtual events (e.g. classes, rides, webinars)  to further 
spread bicycling love and awareness. Typical participation: 40,000 people per year. 

BTWD is a free and fun event that gives people of diverse backgrounds, ages, and 
ability levels the opportunity to experience and engage with Colma in a new and more 
meaningful way from the slower-paced saddle of their bike. People who travel by bike 
gain a greater understanding of community assets and an appreciation for the many 
resources the city has to offer.

BTWD builds community by bringing together citizens, businesses, government offices, 
and other entities to celebrate alternative modes of transportation that improve 
quality of life by reducing traffic congestion and greenhouse emissions while 
increasing physical and emotional health.

Marketing Opportunity: BTWD offers sponsors the opportunity to have their logos on 
bags, t-shirts, bike jerseys, posters, and other items distributed to cyclists and the 
general public. Sponsors are also gratefully acknowledged on our website, in emails, in
 press releases, and via social media channels.

n/a



6/26/2023  Page 4 of 6 
 

7. Describe the following: 
A. Number of Colma residents or businesses (or both) served by the organization 
in the years prior to the grant application;  
B. The location(s) where Colma residents or businesses may receive the recipient 
organization’s services or programs; and  
C. The nature and extent of the efforts of the recipient organization to reach out 
to Colma residents and businesses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Provide a detailed account of how the FY 2022-23 contribution was used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6F1959B4-D310-4EA6-876E-3787E030104B

A, SVBC began expanding the reach of their work to San Mateo County. In 2022 the Town of
 Colma hosted one energizer station at the Town Hall, and we had one resident officially
 register to pledge to ride. In 2023 4,718 people pledged to ride during BTWD across 
SVBC’s 127 energizer stations. In San Mateo County, we saw a sizable increase to 928 
pledges – 30.5% more than last year’s 711 pledges. 

Our staff equipped the Colma to host an energizer station on May 18th at the Colma 
Community Center. This year the location was moved to Hillside Boulevard, one of the 
busiest bike corridors in Colma and North San Mateo County.  A total of 12 people 
visited the Colma energizer station, higher than the prior year and considered a success
 by Gioia Perez, staff member and returning BTWD energizer station host at the Town of 
Colma. 

In 2024  we’ll continue to reach out to all the residents of the Town of Colma to 
increase registered participation. 

B. SVBC will continue to work with the City of Colma to identify high pedestrian and 
bike traffic to host an energizer station for the residents.

C.BTWD marketing campaigns prior to and during the month of May. Promotional materials 
will be shared on social media, websites, press releases, and newsletters to 
corporations and the general public.

Grant funds from Coma($3,500) enabled SVBC to cover our staff time to deliver Bike Month
 and Bike to Wherever Day activities and materials such as:

In-person and virtual engaging events (e.g. bicycling classes, rides, 
webinars,challenges) available at no cost to all residents and employees.

Bike Bash to cap Bike Month festivities, one in San Mateo County and one in Santa Clara 
County. There we celebrated our 2023 Bike Champions of the year.

Energizer station kit containing: BTWD Bags with ways to connect with SVBC, a SVBC 
ticker, Weekend BART tickets, repair patch kit.

2 t-shirts for volunteers and 2 additional t-shirts and BTWD bags.

Cowbell

Energizer Station Posters, additional flyers            



6/26/2023  Page 5 of 6 
 

9.        List contributions requested and received from other cities in FY 2022-23 and requested 
or expected in FY 2023-24: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10. Did the organization participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 

publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate 
for public office within the past 36 months (please select one)?   

 
Yes __________ No ______________ 
 
If yes, please provide details.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6F1959B4-D310-4EA6-876E-3787E030104B

X 

FY 2022-2023: City of San Jose 5k,City of Redwood City 5k and Town of Los Gatos 3k.
 
During 2023 we experienced a loss of funding from cities that didn’t come back to 
support our efforts.



6/26/2023  Page 6 of 6 
 

11. Charitable Trust # or EIN #          
 
 
 
Please attach a copy of the following: 
 

 Roster of current governing board 
 Current Year Annual Operating Budget 
 Proof of organization’s tax exempt status 
 Completed IRS 990 form (filed for 2022 or 2021)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Optional Attachments 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6F1959B4-D310-4EA6-876E-3787E030104B

77-0338658	



Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition
155 S. 11th Street

San Jose, CA 95112

SVBC Board of Directors 2023

1. Amie Ashton (Chair of the Board) - 6 years
2. Gary Brustin - 21 years
3. Melissa Cerezo - 3 years
4. Jennifer Fierman - 1 years
5. Poncho Guevara - 6 years
6. Andrew Hsu - 4 years
7. James Lucas - 10 years
8. Josh Mello - 4 years
9. Jim Parker (Vice Chair) - 15 years
10. Alyssa Plicka (Treasurer) - 13 years
11. Christina Salvatier (Secretary) - 3 years

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6F1959B4-D310-4EA6-876E-3787E030104B



Revenue

TOTAL 
PROPOSED 

FY24 BUDGET

Board Donations 20,000            
Bequests -                  
Other Individual Giving 342,245          
Foundation & Corporate Contributions 100,000          
Employer Matching Contributions 53,000            
Government Grants 3,500              
Public Contract 699,650          
Contract Income 56,000            
Program Administration Revenue/Expense 1,200              
Miscellaneous Income 153,800          
Special Event Sponsorships 397,000          
Special Events Tickets Sales 17,000            

TOTAL REVENUES 1,843,395       

Expenses

TOTAL 
PROPOSED 

FY24 BUDGET
Salaries 1,378,719       
Payroll Taxes 117,191          
Health Insurance 53,280            
401k Match 20,207            
Worker's Comp Insurance 5,838              
Staff Development & Training 16,500            
Payroll Processing Fee 7,740              
Accounting Fees 29,920            
Legal Fees 2,640              
Marketing & Publicity 6,850              
Info Systems & Tech Consultants 6,960              
Professional Fees- Other 81,739            
Independent Contractors/Program Consultants 161,200          
Special Event Venue 1,000              
Special Event Food & Nonalcoholic 6,200              
Special Event Alcohol 1,300              
Special Event Equipment 1,800              

Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition FY23-24 Budget 

Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition FY23-24 Budget 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6F1959B4-D310-4EA6-876E-3787E030104B



Special Event Misc. Supplies 27,700            
Occupancy- Rent -                  
Bank Fees- Other 7,473              
Dues & subscriptions 1,260              
Utilities 8,100              
Food/Business Meals 3,700              
General Liability Insurance 7,680              
Licenses & Fees 600                 
Maintenance & Repairs 6,107              
Office Equipment & Furniture- Other 4,992              
Outreach Materials 23,500            
Postage & Shipping 2,065              
Printing & Copying 9,475              
Office Supplies 1,760              
Telecommunications 6,000              
Transportation 4,000              
Volunteer Expenses 11,525            
Web and email services 18,199            
Miscellaneous Expenses 400                 
Program Supplies- Non Food 1,950              

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,045,570       

NET OPERATING SURPLUS (LOSS) (202,175)         

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6F1959B4-D310-4EA6-876E-3787E030104B



Town of Colma | Grant Report FY 2022-23
Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition

Program Summary & Results

Generous funding from the Town of Colma ($3,500) went towards enabling the Silicon Valley
Bicycle Coalition (SVBC) to run a successful Bike to Wherever Days (BTWD) Program during the
month of May 2023. This year Bike to Wherever Days spanned three days, May 18-20, with Bike
to Work day on May 18th. This event is part of a national effort to encourage residents to bike to
all types of destinations: work, school, parks, libraries and shops.

Further, SVBC staff organized a month-long set of over 50 additional in-person and virtual events
(e.g. classes, rides, webinars) free to all residents and employees in San Mateo and Santa Clara
Counties.1 Bike Month festivities were capped with a set of celebratory Bike Bashes after Bike to
Work Day at Cognition Cyclery in San Mateo and Stanford Research Park in Palo Alto. There we
celebrated our 2023 Bike Champions of the year.2

The Town of Colma was among only one other San Mateo County jurisdiction that granted funds
to the Program (i.e. Redwood City). As such our team gave additional outreach support and
opportunities exclusive to funding partners, as detailed below.

We provided Colma’s energizer station ambassadors with all the materials and tips to engage
with residents cycling to work and any other individuals passing by. Each table was equipped
with a full Energizer Station Kit – a box containing:

● BTWD Bags with ways to connect with SVBC, an SVBC sticker, weekend BART tickets,
and other swag from Commute.org.

● 2 Free T-Shirts
● Cowbell for cheering people on as they bike
● Energizer Station Posters
● Extra SVBC flyers

Energizer station hosts were also encouraged to attend 1 of 3 Energizer Station Trainings held on
May 8th, 9th and 11th. A Youtube recording was made available as well.3

3 Energizer Station Training Recording: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=_zQJkexfavQ

2 Bike Champions of the Year: https://bikesiliconvalley.org/news/2023/4/2023-bike-champions-of-year

1 Bike Month Calendar of Events: https://bikesiliconvalley.org/events/bike-month

1



The Town of Colma was recognized on the official BTWD t-shirts, canvas messenger bags, the
SVBC website, BTWD posters and all emails sent to bi-weekly to our mailing list of over 25,000
individuals. Marketing of the program was further pushed to all of our social media platforms
(Facebook, Twitter, Instagram) and detailed information is on the Program web page.4

Since the Town of Colma is covered by our North San Mateo County Team5, in the months
leading up to Bike Month, we sought to recruit our local team members as bike ambassadors to
help staff and/or visit the Colma energizer station. Anthony Montes, our community organizer
over North San Mateo County, also reached out to our contacts in the Colma planning
department working on the Bicycle & Pedestrian Master Plan to coordinate plans for the
energizer station and encourage them to leverage the opportunity to obtain plan feedback.

Additionally, we provided Colma with the ability to share with Town staff two Private Bike
Education workshops (exclusive to funding partners) leading up to BTWD on April 20th and May
9th. Our contact at the Town of Colma received regular emails with bike festivities and other
information to share with Town Staff such as the Media toolkit.6

Evaluating Program Results

We have been able to build on last year’s momentum and improve on Bike Month and Bike to
Wherever Days, including in the Town of Colma. This year 4,718 people pledged to ride during
BTWD across SVBC’s 127 energizer stations. In San Mateo County, we saw a sizable increase to
928 pledges – 30.5% more than last year’s 711 pledges.

Our staff equipped the Colma to host an
energizer station on May 18th at the Colma
Community Center. This year the location was
moved to Hillside Boulevard, the busiest bike
corridors in Colma and North San Mateo
County. See Strava Metro Heat map to the
right, the green dot indicating station location.

A total of 12 people visited the Colma energizer
station, higher than the prior year and
considered a success by Gioia Perez, staff
member and returning BTWD energizer station
host at the Town of Colma.

6 BTWD Media Tool-kit: https://siliconvalleybicyclecoaliti.box.com/s/0td04kkywdc5shevl803rk4ibvoqqmpe

5 The team covers Brisbane, Colma, Daly City, South San Francisco and San Bruno.

4 BTWD Webpage: https://bikesiliconvalley.org/events/btwd

2

https://siliconvalleybicyclecoaliti.box.com/s/0td04kkywdc5shevl803rk4ibvoqqmpe
https://bikesiliconvalley.org/events/btwd


Colma Metrics for 2023:

● Bags distributed to Colma: 15
● Visits to Energizer Station: 12
● In our Salesforce database we have 18 bike enthusiasts from the 94014 zip code, 2 of

whom were added during Bike Month this year.
● Pledges: 0 – Last year we Colma had one resident pledge to ride.

The actual number of Colma residents or employees among the 12 visitors who received bags is
unclear since our pledge data does not indicate Colma residency. This can also means that
visitors to the energizer station are likely employees (non-Colma residents) or residents of nearby
jurisdictions that pledged to ride.

SVBC recognizes the importance of the Hillside Boulevard corridor as a crucial connector for
residents from various neighboring jurisdictions such as Daly City, South San Francisco, San
Bruno, Millbrae, Brisbane, and others. It is worth noting that the Town of Colma's investments in
bike infrastructure not only benefit its own residents and employees, but also contribute to
reducing car traffic and greenhouse gas emissions from trips originating outside the town
borders. Given the close proximity between these jurisdictions, North San Mateo County
residents move between them seamlessly. SVBC maintains regular communication in the form of
our e-bulletin with 180 individuals in the cities covered by our North San Mateo County local
team.

Because of these trends, SVBC sees significant potential for increasing participation in the Town
by hosting the Bike Month festivities each year. As residents and commuters become more
familiar with this community bike program, there is an opportunity to attract more participants. We
also have been working at the regional level to get a better handle on counting employees
whose place of residence may be different from their place of employment. For next year we are
interested in exploring energizer station opportunities on the weekends at key destinations
(perhaps in collaboration with Philz or Target in Serra Center) in order to draw a crowd that may
be interested in biking but are not avid commute riders.

While SVBC staff has only been managing energizer stations in San Mateo County for the second
year, we are actively building upon the efforts of the local team. We are interested in
brainstorming better methods for Colma to log consistent pledges to ride year over year, and in
doing so be competitive in the City Challenge where cities compete in the race to have the most
per capita pledges. And next year we hope to add a challenge for Elected Officials to participate.

Our organization is confident that the local team's energy and enthusiasm will continue to
facilitate collaboration with the Town of Colma's planners, particularly on the Bicycle & Pedestrian
Master Plan. These ongoing interactions throughout the year can serve as touchpoints to
encourage further progress, building upon the successes achieved so far and setting the stage
for a successful Bike Month next year.

3



San Mateo County Results

Across San Mateo County, we are seeing the bump in biking during the pandemic taper down a
bit as we emerge from COVID (Strava Metro data below). This means more encouragement is
needed to ensure residents remain interested in biking as a form of travel, exercise, and
recreation.

Bike commuting continues to increase.We have surpassed last year and are almost to
pre-pandemic levels:

Energizer Stations. The number of energizer stations in San Mateo County has fluctuated over
the years. We saw a drastic decline in energizer stations compared to last year (40% fewer). So it
is actually very heartening to see the Town of Colma prominently engaged even as larger cities,
tech and biotech companies have reduced their participation.

2018: 50
2019: 49
2020: 19
2021: 26
2022: 63
2023: 38

4



Accounting of Grant Funds

Grant funds from Colma ($3,500) enabled SVBC to cover our staff time to deliver Bike Month and
Bike to Wherever Day activities detailed within this grant report.

Bike to Wherever Days SVBC Budget for Personnel Time:
Actual expenses: $76,463.75

5



6/26/2023  Page 1 of 6 
 

Town of Colma 
Non-Profit Funding Request Form  

FY 2023-24 
 

 
 
Please do NOT write “see attached” as a response to any of the questions. You must 
submit all answers on this form. You may submit additional attachments, but they 
will not replace any of the responses. 
 
 
Name of Organization:           
 
Contact Person:            
 
Address:             
  Street Address   City  State  Zip Code  
 
Phone Number:     Email Address: __________________ 
 
1. Mission Statement: 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Amount of Request: $________________ 
 
 a. Total Agency Annual Budget: $_______________ 
 

b. Number of Agency Employees: _______________ 
 
c. Payroll is ________% of the Agency’s total Annual Budget. 

 
 
3.  Please identify a public purpose for the requested funding by identifying one of the 

following categories:  

A. Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;  
B. Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or 

Integrated Care Services;  
C. Educate and engage residents;  
D. Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business 

in the Town; or Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a 
service that the Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 137E625D-1E01-4A91-ACA1-00398B3597E1

kkirby@sitike.org

 

7,500.00

Keri Kirby

~80%

X

Sitike's mission is to provide community-based counseling and education in a 
safe and healing environment that embraces the cultural and emotional needs of
 every client and to help people find hope, resiliency and life-affirming 
change. 

1,318,724

306 Spruce Ave, First Floor, South San Francisco CA 94080

 

X

17

650-589-9305

Sitike Counseling Center



6/26/2023  Page 2 of 6 
 

3a.       Describe how the funding will support the selected category: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Describe reason for request and how funds will be used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 137E625D-1E01-4A91-ACA1-00398B3597E1

Sitike Counseling Center (“Sitike”) opened its doors in 1988 – born of a passionate 
commitment to offer hope and healing to people whose lives are affected by addiction 
and mental illness. The name of the agency, “Sitike,” is an Apache meaning a group of 
non-related people who come to the aid of a person in crisis. Our vision is a community
 where diversity, compassion, healing and growth are encouraged, valued and celebrated.
 The devastating effects of substance abuse, mental illness and violence are 
diminished. Relationships, families and children thrive.

We understand that it is the expectation - not the exception - that our consumers will 
have complex/multiple challenges and that any successful initiative to address 
individuals with complex needs must be grounded in hope, resilience, wellness and 
respect for the role of culture in the health and healing of individuals, families and 
communities.

These funds will be used to offer reduced cost or no cost services to those without 
the ability to pay. We believe that services should be available to all, regardless 
of an individual's financial status. We are committed to assisting all who walk through
 our doors in understanding why they are here and help them in developing the tools 
they need to turn their life around.

This funding allows Sitike to maintain a sliding-scale model that ensures equal 
access to treatment and services for the unemployed, the underemployed, the unhoused 
members of our community, and other vulnerable populations. Our hope is to create a 
people-centered solution that provides a universal gateway to our services for those. 
that need it most. 

People with substance use disorders are at particular risk for developing one or more 
primary conditions or chronic diseases. The coexistence of both a mental illness and a 
substance use disorder, known as a co-occurring disorder, is common. According to the 
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), approximately 9.2 
million adults in the United States have a co-occurring disorder.

These burdensome conditions have significant physical, emotional, functional, social, 
and economic consequences for people who live with these disorders, their loved ones, 
and society as a whole. Individuals living with a co-occurring disorder struggle with 
increased mortality rates, worse psychiatric symptoms, less engagement in treatment, 
more challenges functioning in everyday life, higher rates of suicidal and violent 
behavior, higher likelihood of overdose, legal problems, homelessness, and significant 
physical health problems. They also experience more frequent intensive health services, 
with more emergency department visits and longer inpatient hospital admissions. 

Over the past two decades, the behavioral health field’s knowledge of the outcomes, 
service needs, and treatment approaches for individuals with co-occurring disorders has 
expanded considerably. Co-occurring disorders are complex and bidirectional. They can 
wax and wane over time. The most common treatment for co-occurring disorders involves an
 integrated treatment model that can stabilize both the symptoms of the co-occurring 
disorder and provide the foundation for lasting recovery.  Sitike’s programs are 
uniquely positioned to assist all folks in recovering from these devastating 
co-occurring disorders. Sitike's programs make it possible for clients to get 
affordable, quality care. Through intervention in a timely manner, our services help 
lower long term health costs, free up other limited community resources, and safe lives.



6/26/2023  Page 3 of 6 
 

5. If the amount of the request is higher than the previous year, provide a detailed 
explanation of the need for the increase: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Describe the benefit to the Town derived from funding your organization: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 137E625D-1E01-4A91-ACA1-00398B3597E1

This year's request includes an additional $1,000.00. We are seeking additional funds
to assist with managing the influx of referrals for low-income clients and to assist 
with the rising cost of doing business. The Consumer Price Index indicates that 
prices are ~7% from a year ago, inflation has had a significant impact on the Bay Area,
 and because the cost of living and basic needs in San Mateo County continues to be one
 of the highest in the state. 

Substance use and acute mental illness directly affect millions of Americans every
year, causing motor vehicle crashes, crimes, injuries, reduced quality of life,
impaired health, and far too many deaths. Folks with co-occurring disorders have unique
 biopsychosocial needs that need to be addressed if their treatment is to be 
successful. The medical, social, emotional, and financial consequences and costs of 
these disorders to individuals, families and society are enormous. 

Because co-occurring disorders can compromise every aspect of a person's life, such as 
their physical health and well-being, emotional state, spirituality, and more, 
treatment approaches should also be dynamic and integrative. As a person heals from the
 inside out, it is crucial that maladaptive behaviors be rectified, and healthier 
coping mechanisms are implemented. Teaching positive strategies for coping in lieu of 
substance abuse will be an essential part of the recovery process. Similarly, it is 
necessary for a folks to heal and process any underlying psychological trauma that may 
have contributed to the development of co-occurring disorders. This will also be an 
integral and necessary part of treatment and recovery.

Through public partnerships and by embedding our programs and services into the
larger community we can reduce the burden on the larger health care and
governmental system while also increasing access to care, improving the quality of
services provided, and saving lives. Additional benefits to the Town of Colma
include a reduction of substance use, intimate partner violence, and calls to
emergency services (Fire, Police, Child Protection Services, etc.) in the general
population.

Sitike can also provide confidential services to Town of Colma employees through
EAP benefits/private pay sliding-scale services.



6/26/2023  Page 4 of 6 
 

7. Describe the following: 
A. Number of Colma residents or businesses (or both) served by the organization 
in the years prior to the grant application;  
B. The location(s) where Colma residents or businesses may receive the recipient 
organization’s services or programs; and  
C. The nature and extent of the efforts of the recipient organization to reach out 
to Colma residents and businesses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Provide a detailed account of how the FY 2022-23 contribution was used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 137E625D-1E01-4A91-ACA1-00398B3597E1

With the support from the Town of Colma, we have been able to continue helping
low-income, vulnerable communities affected by addiction, mental health, and
intimate partner violence. 

Our services provide a critical safety-net for those most vulnerable among us and 
because of the support of the Town of Colma, we are able to offer technology devices and
 data plans, sliding-scale fees, and scholarships for clients to support those who are 
unable to pay out-of-pocket or those who are affected by the digital divide.

In the past year, two other nonprofits providing similar services in San Mateo County 
closed, and Sitike has committed to absorbing clients who need continued treatment. 
Since 2020, the total number of clients served by Sitike each year has more than 
tripled. 

During last year's grant period, Sitike served 14 residents from the Town of Colma.

Sitike is currently offering both in-person and telehealth services that best meet the 
community need. Sitike also engages directly with the community by offering educational 
trainings and workshops including a new, two-day "Navigating the Behavioral Health Care 
System (a symposium bringing together key agencies providing mental health, housing, and
 addition services in our community), Mental Health First Aid Trainings, and numerous 
events throughout the month of September in honor of "Recovery Happens Month." 

We are also willing and able to provide agency tours or Lunch & Learn meetings with Town
 of Colma employees to help educate community members about our services and how to make
 a referral to our programs.

Our services are provided county-wide and are listed in all directories. We have
a following on social media (LinkedIn, Facebook, Instagram) and offer a quarterly
newsletter in an effort to increase our visibility and accessibility in the
community. We are also listed in all state level directories including Atlas, CADPT, and
 others. 



6/26/2023  Page 5 of 6 
 

9.        List contributions requested and received from other cities in FY 2022-23 and requested 
or expected in FY 2023-24: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10. Did the organization participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 

publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate 
for public office within the past 36 months (please select one)?   

 
Yes __________ No ______________ 
 
If yes, please provide details.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 137E625D-1E01-4A91-ACA1-00398B3597E1

X 

Requested and received in FY22-23: 

1) $6,500 from Town of Colma
2) $10,000 from Genentech
3) $5,000 from Sares Regis Foundation
4) $21,432 from MHSA 

Anticipated in FY22-23:

1) $5,000 from MHSA
2) $5,000 from Sares Regis
3) $10,000 from Genentech
4) $7,500 from Town of Colma
5) $25,000 from Behavioral Health and Recovery Services
6) $3,000 from San Bruno Community Foundation



6/26/2023  Page 6 of 6 
 

11. Charitable Trust # or EIN #          
 
 
 
Please attach a copy of the following: 
 

 Roster of current governing board 
 Current Year Annual Operating Budget 
 Proof of organization’s tax exempt status 
 Completed IRS 990 form (filed for 2022 or 2021)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Optional Attachments 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 137E625D-1E01-4A91-ACA1-00398B3597E1

94-3065810



 
Sitike Board of Directors – Revised 8.8.23 

Name Contact Information Occupation 
Board 

Position 
Committee 
Assignment 

Elected 
Elected as 

Officer 
Term Expires 

Rod 
Walton 

5118 164th St. SW, Unit D4 
Edmonds, WA 98199 

Sir.roderic@googlemail.com 

Senior Director, 

Outreach and 

Learning Center, 

Hamlin Robinson 

School 

President 
Executive, 

Advancement  
05/31/2016 11/29/22 05/31/2024 

Anil Awasti 

5333 Park Highlands Blvd. #27 
Concord, Ca 94521 

(415) 846-7129 
awastianil@gmail.com  

Chief Human 
Resources Officer, 

Global Fund for 
Women 

Vice 
President 

Executive  09/29/2015 11/29/22 09/29/2023 

Elizabeth 
Fricke 

3960 Chatham Court 
SSF, CA 94080 

(650) -784-9003 
E_fricke@msn.com  

Commercial 
Underwriter, 

Beazley Insurance 
Services 

Member Finance 10/1/2020 11/29/22 10/1/2024 

Peggy 
Wong 

111 Rimmon Road 
Woodbridge, CT 06525 

(909) 238-8668 
peggyowong@gmail.com  

Graduate Student, 
Yale School of Nursing 

Secretary Finance 5/19/2020 11/29/22 5/19/2024 

Kristin 
Ditlevsen 

PO Box 608 
Santa Cruz, CA 95061 

(650) 888-0067 
kditlevsen@beaconbusinessbank.com  

Senior Vice President, 
Relationship 

Manager, 
Beacon Business Bank 

Treasurer Finance 1/28/2020 11/29/22 1/28/2024 

Shalom 
Tzvi Shore 

102 Canada Street 
Hamilton, ON L8P 1P3 

(443) 467-5130 
shalomtzvi@gmail.com  

Chief of Staff – 
Product Manager & 
UX Strategist, Jewish 

Content Network 
Founder – Navya 

Hypnosis 

Member  7/28/2023   

DocuSign Envelope ID: 137E625D-1E01-4A91-ACA1-00398B3597E1

mailto:Sir.roderic@googlemail.com
mailto:awastianil@gmail.com
mailto:E_fricke@msn.com
mailto:peggyowong@gmail.com
mailto:kditlevsen@beaconbusinessbank.com
mailto:shalomtzvi@gmail.com


 

Kevin 
Reamy 

115 Marietta Drive 
San Francisco, CA 94127 

(650) 248-3870 
kevin.reamy@gmail.com 

Retired, Formerly at 
NerdWallet, LinkedIn 

Member  7/28/2023   

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 137E625D-1E01-4A91-ACA1-00398B3597E1

mailto:kevin.reamy@gmail.com


FY23-24 Draft Budget

Agency 
Total

SMC-ODS 
Overall Anger Mgmt DV DEJ FOP CPS Private Fund Admin

Salaries 758,023 410,666 3,088 28,723 5,180 288,074 6,851 3,066 9,011 3,364

Health Benefits 146,232 57,685 479 6,152 876 54,175 1,132 511 1,063 24,159

Payroll Tax 70,068 32,919 247 2,302 415 23,093 549 246 722 9,575

Workers Comp 6,556 3,080 23 215 39 2,161 51 23 68 896

Total Personnel 980,879 504,350 3,837 37,392 6,510 367,503 8,583 3,846 10,864 37,994

BUILDING

Rent--306 Spruce 74,585 41,767 1,491 3,729 1,491 23,121 2,237 372 372 5

Rent-Parking & Meetings 4,800 2,688 96 240 96 1,488 144 24 24 0

Utilities 500 285 10 25 10 155 10 2 2 1

Website 1,000 570 20 50 20 310 10 5 10 5

Maintenance 6,000 3,420 120 300 120 1,860 60 60 0 60

OFFICE

Postage 1,000 410 10 50 20 400 20 10 75 5

Equipment Purchase 2,000 1,000 20 100 40 740 40 20 20 20

Printing & Photocopying 5,000 2,250 50 250 100 2,000 150 50 100 50

Telephone 9,000 4,500 90 450 180 3,330 180 90 90 90

PROGRAM

Supplies 20,000 9,200 100 400 400 9,000 600 100 200 0

Food 3,000 3,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Medical Doctor 15,000 15,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Drug Testing other 12,000 6,600 0 0 1,800 0 0 3,600 0 0

Drug test contracts 9,333 0 0 0 0 0 9,333 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TRANSPORTATION

Mileage reimbursement 2,000 1,780 60 60 0 100 0 0 0 0

Client transportation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ADMINISTRATIVE

Accounting/audit 30,000 19,200 150 150 150 9,600 150 150 450 0

Contractors: Counseling 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contractors: Admin 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Legal 1,000 480 0 40 10 470 0 0 0 0

Board Expense 1,000 350 5 30 10 180 5 5 150 265

Staff Recognition 3,000 300 90 90 90 2,100 90 90 0 150

State License 2,000 1,280 20 20 20 640 20 0 0 0

License & fees 35,000 14,000 700 3,500 1,050 14,000 700 700 350 0

Staff Training 1,000 640 0 0 0 350 0 0 0 10

PR Expense 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Monitoring Fee--County 37,018 0 0 0 660 36,358 0 0 0 0

Insurance 19,000 10,260 380 950 380 6,460 380 190 0 0

Monitoring Fee--State 8,150 0 0 0 0 8,150 0 0 0 0

Total Operating 302,386 138,980 3,412 10,434 6,647 120,812 14,129 5,468 1,843 661

Total Expense 1,283,265 643,330 7,249 47,826 13,157 488,315 22,712 9,314 12,707 38,655

Contracts BHRS 629,724 629,724 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contracts Other 27,000 0 0 0 0 0 27,000 0 0 0

Client Fees 625,000 0 10,000 60,000 15,000 530,000 0 10,000 0 0

Fundraising 30,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30,000 0

Misc Income 7,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7,000

Reserve

Total Income 1,318,724 629,724 10,000 60,000 15,000 530,000 27,000 10,000 30,000 7,000

SURPLUS/DEFICIT 35,459 -13,606 2,751 12,174 1,843 41,685 4,288 686 17,293 -31,655

DocuSign Envelope ID: 137E625D-1E01-4A91-ACA1-00398B3597E1



 

SITIKE
COUNSELING CENTER

Our mission is to provide community-based counseling and education in a safe and
healing environment that embraces the cultural and emotional needs of every

client and to help people find hope, resiliency and life-affirming change.

Evidence Based Treatment Supportive Environment

Since 1988, our
counselors have provided

an array of evidence-
based, research-

supported interventions.

Our agency is a true place
of hope and healing

where you will be
respected and supported
like a member of your own

family.

For over three decades,
we have proudly and
passionately helped

thousands of individuals
recover and heal.

Si·ti·ke n. [apache] a group of non-blood kin who are present in a time of crisis

Successful Outcomes

 3 0 6  S p r u c e  A v e n u e ,  S o u t h  S a n  F r a n c i s c o ,  C A  9 4 0 8 0

DocuSign Envelope ID: 137E625D-1E01-4A91-ACA1-00398B3597E1



OUR PROGRAMS

This 16-week program focuses on stress
management, appropriate expression of anger,
coping and communication skill development.

Anger Management

Domestic Violence
This 52-week program teaches non-violent

behavior, healthy communication, and
accountability.

Discover Recovery
This three- to 12-month outpatient program serves

adults with substance use, and co-occurring mental
health/substance use disorders. Services include

assessment, individualized treatment plans,
individual and group counseling and drug and

alcohol testing.

Women's Intensive Outpatient Program
This three- to 12-month gender specific program
supports pregnant and/or parenting women who

are chemically dependent and have often
experienced trauma. Participants attend the

program four hours a day, three to five days per
week.

First Offender DUI Program
Sitike's DUI programs comply with local court, state

system, and DMV mandates. Services include
individual and group counseling and education.

Drug & Alcohol Testing
We offer Drug & Alcohol Testing services for:

Deferred Entry of Judgment, Proposition 36, Drug
Court and Child Protective Services clients.

All  services are available in English and
Spanish.

WHAT OUR 
CLIENTS SAY

"I was very scared about being
judged and that did not happen. I
was scared about being treated
badly and that did not happen. I

expected to not be understood and
that did not happen. What

happened is that I got my life and
my family back."  - George, Pacifica

"I'm a recovering addict. A miracle of
Sitike. Recovery gave me myself

back...gave me integrity, dignity and
courage...taught me how to be a

mother, a woman, a friend...and how
to live life clean and sober, one day at

a time." - Lisa, San Mateo County
Resident

i n f o @ s i t i k e . o r g   ·   ( 6 5 0 ) 5 8 9 - 9 3 0 5

w w w . s i t i k e . o r g

DocuSign Envelope ID: 137E625D-1E01-4A91-ACA1-00398B3597E1



 

SITIKE
CENTRO DE CONSEJERIA

Nuestra misión es brindar consejería y educación basados en la comunidad en un
ambiente seguro y sanador que apoye las necesidades culturales y emocionales

de cada cliente, y ayudar a las personas a encontrar esperanza, resiliencia y un
cambio que dé valor a su vida.

 

Tratamiento basado 
en evidencia

 

Ambiente de apoyo

Desde 1988, nuestros consejeros
han brindado una variedad de

intervenciones basadas en
evidencia y respaldadas por

investigaciones.
 

Nuestra agencia es un
verdadero lugar de

esperanza y sanación
donde será respetado y

apoyado como un miembro
de su propia familia.

 

Durante más de tres
décadas, hemos ayudado

con orgullo y pasión a
miles de personas a
recuperarse y sanar.

Si·ti·ke n. [apache] un grupo de allegados no consanguíneos que están presentes en un momento de crisis.

Resultados exitosos

 3 0 6  S p r u c e  A v e n u e ,  S o u t h  S a n  F r a n c i s c o ,  C A  9 4 0 8 0

DocuSign Envelope ID: 137E625D-1E01-4A91-ACA1-00398B3597E1



NUESTROS PROGRAMAS

Este programa de 16 semanas se enfoca en el
manejo del estrés, la expresión adecuada de la ira, el

desarrollo de habilidades de afrontamiento y
comunicación.

 

Manejo de la ira

Violencia domestica
Este programa de 52 semanas enseña

comportamiento no violento, comunicación sana y
responsabilidad.

Descubrir la recuperación
Este programa para pacientes externos de 3 a 12
meses atiende a adultos con uso de sustancias y
trastornos concurrentes de salud mental/uso de

sustancias. Los servicios incluyen evaluación,
planes de tratamiento individualizados, consejería
individual y grupal y pruebas de drogas y alcohol.

Programa intensivo de pacientes
externos para Mujeres

Este programa específico para mujeres de 3 a 12
meses apoya a las mujeres embarazadas y/o madres

que son químicamente dependientes y que a
menudo han experimentado traumas. Las

participantes asisten al programa cuatro horas al día,
de tres a cinco días a la semana.

 

Programa de DUI para primeros
infactores

Los programas de DUI de Sitike cumplen con los
mandatos de las cortes locales, el sistema estatal y el
DMV. Los servicios incluyen consejería y educación

individual y grupal.
 

Pruebas de drogas y alcohol
Ofrecemos servicios de pruebas de drogas y alcohol

para: clientes con entrada diferida de sentencia,
Proposición 36, de tribunales de drogas y servicios

de protección infantil.

LO QUE DICEN
NUESTROS CLIENTES

"Tenía mucho miedo de que me
juzgaran y eso no sucedió. Tenía
miedo de que me trataran mal y

eso no sucedió. Esperaba que no
me entendieran y eso no sucedió.

Lo que sucedió es que recuperé mi
vida y mi familia "  - George, Pacífica

"Soy una adicta en recuperación. Un
milagro de Sitike. La recuperación me
devolvió mi vida... me dio integridad,
dignidad y coraje... me enseñó cómo

ser madre, mujer, amiga... y cómo
vivir una vida sana y sobria, un día a la
vez."  - Lisa, Residente del Condado de

San Mateo

i n f o @ s i t i k e . o r g   ·   ( 6 5 0 ) 5 8 9 - 9 3 0 5

w w w . s i t i k e . o r g

DocuSign Envelope ID: 137E625D-1E01-4A91-ACA1-00398B3597E1



 

SITIKE
CENTRO DE CONSEJERIA

Nuestra misión es brindar consejería y educación basados en la comunidad en un
ambiente seguro y sanador que apoye las necesidades culturales y emocionales

de cada cliente, y ayudar a las personas a encontrar esperanza, resiliencia y un
cambio que dé valor a su vida.

 

Tratamiento basado 
en evidencia

 

Ambiente de apoyo

Desde 1988, nuestros consejeros
han brindado una variedad de

intervenciones basadas en
evidencia y respaldadas por

investigaciones.
 

Nuestra agencia es un
verdadero lugar de

esperanza y sanación
donde será respetado y

apoyado como un miembro
de su propia familia.

 

Durante más de tres
décadas, hemos ayudado

con orgullo y pasión a
miles de personas a
recuperarse y sanar.

Si·ti·ke n. [apache] un grupo de allegados no consanguíneos que están presentes en un momento de crisis.

Resultados exitosos

 3 0 6  S p r u c e  A v e n u e ,  S o u t h  S a n  F r a n c i s c o ,  C A  9 4 0 8 0

DocuSign Envelope ID: 137E625D-1E01-4A91-ACA1-00398B3597E1



NUESTROS PROGRAMAS

Este programa de 16 semanas se enfoca en el
manejo del estrés, la expresión adecuada de la ira, el

desarrollo de habilidades de afrontamiento y
comunicación.

 

Manejo de la ira

Violencia domestica
Este programa de 52 semanas enseña

comportamiento no violento, comunicación sana y
responsabilidad.

Descubrir la recuperación
Este programa para pacientes externos de 3 a 12
meses atiende a adultos con uso de sustancias y
trastornos concurrentes de salud mental/uso de

sustancias. Los servicios incluyen evaluación,
planes de tratamiento individualizados, consejería
individual y grupal y pruebas de drogas y alcohol.

Programa intensivo de pacientes
externos para Mujeres

Este programa específico para mujeres de 3 a 12
meses apoya a las mujeres embarazadas y/o madres

que son químicamente dependientes y que a
menudo han experimentado traumas. Las

participantes asisten al programa cuatro horas al día,
de tres a cinco días a la semana.

 

Programa de DUI para primeros
infactores

Los programas de DUI de Sitike cumplen con los
mandatos de las cortes locales, el sistema estatal y el
DMV. Los servicios incluyen consejería y educación

individual y grupal.
 

Pruebas de drogas y alcohol
Ofrecemos servicios de pruebas de drogas y alcohol

para: clientes con entrada diferida de sentencia,
Proposición 36, de tribunales de drogas y servicios

de protección infantil.

LO QUE DICEN
NUESTROS CLIENTES

"Tenía mucho miedo de que me
juzgaran y eso no sucedió. Tenía
miedo de que me trataran mal y

eso no sucedió. Esperaba que no
me entendieran y eso no sucedió.

Lo que sucedió es que recuperé mi
vida y mi familia "  - George, Pacífica

"Soy una adicta en recuperación. Un
milagro de Sitike. La recuperación me
devolvió mi vida... me dio integridad,
dignidad y coraje... me enseñó cómo

ser madre, mujer, amiga... y cómo
vivir una vida sana y sobria, un día a la
vez."  - Lisa, Residente del Condado de

San Mateo

i n f o @ s i t i k e . o r g   ·   ( 6 5 0 ) 5 8 9 - 9 3 0 5

w w w . s i t i k e . o r g

DocuSign Envelope ID: 137E625D-1E01-4A91-ACA1-00398B3597E1



 
Town of Colma – Grant Report FY22-23 

Results of the Program: People with substance use disorders are at particular risk for 
developing one or more primary conditions or chronic diseases. The coexistence of both a 
mental illness and a substance use disorder, known as a co-occurring disorder, is common. 
According to the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), 
approximately 9.2 million adults in the United States have a co-occurring disorder.  
 
These burdensome conditions have significant physical, emotional, functional, social, and 
economic consequences for people who live with these disorders, their loved ones, and society 
as a whole. Individuals living with a co-occurring disorder struggle with increased mortality 
rates, worse psychiatric symptoms, less engagement in treatment, more challenges functioning 
in everyday life, higher rates of suicidal and violent behavior, higher likelihood of overdose, 
legal problems, homelessness, and significant physical health problems. They also experience 
more frequent intensive health services, with more emergency department visits and longer 
inpatient hospital admissions.  
 
Over the past two decades, the behavioral health field’s knowledge of the outcomes, service 
needs, and treatment approaches for individuals with co-occurring disorders has expanded 
considerably. Co-occurring disorders are complex and bidirectional. They can wax and wane 
over time. The most common treatment for co-occurring disorders involves an integrated 
treatment model that can stabilize both the symptoms of the co-occurring disorder and provide 
the foundation for lasting recovery. Sitike’s programs are uniquely positioned to assist folks 
with complex needs recover from these devastating co-occurring disorders. 
 
Program Evaluation: This year, we are pleased to report that:   

• Sitike served a total of 780 clients during the grant period. A 13% increase in total clients 
served when compared to FY21-22.  

• 95% of clients that requested services in their primary and preferred language (Spanish) 
were referred to one of Sitike’s bi-lingual counselors, reducing barriers to treatment 
engagement.  

• 100% of clients that needed technology support (devices, internet, data plans, etc.) 
received the necessary support to support their participation in treatment and reduce 
barriers to treatment engagement. 

• 100% of clients who requested sliding-scale payments and were able to provide proof of 
income were provided financial assistance to reduce barriers to treatment engagement. 

• Sitike offered it’s first ever, two-day, Navigating the Behavioral Health Care System, in 
partnership with Mental Health Services Agency of San Mateo, to the general public. 
Aimed at increasing access to services and reducing strain on emergency city/county 
systems.  

The Town of Colma grant was used to supplement the actual cost of providing services to our 
clients. This funding allowed Sitike to maintain a sliding-scale payment model that ensures 
treatment access for the unemployed/underemployed and the unhoused members of our 



 
community. The grant funds were expended as follows: Personnel: $5,5484.00 and Benefits: 
$1,016.00. 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



6/26/2023 Page 1 of 6 

Town of Colma 
Non-Profit Funding Request Form 

(Exempt Organizations Only)  
FY 2023-24 

Please do NOT write “see attached” as a response to any of the questions. You must 
submit all answers on this form. You may submit additional attachments, but they 
will not replace any of the responses. 

Name of Organization: 

Contact Person: 

Address: 
Street Address  City State Zip Code 

Phone Number: Email Address: _______________________ 

1. Mission Statement:
  

2. Amount of Request: $________________

a. Total Agency Annual Budget: $_______________

b. Number of Agency Employees: _______________

c. Payroll is ________% of the Agency’s total Annual Budget.

3. Please identify a public purpose for the requested funding by identifying one of the
following categories:

A. Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;
B. Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or

Integrated Care Services;
C. Educate and engage residents;
D. Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business

in the Town; or Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a
service that the Town could provide to its residents or businesses.

DocuSign Envelope ID: F34AF38F-8125-4B70-8C4C-56B8977AB73B

To empower and transform a global community of learners.

colinc@smccd.edu

81

Cherie Colin

X

3300 College Drive, San Bruno, CA  94066

280

(650) 738-4346

Skyline College (San Mateo County Community College District)

5000.00

67,880,899.19  



6/26/2023  Page 2 of 6 
 

3a.       Describe how the funding will support the selected category: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Describe reason for request and how funds will be used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: F34AF38F-8125-4B70-8C4C-56B8977AB73B

The funds will be used to create a mini-grant process to fund innovative ideas from 
Faculty, Staff, Students and Administrators.  

Examples of grants funded are:

Critical Global Citizenship Education

Current global education prepares students to thrive in the market economy but does 
not interrogate colonialism and capitalism as root causes of global inequities. This 
project aims to address that gap while connecting with our college's mission, 
Citizenship Student Learning Outcomes, and the Civic Mindset portion of the People's 
College Initiative. We will implement programs that complement the curriculum, foster 
dialogue and engagement across disciplines, and bring the campus community together in
 a shared experience. Programs will include talks, film screenings, and art projects 
around topics such as belongingness, humanization of current historical events, social
 and ecological justice, and critical citizenship.

Digital Textbook Loan Program

The high cost of textbooks is an equity issue and barrier to student enrollment and 
success. Although the Skyline College Library offers short loans of print textbooks 
and the Center for Transformative Teaching and Learning is at the forefront of 
promoting Open Education Resources, barriers persist. Now, new software will help the 
Library lift those barriers by making digital copies or chapters of textbooks 
available to students. Called Alma-Digital, this software can integrate these digital 
assets into our catalog where they will be available for registered students to 
download for free regardless of location. This simple solution will reduce costs, 
increase enrollment, and contribute to academic success for our students.

The President's Innovation Fund (PIF) is an initiative designed to support creativity 
and innovation at Skyline College. Faculty, Staff, Students and Administrators are 
encouraged to “Dream Out Loud” and propose ideas that will support the college’s 
Mission - Vision - Values. The primary provider of the funds is the President’s 
Council, a group of dedicated community members committed to actively supporting 
Skyline College. The President’s Council raises financial support for the President's 
Innovation Fund by hosting the President's Breakfast every spring.



6/26/2023  Page 3 of 6 
 

5. If the amount of the request is higher than the previous year, provide a detailed 
explanation of the need for the increase: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Describe the benefit to the Town derived from funding your organization: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F34AF38F-8125-4B70-8C4C-56B8977AB73B

The percentage of students that reside in Daly City/Colma comprise 21.7% of the 
student body.  The innovative programs directly support students from The Town of 
Colma.

The amount requested is the same request as last year.



6/26/2023  Page 4 of 6 
 

7. Describe the following: 
A. Number of Colma residents or businesses (or both) served by the organization 
in the years prior to the grant application;  
B. The location(s) where Colma residents or businesses may receive the recipient 
organization’s services or programs; and  
C. The nature and extent of the efforts of the recipient organization to reach out 
to Colma residents and businesses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Provide a detailed account of how the FY 2022-23 contribution was used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F34AF38F-8125-4B70-8C4C-56B8977AB73B

We used the 22-23 funds to support our new Neighborhood Center. The Neighborhood Center
 is a pilot program based on a proven approach to community engagement, as an extension
 of the Skyline College People’s College Initiative: Bringing Skyline to the People.  
The following items were purchased with the grant monies:
  Swag bags
  translation service
  marketing materials
  food

Each year about 21.7% of the 15,000 students list Colma/Daly City as their residence.  
They receive services at Skyline College located at 3300 College Drive, San Bruno, CA. 
Skyline College does extensive outreach and community engagement by outreaching to High
 Schools, participating in community events, and digital advertising.  Skyline College 
uses social media to connect with residents in the region.



6/26/2023  Page 5 of 6 
 

9. List contributions requested and received from other cities in FY 2022-23 and requested 
or expected in FY 2023-24: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10. Did the organization participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 

publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate 
for public office within the past 36 months (please select one)?   

 
Yes __________ No ______________ 
 
If yes, please provide details.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: F34AF38F-8125-4B70-8C4C-56B8977AB73B

22-23   Town of Colma $4,000
23-24   Town of Colma $5,000 (via this request)

X 



6/26/2023  Page 6 of 6 
 

11. Charitable Trust # or EIN #          
 
 
Please attach a copy of the following: 
 

 Roster of current governing board 
 Current Year Annual Operating Budget 
 Proof of organization’s tax exempt status 

 
 
 
 
 
Optional Attachments 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F34AF38F-8125-4B70-8C4C-56B8977AB73B

94-3084147



����������	
��� ��������������������������������������������������������� �����!!�"��# ��� $�

%��&�	����$$�'���������������������������'&%& ��


()�����������������*+,,,-�./012�-13456017682�9/45:�/;�<5=861182�9/45:�+10>158
?16�6@1�A46186�B7;/5046B/7�4>/=6�,CDE-FGH�518/=5I18J,@47K1�*B61� *145I@�8B61�=8B7K�?//KA1JJ L

CM15MB1N9/45:�+10>1589/45:�OK17:4P51MB/=8�OK17:489/45:�P4IQ169/45:�,4A17:459/45:�+B7=6189/45:�+116B7K�DB:1/89/45:�P/ABIB18�R�P5/I1:=518<5=8611�O5148�R�SA1I6B/789/45:�*646101768,/764I6�T8������������

DocuSign Envelope ID: F34AF38F-8125-4B70-8C4C-56B8977AB73B



����������	
��� ��������������������������������������������������������� �����!!�"��# ��� $�

%��&�	����$$�'���������������������������'&%& ��


()*�+,-.�/01),20-301),20-45-6772*0289,:��;
<:=>�/,60>1043,60>104?5-6772*0289,:��;

DocuSign Envelope ID: F34AF38F-8125-4B70-8C4C-56B8977AB73B



����������	
��� ��������������������������������������������������������� �����!!�"��# ��� $�

%��&�	����$$�'���������������������������'&%& ��


()*+,�-,,.,,/)*+,0123345,46789��:
;83<)=4�>9.9?,==<9.9?,=0*)<995392789��:

DocuSign Envelope ID: F34AF38F-8125-4B70-8C4C-56B8977AB73B



����������	
��� ��������������������������������������������������������� �����!!�"��# ��� $�

%��&�	����$$�'���������������������������'&%& (�


)*+,�-.*/01/20.*/01/234536678,7.9*1
:;<=.;�>,?1512@,?151/,A143B8536678,7.9*1��CDEF�GEHIJ�KJLFHM�KJNNLFOHM�KJPPIQI�ROSHTOUHV=,�W)XXXY�*5�2�<=;,,Z61??,0,�7*5<;*6<�?162<,7�[,<\,,/�W2/�];2/6*561�2/7�W2/�̂15,�*/�<=,�W*?*61/>2??,B8�_.;�X1??,0,5�5,;@,�/,2;?B�̀abaaa�5<.7,/<5�,26=�B,2;�2/7�1c,;�<=,�d;5<�<\1�B,2;5�1e*/5<;.6<*1/�*/�2�\*7,�@2;*,<B�1e�7,0;,,�2/7�<;2/5e,;�A;10;235b�25�\,??�25�@162<*1/2?Z<,6=/*62?A;10;2358

DocuSign Envelope ID: F34AF38F-8125-4B70-8C4C-56B8977AB73B



����������	
��� ��������������������������������������������������������� �����!!�"��# ��� $�

%��&�	����$$�'���������������������������'&%& 
�


()*+,-+./01�234�567893:;�4:<9=>�2?�@//0A��B3?CDE0F�EG/HDEE0I9JK:L<96MLKNNOP9OQRS--TUVTWX=K959Y:6<K9;<LZKY[=\K9;<]7<[9�̂_?NN9LL7J7[7<\9̀Y=6<�a6:QO2=;<:N< 2=Y\67bc<�d�342225�e�?[[�67bc<L�69L9689OP

DocuSign Envelope ID: F34AF38F-8125-4B70-8C4C-56B8977AB73B



DocuSign Envelope ID: F34AF38F-8125-4B70-8C4C-56B8977AB73B



DocuSign Envelope ID: F34AF38F-8125-4B70-8C4C-56B8977AB73B



DocuSign Envelope ID: F34AF38F-8125-4B70-8C4C-56B8977AB73B













REPORT FOR THE TOWN OF COLMA
The Neighborhood Center is a pilot program based 
on a proven approach to community engagement, 
as an extension of the Skyline College People’s 
College Initiative: Bringing Skyline to the People. 
Our data shows that the northern most part of San 
Mateo County in Daly City and its surrounding areas 
are underserved and, as such, we focused on Daly 
City for the pilot. The vision was for a public/private 
partnership with community partners engaged in 
nonprofit services and education who collaborate to 
offer services in the evenings at a local school. Thanks 
to the Town of Colma grant and a partnership with 
Jefferson Union High School District, this vision has 
come to fruition.



The Skyline College Neighborhood Center held its 
soft opening on Monday, November 7 and Tuesday, 
November 8, 2022 at Jefferson High School 
located in Daly City. Over 80 Jefferson Adult School 

students participated in the opening, enjoying free 
meals thanks to Chick-Fil-A in Daly City located at 
Serramonte Center. Students also went home with 
swag bags filled with Skyline College branded gear! 



Many students had questions for our Outreach 
team and were interested in learning more about 
the college. The majority of the students at the adult 
school are taking ESL courses.

Each week thereafter through May 2023, the 
Neighborhood Center provided a free hot meal 
for Adult School students and their families. 
Sponsors in addition to Chick-Fil-A included Super 
Duper Burgers in Daly City, Republic Services and 
MoonChef who was especially generous, donating 
to the Neighborhood Center several times. 



A tutor was also embedded into one of the 
ESL classrooms weekly to provide additional 
support for students. Throughout the fall 
semester, several workshops were held and 
current Skyline College students were on hand 
to talk about their journey from lower level 
ESL classes at the adult school to enrolling in 
college level coursework at Skyline College.

The goal of  the new Skyline College 
Neighborhood Center is to bring Skyline 
College directly to the people of the 
communities we serve in a meaningful way. 
Skyline College has been provided space at 
the high school rent free to complement and 
enhance services and educational offerings for 
the adult school population. We look forward 
to continuing to serve Jefferson Adult School 
students in the coming academic year.

Figure 1: Represents an overlay of income level 
(blue) and educational attainment (pink) in 
underserved areas (red dots)

*Background color indicates income (blue) 
and educational attainment (pink) levels in 
population. Darkest purple areas indicate 
census tracks with highest proportion of 
adults 24+ years without an associate degree 
and household income <$100K. 

FIGURE 1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



6/28/2023  Page 1 of 6 
 

Town of Colma 
Non-Profit Funding Request Form  

FY 2023-24 
 

 
 
Please do NOT write “see attached” as a response to any of the questions. You must 
submit all answers on this form. You may submit additional attachments, but they 
will not replace any of the responses. 
 
 
Name of Organization:           
 
Contact Person:            
 
Address:             
  Street Address   City  State  Zip Code  
 
Phone Number:     Email Address: __________________ 
 
1. Mission Statement: 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Amount of Request: $________________ 
 
 a. Total Agency Annual Budget: $_______________ 
 

b. Number of Agency Employees: _______________ 
 
c. Payroll is ________% of the Agency’s total Annual Budget. 

 
 
3.  Please identify a public purpose for the requested funding by identifying one of the 

following categories:  

A. Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;  
B. Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or 

Integrated Care Services;  
C. Educate and engage residents;  
D. Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business 

in the Town; or Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a 
service that the Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 44748939-B6AC-41CD-B4C1-887B07290B25

Our mission is to support and enhance public education in the South San Francisco 
Unified School District in a way that prioritizes students, equity and transparency. 
Our goal is for all students receive the education and resources they need to achieve 
their highest potential. 

kristy@ssfedfoundation.org

0

X

 

139,100.00 *projected based on potential fundraising

13,200

(650)922-8009

Kristy Camacho

 

P.O. Box 5418  South San Francisco, CA 94080

South San Francisco Education Foundation

 

0



6/28/2023  Page 2 of 6 
 

3a.       Describe how the funding will support the selected category: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Describe reason for request and how funds will be used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 44748939-B6AC-41CD-B4C1-887B07290B25

The South San Francisco Education Foundation is a newly established non profit 
organization dedicated to improving education in the South San Francisco Unified 
School District. Our values are student success, equity, community, and integrity. 
We work in partnership with parents, teachers, PTA’s, advocacy groups and school 
administrators to determine what initiatives and areas of funding are most needed. 
As we receive additional funding through direct donations, business sponsorships and
 grants we anticipate expanding our operations with a variety of additional 
initiatives and projects. 
The foundation has 5 current projects we plan to implement this school year: 
1. Middle school family parent education. 
2. Providing resources to help remove barriers for newcomer and migrant students to 
help them attend school and engage in their education. 
3. Establish a club soccer program for English Learner students who are not able to 
participate in school sports teams. 
4. Support Baden Continuation High School students to be more connected with nature,
 mental health and potential careers through a grant from the San Mateo County Parks
 Foundation. 
5. The School Library Project, which is the focus of this grant application.  
The aim of the School Library Project is to foster inclusion and a sense of 
belonging among underrepresented student groups, while supporting literacy, 
engagement, and a love for learning. To improve student access to diverse books and 
resources, the Foundation will draw from well-researched lists of recommended books 
for specific grade levels and collaborate with school librarians to purchase new 
library books that promote these outcomes. Book lists will also include grade level 
appropriate books on topics the Board has prioritized for the Foundation’s first 
initiatives, including mental health and practical knowledge, and social-emotional 
learning. All schools in the district will receive new books. 

The reason for the request is that school libraries in the district do not have a 
dedicated budget for re-stocking books. They rely on book fairs, donations by 
parents and variable allocations by principals for new books. County library funding
 strictly prohibits use of their funding to purchase books for school libraries. All
 libraries are in need of new books. 

The total project budget for library books for the entire school district is 
$13,200. We will allocate it as follows:
$1000 for each of the 9 elementary schools 
$800 each for the 3 middle schools 
$700 for the 2 mainstream high schools (El Camino and SSF High School)
$400 to Baden continuation high school

School district teacher librarians will assist the foundation in developing 
appropriate book lists. The Foundation will directly purchase and deliver “list 
books” that are not already in school library catalogs to each school site. 
All schools in the district will receive new books. A portion of the books will be 
from the book lists and a portion will be left to the school’s choice. School 
librarians, teachers, students and principals will be encouraged to participate in 
selecting the school choice books. 



6/28/2023  Page 3 of 6 
 

5. If the amount of the request is higher than the previous year, provide a detailed 
explanation of the need for the increase: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Describe the benefit to the Town derived from funding your organization: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 44748939-B6AC-41CD-B4C1-887B07290B25

n/a

Colma students attend SSFUSD, and they and their loved ones will benefit from the 
improved inclusiveness, sense of belongingness, literacy, engagement, and love for 
learning this project aims to foster. Our foundation will also publicize the Town’s 
support for the program on the foundation’s social media, newsletter and website. We
 will thank the Town in our messaging to the students and teachers in all the 
schools when the books are delivered. 



6/28/2023  Page 4 of 6 
 

7. Describe the following: 
A. Number of Colma residents or businesses (or both) served by the organization 
in the years prior to the grant application;  
B. The location(s) where Colma residents or businesses may receive the recipient 
organization’s services or programs; and  
C. The nature and extent of the efforts of the recipient organization to reach out 
to Colma residents and businesses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Provide a detailed account of how the FY 2022-23 contribution was used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 44748939-B6AC-41CD-B4C1-887B07290B25

n/a

The boundaries of 4 schools in SSFUSD include residents of the Town of Colma: 
Sunshine Gardens Elementary, Buri Buri Elementary, Alta Loma Middle School and El 
Camino High School. From the information we received for the last school year, 
there are a few students who are Colma residents at each of those schools. However,
 all students will benefit from updated and inclusive library book offerings. The 
Town of Colma doesn’t have a library so improving access to high quality books at 
school is needed for the town’s students. 

As a new, fully volunteer- run organization we have just begun our efforts to reach
 out to local businesses and residents. Our first mailer will be sent out at the 
end of the month that will reach all families in the district boundaries in the 
cities of Colma, South San Francisco, Daly City and San Bruno. 



6/28/2023  Page 5 of 6 
 

9.        List contributions requested and received from other cities in FY 2022-23 and requested 
or expected in FY 2023-24: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10. Did the organization participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 

publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate 
for public office within the past 36 months (please select one)?   

 
Yes __________ No ______________ 
 
If yes, please provide details.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 44748939-B6AC-41CD-B4C1-887B07290B25

X 

SSFUSD’s district boundaries include residents of Colma, South San Francisco, Daly 
City and San Bruno. It has 3 schools located in Daly City and San Bruno. The SSF Ed 
Foundation is actively applying for grants as we learn of them. We are grateful for 
the prospect of receiving funding and being able to name the Town of Colma as one of 
the first cities to support our work. 

In February 2023 we received a donation of $14000 from the Yes on Measure T campaign 
of their surplus funds from the recently approved bond measure. The donation was 
approved by the SSFUSD School Board. 

In June 2023 we received the Enhancing Equitable Access Grant from the San Mateo 
County Parks Foundation of $4000 to provide field trips to students at Baden 
Continuation High School to the county parks this school year. 



6/28/2023  Page 6 of 6 
 

11. Charitable Trust # or EIN #          
 
 
 
Please attach a copy of the following: 
 

 Roster of current governing board 
 Current Year Annual Operating Budget 
 Proof of organization’s tax exempt status 
 Completed IRS 990 form (filed for 2022 or 2021)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Optional Attachments 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 44748939-B6AC-41CD-B4C1-887B07290B25

EIN # 88-1191386  **Note that as a new org our
 first 990 filing is due 11/2023. 



2023 Board Roster

Kristy Camacho, President
kristy@ssfedfoundation.org

Barbie Levasseur, Executive Vice President
barbie@ssfedfoundation.org

Juanita Flores, Vice President of Community Engagement
juanita@ssfedfoundation.org

Kayla Powers, Secretary
kayla@ssfedfoundation.org

Lauren Kitchen, Treasurer
lauren@ssfedfoundation.org

DocuSign Envelope ID: 44748939-B6AC-41CD-B4C1-887B07290B25

mailto:kristy@ssfedfoundation.org
mailto:barbie@ssfedfoundation.org
mailto:juanita@ssfedfoundation.org
mailto:kayla@ssfedfoundation.org
mailto:lauren@ssfedfoundation.org


SSF Education Foundation budget for fiscal year
July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2023

Revenue Amount

Fundraising: grants, donations, events $100,000.00

Total Revenue $ 100,000.00

Expenses:

Fundraising Expense $5,000.00

Administrative: banking, technology, database,
insurance, training, professional services, supplies $4,500.00

Compensation $0.00

Outreach/Marketing: mailers, signage, swag, online
advertising $8,500.00

Programs and Initiatives $121,100.00

Total Expenses $ 139,100.00

Carryover from 2022 $ 72,796.51

Ending Balance $ 33,696.51

DocuSign Envelope ID: 44748939-B6AC-41CD-B4C1-887B07290B25



6/26/2023  Page 1 of 6 
 

Town of Colma 
Non-Profit Funding Request Form  

FY 2023-24 
 

 
 
Please do NOT write “see attached” as a response to any of the questions. You must 
submit all answers on this form. You may submit additional attachments, but they 
will not replace any of the responses. 
 
 
Name of Organization:           
 
Contact Person:            
 
Address:             
  Street Address   City  State  Zip Code  
 
Phone Number:     Email Address: __________________ 
 
1. Mission Statement: 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Amount of Request: $________________ 
 
 a. Total Agency Annual Budget: $_______________ 
 

b. Number of Agency Employees: _______________ 
 
c. Payroll is ________% of the Agency’s total Annual Budget. 

 
 
3.  Please identify a public purpose for the requested funding by identifying one of the 

following categories:  

A. Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;  
B. Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or 

Integrated Care Services;  
C. Educate and engage residents;  
D. Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business 

in the Town; or Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a 
service that the Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A9E7A1D9-E18B-4D93-8FC6-5C434F93A15C

5,000.00

terry@sustainablesanmateo
.org

4

81

3182 Campus Drive #153, San Mateo, CA 94403

X

 

Terry Nagel

Our mission is to drive impactful action on economic, environmental and social
 equity issues that leads to sustainable practices and improves the long-term 
health of San Mateo County.

 

288,500

Sustainable San Mateo County

650-678-7082

 



6/26/2023  Page 2 of 6 
 

3a.       Describe how the funding will support the selected category: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Describe reason for request and how funds will be used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A9E7A1D9-E18B-4D93-8FC6-5C434F93A15C

Funds will support program managers who coordinate volunteer researchers, writers, 
graphic designers, printing and dissemination of reports. In addition, these funds will 
help cover the costs of launch events for these three programs. These launch events are 
currently offered to all residents free of charge. These launch events are currently 
offered to all residents free of charge. For some programs, such as the Dashboard, we 
invite city leaders and staff to special presentations that are open only to those 
invited.

In addition, city and county leaders have asked if we might bring sustainability 
managers together to discuss key issues they are working on, to enable them to 
collaborate on solutions. During our Dashboard meeting with Colma leaders last year, 
they expressed interest in collaborating with other cities on how to speed up 
installation of more electric vehicle charging stations.

Colma residents are already feeling the impacts of climate change. Sustainable San 
Mateo County helps your town with these core programs:

•   Indicators Report – An in-depth study of one critical sustainability issue 
affecting San Mateo County
•   Sustainability Dashboard – Tracks sustainability progress by local cities and the 
county
•   Sustainability Ideas Bank – Shares proven solutions for accelerating sustainability
 with local cities and businesses

The Indicators Report has been tracking key sustainability-related metrics in the 
county for more than 20 years, focusing each year on a specific sustainability topic of
 interest to local cities, including case studies, deep research, historical context 
and policy recommendations. The 2022 report, which focused on building electrification,
 won widespread praise from planners and builders; it's located at 
https://tinyurl.com/SSMCindicator2022. The 2023 report will examine the well-being of 
children, youth and families.

Our newest project, the Dashboard, is helping Colma leaders assess the town's 
sustainability progress with 30 key performance indicators. Last year we met with Colma
 leaders to review the results of the first report and we are currently seeking 
feedback from your staff regarding which metrics they believe would be most helpful in 
the next edition.

The Ideas Bank complements the Dashboard. When we meet with city leaders, we introduce 
them to some of the solutions that other cities have adopted to make sustainability 
progress. 



6/26/2023  Page 3 of 6 
 

5. If the amount of the request is higher than the previous year, provide a detailed 
explanation of the need for the increase: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Describe the benefit to the Town derived from funding your organization: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A9E7A1D9-E18B-4D93-8FC6-5C434F93A15C

Some of the ways the Town of Colma and its residents benefit from our program goals and
 accomplishments include:
•   Raising awareness about and engagement with residents to support the towns 
sustainability programs and goals
•   Providing intelligence to town leaders as to their sustainability performance in 
key sustainability areas and identifying ways to augment sustainability efforts (via 
our Dashboard Project and our collection of sustainability solutions in the 
Sustainability Ideas Bank)
•   Sustainability education via our monthly virtual Happy Hours, newsletters, blogs 
and videos
•   Continuing to partner with local government and community organizations to promote 
sustainable policies and practices, including zero net energy, electrification of new 
buildings, EV infrastructure, waste reduction, social equity, affordable housing and 
new transportation options
•   We also write letters of support for local jurisdictions when their proposals for 
funding or advocacy align with the values and goals of Sustainable San Mateo County.

We are once again requesting just $5,000 from each city and town in San Mateo County, 
to help offset the expenses of the programs that benefit them. The actual cost of just 
the Indicators Report exceeds $60,000. Now we are providing two more programs to help 
Colma, but we're still asking for only $5,000.



6/26/2023  Page 4 of 6 
 

7. Describe the following: 
A. Number of Colma residents or businesses (or both) served by the organization 
in the years prior to the grant application;  
B. The location(s) where Colma residents or businesses may receive the recipient 
organization’s services or programs; and  
C. The nature and extent of the efforts of the recipient organization to reach out 
to Colma residents and businesses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Provide a detailed account of how the FY 2022-23 contribution was used: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A9E7A1D9-E18B-4D93-8FC6-5C434F93A15C

During FY 2022-2023, Colma's contribution helped support our 67-page Indicators Report 
on building electrification. It has received widespread praise from city officials for 
the comprehensive information it offers them on this complex topic, including lots of 
case studies, resources and recommendations. It can be viewed at https://sustainablesanm
ateo.org/home/indicators/2022-indicators-report-building-electrification-in-sanmateo-cou
nty/

Our 2022 Fall Launch event was our first, big in-person event post pandemic. It was held
 at Genentech in South San Francisco. The keynote address was delivered by Panama 
Bartholomy, a celebrity in the electrification field who is Director of the Building 
Decarbonization Coalition. Our panel of experts included Roopak Kandasamy, Head of Sales
 Operations for BlocPower, which is piloting a “one-stop shop” for helping residents in 
Menlo Park electrify their homes; Jonathan Hartman, Architect LEED AP BD+C Principal 
with Group 4 Architecture; and sustainability staff from Genentech, including Jeannie 
Linam, Climate Action and Resilience Manager for the company.

Sustainable San Mateo County’s work is intended to serve the entire population of San 
Mateo County, including all of Colma’s residents and businesses. The information our 
organization provides is used by residents, researchers and leaders in government, 
business and the nonprofit world.

We reach people in Colma through our website, our virtual Happy Hour programs on 
different sustainability topics, in-person programs and workshops, distribution of 
informational handouts, and booths at local fairs and festivals throughout the county. 
All of your residents are invited to our annual Awards Celebration and launch events 
where we introduce our yearly Indicators Report, Dashboard and Ideas Bank. Each year, 
more than 20,000 individuals visit our website and hundreds of people participate 
directly in our programs. 

We have 2,797 newsletter subscribers on our mailing list, 2,200 Twitter followers, 728 
Instagram followers and 1,300 Facebook followers. The majority of these are individuals 
who live and/or work in San Mateo County.



6/26/2023  Page 5 of 6 
 

9.        List contributions requested and received from other cities in FY 2022-23 and requested 
or expected in FY 2023-24: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10. Did the organization participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 

publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate 
for public office within the past 36 months (please select one)?   

 
Yes __________ No ______________ 
 
If yes, please provide details.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: A9E7A1D9-E18B-4D93-8FC6-5C434F93A15C

X

Colma's $1,000 contribution to the Indicators Program in FY 2022-2023 represented 
less than 2 percent of our program funds for the Indicators Report and less than 1 
percent of the total revenue of the organization. Please note that program funds 
include only the direct expenses of program staffing, printing ($0 in 2022, due to 
the shift to all-electronic), postage and event costs. Indirect costs, including 
office space, technology, supplies, outreach and the salary for the Executive 
Director (who spends 20 percent of her time on the Indicators Report), are not 
included in that calculation.

Compared to other city contributors, Colma's FY 2022-2023 $1,000 contribution was in 
the lower range, with 11 cities plus the county contributing at higher levels and 
four other cities at the $1,000 level. Only one city contributed less than $1,000. 
All but three cities/towns in San Mateo County funded the Indicators Report that 
year.

During FY 2023-2024, we have received $5,000 so far from three cities, $3,000 from 
one city and $1,000 from two cities. The county has donated $10,000. We anticipate 
that most cities will give as much or more than last year because of the benefits of 
the Sustainability Dashboard and the Sustainability Ideas Bank that we have added 
since last year.

 



6/26/2023  Page 6 of 6 
 

11. Charitable Trust # or EIN #          
 
 
 
Please attach a copy of the following: 
 

 Roster of current governing board 
 Current Year Annual Operating Budget 
 Proof of organization’s tax exempt status 
 Completed IRS 990 form (filed for 2022 or 2021)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Optional Attachments 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A9E7A1D9-E18B-4D93-8FC6-5C434F93A15C

48-1265207



 
 

 
2023 Sustainable San Mateo County Board Roster 

 
 

Chair: Kirsten Keith, attorney with practice in Redwood City and former Mayor of Menlo Park 

Treasurer: Barbara McHugh, former Revenue Manager for Mellon Capital Management in San 

Francisco 

Secretary: Seamus Murphy, Executive Director of the San Francisco Bay Area Water Emergency 

Transportation Authority 

 

Board Members: 

John Crowell, Program Manager for Redwood City 2020 

Veronica Escamez, Founder and Executive Director of Casa Círculo Cultural in Redwood City 

Valerie Fox Carlos, former Director of Marketing for The Peninsula Regent 

Georgi LaBerge, former Executive Director of the San Mateo County Community College 

Foundation and the Redwood City Library Foundation, and former Mayor of Redwood City 

Lori Low, Manager of Government and Community Affairs for Caltrain 

Russ Miller, Managing Partner of Miller & Olson, LLP, a law firm with offices in Burlingame and 

Sacramento 

Mark Olbert, former biotech CFO, former school board member and former Mayor of San 

Carlos  

Bill Schulte, former head of the Consumer Services Division of the California Public Utilities 

Commission 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A9E7A1D9-E18B-4D93-8FC6-5C434F93A15C



Revenue
   Programs

      Indicators Report 54,000
      Awards

         Donation Fund the Future 9,300
         Silent Auction (incl Live 2023) 20,000
         Sponsorships 85,000
      Total Awards 114,300
      General

         Foundations & Private Grants 70,000
         Individuals 20,000
      Special Projects 30,000                     
Total Revenue 288,300

Expenditures
   Accounting Software 150
   Bank Charges

      Credit Card Processing Fees 1,500
   Computer & Internet 9,000
   Donor Software 573
   Dues and Subscriptions 132
   Fundraising Expenses 1,725
   Insurance

      Liability Insurance 700
      Worker's Comp & D&O Insurance 3,540
   Licenses and Permits 75
   Meals & Entertainment

      Misc Meals & Entertain 635
   Payroll Service 2,000
   Payroll Taxes 15,142
   Printing

      Fundraising Appeal 500
   Professional Fees

      Accounting Fees 1,500
      Independent Contractors

         Awards Video 3,700
         Legal Fees 2,000
         Outreach 1,000
   Total Program Other 250
      Total Program Publicity 6,620
   Total Rent 1,750
   Research Expenses 900

Sustainable San Mateo County
FY 2023-2024 Budget

DocuSign Envelope ID: A9E7A1D9-E18B-4D93-8FC6-5C434F93A15C



      Office 400
   Telephone 500
   Travel

      Program 500
  Wages

     Executive Director 90,000
     Indicators Program Manager 40,000
     Administrative  Assistant 31,000
     New Position 73,000
 Total Wages 234,000
Total Expenditures 288,492
Net Operating Revenue -192
Other Revenue

   Interest Income 4,000
Total Other Revenue

Net Other Revenue

Net Revenue 3,808

DocuSign Envelope ID: A9E7A1D9-E18B-4D93-8FC6-5C434F93A15C



Help San Mateo County Lead the Way

At this critical time for our planet, your contribution will help achieve the vision we share of a 
sustainable future for San Mateo County. With the pandemic, wildfires and extreme weather 
threatening our future, there’s no time to lose in helping local cities, businesses and residents 
adopt sustainable practices. We believe our county can demonstrate to the rest of the country 
that it’s possible to become environmentally sustainable while being socially responsible and 
also achieving economic prosperity.

“They are true stewards of our community.” 
Chris Garrett, Devil’s Canyon 

Brewing Company Owner 
and SSMC Advisory Council Member

“SSMC is helping to catapult the 
county through research and metrics 
toward a greener, more inclusive 
future for all.”

Leane Eberhart, Volunteer

“SSMC strengthens our communities 
by making the transition to sustainable 
practices and policies easier.”

Kai Kato, Stanford student  
and 2020 SSMC summer intern

What Others Say About SSMC

Learn more at https://sustainablesanmateo.org 
advocate@sustainablesanmateo.org or (650) 918-1992

We Are Making an Impact with 5 Key Initiatives
• Our popular Awards Celebration has honored sustainability champions and Green  

Building Award recipients each spring since 1999
• Our monthly Happy Hours offer participants a chance to chat with experts on a variety of 

topics in a fun online way
• Our new Sustainability Dashboard tracks sustainability in local cities and the county
• Our Indicators Report, produced annually since 1997, takes a deep dive into one critical 

sustainability issue each year
• Our Sustainability Ideas Bank compiles successful policies and programs implemented by 

cities and businesses that others can replicate without having to reinvent the wheel 

IG
: @

m
ila

_h
of

m
an

; w
eb

: m
ila

di
di

t.c
om

“I really admire the work that they do 
because they draw in the equity piece that’s 
so important, and they always strive for 
solutions that make economic sense.”

Diane Bailey, Cofounder, 
Fossil Free Buildings in Silicon Valley

DocuSign Envelope ID: A9E7A1D9-E18B-4D93-8FC6-5C434F93A15C



Sustainable San Mateo County
FY 2022-2023 in Review

Impact
Award Winners since 1999

Sustainability Ideas Bank
solutions to advance sustainability

Happy Hours on energy, transportation, 
water, waste, food insecurity and more

Reach Codes adopted in San Mateo 
County to support electrification

Learn how to get involved: sustainablesanmateo.org

Our vision is a sustainable future for everyone in San Mateo County.

Our mission is to drive impactful action on economic,  
environmental and social equity issues that leads to sustainable 
practices and improves the long-term health of San Mateo County.

Indicators Report
Taking a deep dive into 
1 local issue each year 

since 1997

Sustainability
Ideas Bank

Sharing proven solutions to 
accelerate change in cities 

and businessesAwards
Sustainability and 

Green Building 
Awardees  
since 1999

Sustainability 
Dashboard

Tracking progress in San 
Mateo County with key 
sustainability metrics

Happy Hours
Engaging community

members on 
current topics via
virtual gatherings

Revenue Streams Impact

174

79

17418

32

Core Programs

27%

25%

20%

18%

10% Auction

Programs

Sponsors

Individual Donors

Grants

DocuSign Envelope ID: A9E7A1D9-E18B-4D93-8FC6-5C434F93A15C



2022 Indicators Report: Building Electrification

Leading the nation in moving from dangerous pipeline gas to clean electric energy in buildings

Congratulations to Our 2023 Award Winners

Diane Bailey SEI Redwood High School Burlingame Community Center

Amann, David
Atherton (Town)
Belmont (City)
Bhatnagar, Beth & Raj
Bohannon Foundation
Brisbane (City)
Bristol Myers Squibb
Burlingame (City)
California Water Service
Carpenters Local 217
Chan Zuckerberg Initiative
Colma (Town)
Colson, Donna and Eric
Cotchett, Pitre & McCarthy
County of San Mateo 
Crabbe, David and Nancy
Cui, Joanna
Daly City (City)
Davies Appliance

DES Architects + Engineers
Eakin, Kaia & Bryan Beck 
Enterprise Holdings Foundation
Exp.
Flad Associates 
Foster City (City)
Franklin Templeton
Genentech 
Google
Gratitude Giving Circle
Half Moon Bay (City)
Hill, Jerry
Hillsborough (Town)
IBEW Local 617
Kaiser Permanente
Kohl-Zaugg, Christine
Kreitem, George & Rhonda 
LaBerge, Georgi & Warren Dale
Lyngso Garden Materials

Voices from Our Community

“My internship with SSMC was 
truly transformative. It ignited 
a passion for environmental 
justice and sustainable city  
planning and has shaped my 
future career plans.” 
Lizzie Avila, Stanford University 
graduate

“Sustainable San Mateo County leads 
our community in creating a green, 
climate-friendly future for our kids. 
I’m proud to support them.”
State Senator Josh Becker

“They are true stewards of our 
community.”

Chris Garrett, Devil’s Canyon 
Brewery Owner & SSMC Advisory 

Council Member

“Sustainability is a complex issue.  
SSMC’s holistic approach emphasizes 

the significance of social equity in  
effective public policy. We need to 

assure that everyone can contribute and 
that all can reap the benefits.”

Deborah Penrose, Mayor, Half Moon Bay

Thanks also to our volunteers, interns and in-kind donors. There are too many to be listed here!

Thank You to Our Sponsors

Tom Kabat

McGlashan, Ricki & Doug
McHugh, Barbara & Mark Olbert
Menlo Park (City)
MidPen Housing
Millbrae (City)
Miller, Russ & Kirk Pessner
Nagel, Terry & Jim
Nash, Lisa Diaz & Michael
Northern California Carpenters     
   Local No. 217
Nuss, Frances (Estate of)
Pacifica (City)
Peninsula Clean Energy
Peterson, Dan 
Port of Redwood City
Portola Valley (Town)
Putnam, Kent
Recology San Mateo County
Redwood City (City)

Republic Services
RethinkWaste
SAMCEDA
San Carlos (City)
San Mateo (City)
San Mateo County Community 
   College District
Sand Hill Foundation
Schulte, Bill
Seaport Industrial Association
Silicon Valley Community 
   Foundation
Sims Metal 
South San Francisco (City) 
South San Francisco Scavenger 
   Co., Inc.
Water Emergency Transportation 
   Authority

DocuSign Envelope ID: A9E7A1D9-E18B-4D93-8FC6-5C434F93A15C



TOWN OF COLMA GRANT REPORT: Sustainable San Mateo
County

Indicators Report, FY 2022-23

RESULTS:

Sustainable San Mateo County (SSMC) is an independent 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization that
has been engaging local residents and leaders in advancing sustainability since 1992. We are
not affiliated with or funded by the county's Office of Sustainability, and we depend on Colma
and our other 19 local cities and towns for support, notably for funding our “Indicators for a
Sustainable San Mateo County Reports” program. These in-depth reports compile information
about many interdependent issues into a single source, allowing local decision makers, city
leaders and residents to monitor progress toward sustainability goals. Through these Indicators
Reports, as well as our other programs, events and our broad community outreach, SSMC
raises awareness of local concerns grounded in facts and proposes solutions to effectively
address these. We encourage you to check out our website at: www.sustainablesanmateo.org
and our social media channels for more information about our organization and our positive
impact on the ground.

During FY 2022-23, despite still having to contend with high levels of uncertainty as we slowly
and gradually started to transition back to a pre-pandemic mode, we were able to keep interest
in our online events high, despite a generalized onset of “Zoom fatigue” everywhere. We
managed to do this by choosing highly educational content. Our popular, highly interactive
Happy Hours, featured both timely topics and engaging, knowledgeable speakers. We also
continued to work closely with local residents, government, businesses and community
organizations to stimulate engagement on the "three E's of sustainability": reducing our
environmental footprint, stimulating long-term economic growth and promoting social equity.

Over the last few years, SSMC has developed - and continues to develop - a suite of highly
integrated programs and services to assist Colma and the other San Mateo County cities and
towns accelerate their sustainability efforts to reach their ambitious goals, while also becoming
more resilient as they increasingly have to address the negative consequences of climate
change. These programs include our Indicators Reports program and our Dashboard project
(focus on metrics), the Sustainability Ideas Bank (focus on solutions and tools to strengthen
sustainability performance), our annual Awards Celebration (focus on celebrating inspiring
leaders to show what’s possible) and our advocacy efforts to promote ordinances, policies and

https://sustainablesanmateo.org/
http://www.sustainablesanmateo.org


programs in alignment with our vision of a sustainable future for everyone in San Mateo County
(focus on implementation).

Our online Indicators Reports demonstrate our work throughout the grant year:

● For 2023, our key theme is “Children, Youth and Families,” which will be grounded in
the Bill of Rights for Children and Youth, adopted by the San Mateo County Board of
Supervisors in 2008. This is a critical issue for our County and cities, especially given the
toll the last few pandemic years and the ever-growing climate change crisis have had on
our families, including but not limited to increased levels of mental stress, a lack of
adequate and affordable childcare options, widespread pauperisation and a rise in
childhood asthma. As in the past, we’ll also look at this timely and important topic
through the lens of social equity.
In-depth research, insightful data analysis and maps, as well as current and relevant
content for the report on this key theme are currently being generated. Once finalized,
the information will be provided on our website and shared broadly with the general
public during an in-person fall launch event.
● SSMC’s comprehensive 2022 Report on Building Electrification in San Mateo County
is available on our website at:
https://sustainablesanmateo.org/home/indicators/2022-indicators-report-building-electrifi
cation-in-sanmateo-county/
● Other online Indicators Reports can be accessed on our website. For the most
recent reports, please go to:
https://sustainablesanmateo.org/home/indicators-report-search/
● In addition to the key theme, which is covered in depth, other indicators within the
report remain fairly consistent year to year, and we present the most recently updated
statistics on our website and/or update when necessary and feasible.
● With each update, SSMC typically produces a brief printed summary of selected
highlights. Mostly, we plan to share electronic versions of these summaries. We email
them to city clerks throughout San Mateo County for distribution to each city’s staff,
Council Members, and commissioners.
● We’d like to take the opportunity to remind you that the first results of our newest
program, the Dashboard project, are now posted on our website here. The Dashboard
project shares results on 30 key metrics collected for each city and town in our county.
These metrics are part of 11 key sustainability areas or dimensions, which touch upon all
“3 E’s.” In conjunction with our Sustainability Ideas Bank, which provides solutions to
increase sustainability, this is a useful tool for our city leaders to track their own
sustainability performance over time and equips them with the resources to both get
access to and share effective sustainability solutions (policies, ordinances, programs,
processes, contracting language and more). The Dashboard is a highly collaborative and
evolving project, with a high degree of input from all the cities’ sustainability managers.
● Indicators funding also supports our outreach, which includes digital newsletters,
social media, presentations to groups and elected officials, tabling events and, since
April 2020, virtual Happy Hours focusing on a different sustainability topic presented by
topic matter experts. Event pictures, blogs and slides are posted on our website. Videos

https://www.smcgov.org/ceo/children-youth-and-family-budget
https://sustainablesanmateo.org/sustainability-dashboard/


from past events can be found on our YouTube channel and are shared through our
email newsletters and other social media channels.

EVALUATION:

● SSMC Events: Our most recent events for the general public were held on
March 30 (in-person Annual Awards Celebration, featuring Peninsula Clean Energy’s
third annual All-Electric Leader Award winners in addition to our own awardees), on April
21 (Youth for Climate Policy event - online) and on June 8 (our June Happy Hour on
“Residential Electrification 2.0,” which was held online). Below are the numbers of the
people who attended these events:

● 2023 Annual Awards Celebration: ca. 270
● Youth for Climate Policy event: 167 registered and 113 unique participants
● June 8 Happy Hour: 66 registered and 44 participants

Our 2022 Indicators Fall Launch event was our first, big in-person event post pandemic.
It was held at Genentech, in South San Francisco. The keynote address was delivered
by Jeannie Linam, Climate Action and Resilience Manager, Genentech. Our panel of
experts included Roopak Kandasamy, Head of Sales Operations, BlocPower; Jonathan
Hartman, Architect LEED AP BD+C Principal, Group 4 Architecture, Research +
Planning, Inc.; Jena Jadallah, Energy Management Engineer, Genentech; Panama
Bartholomy, Director, Building Decarbonization Coalition and Jeffrey Skacel, Genentech,
Senior Energy Program Manager. This year, which was the first return to an in-person IR
launch after three virtual launches between 2020 and 2022, we had 90 registered
attendees with about 60 actual attendees (66% attendance, lower than our usual
percentage. This might be due in part to the pandemic aftermath).

As a comparison, these numbers are in line with previous numbers and the target we
were looking to reach (100 attendees). In 2020, we had over 100 attendees (103). In
2019, we had 110 attendees (we ended up being above full room capacity) and in 2018
we had about 100 attendees. Both past events were luncheon events, as opposed to
the launches in 2020, 2021 and 2022, which were all virtual events.

In addition to our own events, we continue to seek opportunities for mutually beneficial
partnerships, as evidenced by our lining up five cosponsors, all like-minded
organizations, for our Youth for Climate Policy event and for tabling at community
events. We are happy to be part of our cities and towns green festivals and events when
time and resources permit and encourage Colma to let us know if and when our
presence might be requested.

Please note that we do not currently collect address information from event attendees
and so are not able to gauge the participation from any one jurisdiction, though we
continuously look for ways to widely promote these events, notably by campaigns via



social media (Facebook, Nextdoor, Instagram, Twitter, etc.), both paid and unpaid, and
press releases and advertisements in the online press (The Patch and the Daily
Journal), as well as cross-advertising with other nonprofits with a similar mission, and
many cities publish our announcements in their newsletters. We regularly perform
post-event evaluations to gauge how well the speakers and information presented were
received, as well as whether actionable insights were gained and suggestions for future
events. Our staff reviews the responses to continuously improve the report and events.

● Website and Online Communications: In addition to posting our Indicators
Reports on our website, we share them through our email newsletters and social media
channels. We have close to 3,000 email subscribers representing over 2,500
households on our mailing list and over 2,218 Twitter followers and 715 Instagram
followers; the majority of these are individuals who live and/or work in San Mateo
County. In addition, we consistently post on our Facebook and LinkedIn accounts and
are making a deliberate effort to further develop SSMC’s social media presence. For
example, the Instagram account we set up at the end of January 2020 now has grown
by close to 20% over the last year and we continuously keep up our efforts to reach
younger audiences.

● Printed Summaries: For FY 2022-23, the decision was made once again not to print
any summary brochures of the Indicators Reports, due to the COVID-19 situation. We
did, however, distribute the electronic summaries extensively with all our local
governments, including Colma. Our social media outreach was very robust and we also
distributed our links to our key partners (Thrive, Acterra, the Citizens Environmental
Council, Chambers of Commerce, etc.). Contacts at several cities have informed us that
their staff eagerly review the materials, and many report recipients have remarked on the
quality of the content and design.

· Presentations and Community Outreach: SSMC’s Indicators Report is also
featured in all of our community outreach and public presentations. For 2022, in addition
to the full report, a summary brochure was created as a vehicle to communicate key
findings rapidly and easily. All of these documents are available for free to all on our
website. We offer presentations to community groups upon request and we describe all
our key programs, including the Indicators Report, while speaking at City Council
meetings on matters related to sustainability.

We also have been historically sharing Indicators Report summaries and information at
events such as our annual Awards Dinners, at community fairs (such as Earth Day
events and sustainability job fairs at local colleges and universities) and sustainability
events with partner organizations. Last year, due to the continued COVID-19 situation,
most of these were moved to a virtual format, except for a few in-person events, like
speaking at the Leadership Council San Mateo and some tabling events, including a
Youth for Climate Action March/Rally in August of 2022. Additionally, SSMC regularly
participates in several collaborative efforts which help inform our Indicators work,
including, but not limited to the Fossil Free Buildings in Silicon Valley campaign (led by



local nonprofit Menlo Spark) and C/CAG’s Resource Management and Climate
Protection Committee (RMCP).

FUNDING:

Last year, Colma’s $1,000 contribution to the Indicators Program in FY 2022-23 represented
less than 2 percent of our program funds for the Indicators, and less than 1 percent of the total
revenue for the organization. Please note that the program funds include only the direct
expenses of program staffing, printing ($0 for 2022, due to a shift to all-electronic), postage and
event costs. Indirect costs, including office space, technology (website and computers) and
supplies, outreach and the Executive Director (whose Indicators program support
responsibilities represent about 30 percent of her time), are listed as general operating
expenses. Program revenues raised above the direct program costs support these general
operating expenses, as do donations and contributions from businesses and individuals, and
the proceeds from various fundraisers, including our online auction. In 2023, the Virtual Auction
was live online from March 25 until April 2.

Compared to our other city contributors, Colma’s FY 2022-23 $1,000 contribution is situated in
the lower range (10 cities contributed at higher levels, 6 at the $1,000 level). Currently, all but
three cities/towns in San Mateo County fund the Indicators Program.

FUNDING:

Colma’s $1,000 contribution to the Indicators Program in FY2022-23 represented less than 2
percent of our program funds for Indicators, and less than 1/2 percent of the total revenue for
the organization. Please note that the direct program costs include only the direct expenses of
program staffing and event costs. Indirect costs, including office space, technology (website
and computers) and supplies, outreach and the Executive Director (whose Indicators program
support responsibilities represent about 30 percent of her time), are listed as direct operating
expenses. Program revenues raised that exceed the direct program costs support general
operating expenses, as do donations and membership contributions from businesses and
individuals, and the proceeds from various fundraisers, including our annual auction. In 2023,
the Sustainability Awards Event was held on March 30, and included a Live Auction as well as a
Virtual Auction.

Compared to our other city contributors, Colma’s FY2022-23 $1,000 contribution is situated in
the lower range (12 cities—including the County of San Mateo—contributed at higher levels, 5
at the $1,000 level). Currently, all but three cities/towns in San Mateo County fund the
Indicators Program.



Program Budget FY2022-23

Revenue FY 2022-23

Local governments $59,400

Foundations & Corporations / Event
Sponsors *

$1,500

Individuals * $0

Total $60,900

Direct Expenses FY 2022-23 (effective)

Contract Program Staff $18,788

ED oversight: ** $25,626

Website Content and Upgrade $2,802

PR material for event $0

Event (Venue rental, food & drink) $0

Total $47,216

Indirect Expenses *** $10,158

*The 2022 Indicators Report was introduced at a Live Event in October 2022.



**Executive Director’s direct program’s oversight (approx. 30% of time) include:
research/content to IR; report editing; event organization; staff management; report
distribution & promotion.
***Indirect Expenses cover Administrative Assistant’s time (20%: $6,429), rent,
insurance, payroll processing, general office material and outreach.

We would like to take the opportunity to express our appreciation to the Town of Colma for its
steady support of our programs over the past few years. We deeply appreciate Colma’s
ongoing and long-time support, which allows us to work toward fulfilling our vision of a
sustainable future for everyone in San Mateo County. We rely upon your support to allow us to
broaden and deepen our programs and give sustainability the voice and attention it truly
deserves. As we all continue to experience firsthand the increased negative impacts of climate
change, it’s important that we act now.We respectfully ask that for FY23-24, the Town of
Colma consider supporting us at the full amount requested, $5,000. This is the minimum
amount that SSMC needs to cover the cost of providing our annual Indicators Report and
ongoing policy updates to Colma. Belmont, Brisbane, Hillsborough, San Carlos, San Mateo and
South San Francisco all supported us at this level in 2022.

We look forward to your renewed, important support for the next fiscal year and to partnering
with Colma on future events.

Thank you again.

Sincerely yours,

Christine Kohl-Zaugg

Executive Director, Sustainable San Mateo County

Terry Nagel

Chair, Board of Directors, Sustainable San Mateo County



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report - F Street Wall Mural Artist Selection Page 1 of 3 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM:  Daniel Barros, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: September 27, 2023 
SUBJECT: F Street Wall Mural Artist Selection 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN 
AGREEMENT WITH JULIE ENGLEMANN, DOING BUSINESS AS ART BY JUL, FOR THE 
DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF A MURAL FOR THE F STREET WALL MURAL LOCATED 
AT THE BASE OF F STREET NEAR ITS INTERSECTION WITH EL CAMINO REAL 
PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINE 15301 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Following the recent rehabilitation and reconstruction of the F Street retaining wall accompanied 
by the timing of the Town’s 100th year anniversary in the upcoming calendar year, the Town 
has elected to have a mural constructed on the new wall to commemorate the history of the 
Town over its first 100 years. Solicitations for professional artist services were rendered via a 
Request for Qualifications (RFQ). A selection committee interviewed the top three qualified 
artists and selected the design and services of Julie Englemann for the F Street Mural project.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

As part of the Public Arts Program within the FY 2023-24 Capital Improvement Plan, the Town 
has budgeted $100,000 for this project. 

ENVIRONMENTAL 

The City Council’s action in approving the agreement is exempt from environmental review 
under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15301 as 
the repair, maintenance, or minor alteration of existing public structures or facilities involving a 
negligible or no expansion of existing or former use. 

Item #5



Staff Report - F Street Wall Mural Artist Selection Page 2 of 3 

ANALYSIS 

Background  

The Town recently refurbished a large retaining wall along the west side of F street leading to 
El Camino Real.  The wall was experiencing visible spalling of concrete material and causing 
concern for the long-term viability of the existing wall.  After a structural evaluation, it was 
determined that the wall needed select repairs to extend the useful life of the wall rather than 
an entire replacement and reconstruction of the wall itself.   

Upon completion of the repairs, the newly rehabilitated and freshly painted wall was determined 
to be the site for an upcoming mural project.  In conjunction with the timing of Colma 
celebrating its 100 year anniversary in 2024, the mural’s design will be centered around the 
long, rich history of the Town.   

Selection of Artist 

On July 14, 2023, the Town released an RFQ for Professional Artist Services for the F Street 
Wall Mural.  Six submissions were received by the August 4, 2023 response deadline.  The 
selection committee invited the top three qualified artists to be interviewed in front of the 
committee showcasing their experience, qualifications, and conceptual vision for F Street Wall 
Mural.  At the conclusion of the interviews, it was decided by the committee that Julie 
Englemann demonstrated the appropriate qualifications and a vision which resonated with the 
committee and that they felt best represented the Town and its history. 

The Agreement 

A template agreement was prepared by the City Attorney’s office to detail the contractual 
relationship between the Town and the artist as follows: 

• The Town agrees to keep the art up for a minimum of five years with the mural to be 
completed by April 30, 2024.  This term may be extended by written mutual agreement 
of the Town and the artist. 

• In exchange for the artwork, the Town will pay the artist $100,000.  This amount does 
not constitute a gift of public funds as the art work will commemorate the Town and its 
100th year anniversary which will build goodwill and pride in the community for all of the 
public to view and appreciate.  The Town will not be liable for any further costs and the 
artist will need to manage all other costs associated with the commission of the artwork. 

• Upon completion of the art, the Town shall have the right to use the artwork for any 
non-commercial purpose. Any reproduction, representation, distribution or display of the 
Mural that is intended to promote the Town, its services, or to attract visitors or 
businesses, shall be deemed non-commercial.   

• The artist shall be responsible for all maintenance costs, although the Town reserves the 
right to make repairs if the artist is unavailable. 

• The artist is required to carry insurance and indemnify the Town for any issues. 



Staff Report - F Street Wall Mural Artist Selection Page 3 of 3 

Council Adopted Values 

The F Street Wall Mural is visionary because it involves community collaboration to showcase 
the long-valued history of the Town and will live as a visual reminder and educational piece of 
art for years to come for Colma and its surrounding communities to enjoy.   
 
Sustainability Impact 

The construction of a mural on a public-facing blank wall can have a positive impact on 
sustainability.  Most blank spaces can be subject to graffiti and vandalism over time which in 
turn creates the ongoing need for maintenance and repair following such vandalism.  This could 
lead to extensive sandblasting and pressure washing of said surfaces to restore them to their 
intended conditions all while increasing stormwater runoff in the area with potentially harmful 
chemicals and materials.  With the construction of the mural, the Town anticipates vandal 
activity to be at a minimum and thus a positive impact on sustainability.   
 
Alternatives 

The City Council could elect to not adopt this resolution to approve this agreement.  Such action 
will require staff to re-solicit artists for professional services which would negatively impact the 
timeline of this project.   The current timeline is to have the mural completed by the spring of 
2024 to coincide with the Town’s centennial events next calendar year; not approving this 
agreement will jeopardize that timeline.   

CONCLUSION 

Staff is recommending the Council adopt the resolution approving and authorizing the City 
Manager to execute an agreement with Julie Englemann for Professional Artist Services for the 
F Street Wall Mural Project.   

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution  
B. Contract 
C. Artist Presentation 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Res. 2023-___ Professional Artists Services Agreement with Julie Engelmann Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN 
AGREEMENT WITH JULIE ENGELMANN, DOING BUSINESS AS ART BY JUL, FOR THE 

DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF A MURAL FOR THE F STREET WALL MURAL 
LOCATED AT THE BASE OF F STREET NEAR ITS INTERSECTION WITH EL CAMINO 

REAL PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINE 15301  

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background.

(a) The Town recently refurbished a large retaining wall along the west side of F street 
leading to El Camino Real. 

(b) The newly rehabilitated and freshly painted wall was determined to be the site for a 
centennial mural project. 

(c) On July 14, 2023, the Town released an RFQ for Professional Artist Services for the F 
Street Wall Mural. 

(d) On August 4, 2023, the Town received six proposals in response to the RFQ with the top 
three qualified candidates invited to be interviewed before the selection committee. 

(e) On September 5, 2023, interviews with the top three qualified candidates were 
conducted. 

(f) At the conclusion of the RFQ process, the committee has selected, and staff is 
recommending that a contract be entered into with Julie Engelmann. 

2. Order.

(a) The Professional Artists services contract between the Town of Colma and Julie 
Englemann, which is on file with the City Clerk, is hereby approved by the City Council of the 
Town of Colma. 

(b) The City Manager is authorized to execute the Professional Artists services contract on 
behalf of the Town of Colma, with such technical amendments as may be deemed appropriate 
by the City Attorney. 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

Attachment A



 
Res. 2023-___ Professional Artists Services Agreement with Julie Engelmann Page 2 of 2 
 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2023-__was adopted at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the Town of Colma held on September 27, 2023 by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor      
John Irish Goodwin      
Helen Fisicaro       
Ken Gonzalez      
Carrie Slaughter       

Voting Tally      
 
 
Dated              

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
___________________________ 
Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 11 

AGREEMENT FOR THE CREATION OF A MURAL ON TOWN PROPERTY BY 
AND BETWEEN THE TOWN OF COLMA AND [CONTRACTOR]   

This Agreement is made and entered into this _____ day of _______________, 2023, by and 
between the [CONTRACTOR] (hereina�er referred to as “Ar�st”), and the Town of Colma, a California 
municipal corpora�on (hereina�er referred to as "Town").  Ar�st and Town are some�mes referred to 
herein individually as a “Party” and collec�vely as the “Par�es.”  

RECITALS 

A. Town is contrac�ng with Ar�st to develop a mural that highlights the Town’s history, diversity, and 
inclusivity in celebra�on of the Town’s 100th Anniversary, and to beau�fy the Town and help residents 
understand their place within the con�nuum of history; and 

B. Town recognizes that the display of murals can improve community aesthe�cs, encourage tourism 
and commerce, and is mutually beneficial to the Town and Ar�st; and 

C. Town has determined that the execu�on of a mural on Town property would serve a public 
purpose, as ar�culated above, and would not cons�tute an unlawful gi� of public funds; and 

D. The Par�es now desire to enter into an agreement expressly se�ng forth the respec�ve rights, 
du�es, and obliga�ons of the Town and Ar�st regarding the installa�on, display and removal of a mural at 
the Site by Ar�st. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in considera�on of the mutual covenants herein, the Par�es agree as follows: 

1. Nature of Mural.  Town agrees to allow Ar�st to paint a mural (the “Mural”) on that certain Town
Property consis�ng of the F Street wall, which is located at the base of F Street near its intersec�on with 
El Camino Real (the “Property”). The site of the Mural is more par�cularly described and depicted in Exhibit 
“A” atached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. The Mural’s dimensions shall be 2,280 
square feet.  The lower wall is roughly 180 feet long, by 7 feet in height, and the upper wall is 170 feet 
long and 6 feet in height, dependent upon the final concept and presenta�on by Ar�st, which shall be 
subject to writen approval by Town.  

2. Term.  Town agrees that the Mural shall be allowed to remain upon the Property for 5 years from
the date of comple�on (“Term”).  The Mural shall be completed no later than April 30, 2024. Final 
acceptance is effec�ve on the date Town issues writen no�fica�on of final acceptance or thirty (30) days 
a�er Ar�st has sent Town writen no�ce of comple�on, whichever first occurs, unless Town, upon receipt 
of Ar�st’s no�ce of comple�on, provides Ar�st with writen no�ce specifying and describing any 
incomplete services before thirty (30) days have elapsed. The Term may be extended by a writen 
agreement executed by both Par�es.  Town agrees to not inten�onally remove, paint out, or damage the 
Mural during the Term except as otherwise permited by this Agreement. 

3. Compensa�on. Town shall pay to Ar�st a fixed fee of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00)
as full compensa�on for all services to be performed and materials to be furnished by Ar�st under this 
Agreement. The fee shall be paid as described in Exhibit “B,” atached hereto and incorporated by this 
reference.  All requests for payment must be accompanied by a detailed invoice.  Ar�st shall provide Town 
with Ar�st’s Tax Iden�fica�on Number and any proof of such number as requested. 

Attachment B



Page 2 of 11 

 
4. Mural Execu�on.  Ar�st shall provide for the execu�on of the Mural artwork and be solely 
responsible for any and all costs associated therewith, including but not limited to payment of fees to any 
ar�st, scaffolding, paint, and any equipment necessary to complete the Mural.  Ar�st shall be responsible 
for providing all materials necessary for any maintenance, removal, or restora�on of the Mural required 
during the original or extended Term of this Agreement.  Town agrees to provide Ar�st with reasonable 
access to the Property for execu�on of the Mural, at �mes that do not interfere with Town opera�ons.  
Ar�st assumes responsibility for all damage to Town’s property caused by its use thereof, and shall 
reimburse Town for correc�on of any such damage.  
 
5. Use of Mural.  Town understands that upon comple�on of the Mural, the Ar�st shall hold the 
copyright ownership over the artwork cons�tu�ng the Mural, and Town agrees that the placement of the 
Mural on Town property does not en�tle Town to use the artwork for any commercial purpose, except 
with Ar�st’s prior writen permission.  Atached hereto as Exhibit “C” is a writen release executed by the 
ar�st(s) of the Mural artwork, gran�ng to Town the right to reproduce, distribute, and/or or display 
representa�ons of the Mural in any non-commercial manner whatsoever, and to authorize the removal or 
modifica�on of the Mural in accordance with this agreement.  For the purpose of this release, any 
reproduc�on, representa�on, distribu�on or display of the Mural that is intended to promote the Town, 
its services, or to atract visitors or businesses, shall be deemed non-commercial.  The Town’s non-
commercial rights pertaining to the Mural are described in further detail in Exhibit “C.”  Town will use its 
best efforts to promote Ar�st in any materials prepared by Town for non-commercial uses.  Ar�st will use 
its best efforts to credit the “Town of Colma” in representa�ons of the Mural including, but not limited to, 
drawings, models and sound or visual recordings. Town is not obligated to make any royalty payments to 
Ar�st except as required by law. 
 
6. Maintenance.  The Mural shall be properly maintained by Ar�st at its sole cost and expense during 
the ini�al and any extended Term of this Agreement.  Ar�st understands that the Mural will be located in 
an unsecured, easily accessible public loca�on, and Town cannot guarantee that the Mural will be free 
from accidents, forces of nature, the�, acts of vandalism or other consequences of unsupervised public 
display. Accordingly, Ar�st’s duty to maintain the Mural shall include repairs or refurbishment in response 
to destruc�on, defacing, or similar unforeseen acts that affect the appearance of the Mural.  Town and 
Ar�st agree that any refurbishment, repairs, maintenance, or "touch up" of the Mural shall be undertaken 
only with the approval of both Par�es and under the supervision of Ar�st or its designated representa�ve. 
The Town reserves the right to repair, remove, or modify damage to the Mural or to the wall that it appears 
on if Ar�st is unavailable, or if Town determines that immediate repair is necessary in response to an 
emergency or act of God. Should graffi� occur on the Mural, the Town may at its discre�on take immediate 
steps to remove it, or may request that Ar�st remove it. 
 
7. Compliance with Laws. Ar�st shall be responsible for complying with all Federal, State, and local 
laws, ordinances, statutes, and regula�ons, including, but not limited to zoning and environmental 
requirements, and for obtaining all required licenses, permits, or other authoriza�ons applicable to the 
performance of Ar�st’s services under this Agreement. 
 
8. Indemnifica�on.  Ar�st shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Town and its officers, 
employees, volunteers, and agents from and against any and all claims, demands, causes of ac�on, costs, 
expenses, liabili�es, and damages, in law or equity, to property or persons, including wrongful death, in 
any manner arising out of or incident to any alleged acts, omissions, or willful misconduct of Ar�st and its 
officials, officers, employees, agents, ar�sts, volunteers or contractors, arising out of or in connec�on with 



Page 3 of 11 

this Agreement, including without limita�on the payment of all consequen�al damages and atorneys’ 
fees and other related costs and expenses, except for liability resul�ng from the sole negligence or 
misconduct of Town.  Ar�st shall promptly pay the amount of any judgment rendered against Town or its 
officers, employees, volunteers, or agents for any such indemnified claims, and reasonable costs and 
atorneys’ fees incurred by Town in the defense of such claims related to this Agreement.   
 
9. Termina�on.   
 

A. Termina�on for Cause.  In the event either Party shall, in good faith, determine the other 
to be in breach of the terms of this Agreement, the non-breaching Party shall deliver 
writen no�ce of the breach to the Party in breach.  The Party in breach shall have thirty 
(30) days a�er receipt of no�ce to cure the breach.  If the breach is not �mely cured to 
the reasonable sa�sfac�on of the non-breaching Party, the non-breaching Party may 
terminate this Agreement immediately upon delivering writen no�ce of termina�on to 
the Party in breach.  Upon receipt of such no�ce of termina�on, Ar�st will, at its sole cost, 
remove the Mural from the Property, or paint it out.  

 
B. Termina�on for Convenience.    Town may terminate this Agreement by providing six (6) 

months advance writen no�ce to Ar�st, if the Mural substan�ally interferes with Town’s 
use of the Property or no longer serves Town’s interests.  Upon receipt of such no�ce of 
cancella�on by Town, Ar�st will, at its sole cost, remove the Mural from the Property, or 
paint it out.   

 
10. Lease of Property.  If Town leases the Property, Town will cause its tenant or lessee to be made 
aware of and to honor this Agreement. If Town sells or transfers the Property during the ini�al or extended 
Term, Town will either: (i) require the buyer/transferee to honor the terms hereof, or (ii) terminate this 
Agreement pursuant to Sec�on 7(B). 
 
11. Plain Language.  The terms and condi�ons of this Agreement shall be construed pursuant to their 
plain and ordinary meaning and shall not be interpreted against the maker by virtue of that Party having 
dra�ed this Agreement. 
  
12. Prevailing Party.  In the event of any li�ga�on to enforce, or construe the terms of this Agreement, 
the prevailing Party herein shall be en�tled to recover reasonable atorneys’ fees and court costs. 
 
13. No�ce.  All no�ces permited or required under this Agreement shall be given to the respec�ve 
par�es at the following address, or at such other address as the respec�ve par�es may provide in wri�ng 
for this purpose:  

 
Town of Colma: Town of Colma  
 City Manager’s Office 
 1198 El Camino Real  
 Colma, CA 94014 
 Attn: City Manager 
  
Artist: NAME 
 STREET ADDRESS 



Page 4 of 11 

 TOWN, STATE, ZIP  
 Attn: [NAME]  

 
Such no�ce shall be deemed made when personally delivered or, when mailed, forty-eight (48) hours 
a�er deposit in the U.S. Mail, first class postage prepaid and addressed to the Party at its applicable 
address.  Actual no�ce shall be deemed adequate no�ce on the date actual no�ce occurred, regardless 
of the method of service. 
 
14. Modifica�on.  This Agreement represents the complete understanding between the Par�es with 
respect to the maters set forth herein. No amendment or modifica�on of this Agreement shall be valid 
unless evidenced in a wri�ng executed by both Par�es. 
 
15. Waiver.  No waiver of a breach of any term or condi�on of this Agreement shall cons�tute a waiver 
of any subsequent breach of such term or condi�on, nor shall it result in a varia�on of this Agreement. 
 
16. Time is of the Essence.  Time is of the essence in this Agreement. 
 
17. Insurance.  At least ten (10) days prior to the execu�on of the Mural, Ar�st shall provide Town a 
Cer�ficate of Insurance providing personal injury and property damage liability insurance naming Town 
and its officers, employees, volunteers, and agents as addi�onal insured with a minimum coverage of $2 
million combined single limit coverage with $4 million in excess liability. Insurance is to be placed with 
insurers with a current AM Best ra�ng of no less than A:VII.   Said insurance shall not be canceled or altered 
without thirty (30) days’ writen no�ce to Town.  Ar�st and its insurers shall be primarily responsible for 
any and all liability resul�ng or arising from this Agreement and Town and its insurers shall not be required 
to contribute.  For insurance purposes, the area covered shall be defined to include any and all areas of 
the Town occupied or affected by the Mural. 
 
18. Copyright and Intellectual Property Rights.  Title to the physical Mural  (i.e.: ownership of the 
physical Mural) shall pass to Town upon final acceptance pursuant to Sec�on 2.  In addi�on, all materials 
paid for and produced under this Agreement including, without limita�on, all studies, drawings, design, 
and models prepared and submited under this Agreement, shall become Town property upon writen 
final acceptance under Sec�on 2.  Ar�st bears the risk of damage to or loss of the Mural un�l Town’s final 
acceptance under Sec�on 2 and shall take such measures as necessary to protect the Mural from damage 
un�l final acceptance. 
 

Ar�st shall retain all rights under the Copyright Act of 1976 for original works produced under this 
Agreement as provided for in Sec�on 5 except ownership and possession of the physical Mural as noted 
above, and as otherwise provided in this Agreement.  Town and its assigns are not responsible for any 
third-party infringement of Ar�st’s copyright or for protec�ng the intellectual property rights of Ar�st.  Any 
registra�on of a copyright, including costs, shall be the sole responsibility of Ar�st. 
 
19. Ar�st Representa�on and Warran�es. Ar�st represents and warrants that: 
  
 a.  Ar�st is the sole owner of the artwork that cons�tutes the Mural and any copyrights and 
has the full power to enter into and execute this Agreement; 
 
 b. The artwork placed on the Mural is unique and original and solely the result of the ar�s�c 
effort of Ar�st, except as otherwise disclosed in wri�ng to Town, does not infringe upon any copyright or 



Page 5 of 11 

rights of any person and is free and clear of any liens or disputes related to property, intellectual or any 
other rights; 
 c. The artwork on the Mural, or a duplicate thereof, has not been previously accepted for 
sale elsewhere;  
 
 d. The artwork on the Mural is free from defec�ve, hazardous or inferior materials and 
workmanship or inherent vice or quali�es that cause or accelerate deteriora�on, except as otherwise 
disclosed in wri�ng to Town, and will not pose a danger to public health and safety;  
 
 e. Reasonable maintenance of the Mural will not require procedures in excess of those 
described in the maintenance and preserva�on recommenda�ons submited by Ar�st pursuant to this 
Agreement.  The Mural will not experience irreparable damage nor fall below an acceptable standard of 
public display with reasonable maintenance as recommended by Ar�st and normal exposure to the 
elements;  
 
 f. The Ar�st guarantees the artwork on the Mural against all defects in its design, 
workmanship and materials for a period of three (3) years following final acceptance. If any such defects 
occur within this �me period, the Ar�st agrees to promptly and sa�sfactorily repair, correct, or replace the 
defec�ve por�on of the artwork on the Mural at the Ar�st's own expense.  Repairs to any defec�ve por�on 
of the artwork on the Mural shall begin within thirty (30) days of receiving no�ce of the need for repair.  If 
necessary, the Ar�st may subs�tute others to perform the repair work upon the City Manager’s approval. 
 
 g. No person has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this Agreement for 
commission, percentage, brokerage or con�ngent fee and that no member of Town has any interest, 
financially or otherwise in Ar�st’s business. 
 
20. Reten�on and Audit of Records. Ar�st shall retain records per�nent to this Agreement and make 
such records available upon request by Town and/or Auditor General of the State of California, or 
representa�ve of any of these offices, for a period of five (5) years a�er final payment. 

21. Independent Contractor.  The legal rela�onship between the Par�es hereto is that of an 
independent contractor, and nothing herein shall be deemed to make Ar�st or its officials, officers, 
employees, agents, ar�sts, volunteers, or contractors a Town employee.  During the performance of this 
Agreement, Ar�st and its officers, employees, agents, ar�sts, volunteers, and contractors shall act in an 
independent capacity and shall not act as Town officers or employees.  The personnel performing the 
services under this Agreement on behalf of Ar�st shall at all �mes be under Ar�st’s exclusive direc�on and 
control.  Town shall have no voice in the selec�on, discharge, supervision, or control of Ar�st’s officers, 
employees, agents, ar�sts, volunteers, or contractors, or in fixing their compensa�on, if applicable, or 
hours of service.  Ar�st shall pay all wages, salaries, and other amounts due in connec�on with this 
Agreement and shall be responsible for all repor�ng obliga�ons respec�ng them.  
 
22. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.  Venue 
shall be in San Mateo County.   
 
23. Assignment or Transfer.  Ar�st shall not assign, hypothecate, or transfer, either directly or by 
opera�on of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without the prior writen consent of Town.  Any 
atempt to do so shall be null and void, and any assignees, hypothecates, or transferees shall acquire no 
right or interest by reason of such atempted assignment, hypotheca�on or transfer.  



Page 6 of 11 

 
24. Equal Opportunity Employment.  Ar�st represents that it is an equal opportunity employer and 
shall not discriminate against any subcontractor, employee, or applicant for employment because of race, 
religion, color, na�onal origin, handicap, ancestry, sex, or age.  Such non-discrimina�on shall include, but 
not be limited to, all ac�vi�es related to ini�al employment, upgrading, demo�on, transfer, recruitment 
or recruitment adver�sing, layoff or termina�on.   
 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 
 
 



Page 7 of 11 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO THE 

AGREEMENT FOR THE CREATION OF A MURAL ON TOWN PROPERTY BY 
AND BETWEEN THE TOWN OF COLMA AND [CONTRACTOR]  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Town and Ar�st have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of 
the date first above writen.    

ARTIST: 

[NAME] 

By:_________________________________ 

Name:______________________________ 

Its:_________________________________ 

By:_________________________________ 

Name:______________________________ 

Its:_________________________________ 

 

TOWN: 

TOWN OF COLMA, a California municipal corpora�on 

By:_________________________________ 

Name:______________________________ 

Its:_________________________________ 



Page 8 of 11 

Exhibit A 
Descrip�on and Depic�on of Mural Site 

 
[Legal Descrip�on and Depic�on] 

 
The Mural’s dimensions shall be 2,280 square feet.  The lower wall is roughly 180 feet long, by 7 feet in 
height, and the upper wall is 170 feet long and 6 feet in height, dependent upon the final concept and 
presenta�on by Ar�st, which shall be subject to writen approval by Town.  

 
Google Map of F street Wall Loca�on 

 
https://goo.gl/maps/cJfDuHbUNGUeh3bu7 

 
 

Pictures of F Street Wall 
 

  

https://goo.gl/maps/cJfDuHbUNGUeh3bu7


Page 9 of 11 

Exhibit B 
Compensa�on Schedule  

 
Ar�st shall execute the Artwork in accordance with the budget set forth herein.  Payment shall 

be made in accordance with the following scheduled installments, each installment represen�ng full and 
final payment for all services and materials provided prior to payment thereof.  Ar�st shall submit a 
detailed invoice lis�ng the item or task, dates of service, purchase order number and any other relevant 
informa�on as requested by Town for all requests for payment. 
 

 Payment #1 – Contract Execution - Upon execution of this Agreement, Artist 
may invoice for an amount not to exceed twenty percent (20%) 

  
 $______________ 
  

 Payment #2 – Design/Working Documents - Upon notification of approval by 
Town, Artist may invoice for an amount not to exceed ten percent (10%) 

  
 $______________ 
  

 Payment #3 – Fabrication – Upon notification by Artist that Artwork is ready 
for delivery and installation and notification of approval by Town, Artist may 
invoice for an amount not to exceed twenty percent (20%) 

  
 $______________ 
  

 Payment #4 – Installation & Final Acceptance – Upon successful installation of 
Artwork on the Mural and notification by Artist that all services have been 
completed, including submittal of maintenance and preservation instructions, 
and notification of final acceptance by Town pursuant to Section 2 of 
Agreement, Artist may invoice for an amount not to exceed fifty percent (50%) 

  
 $______________ 
  

Total obligation under this Agreement:  $______________ 
 
Improperly completed invoices which have to be returned for correc�on may result in payment delay 
and shall not be subject to an interest penalty.  Invoice payment requirements do not start un�l a 
properly completed invoice is provided to Town. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 10 of 11 

Exhibit C 
Public Artwork Release 

 
This Public Artwork Release (“Release”) is issued in connec�on with my original work of art 

(described below in the signature block), including without limita�on all images, signage, art, design, 
methods, labels, logos, special effects, name(s), likenesses and/or any other material and crea�ve 
elements contained therein (“Artwork”), which the Town of Colma, a California municipal corpora�on 
(“Town”), intends to include in a Mural on Town property pursuant to that certain Agreement for the 
Crea�on of  a Mural on Town Property (“Agreement”). 
 

For good and valuable considera�on, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby affirmed, I 
hereby grant to Town an irrevocable, perpetual, and nonexclusive worldwide license to reproduce, 
distribute, install, and/or publicly display two-dimensional reproduc�ons of my Artwork, in whole or in 
part, for non-commercial purposes in connec�on with the Agreement, including in any adver�sements, 
brochures, catalogues, online campaigns and social media, and any other marke�ng and publicity material 
and campaigns of the Town for purposes of promo�ng the Artwork, the Town, and San Mateo County at 
large, including for the purposes of atrac�ng visitors and business to the Town (collec�vely, the “Use 
Rights”).  

 
While I understand that I may not be accorded credit for the Artwork, I authorize Town, if it so 

chooses, to make reasonable and customary use of my name, likeness, and biographical informa�on in 
connec�on with my Artwork and the foregoing Use Rights. I hereby waive all rights and benefits of “droit 
moral” or “moral rights of authors” or any similar rights or principles of law which I may now or later have 
in and to the Artwork. 

 
I represent and warrant to the Town that: (i) I have the right to grant the foregoing rights to use 

my Artwork without the necessity of making payments to or obtaining the consent of any third person or 
en�ty; (ii) the Artwork shall not defame, infringe upon, misappropriate, or violate, any intellectual 
property or other right of any person or en�ty; (iii) the Artwork is not the subject of any li�ga�on or claim 
that might give rise to li�ga�on; and (iv) the Artwork will in no way infringe upon or violate any copyright 
or intellectual property rights of any party. I agree to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Town, and 
any person claiming under the Town, including the Town’s respec�ve officers, directors and employees, 
and further including the Town’s elected and unelected officials, from and against any liabili�es, losses, 
claims, demands, costs (including without limita�on reasonable atorneys’ fees), and expenses arising 
from or otherwise related to: (i) my wrongful or negligent acts, errors, and omissions; and (ii) my breach 
or alleged breach of the terms hereof, including any representa�on or warranty contained herein. Any 
remedies I may seek or have against the Town in connec�on with the Artwork and/or the Agreement shall 
be limited to the right to recover damages, if any, in an ac�on at law, and I hereby waive any right or 
remedy in equity, including without limita�on, the right to seek injunc�ve relief. 

 
I further hereby waive any and all rights I may have with respect to the Artwork under the federal 

Visual Ar�sts Rights Act of 1990 (17 U.S.C. sec�ons 106A and 113(d)), the California Art Preserva�on Act 
(Cal. Civil Code sec�ons 987 et seq.), and any other local, state, federal, or interna�onal laws that convey 
rights of the same nature as those conveyed under 17 U.S.C. § 106A or Cal. Civil Code § 987 et seq. The 
provisions of this paragraph shall apply to modify my rights of atribu�on and integrity as set out in the 
Visual Ar�sts Rights Act, 17 U.S.C §§ 106A and 113(d) (“VARA”), the California Art Preserva�on Act, Cal. 
Civil Code §§ 987 and 989 (“CAPA”), and any rights arising under United States federal or state law or under 
the laws of another country that convey rights of the same nature as those conveyed under VARA and 



Page 11 of 11 

CAPA, as against the Town of Colma and its officers, officials, volunteers, employees, and agents. The Town 
has the absolute right to change, modify, destroy, remove, relocate, move, replace, transport, repair or 
restore the images of the Artwork.   

 
I am ac�ng as independent contractor in connec�on with my Artwork, and nothing contained 

herein shall create or be construed as crea�ng a partnership, joint venture, or agency rela�onship. This 
Release shall be governed by the laws of the State of California, excluding its conflict of law rules. Any and 
all ac�ons arising out of the Release shall be li�gated in the applicable courts located in San Mateo County, 
California.  The Town may assign its rights and obliga�ons hereunder as it deems appropriate. 

 
 
 
By affixing my signature below, I acknowledge and agree to the terms and condi�ons set forth 

herein: 
 
 
[CONTRACTOR] 
 
Signature(s):  _____________________________ 
 
Print Name(s): ____________________________ 
 
Date: ___________________________________ 
 
Address: ________________________________ 
 
________________________________________ 
 
Phone: (__) ______________________________ 
 
Email:  __________________________________ 
 
Title and Descrip�on of “Artwork” 
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Julie Engelmann
Mural Artist from Half Moon BayMural Artist from Half Moon Bay

Julie Engelmann

Attachment C

































































































































Staff Report re Amended Condition Use Permit and Design Review 600 Serramonte Blvd, Page 1 of 10 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Brad Donohue, Director of Public Works, CSG Consultants  

Gina Paolini, Senior Planner, CSG Consultants  

VIA:  Daniel Barros, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 27, 2023 

SUBJECT:  Serramonte KIA – Amended Conditional Use Permit and Design Review 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDED CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AND GRANTING 
AN EXCEPTION TO THE SPANISH MEDITERRANEAN DESIGN REVIEW OVERLAY TO 
ALLOW FOR A NEW SERVICE CENTER TO AN EXISTING AUTO DEALERSHIP LOCATED 
AT 600 SERRAMONTE BOULEVARD - APN: 008-392-140, PURSUANT TO CEQA 
GUIDELINE SECTION 15332 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The applicant is proposing to expand an existing auto dealership by adding a new service center 
at 600 Serramonte Boulevard. The proposed project would include a 10,112 square foot ground 
floor expansion that will include a new service building and northeasterly expansion of the 
existing showroom to include a building canopy for the service center. A 2,833 square foot 
second floor addition will be added for parts storage. The dealership and service center would 
be 19,550 square feet following the expansion. The use is appropriate for the commercial 
location and complies with the Town’s Zoning and General Plan policies.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

By approving this project, the Town will benefit in the form of increased vehicle and auto parts 
sales tax revenue.  

Item #6



 
Staff Report re Amended Condition Use Permit and Design Review 600 Serramonte Blvd, Page 2 of 10 

BACKGROUND 

In November 1982, the City Council approved Resolution No. 610 granting a Conditional Use 
Permit for an auto sales office. In October 1996, the City Council approved Resolution No. 96-
62 granting an Amended Conditional Use Permit for a permanent building containing offices and 
a showroom for sales of new and used motor vehicles. City Council Resolution No. 96-62 
Superseded Resolution No. 610. On September 28, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution 
No. 2022-34, granting an Amended Conditional Use Permit and exception to the Design Review 
Overlay for an expansion of an auto dealership and new service center for the Kia dealership.  

The existing dealership is a portion of a larger parcel owned by Greek Orthodox Memorial Park 
located to the north. A lease agreement was entered into with the property owner in November 
2021, which allows for the lease of the land currently used for an auto dealership including the 
option to add an additional 5,000 square feet of land to construct a service center. This lease 
agreement is on file with the Town’s Planning Department.  

Since adoption of Resolution No. 2022-34, the applicant has redesigned the expansion of the 
project and has requested an amendment to the Conditional Use Permit and Design Review. 
The service center has been relocated to minimize site disturbance at the rear of the property.  

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The project site is located at 600 Serramonte Boulevard. The General Plan land use designation 
is Commercial, and the zoning is Commercial (“C”) with a Design Review Spanish Mediterranean 
Overlay Zone (DR(S)). The project would include a single-story service garage with 14 service 
bays, an addition to the existing showroom, a service canopy, and the enclosure of the existing 
service canopy. Complete project details are provided as follows:  

SITE PLAN 

 



 
Staff Report re Amended Condition Use Permit and Design Review 600 Serramonte Blvd, Page 3 of 10 

PROJECT DATA 
Proposed Ground Floor Area (square feet) 

(14) Service Bays 4,488 square feet 
Parts Storage/Retail Sales/Tech Parts 
(including enclosing existing canopy)   

2,942 square feet 

Bathrooms/Employee Areas 928 square feet 
Utility Room 341 square feet  
Proposed Ground Floor Total 8,699 square feet 

Proposed Second Floor  
Parts Storage 2,833 square feet 

Proposed Second Floor Total 2,833 square feet 
Proposed Canopy  

Canopy 1,413 square feet 
 

Existing Improvements Area (square feet) 
Main sales building 5,630 square feet 
Existing canopy 975 square feet 

 

Lot Coverage Area (square feet) 
Project Site 70,800 square feet 
Existing Lot Coverage 5,630 square feet 
Proposed New Lot Coverage 10,112 square feet 
Total Lot Coverage 16,717 square feet (24 percent) 

 

Auto Sales and Service Center Operations 

Auto Sales will occur Monday to Saturday from 9:00 AM to 8:00 PM, and Sunday 10:00 AM to 
7:00 PM. The proposed service center will operate Monday to Friday from 7:30 AM to 6:00 PM, 
8:00 AM to 4:30 PM on Saturday, and closed Sundays. The type of activities that may occur on-
site include auto repair, auto service, and auto parts sales.  There will be up to 25 employees 
working at any given shift in both the sales and service center.  

Parking and Deliveries 

The project is required to provide 71 parking spaces, to include three (3) ADA spaces. Parking 
provided onsite will include 58 parking spaces, which includes the required three (3) ADA 
spaces. The dealership owner has an Agreement with Daly City Serramonte Center, LLC to 
provide additional parking at 3 Serramonte Center on the Third, Fourth and Fifth level of the 
parking garage for overflow and employee parking (550 spaces).  A shuttle will be provided for 
employees utilizing the parking structure.  The Agreement is on file with the Town.  

Entry to the service center will be on Serramonte Boulevard, on the east side of the building.  
The proposed canopy on the east side of the existing building will be utilized for staging cars 
awaiting service.   



 
Staff Report re Amended Condition Use Permit and Design Review 600 Serramonte Blvd, Page 4 of 10 

Deliveries of vehicles occur at the Volkswagen and Subaru Dealership on Collins Avenue, as all 
three dealerships are owned and operated by the same owner. There are no vehicle deliveries 
at this site.  

 

Building Design 

The existing building consists of modern architectural design, and the proposed addition carries 
the same architectural design theme. The City Council found during the previous review of the 
project that requiring the proposed service center to comply with the Spanish Mediterranean 
architectural requirements would clash with the established architectural theme, and an 
exception was granted to allow the modern design architecture. The applicant plans to continue 
with the modern design as depicted in the sample rending: 

 

Site Improvements and Landscaping amendments to the previous Design review: 

• The Project will include 1,350 CY of soil excavation (cut) and 585 CY of fill for 
construction of the building and site improvements, thus requiring 765 CY of dirt to be 
off hauled. Truck trips are estimated to be between 35 and 40 to and from the site for 
this off-haul. 

• The project will include a bio treatment and retention area for stormwater runoff.  
• The project will include the installation of a 4-foot pedestrian walk behind the existing 

driveway apron. The parking lot will be resurfaced and re-striped along with providing 
the required fire lanes per the Colma Fire Protection District. 

• The Greek Orthodox Memorial Park has requested an additional sound absorbing buffer 
between the cemetery/auto uses. An agreement has been reached between the Kia 
ownership and Greek Orthodox Memorial Park and has been attached to the project 
plans. Kia has agreed to plant 39, 15-gallon Texas privets between the two uses as a 
buffer. In addition to planting the buffer, Kia will maintain the new planting material. A 
complete landscape plan has been provided. 

ANALYSIS 

The applicant is requesting an amendment to the previously approved Conditional Use Permit 
and Design Review (Resolution No. 2022-34), as changes were necessary following the 
approval of the project. The existing auto dealership is a one-story, 5,630 square foot building. 
The proposed project would include a 12,945 square foot addition to the existing dealership. 
The addition would include a ground floor expansion and 14 service bays (8,699 square feet), a 



 
Staff Report re Amended Condition Use Permit and Design Review 600 Serramonte Blvd, Page 5 of 10 

second-floor addition for parts storage (2,833 square feet) and a new canopy for the service 
center (1,413 square feet).  

Findings Relating to California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)  

Pursuant to Section 15332 of the CEQA Guidelines (In-fill Development Projects), projects 
characterized as in-fill development are Categorically Exempt from further environmental review 
based upon the findings provided below:  

Section 15332 Class 32 consists of projects characterized as in-fill development 
meeting the conditions described in this section. 

(a)  The project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all 
applicable general plan policies as well as with applicable zoning designation 
and regulations. 

The General Plan land use designation is Commercial, and the zoning is Commercial (“C”) with a 
Design Review Spanish Mediterranean Overlay Zone (DR(S)). Within the General Plan text, a list 
of appropriate retail and service uses are listed to serve the community, with auto-related uses 
listed as acceptable in the commercial land use category. The Town of Colma Commercial 
Zoning code encourages a wide range of commercial uses. The project has been designed 
consistent with the Town’s Zoning regulations.  

(b) The proposed development occurs within city limits on a project site of no 
more than five acres substantially surrounded by urban uses. 

The applicant leases the project site from the Greek Orthodox Memorial Park. The project site 
boundaries were established in a lease agreement with the property owner and by the Town’s 
General Plan land use and Zoning district boundaries. The project site area has been identified 
as 70,800 square feet (1.6 acres), which is less than five acres. The project site is surrounded 
by urban uses, which includes Colma Town Hall, Kohl’s, and a cemetery.  

(c) The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare or threatened 
species. 

The project site is located near Colma Creek. The 2040 General Plan EIR states that “Colma 
Creek flows from the San Bruno Mountains through Colma to the San Francisco Bay. While 
portions of the creek provide habitat and could support protected species, the portions of the 
creek that flow through Colma flows mostly underground. While portions of the creek daylight 
in town, it is concrete-lined and does not provide habitat.” The 2040 General Plan states “that 
riparian vegetation, largely willow and alder, is limited to the banks along open sections of 
Colma Creek.” There is a small open section west of City Hall (adjacent to the subject site). The 
project would not alter or disturb the creek area, based upon the evaluation of the civil 
improvement plans prepared for the project. The site does have an existing chain link fence 
that prevents access to the creek and the project proposes silt fencing as part of the BMPs 
required by the RWQCB and NPDES requirements during the construction phase of the project. 
The 2040 General Plan stated that the State and federally listed endangered San Francisco 
garter snake seeks the Red-legged frog as a food source, and there are no known populations 
of the snake in the town. The garter snake may have once been found along Colma Creek when 



 
Staff Report re Amended Condition Use Permit and Design Review 600 Serramonte Blvd, Page 6 of 10 

it was a natural creek, but the current culverted condition of the creek is not suitable habitat. 
Because the project would not disturb the creek or the riparian habitat, there would be no 
impact on endangered, rare, or threatened species from the project. 

(d) Approval of the project would not result in any significant effects relating to 
traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality. 

The auto related use is consistent with the Colma 2040 General Plan vision for Serramonte 
Boulevard as an “Auto Row”. Because the 2040 General Plan had a vision for the Commercial 
Core that included the “Auto Row”, the 2040 FEIR (although at a program level) did consider 
the existing auto related uses. From the January 2020 Existing Conditions Report for the 2040 
General Plan, Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue were found to have excess vehicular 
roadway capacity, meaning the width (in the case of Collins Avenue) or number (in the case of 
Serramonte Boulevard between Junipero Serra Boulevard and El Camino Real) of travel lanes in 
each case could be reduced without significant impacts to vehicle travel times. Based upon this 
information, the Town completed a Streetscape Master Plan for Serramonte Boulevard and 
Collins Avenue. The plan proposes a lane reduction for the section of Serramonte Boulevard 
from Serra Center Driveway to El Camino Real to allow for wider sidewalks, landscaping and 
two pedestrian crosswalks. Parking is not allowed on Serramonte Boulevard. Loading and 
unloading of car carriers or other vehicles on the street is prohibited. Because the Streetscape 
Master Plan and 2040 General Plan envisioned the “Auto Row” uses, which included the 
proposed site, there would be no impacts to traffic or circulation from the project.  

The January 2020 Existing Conditions Report for the 2040 General Plan states that “Due to the 
character of Colma as a Town of cemeteries, the noise environment is generally a peaceful one. 
A minor amount of noise is generated from residential and cemetery areas by equipment such 
as lawn motors, air conditions, construction equipment and power tools. Noise from light 
industrial and auto repair activity generally located on Mission Road and Collins Avenue, have 
limited impact on the overall noise environment. The primary contributor to the Colma noise 
environment is vehicular traffic on major thoroughfares.” The major thoroughfares include El 
Camino Real, Junipero Serra Boulevard and Serramonte Boulevard. The existing dealership is 
expanding to include auto repair that would be within an enclosed building. As stated in the 
January 2020 Existing Conditions Report, auto repair activity has limited impact on the overall 
noise environment. Further there are no sensitive receptors (residences, hospitals, schools, 
nursing homes etc.) near the project site. The project will also be required to comply with 
Colma Municipal Code Section 5.04.220 (Standard Hours of Construction) which applies to all 
construction in the City and will ensures that noise related impacts during construction are less 
than significant. 

Colma’s air quality is generally good, due in large part to the marine influence which carries 
pollutants away from Colma. The largest source of air pollution in Colma is vehicular traffic. The 
2040 General Plan stated that “As future development takes place in Colma, it is anticipated it 
will be similar in nature to what already exists. Industries that produce concentrated amounts of 
air pollution are not planned in town”. The project would be required to comply with all 
applicable the Bay Area Air Quality Management District requirements.  Further there are no 
sensitive receptors (residences, hospitals, schools, nursing homes etc.) near the project site.  As 



 
Staff Report re Amended Condition Use Permit and Design Review 600 Serramonte Blvd, Page 7 of 10 

well, the auto related use was planned for in the 2040 General Plan.  Given the forgoing there 
would be no impact on air quality.  

The Town complies with the Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit (MRP), issued by the San  
Francisco Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) for its stormwater pollution control  
measures. Local agencies in San Mateo County are required to reduce surface water drainage  
pollution runoff and establish control measures in development projects, which provide specific  
guidelines on design measures for runoff of pollutants of concern, source controls, stormwater  
treatment measures, hydromodification management, and construction site controls. To address  
flow-related impacts of stormwater runoff, the Town also enforces National Pollutant Discharge  
Elimination System (NPDES) permits that are issued to industrial and construction activities. 
Colma has established preferred Best Management Practices (BMPs) for adoption into a 
Stormwater Management Plan. The project has prepared a Stormwater Management Plan that 
has been accepted by the Town’s Engineering Division. The stormwater management strategy 
for the site will consist of bioretention areas along the front and rear of the property, which will 
meet the Municipal Regional Stormwater NPDES Permit (MRP) standards and improve water 
quality leaving the site. The stormwater improvements will also allow for infiltration to reduce 
the existing quantity of water entering the storm drain system. The project will comply with all 
RWQCB and NPDES requirements.  
 
(e) The site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services. 

The project is an expansion of an existing building where there are public services located along 
Serramonte Boulevard. 

CEQA Guidelines section 15300.2  

None of the exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines section 15300.2 with regard to the use of 
categorical exemption from CEQA have application here.  

Findings Related to Granting an Amended Conditional Use Permit 

Section 5.03.410 of the Colma Municipal Code requires that certain findings be made for approval 
of a Conditional Use Permit. These findings are also required for an amended Conditional Use 
Permit. These findings apply to the project as follows: 

The proposed Conditional Use Permit will be consistent with the provisions of the 
Colma General Plan and Zoning Ordinance.  

The use is consistent with the Colma General Plan vision for Serramonte Boulevard as described 
in the 2040 General Plan (pages LU 4, 25, and 26).  The 2040 General Plan specifically states, 
“Land uses should be consistent with existing uses in the Commercial Core Planning Area with a 
variety of retail and service commercial uses in the shopping centers, primarily auto dealers on 
Serramonte Boulevard, and service commercial uses on Collins Avenue. Uses on Collins Avenue 
should be auto service-related businesses that do not attract a large amount of traffic and support 
the function of Auto Row.” Specifically, the parcel where this business currently operates is 
designated on the land use map for commercial use.  Auto-related uses are acceptable in the 
commercial land use category and are encouraged as a preferred establishment over other 
commercial retail uses (LU-9-1).  



 
Staff Report re Amended Condition Use Permit and Design Review 600 Serramonte Blvd, Page 8 of 10 

The Colma Commercial Zoning code is specifically broad to encourage a wide range of commercial 
uses.  Thus, the proposed use is also consistent with the Town’s Zoning provisions.  

Granting the Conditional Use Permit will not be detrimental to the public health, 
safety, or public welfare, or materially injurious to the properties or improvements in 
the vicinity. 

The project site is identified in the 2040 General Plan as being located within the Commercial 
Core and a part of “Auto Row”. Existing businesses and uses along the Serramonte Boulevard 
corridor include auto dealerships, commercial/retail, cemetery, the Creekside Villas (along El 
Camino Real) and Town Hall.  From the January 2020 Existing Conditions Report for the 2040 
General Plan, Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue were found to have excess vehicular 
roadway capacity, meaning the width (in the case of Collins Avenue) or number (in the case of 
Serramonte Boulevard between Junipero Serra Boulevard and El Camino Real) of travel lanes in 
each case could be reduced without significant impacts to vehicle travel times. Based upon this 
information, the Town completed a Streetscape Master Plan for Serramonte Boulevard and Collins 
Avenue. The plan proposes a lane reduction for the section of Serramonte Boulevard from Serra 
Center Driveway to El Camino Real to allow for wider sidewalks, landscaping and two pedestrian 
crosswalks. Parking is not allowed on Serramonte Boulevard. Loading and unloading of car 
carriers or other vehicles on the street is prohibited. 

During project construction, the Town will require implementation of BMPs for dust control and 
storm pollution prevention. The project will be required to comply with Colma Municipal Code 
Section 5.04.220 (Standard Hours of Construction) for noise related impacts during construction. 
This project will not create a significant impact on the surrounding area.   

Existing property uses, large or small, will not be detrimentally affected by the 
proposed Use Permit.  

The existing lot includes an auto dealership. Surrounding uses include auto dealerships, cemetery, 
commercial/retail, Creekside Villas (along El Camino Real) and Town Hall. All auto-related service 
activity will be contained within a fully enclosed building, except for auto sales and auto inventory. 
The January 2020 Existing Conditions Report for the 2040 General Plan states that “Due to the 
character of Colma as a Town of cemeteries, the noise environment is generally a peaceful one. 
A minor amount of noise is generated from residential and cemetery areas by equipment such as 
lawn motors, air conditions, construction equipment and power tools. Noise from light industrial 
and auto repair activity generally located on Mission Road and Collins Avenue, have limited impact 
on the overall noise environment. The primary contributor to the Colma noise environment is 
vehicular traffic on major thoroughfares.” The major thoroughfares include El Camino Real, 
Junipero Serra Boulevard and Serramonte Boulevard.  

The existing dealership is expanding to include auto repair that would be within and enclosed 
building. As stated in the January 2020 Existing Conditions Report, auto repair activity has limited 
impact on the overall noise environment; therefore, existing properties would not be impacted by 
the proposed use.  

The granting of the Use Permit will not constitute a grant of special privilege 
inconsistent with the limitations imposed by the Zoning Ordinance on the existing use 
of properties, large or small, within the Town of Colma 



 
Staff Report re Amended Condition Use Permit and Design Review 600 Serramonte Blvd, Page 9 of 10 

The Amended Conditional Use Permit will not constitute the grant of a special privilege, as the 
auto related use is consistent with the Commercial zoning district and the General Plan land use 
designation. Auto-related use are preferred establishments over other commercial retail uses 
along “Auto Row”.  The proposed auto service center will be compatible with other uses in the 
surrounding area. In addition, similar uses are allowed on other parcels within the same 
Commercial zone illustrating that this is not a special privilege being granted but is consistent 
with other uses in the same zone district. 

The City Council is satisfied that the proposed structure or building conforms to the 
purpose and intent of the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance.  

The project site is identified in the 2040 General Plan as being located within the Commercial 
Core and a part of “Auto Row”. Auto-related uses are acceptable in the commercial land use 
category and are encouraged as a preferred establishment over other commercial retail uses (LU-
9-1). The proposed project is located on a site zoned for commercial use and complies with all 
applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance. In addition, the proposed use is allowed in the C 
zone district, with the approval of a Conditional Use Permit. The site is located within the Town’s 
"Auto Row” and compliments nearby existing land uses. Therefore, the proposed project conforms 
to the purpose and intent of the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance. 

The use will not constitute a nuisance to neighboring persons or properties.  

Neighboring properties include additional automotive dealerships, retail uses, public, and 
residential community. The proposed project meets all the standards identified in the Zoning 
Ordinance. During project construction, the Town will require implementation of Best 
Management Practices (BMPs) for dust control and storm pollution prevention. The project will 
be required to comply with Colma Municipal Code Section 5.04.220 (Standard Hours of 
Construction). This project will not create a significant impact on the surrounding area.   

Findings Related to Amended Design Review  

The project site is in the DR(S) Spanish Mediterranean Overlay Zone. Development in the portion 
of the DR zone which are designated with an “(S)” shall incorporate building, site and landscape 
design elements representing the Spanish/Mediterranean style. However, pursuant to Colma 
Municipal Code Section 5.03.300 (a)(1), an exception can be granted:  

“5.03.300 Restrictions and Procedures Applicable to the "DR" Design Review Zone.  

(a) Applicability. The requirements of this section shall apply to all site, landscape and building 
plans, whether submitted in connection with the construction of a new building or an 
alteration or modification to the structure or façade of an existing building, within the area 
described in Section 5.03.040(d) with the following exceptions: 

(1)  An addition or modification to an existing building where the addition or 
modification, if it were to conform to the DR standards, would clash with the 
building’s established architectural theme.” 

The existing building consists of modern architectural theme. By requiring the proposed service 
center to comply with Spanish Mediterranean architecture, there would be a clash with the 



 
Staff Report re Amended Condition Use Permit and Design Review 600 Serramonte Blvd, Page 10 of 10 

established architectural theme. Therefore, it is recommended that the City Council grant an 
exception to allow for modern design architecture.  

In addition to the new buildings, the project will include a new trash enclosure and landscape 
improvements.  

COUNCIL ADOPTED VALUES 

The recommendation is consistent with the Council values of fairness because the recommended 
decisions are consistent with how similar requests have been handled, and with the council value 
of responsibility because the proposed use has been carefully reviewed and conditioned so that 
it will be consistent with adopted development policies and regulations, and compatible within its 
setting. 

SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT 

The project will provide sustainability improvements to the site. The stormwater management 
strategy for the site will consist of bioretention areas along the front and rear of the property, 
which will meet the Municipal Regional Stormwater NPDES Permit (MRP) standards and improve 
water quality leaving the site. The stormwater improvements will also allow for infiltration to 
reduce the existing quantity of water entering the storm drain system.  

ALTERNATIVES 

The following courses of action are available to the City Council: 

1. Direct staff to bring back a resolution to deny the Amended Conditional Use Permit and 
Design Review. If this alternative is selected, staff recommends that the City Council 
articulate concerns and the reasons for selecting this alternative.  

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the resolution approving the Amended Conditional 
Use Permit and Design Review subject to the findings and recommended conditions of approval.  

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution 2023-____, Approving an Amended Conditional Use Permit and Design Review 
and granting an exception to the Spanish Mediterranean Design Review Overlay to allow 
for an Auto Dealership Expansion by adding a new Service Center to the existing Auto 
Dealership at 600 Serramonte. 

B. Project Plan Set which includes existing site plan, proposed site plan, existing site 
elevations, proposed site elevations, existing building plan and new building plans.  

C. Project Operations Memo 



Res. 2023-__, 600 Serramonte Boulevard – Amended CUP and Design Review Page 1 of 19 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDED CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AND GRANTING 
AN EXCEPTION TO THE SPANISH MEDITERRANEAN DESIGN REVIEW OVERLAY TO 

ALLOW FOR AN AUTO DEALERSHIP EXPANSION BY ADDING A NEW SERVICE CENTER 
TO AN EXISTING AUTO DEALERSHIP LOCATED AT 600 SERRAMONTE BOULEVARD - 

APN: 008-392-140, PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINE 15332 

Property Owner: Greek Orthodox Memorial Park 
Lessee: Mathew Zaheri   

Location:  600 Serramonte Boulevard 
Assessor’s Parcel Number: 008-392-140 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. BACKGROUND

(a) The Town has received an application from Mathew Zaheri for approval of an Amended 
Conditional Use Permit and Design Review for the property at 600 Serramonte Boulevard (APN: 
008-392-140). 

(b) Pursuant to Section 15332 of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines, 
Class 32 Projects Categorized as in-fill development are Categorically Exempt from CEQA review. 

(c)  A notice of public hearing was mailed to all property owners within 300 feet of the 
subject property on September 14, 2023.  In addition, a notice of public hearing was posted on 
the three Town of Colma bulletin boards, on September 14, 2023.   

(d) The City Council has considered the Amended Conditional Use Permit and Design Review, 
the accompanying staff report, and all relevant evidence presented at the September 27, 2023, 
public meeting. 

(e) The City Council has duly considered said application, the staff report, and public 
comments thereon.  

2. FINDINGS

The City Council finds that: 

Findings Relating to California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Review 

Pursuant to Section 15332 of the CEQA Guidelines (In-fill Development Projects), projects 
characterized as in-fill development are Categorically Exempt from further environmental review 
based upon the findings provided below:  

Section 15332 Class 32 consists of projects characterized as in-fill development 
meeting the conditions described in this section. 

Attachment A



Res. 2023-__, 600 Serramonte Boulevard – Amended CUP and Design Review Page 2 of 19 

(a)  The project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all 
applicable general plan policies as well as with applicable zoning designation 
and regulations. 

The General Plan land use designation is Commercial, and the zoning is Commercial (“C”) with a 
Design Review Spanish Mediterranean Overlay Zone (DR(S)). Within the General Plan text, a list 
of appropriate retail and service uses are listed to serve the community, with auto-related uses 
listed as acceptable in the commercial land use category. The Town of Colma Commercial Zoning 
code encourages a wide range of commercial uses. The project has been designed consistent 
with the Town’s Zoning regulations.  

(b) The proposed development occurs within city limits on a project site of no 
more than five acres substantially surrounded by urban uses. 

The applicant leases the project site from the Greek Orthodox Memorial Park. The project site 
boundaries were established in a lease agreement with the property owner and by the Town’s 
General Plan land use and Zoning district boundaries. The project site area has been identified as 
70,800 square feet (1.6 acres), which is less than five acres. The project site is surrounded by 
urban uses, which includes Colma Town Hall, Kohl’s, and a cemetery.  

(c) The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare or threatened 
species. 

The project site is located near Colma Creek. The 2040 General Plan EIR states that “Colma 
Creek flows from the San Bruno Mountains through Colma to the San Francisco Bay. While 
portions of the creek provide habitat and could support protected species, the portions of the 
creek that flow through Colma flows mostly underground. While portions of the creek daylight in 
town, it is concrete-lined and does not provide habitat.” The 2040 General Plan states “that 
riparian vegetation, largely willow and alder, is limited to the banks along open sections of Colma 
Creek.” There is a small open section west of City Hall (adjacent to the subject site). The project 
would not alter or disturb the creek area, based upon the evaluation of the civil improvement 
plans prepared for the project. The site does have an existing chain link fence that prevents 
access to the creek and the project proposes silt fencing as part of the BMPs required by the 
RWQCB and NPDES requirements during the construction phase of the project. The 2040 
General Plan stated that the State and federally listed endangered San Francisco garter snake 
seeks the Red-legged frog as a food source, and there are no known populations of the snake in 
the town. The garter snake may have once been found along Colma Creek when it was a natural 
creek, but the current culverted condition of the creek is not suitable habitat. Because the 
project would not disturb the creek or the riparian habitat, there would be no impact on 
endangered, rare, or threatened species from the project. 

(d) Approval of the project would not result in any significant effects relating to 
traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality. 

The auto related use is consistent with the Colma 2040 General Plan vision for Serramonte 
Boulevard as an “Auto Row”. Because the 2040 General Plan had a vision for the Commercial 
Core that included the “Auto Row”, the 2040 FEIR (although at a program level) did consider the 
existing auto related uses. From the January 2020 Existing Conditions Report for the 2040 
General Plan, Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue were found to have excess vehicular 



Res. 2023-__, 600 Serramonte Boulevard – Amended CUP and Design Review Page 3 of 19 

roadway capacity, meaning the width (in the case of Collins Avenue) or number (in the case of 
Serramonte Boulevard between Junipero Serra Boulevard and El Camino Real) of travel lanes in 
each case could be reduced without significant impacts to vehicle travel times. Based upon this 
information, the Town completed a Streetscape Master Plan for Serramonte Boulevard and 
Collins Avenue. The plan proposes a lane reduction for the section of Serramonte Boulevard from 
Serra Center Driveway to El Camino Real to allow for wider sidewalks, landscaping and two 
pedestrian crosswalks. Parking is not allowed on Serramonte Boulevard. Loading and unloading 
of car carriers or other vehicles on the street is prohibited. Because the Streetscape Master Plan 
and 2040 General Plan envisioned the “Auto Row” uses, which included the proposed site, there 
would be no impacts to traffic or circulation from the project.  

The January 2020 Existing Conditions Report for the 2040 General Plan states that “Due to the 
character of Colma as a Town of cemeteries, the noise environment is generally a peaceful one. 
A minor amount of noise is generated from residential and cemetery areas by equipment such as 
lawn motors, air conditions, construction equipment and power tools. Noise from light industrial 
and auto repair activity generally located on Mission Road and Collins Avenue, have limited 
impact on the overall noise environment. The primary contributor to the Colma noise 
environment is vehicular traffic on major thoroughfares.” The major thoroughfares include El 
Camino Real, Junipero Serra Boulevard and Serramonte Boulevard. The existing dealership is 
expanding to include auto repair that would be within an enclosed building. As stated in the 
January 2020 Existing Conditions Report, auto repair activity has limited impact on the overall 
noise environment. Further there are no sensitive receptors (residences, hospitals, schools, 
nursing homes etc.) near the project site. The project will also be required to comply with Colma 
Municipal Code Section 5.04.220 (Standard Hours of Construction) which applies to all 
construction in the City and will ensures that noise related impacts during construction are less 
than significant. 

Colma’s air quality is generally good, due in large part to the marine influence which carries 
pollutants away from Colma. The largest source of air pollution in Colma is vehicular traffic. The 
2040 General Plan stated that “As future development takes place in Colma, it is anticipated it 
will be similar in nature to what already exists. Industries that produce concentrated amounts of 
air pollution are not planned in town”. The project would be required to comply with all 
applicable the Bay Area Air Quality Management District requirements.  Further there are no 
sensitive receptors (residences, hospitals, schools, nursing homes etc.) near the project site.  As 
well, the auto related use was planned for in the 2040 General Plan.  Given the forgoing there 
would be no impact on air quality.  

The Town complies with the Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit (MRP), issued by the San  
Francisco Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) for its stormwater pollution control  
measures. Local agencies in San Mateo County are required to reduce surface water drainage  
pollution runoff and establish control measures in development projects, which provide specific  
guidelines on design measures for runoff of pollutants of concern, source controls, stormwater  
treatment measures, hydromodification management, and construction site controls. To address  
flow-related impacts of stormwater runoff, the Town also enforces National Pollutant Discharge  
Elimination System (NPDES) permits that are issued to industrial and construction activities. 
Colma has established preferred Best Management Practices (BMPs) for adoption into a 
Stormwater Management Plan. The project has prepared a Stormwater Management Plan that 
has been accepted by the Town’s Engineering Division. The stormwater management strategy for 



Res. 2023-__, 600 Serramonte Boulevard – Amended CUP and Design Review Page 4 of 19 

the site will consist of bioretention areas along the front and rear of the property, which will 
meet the Municipal Regional Stormwater NPDES Permit (MRP) standards and improve water 
quality leaving the site. The stormwater improvements will also allow for infiltration to reduce the 
existing quantity of water entering the storm drain system. The project will comply with all 
RWQCB and NPDES requirements.  
 
(e) The site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services. 

The project is an expansion of an existing building where there are public services located along 
Serramonte Boulevard. 

CEQA Guidelines section 15300.2  

None of the exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines section 15300.2 with regard to the use of 
categorical exemption from CEQA have application here.  

Findings Related to Granting an Amended Conditional Use Permit 

Section 5.03.410 of the Colma Municipal Code requires that certain findings be made for 
approval of a Conditional Use Permit. These findings are also required for an amended 
Conditional Use Permit. These findings apply to the project as follows: 

The proposed Conditional Use Permit will be consistent with the provisions of the 
Colma General Plan and Zoning Ordinance.  

The use is consistent with the Colma General Plan vision for Serramonte Boulevard as described 
in the 2040 General Plan (pages LU 4, 25, and 26).  The 2040 General Plan specifically states, 
“Land uses should be consistent with existing uses in the Commercial Core Planning Area with a 
variety of retail and service commercial uses in the shopping centers, primarily auto dealers on 
Serramonte Boulevard, and service commercial uses on Collins Avenue. Uses on Collins Avenue 
should be auto service-related businesses that do not attract a large amount of traffic and 
support the function of Auto Row.” Specifically, the parcel where this business currently operates 
is designated on the land use map for commercial use.  Auto-related uses are acceptable in the 
commercial land use category and are encouraged as a preferred establishment over other 
commercial retail uses (LU-9-1).  

The Colma Commercial Zoning code is specifically broad to encourage a wide range of 
commercial uses.  Thus, the proposed use is also consistent with the Town’s Zoning provisions.  

Granting the Conditional Use Permit will not be detrimental to the public health, 
safety, or public welfare, or materially injurious to the properties or improvements in 
the vicinity. 

The project site is identified in the 2040 General Plan as being located within the Commercial 
Core and a part of “Auto Row”. Existing businesses and uses along the Serramonte Boulevard 
corridor include auto dealerships, commercial/retail, cemetery, the Creekside Villas (along El 
Camino Real) and Town Hall.  From the January 2020 Existing Conditions Report for the 2040 
General Plan, Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue were found to have excess vehicular 
roadway capacity, meaning the width (in the case of Collins Avenue) or number (in the case of 
Serramonte Boulevard between Junipero Serra Boulevard and El Camino Real) of travel lanes in 
each case could be reduced without significant impacts to vehicle travel times. Based upon this 



Res. 2023-__, 600 Serramonte Boulevard – Amended CUP and Design Review Page 5 of 19 

information, the Town completed a Streetscape Master Plan for Serramonte Boulevard and 
Collins Avenue. The plan proposes a lane reduction for the section of Serramonte Boulevard from 
Serra Center Driveway to El Camino Real to allow for wider sidewalks, landscaping and two 
pedestrian crosswalks. Parking is not allowed on Serramonte Boulevard. Loading and unloading 
of car carriers or other vehicles on the street is prohibited. 

During project construction, the Town will require implementation of BMPs for dust control and 
storm pollution prevention. The project will be required to comply with Colma Municipal Code 
Section 5.04.220 (Standard Hours of Construction) for noise related impacts during construction. 
This project will not create a significant impact on the surrounding area.   

Existing property uses, large or small, will not be detrimentally affected by the 
proposed Use Permit.  

The existing lot includes an auto dealership. Surrounding uses include auto dealerships, 
cemetery, commercial/retail, Creekside Villas (along El Camino Real) and Town Hall. All auto-
related service activity will be contained within a fully enclosed building, except for auto sales 
and auto inventory. The January 2020 Existing Conditions Report for the 2040 General Plan 
states that “Due to the character of Colma as a Town of cemeteries, the noise environment is 
generally a peaceful one. A minor amount of noise is generated from residential and cemetery 
areas by equipment such as lawn motors, air conditions, construction equipment and power 
tools. Noise from light industrial and auto repair activity generally located on Mission Road and 
Collins Avenue, have limited impact on the overall noise environment. The primary contributor to 
the Colma noise environment is vehicular traffic on major thoroughfares.” The major 
thoroughfares include El Camino Real, Junipero Serra Boulevard and Serramonte Boulevard.  

The existing dealership is expanding to include auto repair that would be within and enclosed 
building. As stated in the January 2020 Existing Conditions Report, auto repair activity has 
limited impact on the overall noise environment; therefore, existing properties would not be 
impacted by the proposed use.  

The granting of the Use Permit will not constitute a grant of special privilege 
inconsistent with the limitations imposed by the Zoning Ordinance on the existing 
use of properties, large or small, within the Town of Colma 

The Amended Conditional Use Permit will not constitute the grant of a special privilege, as the 
auto related use is consistent with the Commercial zoning district and the General Plan land use 
designation. Auto-related use are preferred establishments over other commercial retail uses 
along “Auto Row”.  The proposed auto service center will be compatible with other uses in the 
surrounding area. In addition, similar uses are allowed on other parcels within the same 
Commercial zone illustrating that this is not a special privilege being granted but is consistent 
with other uses in the same zone district. 

The City Council is satisfied that the proposed structure or building conforms to the 
purpose and intent of the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance.  

The project site is identified in the 2040 General Plan as being located within the Commercial 
Core and a part of “Auto Row”. Auto-related uses are acceptable in the commercial land use 
category and are encouraged as a preferred establishment over other commercial retail uses 



Res. 2023-__, 600 Serramonte Boulevard – Amended CUP and Design Review Page 6 of 19 

(LU-9-1). The proposed project is located on a site zoned for commercial use and complies with 
all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance. In addition, the proposed use is allowed in 
the C zone district, with the approval of a Conditional Use Permit. The site is located within the 
Town’s "Auto Row” and compliments nearby existing land uses. Therefore, the proposed project 
conforms to the purpose and intent of the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance. 

The use will not constitute a nuisance to neighboring persons or properties.  

Neighboring properties include additional automotive dealerships, retail uses, public, and 
residential community. The proposed project meets all the standards identified in the Zoning 
Ordinance. During project construction, the Town will require implementation of Best 
Management Practices (BMPs) for dust control and storm pollution prevention. The project will 
be required to comply with Colma Municipal Code Section 5.04.220 (Standard Hours of 
Construction). This project will not create a significant impact on the surrounding area.   

Findings Related to Amended Design Review  

The project site is in the DR(S) Spanish Mediterranean Overlay Zone. Development in the portion of 
the DR zone which are designated with an “(S)” shall incorporate building, site and landscape design 
elements representing the Spanish/Mediterranean style. However, pursuant to Colma Municipal Code 
Section 5.03.300 (a)(1), an exception can be granted:  

“5.03.300 Restrictions and Procedures Applicable to the "DR" Design Review Zone.  

(a) Applicability. The requirements of this section shall apply to all site, landscape and building 
plans, whether submitted in connection with the construction of a new building or an 
alteration or modification to the structure or façade of an existing building, within the area 
described in Section 5.03.040(d) with the following exceptions: 

(1)  An addition or modification to an existing building where the addition or 
modification, if it were to conform to the DR standards, would clash with the 
building’s established architectural theme.” 

The existing building consists of modern architectural theme. By requiring the proposed service 
center to comply with Spanish Mediterranean architecture, there would be a clash with the 
established architectural theme.  Therefore, it is recommended that the City Council grant an 
exception to allow for modern design architecture.  

In addition to the new buildings, the project will include a new trash enclosure and landscape 
improvements.  

3. ORDER-CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
The City Council approves the Amended Conditional Use Permit and Design Review for a 19,550 
square foot Automotive Dealership and Service Center located at 600 Serramonte Boulevard within 
the Town of Colma. The site improvements shall include: 

o Ground Floor Expansion/14 Service Bays: 8,699 square feet 
o Second Floor Parts Storage:         2,833 square feet 
o New Service Center Canopy:         1,413 square feet 
o Existing Sales Building:         5,630 square feet 



Res. 2023-__, 600 Serramonte Boulevard – Amended CUP and Design Review Page 7 of 19 

o Existing Canopy:                                       975 square feet   
 
The project is subject to the full and faithful performance of each of the general terms and 
conditions sets forth in this Resolution and the following project-specific conditions:  
 

Conditions of Amended Conditional Use Permit 
 
1. Approval. The Conditional Use Permit is approved solely for the operation of an Auto 
Dealership and Service Center as described in the applicant’s proposed statement of operations on 
file with the Planning Department and as explained in the staff report date September 27, 2023. Any 
expansion, intensification, or changes to the uses approved under this Conditional Use Permit shall 
be permitted only upon amendment of this Conditional Use Permit or approval of a separate 
Conditional Use Permit. 
 
2. Time Limits: The Conditional Use Permit approval granted pursuant to this Resolution shall 
remain in effect for one year from approval date. If this Use Permit is about to expire with no 
building permit being issued by the expiration date, the applicant may submit an application for a 
one (1) year extension of the Use Permit to the Planning Department pursuant to Section 5.03.422 
(b) of Colma Municipal Code. 
 
3. All Uses Within a Building.  The Permittee shall conduct all service-related activity within a 
fully enclosed building, with the exception of automobile inventory and sales.  The service canopy 
can also be included in service-related activity. 
 
4. Nuisances. The Permittee shall not allow any nuisance to be maintained at the premises. 
 
5. Minor Changes. Minor changes to the approved use of the site may be approved 
administratively by the City Planner or designee. 
 
6. Parking. Parking shall be designated for new and used inventory, customer parking, and 
customer vehicle parking for the service center. No off-site parking shall be allowed for customers. 
Employees shall park off-site, with shuttle provided by the dealership. The Agreement with Daly City 
Serramonte Center, LLC to provide additional parking at 3 Serramonte Center for overflow and 
employee parking shall remain valid unless an amendment to the Conditional Use Permit is 
requested or all parking is provided onsite.   
 
7. Access for Delivery Trucks.  Suitable access for delivery trucks shall be maintained, and at no 
time shall delivery trucks be allowed to park on Serramonte Boulevard or in the fire lanes during 
loading or unloading activities. 
 
8. Noise. If the Town receives verified noise complaints from adjacent building tenants, the 
Applicant shall modify business practices and/or install further noise control features, such as noise 
insulation, to the satisfaction of the City Planner and Building Official.   
 
9. Trash Enclosure and Service. The permittee must subscribe to a regular refuse and recyclable 
items collection service (minimum pick-up of once per work and abide by the Town’s Recycling 
Ordinance). Any outdoor trash enclosure proposed for use should be roofed and plumbed to the 
sanitary sewer system. 
 
10. Outdoor Material Storage. Outdoor material storage should be within enclosed and contained 



Res. 2023-__, 600 Serramonte Boulevard – Amended CUP and Design Review Page 8 of 19 

areas to prevent any non-stormwater discharges into the storm drainage system and waterways. 
 
11. Outdoor Use. All activities for the business shall be conducted within the building. Car 
washing and detailing is not an allowed activity under this permit. 

 
Condit ions of Amended Design Review  Approval 

 
12. Approved Plans.  This approval is for the project presented in the approved Project Plans 

submitted to the Planning Department on August 10, 2023, prepared by JTG Architecture and on 
file in the office of the City Planner. All plans submitted for required permits and subsequent 
development and construction shall be in substantial compliance with these documents, subject 
to the changes and conditions set out herein. 

13. Standard Parking Spaces.  Standard parking spaces in the customer and employee parking 
lot shall be no smaller than 9 feet wide and 18 feet long and compact spaces shall be no longer 8 
feet by 16 feet. Disabled parking spaces shall meet ADA width and overhead clearance 
requirements. All parking spaces shall be served by an access aisle no smaller than 24 feet wide. 
Spaces and aisles are permitted to be narrower in the inventory area. 

14. Lighting Plans.  Final lighting plans (with light measurements to the front property lines) 
shall be submitted to the Planning Department prior to the issuance of a building permit.  

15. Colors and Materials.  Exterior colors and materials for the building must be consistent with 
the colors and materials noted in the approved architectural plan set. 

16. Clearly Labeled Address.  The building shall be provided with an address that is clearly 
visible from the roadway to the satisfaction of the Building Official and Colma Fire Protection District. 

17. Signage.  All signs to be used for identification of the business and directional signage shall 
be subject to required sign approvals from the Town. Any signage that is not included in the plans 
requires review and approval with an additional sign permit.  Now hiring and now open banners are 
permitted for display only for 90 days after opening.  

18. Minor Changes.  Minor changes to the approved project plans may be approved 
administratively by the City Planner or designee. Major changes to the approved plans shall be 
reviewed by the City Planner or designee to determine whether such changes require submittal and 
approval of a revision of the project approvals, or whether the changes require new or additional 
permits. 

19. Permits. The Permittee shall obtain all necessary permits, including but not limited to 
Building Permits, demolition and permits for signage prior to construction.  

20. Plans and Documents. All plans and documents shall be stamped and signed by all design 
professionals. 

21. California Building Code. All work shall comply with the 2022 California Building Code 
edition. 

22. ADA. ADA improvements are required and shall comply with 2022 California Building Code 
Chapter 11-B.  



Res. 2023-__, 600 Serramonte Boulevard – Amended CUP and Design Review Page 9 of 19 

23. School Impact Fees. The permittee shall pay school impact fees pursuant to Government 
Code Section 53080 to the Jefferson Union High School District and provide School District 
Certification to the Building Department prior to issuance of a building permit. 

Grading, Drainage and Storm Water Pollut ion Prevention 

24. Grading and Encroachment Permit. The permittee shall apply for and obtain Grading and 
Encroachment Permits, and comply with all conditions therein, prior to starting any work.  

25. Sewer Connection-Capacity Fee. Prior to Issuance of Town Permit(s), the property owner 
shall pay the sewer connection-capacity fee (as determined by the sanitary sewer district - City of 
South San Francisco) for change in use at the subject parcel. 

26.  Upgrades. A sidewalk access easement shall be dedicated to the Town of Colma if a 
sidewalk wrap-around is provided to achieve ADA compliance at the driveway conform (frontage 
sidewalk along Serramonte Boulevard). Legal description and plat shall be provided to the Town 
for review and approval. 

27. Stormwater Management and Treatment Plan.  The project shall comply with Provision 
C.3 and C.6 of the Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit (MRP) for stormwater treatment, Low 
Impact Development and Trash Capture Devices. Consistent with the preliminary Civil Grading, 
drainage, utility, and Improvement Plans prepared by Clifford Bechtel and Associated, LLC., Rev 
2, dated August 2, 2023, the permittee shall submit a storm water management-treatment plan 
showing site design, source control, storm water treatment, low impact development (LID), and 
construction best management practices (BMP) for compliance with Provision C.3 of the 
Municipal Regional Storm Water Permit (MRP). Appropriate Site Design measures, Source Control 
measures, and Construction Best Management Practices (BMP’s) shall be designed and shown on 
the project plans in accordance with the Stormwater Requirements Checklist for C.3 and C.6 
Regulated Projects. Complete and submit the C.3 and C.6 Development Review Checklist (excel 
form) https://www.flowstobay.org/preventing-stormwater-pollution/with-new-redevelopment/c-
3-regulated-projects/ (under Forms and Checklists). Additional C.3 related comments may be 
provided after review of this checklist. The checklist shall be submitted along with the project 
plans.  

i. Improvement Plans.  Improvement plans shall show drainage areas and location of 
Low Impact Development (LID) treatment measures; project watershed area; total 
project site area and total area of land disturbed; total new and/or replaced 
impervious area; treatment measures and hydraulic sizing calculations; a listing of 
source controls and site design measures to be implemented at the site; and 
supporting calculations.  

ii. Interior Floor Drains.  Interior floor drains shall be plumbed to the sanitary sewer 
system/ treatment device acceptable to the City Engineer and shall not be connected 
to storm drains.   

iii. Fire Sprinkler Test Water.  The project design and construction shall provide for fire 
sprinkler test water to be discharged into landscaped areas or the sanitary sewer 
system. 



Res. 2023-__, 600 Serramonte Boulevard – Amended CUP and Design Review Page 10 of 19 

iv. Air Conditioning Condensate.  Condensate from air conditioning units shall be 
directed to landscape areas or connected to the sanitary sewer system.  Any anti-
algal or descaling agents must be properly disposed of.  

28. Stormwater Maintenance Agreement. The property owner shall enter into a Stormwater 
Treatment Measures Maintenance Agreement accepting responsibility for the adequate 
installation/construction, operation, maintenance, inspection, and reporting of any on-site 
stormwater treatment measures being incorporated into the project until the responsibility is legally 
transferred to another entity. Storm drainage from all new and replaced hardscape areas shall be 
treated. The drainage from the building/downspouts and the replaced asphalt building frontage is 
treated before its connection to daylight/discharge point needs to be shown. The maintenance 
agreement shall be drafted to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and the agreement shall be 
recorded at the County Recorder’s Office at the permittee’s expense.  

29. Stormwater Management Report. The Permittee shall submit a signed and stamped 
Stormwater Management report (this can be included in the site Hydrology and Hydraulics report) 
which includes the following: 

i. Narrative summary of the existing and proposed drainage conditions 

ii. Narrative summary of the proposed stormwater management approach 

iii. Calculation of pre- and post-development flows 

iv. Stormwater treatment calculations  

30.  Minimum Slopes.  All slopes shall be shown on the plans and finished grades shall be 
designed to have a minimum slope of 1%. If a minimum 1% slope is not feasible, the applicant shall 
work with staff to design acceptable grades. 

31. NOI and SWPPP.  The permittee must obtain coverage under the General Construction 
Activity Storm Water Permit (General Construction Permit) issued by the State Water Resources 
Control Board (SWRCB).  The permittee must file a notice of intent (NOI) with the SWRCB.  The 
permittee will be required to prepare a stormwater pollution prevention plan (SWPPP) and submit 
the plan for review and approval by the City Engineer.  Prior to the issuance of any construction-
related permits, the permittee shall submit to the City Engineer a copy of the SWPPP and the WDID 
number.   

32. Drain Inlets.  On-site storm drain inlets shall be marked with the words “No Dumping! Flows 
to Bay” or equivalent. 

33. Erosion and Sediment Control Plan.  Project plans shall include a site-specific erosion and 
sediment control plan (ESC) and Construction Best Management Practices (BMP) plan sheet into the 
plan set.  Erosion & Sediment Control Measures and Best Management Practices shall be 
implemented and maintained throughout the duration of construction. 

34. Runoff.  Runoff shall not be allowed to flow across lot lines or across property boundaries 
onto adjacent private property without an easement being recorded by the permittee at no cost to 
the Town.  



Res. 2023-__, 600 Serramonte Boulevard – Amended CUP and Design Review Page 11 of 19 

35. Hazardous Materials.  Prior to commencing any work on the project, the Permittee must 
remove all hazardous materials and remediate all contaminated soil conditions documented in the 
report to the satisfaction of San Mateo County. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the 
Permittee shall submit certification to the City Engineer that hazardous materials have been removed 
and that any contaminated soil conditions have been remediated. 

i. The project environmental consultant shall confirm that iron oxide and manganese 
found in geotechnical borings do not pose a hazard, even with the use of infiltration 
onsite. 

ii. Conduct sampling and testing to verify the absence of any hazardous contaminants 
in the soil. This work should be done under the direction of the project geotechnical 
engineer and environmental consultant. 

iii. Inspect the existing transformers for leaks, stains, or other evidence of PCB 
discharge, and establish the age of the existing transformer. 

iv. Infiltration shall be prohibited if soil contamination is found to be present onsite, or if 
the site operations would introduce contamination.  

36. Grading and Drainage Plan.  The Permittee shall submit a site Grading and Drainage Plan in 
cubic yards (cut and fill, include basis of quantity calculations), total area of land disturbed square 
footage of new and replaced impervious areas to the City Engineer for review and approval and 
obtain permit(s) prior to commencing any work on the project, including demolition or grading work. 
The Plan shall include cross-sections through all graded areas and show stabilization of the slope 
and disturbed areas behind the new building. The Plan shall include all recommendations contained 
in the Final Soils and Geotechnical Report(s).  The Plan shall be prepared by a licensed civil engineer 
and shall be approved by the project Soils Engineer. 

37. Water Efficient Landscape Regulations.  The project shall comply with the Town of Colma 
Ordinance on Water Efficient Landscape Regulations, subchapter 5.11 of the Colma Municipal Code. 
The permittee shall install and maintain landscaping and irrigation in accordance with a Landscape 
and Irrigation Plan approved by the City Planner or designee prior to the issuance of building 
permits.  The Plan shall include the following: 

i. Irrigation System.  An automatic irrigation system shall be installed and 
maintained.  The Irrigation component of the Plan shall detail the whole irrigation 
system and shall include information such as: the location of water source, point-
of-connection, emergency shut-off valve(s), backflow device(s), pipelines, quick 
coupler valves, sprinkler heads, drip emitters, irrigation controller(s), electrical 
power source, moisture sensor, system drain valves, and turf, shrub and drip 
valve(s). 

 
ii. Design Landscape to Minimize Irrigation.  Landscaping shall be designed to 

minimize irrigation.  Drought-tolerant plants shall be utilized to the extent 
feasible.   

iii. Design Landscape to Collect Runoff and Minimize Storm Water Pollution.  Where 
feasible, landscaping shall be designed and operated to treat storm water runoff 
by incorporating elements that collect, detain, and infiltrate runoff.  In areas that 
provide detention of water, plants that are tolerant of saturated soil conditions 



Res. 2023-__, 600 Serramonte Boulevard – Amended CUP and Design Review Page 12 of 19 

and prolonged exposure to water shall be specified.  The use of fertilizers and 
pesticides that can contribute to storm water pollution shall be minimized.  

 
iv. Integrated Pest Management.  Integrated pest management (IPM) principles and 

techniques shall be encouraged as part of the landscaping design to the 
maximum extent practicable.  Examples of IPM principles and techniques include: 

 
• Select plants that are well adapted to soil conditions at the site. 
• Select plants that are well adapted to sun and shade conditions at the site. 

 In making these selections, consider future conditions when plants reach 
maturity, as well as seasonal changes. 

• Install and maintain irrigation appropriate to the water requirements of the 
selected plants. 

• Select pest-resistant and disease-resistant plants. 
• Plant a diversity of species to prevent a potential pest infestation from 

affecting the entire landscaping plan. 
• Use “insectary” plants in the landscaping to attract and keep beneficial 

insects. 
 

v. Installation Timeframe.  Installation of landscape and irrigation shall be completed 
prior to the final building permit inspection.   

 
 38. Draft O&M Agreement. The Permittee shall submit a draft Operations and Maintenance 
(O&M) Agreement with the building permit submittal. The maintenance agreement package 
should include the following: 

i. The agreement, using the latest template provided for the Town of Colma in Word 
format. Modifications should not be made to the agreement language or format 
without approval by the Town. 

 
ii. Exhibit A – A legal description of the property, matching the legal description from 

the property’s title report. 
 

iii. Exhibit B – A reduced (8.5x11 size) copy of the stormwater treatment plans and 
details. 

 
iv. Exhibit C – (1) A Stormwater Treatment Measure O&M Report Form”, prepared using 

the template provided in Appendix G of the SMCWPPP C.3 Regulated Projects Guide, 
latest edition; and, (2) A maintenance plan for onsite stormwater treatment 
measures prepared using the template provided in Appendix G of the SMCWPPP C.3 
Regulated Projects Guide, latest edition. 

 
Construction Activit ies 

 
39. Conditions of Approval with Plan Sets. The conditions of approval shall be reproduced on the 
first page of the plans submitted for demolition, grading or building permits.  Additional pages may 
be used if necessary. At least one copy of the stamped approved plans, along with the Approval 
Letter and Conditions of Approval and/or mitigations, shall be available for review at the job site at 
all times. 



Res. 2023-__, 600 Serramonte Boulevard – Amended CUP and Design Review Page 13 of 19 

 
40. Underground Service Alert.  Prior to commencing construction, the applicant will request an 
Underground Service Alert (USA) of the construction site. 

41. San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC). The applicant shall submit a shoring plan 
for the retaining wall construction to the SFPUC for review. 

42. Traffic Control Plan. The permittee shall submit a Traffic Control Plan to the City Engineer for 
review and approval prior to commencing any work on the project, including demolition or grading 
work, for control procedures during the construction of the project. The Plan shall include at least 
the following: the route(s) that construction trucks shall use to access the property, identification of 
the access point(s) to the site, any proposed staging area for trucks waiting to enter the site, traffic 
management for any work within the improved portion of a public right-of-way, and any proposed 
traffic controls, such as the use of flag persons, to ensure the safe entry and exit of trucks accessing 
the project site. Throughout the construction period for the project, the permittee must faithfully 
implement the approved Traffic Control Plan. 

43. Construction Staging Plan. Prior to the issuance of any demolition, building, or grading 
permit, the permittee shall submit a construction staging plan for the review and approval of the City 
Planner. The plan shall show where construction materials will be stockpiled prior to use, where 
construction debris will be collected, how frequently the debris will be removed, and where parking 
will be provided for construction equipment and construction workers. Construction activity on the 
project site shall be in compliance with the approved construction staging plan. 

44. Construction Signage. Prior to commencing any work on the project, including demolition or 
grading work, the permittee shall post on the project site in clear view of the public right-of-way, a 
sign indicating hours of construction and a phone number of the permittee to call for noise 
complaints. 

45. Construction Hours. Per Colma Municipal Code 5.04.220(c), Standard Hours of Construction, 
within a radius of 500 feet of any residential unit, construction related work including truck hauling is 
limited to Monday to Friday from 8:00 AM to 7:00 PM, Saturday, 9:00 AM to 5:00 PM, and Sunday 
from 12:00 PM to 5:00 PM. 

46. Approved Haul Route. The Permittee shall submit proposed haul route to and from the 
project site, which route shall be subject to review and approval by the Public Works Director or his 
Designee. All contractors and suppliers shall be advised to use the approved haul route in moving 
materials and equipment to and from the project site. 

47. Permitted Grading Season. Grading work shall be limited to the period between May 1st and 
September 30th unless an alternative schedule is approved in writing by the City Engineer in 
conjunction with the approval of an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan 

48. Repairs to Public Improvements. The Permittee shall be responsible for the cost of repairs to 
any improvements within the public right-of-way that are damaged during construction. The 
permittee shall submit documentation of the existing condition of the approved haul route and the 
public improvements along the project’s frontage, including but not limited to trees, tree grates, 
signs, light poles, drainage inlets, curbs, gutters, etc. to the satisfaction of the City Engineer prior to 
issuance of a grading or building permit. This survey shall be submitted to the City Engineer prior to 
issuance of a grading or building permit. This survey shall be submitted to the City Engineer for 



Res. 2023-__, 600 Serramonte Boulevard – Amended CUP and Design Review Page 14 of 19 

review and approval.  All damage shall be repaired to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director or 
his Designee Public Work Director or his Designee at no cost to the Town prior to approval of final 
occupancy.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, all damage that is a threat to public health or safety, as 
determined by the Public Works Director, shall be repaired immediately.  

49. Storage of Materials in the Public Roadway. No material or equipment shall be stored on the 
improved portion of any public roadway at any time. 

50. Litter Control. Prior to the end of each workday during construction, the contractor or 
contractors shall pick up and properly dispose of all litter resulting from or related to the project, 
whether located on the property, within the public rights-of-way, or properties of adjacent or nearby 
neighbors.  

51. Reduce Particulate Emissions.  To reduce particulate matter emissions during project 
demolition and construction phases, the permittee shall require the construction contractors to 
comply with the dust control strategies developed by the Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
(BAAQMD) and shall include in construction contracts the following requirements: 

i. Cover the load area of all trucks hauling construction and demolition debris from the 
site; 

ii. Water all exposed or disturbed soil surfaces at least twice daily, or as required; 

iii. Use watering to control dust generation during demolition of structures or break-up 
of pavement; 

iv. Pave, apply water three times daily, at a minimum, or apply (non-toxic) soil 
stabilizers on all unpaved parking areas, staging areas, and areas used for vehicle 
access within the site; 

v. Sweep daily all paved parking areas and staging areas during the earthwork phases 
of construction; 

vi. Provide daily clean-up of mud and dirt carried onto paved streets from the site; 

vii. Enclose, cover, water twice daily, or as needed, or apply non-toxic soil binders to 
exposed stockpiles (dirt, sand, etc.); 

viii. Limit traffic speeds on unpaved roads to 15 mph; 

ix. Install and maintain sandbags or other erosion control measures to prevent silt 
runoff to public roadways;  

x. Replant vegetation in disturbed areas as quickly as possible; and, 

xi. Reduce Air Pollutants Related to Vehicle Operation. 

52. Reduce Air Pollutants Related to Vehicle Operation. The Permittee shall ensure that the 
contractors shall implement measures to reduce the emissions of pollutants generated by heavy-
duty diesel-powered equipment operating at the Project Site during project demolition, excavation, 



Res. 2023-__, 600 Serramonte Boulevard – Amended CUP and Design Review Page 15 of 19 

and construction phases.  The permittee shall include in construction contracts the following 
requirements or measures shown to be equally effective: 

i. Keep all construction equipment in proper tune in accordance with manufacturer’s 
specifications; 

ii. Use late model heavy-duty diesel-powered equipment at the Project Site to the 
extent that it is readily available in the San Francisco Bay Area; 

iii. Use diesel-powered equipment that has been retrofitted with after-treatment 
products (e.g., engine catalysts) to the extent that it is readily available in the San 
Francisco Bay Area; 

iv. Use low-emission diesel fuel for all heavy-duty diesel-powered equipment operating 
and refueling at the Project Site to the extent that it is readily available and cost 
effective in the San Francisco Bay Area (this does not apply to diesel-powered trucks 
traveling to and from the site); 

v. Utilize alternative fuel construction equipment (i.e., compressed natural gas, liquid 
petroleum gas, and unleaded gasoline) to the extent that the equipment is readily 
available and cost effective in the San Francisco Bay Area; 

vi. Limit truck and equipment idling time to five minutes or less; and, 

vii. Rely on the electricity infrastructure surrounding the construction sites rather 
than electrical generators powered by internal combustion engines to the 
extent feasible. 

53. Air Quality Provisions in Contractor Agreements. The Permittee shall incorporate the following 
practices into the construction documents to be implemented by the project contractor and submit 
evidence of compliance to the City Planner for approval prior to the issuance of any construction 
permit, including a grading permit.  The physical separation between noise generators and noise 
receptors shall be maximized.  Such practices include, but are not limited to, the following 
measures: 

viii. Use heavy-duty mufflers for stationary equipment and barriers around 
particularly noisy areas of the site or around the entire site; 

ix. Use shields, impervious fences, or other physical sound barriers to inhibit 
transmission of noise to sensitive receptors; 

x. Locate stationary equipment on portions of the project site distant from 
nearby residential areas to minimize noise impacts on the community; 

xi. Minimize backing movements of equipment; and, 

xii. Select and use the quieter from among available construction equipment 
whenever possible. 

54. Staking of Property Boundaries and Building Corners.  Prior to commencing any work on the 
project, the permittee shall have the property boundaries staked by a California-licensed land 



Res. 2023-__, 600 Serramonte Boulevard – Amended CUP and Design Review Page 16 of 19 

surveyor or a California-registered qualified engineer.  For new buildings, the written verification 
that the placement of the retaining walls and building comply with the approved site plan, 
prepared by a California-licensed surveyor or civil engineer licensed to practice surveying, shall be 
submitted, and found acceptable by the Building Official prior to pouring of any foundation.  

55. Temporary Power Poles. Applicant shall use temporary power poles instead of generators 
where feasible. 

56. Vector Control.  Prior to commencing any grading or building demolition, the permittee shall 
consult with County Environmental Health regarding vector control to reduce the displacement of 
mice and rats from the project site to adjacent properties. The permittee shall carry out a program 
of vector reduction within 30 days prior to commencing construction activities. Additionally, the 
permittee shall distribute information to the owners of properties within 300 feet of the project site 
boundaries with information about what to check to reduce the likelihood of vectors entering their 
property and buildings. 

57. Rerouting of Irrigation Laterals.  If applicable, existing irrigation lateral lines servicing 
existing Town landscaping shall be rerouted to the satisfaction of the Public Works Department 
prior to construction of new driveways if the driveways conflict with the existing lines. 

58. Temporary Construction Easement.  If applicable, the Permittee shall obtain a Temporary 
Construction Easement from adjacent/affected property owners for any construction taking place 
on a property line.  

Financial Guarantees 

59. Financial Guarantees. The Permittee must post a security bond, cash deposit or letter of 
credit in an amount not less than 100% of the estimated cost of all off-site and/or on-site public 
improvements to guarantee to the Town the faithful performance of all work and all conditions 
contained or described in the Permit. The financial guarantee shall also include a two-year 
maintenance provision that provides for 10% of the bond to be held for two years to make any 
repairs or corrections to the public improvements identified within two years of the improvements 
being accepted as complete by the City. The estimated cost of the off-site public improvements 
shall be determined by the City Engineer, and the security must be in a form reasonably 
satisfactory to the City Attorney. 

Colma Fire Protect ion District Requirements  

The requirements of the Colma Fire Protection District shall be met prior to the issuance of building 
permit(s) for the project. For further information on the requirements of the District, the applicant 
may contact the Deputy Fire Marshal, Bill Pardini at bpardini@colmafd.org or (650)740-2073. A 
separate review fee is required as part of the building permit plan check process. These comments 
include: 

60. Emergency Lighting: Testing of the exit and emergency lighting fixtures must be completed 
prior to prior final building inspection.  

61. Fire Alarm: Complete plans for the fire alarm system must be submitted.  

62. Fire Sprinkler: Submit plans for fire sprinkler system. 



Res. 2023-__, 600 Serramonte Boulevard – Amended CUP and Design Review Page 17 of 19 

63. Knox Box: The existing Knox Box located in the main building should be relocated to the new 
building.  

64. Fire Access: No vehicles shall block any required fire lane or driveways for access. 

65. Fire Riser Room: A Fire Riser room is required. 

66. Fire Hydrant: A Fire hydrant is required on site. 

67. Fire Underground: Submit plans for changes to the existing fire underground system.  

68. Fire Department Connection: The existing Fire Department Connection will require relocation 
designated by the Fire Marshal. 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

69. Prior Approvals. The granting of this Amended Conditional Use Permit and Design Review 
approval shall supersede the approvals authorized by City Council Resolution No. 2022-34.  

70. Indemnification. Permittee and its heirs, successors, and permitted assigns shall, at its sole 
cost and expense, indemnify, defend, protect, release, and hold harmless the Town and any agency 
or instrumentality thereof, including any of its officers, employees, commissions, and agents 
(collectively, “Indemnitees”), from and against any and all claims, actions, or proceedings 
(collectively, “Claims”) arising out of or in any way relating to the processing and/or approval of this 
Project, the purpose of which is to attack, set aside, void, or annul the approval of this Project and 
any environmental determination that accompanies it. This indemnification shall include, but not be 
limited to, suits, damages, judgments, costs, expenses, liens, levies, attorney fees or expert witness 
fees that may be asserted or incurred by any person or entity, including the Permittee, third parties 
and the Indemnitees, arising out of or in connection with the approval of this Project and/or any 
environmental determination that accompanies it. Permittee agrees to pay directly, or timely 
reimburse on a monthly basis, the Town for all such costs of defense, including but not limited to, 
court costs, attorney fees, and time referenced herein.  The Town, in its sole and absolute 
discretion, may elect, and the Applicant hereby agrees, to have the Applicant provide the defense of 
the Indemnitees subject to the Town’s approval of defense council.  Nothing herein shall prohibit the 
Town from participating in the defense of any claim, action, or proceeding. Permittee’s defense and 
indemnification of the Indemnitees as set forth herein shall remain in full force and effect 
throughout all stages of any litigation challenging the Project, including any and all appeals of any 
lower court judgments rendered in the proceeding. 

60. Permit Agreement. The Permittee must agree to comply with every term and condition herein 
by countersigning a copy of this approval. 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 



Res. 2023-__, 600 Serramonte Boulevard – Amended CUP and Design Review Page 18 of 19 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2023-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on September 27, 2023, by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor      
John Irish Goodwin      
Ken Gonzalez       
Carrie Slaughter      
Helen Fisicaro      

Voting Tally      
 
 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
  Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 
 

 
 Attest:______________________________ 

         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Res. 2023-__, 600 Serramonte Boulevard – Amended CUP and Design Review Page 19 of 19 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO PROTEST 
 

The Conditions of Project Approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication requirements, 
reservation requirements, and other exactions. Pursuant to Government Code Section 66020(d)(1), 
these Conditions constitute written notice of a statement of the amount of such fees, and a 
description of the dedications, reservations, and other exactions. You are hereby further notified that 
the 90-day approval period in which you may protest these fees, dedications, reservations, and 
other exactions, pursuant to Government Code Section 66020(a), began on date of adoption of this 
resolution. If you fail to file a protest within this 90-day period complying with all of the 
requirements of Section 66020, you will be legally barred from later challenging such exactions. 

AGREEMENT 

Property Owner of 600 Serramonte Boulevard 

The undersigned agrees to use the property on the terms and conditions set forth in this 
resolution. 

Dated:     

   Name (printed)  

   
For: Greek Orthodox Memorial, Property Owner, 
600 Serramonte Boulevard 

     
Permittee of KIA Serramonte at 600 Serramonte Boulevard 

The undersigned agrees to use the property on the terms and conditions set forth in this 
resolution. 

Dated:     

   
Mathew Zaheri, Permittee, KIA Serramonte at 600 
Serramonte Boulevard  

    
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Attachment  B



























































E
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n

E
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n

Station

Station

120.00

130.00

140.00

150.00

160.00

120.00

130.00

140.00

150.00

160.00

0+00.00 0+85.05

0+00.00 0+25.00 0+50.00 0+75.00 0+85.05

SECTION A-A

E
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n

E
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n

Station

120.00

130.00

140.00

150.00

160.00

120.00

130.00

140.00

150.00

160.00

0+00.00 1+00.00 1+14.22

0+00.00 0+25.00 0+50.00 0+75.00 1+00.00 1+14.22

SECTION B-B

E
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n

E
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n

Station

Station

120.00

130.00

140.00

150.00

120.00

130.00

140.00

150.00

0+00.00 1+00.00 1+10.41

0+00.00 0+25.00 0+50.00 0+75.00 1+00.00 1+10.41

SECTION C-C

E
l
e

v
a

t
i
o

n

E
l
e

v
a

t
i
o

n

Station

Station

120.00

130.00

140.00

120.00

130.00

140.00

0+00.00 0+79.81

0+00.00 0+25.00 0+50.00 0+75.000+79.81

SECTION D-D

CAUTION:   IF THIS SHEET IS NOT 24"x36" IT IS A REDUCED PRINT 

C
O

L
M

A
/
C

A
L

I
F

O
R

N
I
A

6
3
0
 
S

E
R

R
A

M
O

N
T

E
 
B

L
V

D
.

C
R

O
S

S
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
S

C2.1

G
K

M
EN

G
IN

EE
RI

N
G

.c
om

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
. 9

50
32

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
  

SU
R

V
EY

IN
G

  
LA

N
D

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

16
18

5 
Lo

s 
G

at
os

 B
lv

d.
 S

ui
te

#2
05

(4
08

) 
65

6 
59

17

K
I
A

 
S

E
R

R
A

M
O

N
T

E

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: H:1"=10' V:1"=2' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 12" DIA.TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 6" DIA.TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 24" DIA.TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: H:1"=10' V:1"=2' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 12" DIA.TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 6" DIA.TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: H:1"=10' V:1"=2' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: H:1"=10' V:1"=2' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 8" DIA.TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE THE PROPERTY AND COPYRIGHT OF GKM ENGINEERING  AND SHALL NOT BE USED ON ANY OTHER WORK EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT WITH GKM ENGINEERING.   WRITTEN DIMENSIONS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS AND SHALL BE VERIFIED ON THE JOB SITE.  ANY DISCREPANCY SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE NOTICE OF GKM ENGINEERING PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PA / PM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMARKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
A220116

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/5/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

Cliff
Text Box
C-0.1



















KIA Serramonte 
600 Serramonte Blvd 

 Colma, CA 94014 

Management Plan 

Overview 
KIA is a car dealership which sells cars along with having a 14 bay service 
garage. 

Hours of Operation 
Sales Hours  

Monday – Saturday 9am to 8 pm 

Sunday – 10 am to 7 pm 

Service Hours 

Monday – Friday 7:30 am to 6 pm 

Saturday – 8 am to 4:30 pm 

Number of Employees  
The total number of employees for both the sales and service department shall 
be 25 employees.  These employees will be working different shifts so the total 
number of employees working at the same time will be less. 

Parking 
The site has a total of 58 parking stalls used for visitors, employees and 
servicing. The required number of parking stalls is 71 so KIA has an agreement 
with Daly City Serramonte Center, LLC to provided additional parking for 
employees and the holding of cars for sale.  The owner has an additional 550 
parking spaces at 3 Serramonte Center.  Shuttles will be provided as needed for 
employees. 

Vehicle Delivery  
All vehicle deliveries will occur behind the existing Volkswagen & Subaru 
Dealerships on Collins Avenue.  All three dealerships are owned and operated by 
the same owner. 

Attachment C



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  


	09.27.23  Regular Meeting Agenda
	1. Minutes - Special Meeting 09.13.23
	2. Minutes - Regular Meeting 09.13.23
	3. Grand Jury Response - Bicycle Safety
	A. Bike Safety Response Letter
	B. Grand Jury Report - Bike Safety in San Mateo County

	4. FY 2023-24 Non-Profit Funding
	A. Resolution - Grant Funding FY 2023-24
	B. 2023-24 Funding Request Summary
	C. Historical Funding Levels
	D. Funding Requests
	AbilityPath
	AbilityPath
	Board of Directors
	Budget
	Additional Information
	Grant Report


	AARS (HealthRIGHT 360)
	AARS
	Board of Directors
	Budget


	Clinic by the Bay
	Clinic By The Bay
	Board of Directors
	Budget
	Grant Report


	Chamber
	Chamber of Commerce
	Board of Directors
	Budget
	Grant Report


	CORA.pdf
	CORA
	Budget
	Board of Directors
	Grant Report


	DCPLA
	DCPLA
	Board of Directors
	Budget
	Grant Report


	DCYHC
	DCYHC
	Budget
	Executive Board
	Grant Report


	HIP Housing
	HIP Housing
	Board of Directors
	Budget
	Grant Report


	JUHSD CEEP
	JUHSD CEEP
	Board of Trustees
	Budget
	Grant Report


	LifeMoves
	LifeMoves
	Budget
	Board of Directors
	Additional Information
	Grant Report


	Ombudsman
	Ombudsman
	Board of Directors
	Budget
	Grant Report


	OSC
	Operation Santa Clause
	Governing Board
	Budget
	Grant Report


	Renaissance Center
	Renaissance Center
	Budget
	Board of Directors


	San Bruno Mountain Watch
	San Bruno Mountain Watch
	Board of Directors
	Budget
	Grant Report FY21-22


	SMC Jobs For Youth
	SMC Jobs For Youth
	Governing Board
	Budget
	Grant Report


	SVBC
	SVBC
	Board of Directors
	Budget
	Grant Report


	Sitike
	Sitike
	Board of Directors
	Budget
	Additional Information
	Grant Report


	Skyline (SMCCCD)
	Skyline College (SMCCCD)
	Board Members
	Budget
	Grant Report


	SSF Education Foundation
	SSF Education Foundation
	Board
	Budget


	Sustainable SMC
	Sustainable SMC
	Board Members
	Budget
	Additional Information
	Grant Report




	5. F Street Wall Mural Artist Selection
	A. Resolution - Professional Artist Services for F Strret Mural With Julie Engelmann
	B. F Street Wall Mural Agreement
	C. Artist Julie Engelmann Presentation

	6. Serramonte KIA - Amended Conditional Use Permit and Design Review
	A. Resolution - Kia Service Center 600 Serramonte Blvd.
	B. Serramonte KIA Project Plans
	C. Project Operations Memo




